NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

120 Torbay Road, P.O. Box 21040, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada, A1A 5B2

Hearing Transcript

2017 Automobile Insurance Review

September 12, 2018

PRESENT:

The Board:

Darlene Whalen, Chair and CEO Dwanda Newman, Vice-Chair James Oxford, Commissioner

Parties (Alphabetical Order)

Atlantic Provinces Trial Lawyers Association

Ernest Gittens

Campaign to Protect Accident Victims

Colin Feltham

Jerome Kennedy, Q.C.

Consumer Advocate

Dennis Browne, O.C.

Andrew Wadden

Insurance Bureau of Canada (IBC)

Amanda Dean

Kevin Stamp, Q.C.

Trevor Foster

Spinal Cord Injury NL

Thomas Fraize, Q.C.

Lara Fraize-Burry

Michael Burry

Board Counsel/ Staff:

Jacqueline Glynn, Board Counsel Ryan Oake, Regulatory Analyst Peter O'Flaherty, Q.C., Hearing Counsel

Presenters:

Viivi Riis

Presenting on behalf of IBC

John Karapita

Allen Wynperle

Presenting on behalf of the Campaign

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 1		Page 3
1	(9:00 a.m.)	1	an interest in pain management as well. I
2	CHAIR:	2	have to apologize, I notice that there's
3	Q. Good morning, everybody. I think we're	3	1986 to 1991 is missing from my CV, and I
4	going right to IBC to introduce your first	4	think that was a formatting error on my
5	presenter.	5	part. So between 1986 and 1991, I worked
6	STAMP, Q.C.:	6	for a company called Therapy Supplies, and I
7	Q. Yes, Madam Chair. Ms. Viivi Riis is here	7	was an educational consultant, really part
8	with us. I circulated her CV yesterday, so	8	of the sales force, and I essentially went
9	that should be on the system. I notice my	9	around to the hospitals and health
10	friends next to me don't have a screen yet,	10	organizations to train people on the use of
11	so I don't know – the screen is not lit up.	11	transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation,
12	CHAIR:	12	functional electrical stimulation, and those
13	Q. We'll call our expert.	13	kinds of modalities. In 1991 through 1993,
14	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	14	I worked as an ADP authorizer. This is a
15	Q. That's fine.	15	process in Ontario where we can prescribe
16	STAMP, Q.C.:	16	•
		17	equipment, wheelchairs, walkers, through a
17			government program for people who needed
18	CHAIR:	18	such equipment, and the government would
19	Q. Thank you.	19	fund 75 percent of the equipment if
20	STAMP, Q.C.:	20	prescribed by an ADP authorizer. So I had a
21	Q. Good morning, Ms. Riis.	21	lot of experience in dealing with the kinds
22	A. Good morning.	22	of equipment that people with a variety of
23	Q. Thank you for agreeing to come to St. John's		disabilities and impairment have. Then in
24	to help us with this. First of all, I'd	24	1992, I started a business called Dynamic
25	like, if you would, to introduce yourself	25	Rehabilitation with a partner who was also a
	Page 2		Page 4
1	and we're going to have you walk through	1	physical therapist. Her particular area of
2	your CV. It's been brought up on the screen	2	interest was spinal cord injury, and, of
3	in front of you. You may have a copy of it,	3	course, my expertise was in musculoskeletal
4	in any event.	4	injury, and we started to offer health care
5	MS. RIIS:	5	services to people after motor vehicle
6	A. Okay, thank you very much. My name is Viivi	6	collisions who were waiting to get publicly
7	Riis. I'm a physical therapist by training,	7	funded therapy. So even at that time,
8	and I've been most recently working as a	8	publicly funded treatment was available to
9	consultant to a variety of different	9	people injured in traffic collisions, but
10	parties, but to begin with my working career	10	often there was a waiting list, so we were
11	started in the physiotherapy field treating	11	delivering private therapy services in the
12	largely musculoskeletal injuries. I worked	12	home. That was an interesting time because
13	in private practice. I worked with the	13	we did a lot of work with insurance
14	Workers Compensation Board in Ontario, now	14	companies. We got referrals from insurers
15	known as the Workplace Safety and Insurance	15	as well as from plaintiff lawyers. Insurers
16	Board. I also worked for several years at	16	discovered that we were pretty comfortable
17	Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre, and I	17	with the health care system, we knew how to
18	became the supervisor of the outpatient	18	speak with physicians, we knew how to
19	physiotherapy department. Outpatient	19	understand the test results, so a lot of
20	meaning people who were able to live at	20	insurers and lawyers started to use our
21	home, but could come in for treatment, and I	21	company for case management services. That
22	focused primarily again on musculoskeletal	22	meant that we acted as navigators for
	ioogoog piiiiuiiiy ugaiii oii iiiubouiobkoiotai		
		23	injured people to work through the health
23	injury, post-traumatic injury, and also I	23 24	injured people to work through the health
		23 24 25	injured people to work through the health care systems, and I say "systems" because in Ontario the public health system was first

	11001 12, 2016		2017 Automobile insurance Review
	Page 5		Page 7
	payer, then private health benefits came	1	– I was trying to recall when I actually met
2	next, and then the auto insurer was last	2	IB, but I think it was during the process of
3	payer. So it was quite complex and many	3	insurance company training because I ended
4	people injured to this day find it difficult	4	up being hired by other insurance companies
5	to navigate. So in the process of doing	5	to offer training to Section B adjusters
6	this case management work, and working with	6	around health care issues. We also did some
7	insurance companies, one insurer approached	7	training on Section A, looking particularly
8	the University of Toronto, and I've had a	8	at brain injury and spinal cord injury
9	faculty appointment in the Faculty of	9	issues, but I believe IBC heard about this
10	Medicine, Department of Physical Therapy at	10	program and then IBC actually contracted
11	UT since about 1989, somebody approach U of	11	with me to develop an IBC claims manual and
12	T – it was actually All State Insurance and	12	training program for AB adjusters, and again
13	they were looking for somebody to train	13	with IBC, I traveled across Canada; Alberta,
14	their insurance adjusters, their Section B	14	the Atlantic Provinces, Ontario, to deliver
15	adjusters on how the health care system	15	this training to adjusters. So because
16	works, because at that time the legislation	16	Ontario had gone from a primarily tort
17	and regulation changed in Ontario where the	17	system to a hybrid no fault in tort, there
18	insurers became responsible for adjudicating	18	was a real adjustment for the insurance
19	about a million dollars in accident	19	industry, and so they were trying to bring
$\frac{1}{20}$	benefits. So I was picked or volunteered by	20	the adjusters up to speed on how to make
21	the university to develop a training program	21	good claims decisions around complex medical
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22 \end{vmatrix}$	1 01 0	22	issues.
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	for All State, and I ended up basically	23	
	traveling across Canada training All State		STAMP, Q.C.:
24	Section B adjusters, trying to give them	24	Q. When you say "AB adjusters", do you mean
25	information about how the health care system	25	accident benefit adjusters?
1	Page 6	1	Page 8
1	worked because the adjusters were	1	MS. RIIS:
1 2	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and	2	MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes.
3	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and	2 3	MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.:
	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important	2 3 4	MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time
3 4 5	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was	2 3 4 5	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first
3 4 5	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make	2 3 4 5 6	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded?
3 4 5 6 7	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed	2 3 4 5 6 7	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS:
3 4 5 6 7 8	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it was a program involving All State, what	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it was a program involving All State, what percentage you saw or trained? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. I'm sorry, carry on. MS. RIIS:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it was a program involving All State, what percentage you saw or trained? MS. RIIS: A. My estimate would be 90 percent or more.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. I'm sorry, carry on. MS. RIIS: A. So in the process of doing all of this
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it was a program involving All State, what percentage you saw or trained? MS. RIIS: A. My estimate would be 90 percent or more. They essentially rolled this out across the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. I'm sorry, carry on. MS. RIIS: A. So in the process of doing all of this education for the insurance industry, I also
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	worked because the adjusters were responsible for this large sum of money, and they had to decide what was reasonable and necessary and what wasn't. The important piece that I always tried to reinforce was that it's not the adjuster's role to make medical decisions, but certainly they needed medical information to make good adjudication decisions. So we tried to give them information that would assist them in making good claims decisions, while not attempting to control the medical process. So I did a lot of training for insurance companies through that period. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Ms. Riis, would you have any indication as to sort of what percentage of the Section B adjusters with All State, for example, it was a program involving All State, what percentage you saw or trained? MS. RIIS: A. My estimate would be 90 percent or more.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. RIIS: A. Accident benefits adjusters, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And do you have any recollection of the time frame that this – I guess, this first arrangement with IBC unfolded? MS. RIIS: A. I think it was around 2000 when I first started to do bits and pieces of work with IBC. I know there was – I think my initial engagement was around a project they were doing with McMaster University around fibromyalgia, to try to get their heads around what is fibromyalgia, how does it result after an auto collision and so on. So I did small pieces, and then that grew to the claims manual, but I'd say it was around 2000. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. I'm sorry, carry on. MS. RIIS: A. So in the process of doing all of this

	, 2016		2017 Automobile insurance Review
	Page 9		Page 11
	the insurance system works, to understand	1	from Toronto to Collingwood, two hours north
2	the interplay between accident benefits and	2	of Toronto, so I wasn't able to continue the
3	bodily injury benefits, and this was a real	3	policy work that I was doing. So between
4	eye opener for me because as a health care	4	2006 and 2010, I also did work for an IBC
5	provider who had been working in the system	5	arm called Health Claims for Auto Insurance.
6	for some time, I really didn't understand	6	This is an online platform where health
7	it. It's a complicated system, it's hard to	7	providers submit injury claim forms
8	understand, and then I also started to get	8	electronically directly to the insurance
9	hired by health professional organizations,	9	company. The insurance company adjudicates
10	so clinics, private clinics, the health	10	online, and the adjudication decision is
11	professional associations, and they asked me	11	transferred back to the health provider
12	to do training for them to help them	12	electronically. So it sort of streamlined
13	understand how the insurance system works	13	some of the paperwork, and so I was engaged
14	because it was really complicated, and I	14	to liaise with the health industry to help
15	still say that to this day, most health care	15	them adopt and get accustomed to using this
16	professionals still struggle with	16	electronic platform, and this was of great
17	understanding the complexities between the	17	interest to me because one of my passions is
18	insurance system. They know they're dealing		the need for more data in the private health
19	with an insurance company, but I can't tell	19	system.
20	you how many times colleagues of mine have	20	(9:15 a.m.)
21	gotten into trouble because they have no	21	In the public health system since 1984, the
22	consent to speak to the third party insurer,	22	Canadian Institute of Health Information has
23	and yet they do because they don't know the	23	required publicly funded institutions to
24	difference between the first party and the	24	submit standard data. So that's why CIHI
25	third party insurer. So those kinds of sort	25	can print all of these reports about waiting
1			
	Page 10		Page 12
1	Page 10 of lack of information still is out there.	1	
1 2		2	Page 12
1 2 3	of lack of information still is out there.		Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or
1	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the	2	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so
3	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care	2 3	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have
3 4	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the	2 3 4	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the
3 4 5	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care	2 3 4 5	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from
3 4 5 6	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still	2 3 4 5 6	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care,
3 4 5 6 7	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care	2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea
3 4 5 6 7 8	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 12 times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident benefits insurer and the health care	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a patient caseload that's very mixed. I see
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident benefits insurer and the health care	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a patient caseload that's very mixed. I see everybody from people injured in traffic collisions to people with Myasthenia Gravis,
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident benefits insurer and the health care professionals should be working in partnership to help the recovery of the injured person. So that's always been sort	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a patient caseload that's very mixed. I see everybody from people injured in traffic collisions to people with Myasthenia Gravis, to people with spinal cord injury, to people
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident benefits insurer and the health care professionals should be working in partnership to help the recovery of the injured person. So that's always been sort of what I've been trying to promote. Now as	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a patient caseload that's very mixed. I see everybody from people injured in traffic collisions to people with Myasthenia Gravis, to people with spinal cord injury, to people with stroke, cardiac problems. So I have a
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	of lack of information still is out there. So I think that's one of the real challenges of the system is that the health care industry has difficulty understanding the complexities of the auto insurance system, and the auto insurance system still struggles with understanding how health care works. I think a lot of us would like to think health care is scientific and it's black and white, but it's not, there are shades of gray. No two people react the same to a similar diagnosis or a similar injury, so it's tough on both sides. It's been very interesting for me because I sort of have my foot in both camps. Certainly, I'm a registered physiotherapist myself, so I do tend to align with the health professionals, but in my mind the accident benefits insurer and the health care professionals should be working in partnership to help the recovery of the injured person. So that's always been sort	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	times for hip replacement surgeries, or success rates after cardiac events and so on. In the private health system, we have no idea. So I know in various provinces the insurance sector funded by premiums from drivers pay a lot of money for health care, and yet in most provinces they have no idea whether that health care is working or not; is it making people better, to what extent is it making people better and so on. So part of my interest in this is the data piece, and I think that's a really important one and something I did mention in my submission. I finished that engagement with Health Claims for Auto Insurance, and in 2013, I started to work as a homecare physiotherapist in the South Georgian Bay area, and I do that to this day. I see a patient caseload that's very mixed. I see everybody from people injured in traffic collisions to people with Myasthenia Gravis, to people with spinal cord injury, to people

1	nber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
1	Page 13		Page 15
1 -	reading. Now I'd say about a third of my	1	how that evolved?
2	work is clinical practice, homecare,	2	MS. RIIS:
3	physiotherapy. I'd say about a third of my	3	A. So again I consult with IBC on a variety of
4	work is policy consultation with IBC. The	4	policy issues, but certainly the topic of
5	work I do with IBC has covered the provinces		minor injury, and I don't like that term,
6	where private insurance is in place;	6	and I'll speak to that, but I'm going to use
7	Alberta, Ontario, and the Atlantic	7	it because it's the term that's in use in
8	Provinces, as well as Newfoundland, and then	8	various provinces, but whenever the issue of
9	a third of my work is also working with	9	minor injury cap or diagnostic and treatment
10	health professional organizations, again	10	protocols arise, IBC tends to consult with
11	continuing to work with them largely in the	11	me. So I did understand in the spring of
12	area of auto insurance and how can you find	12	this year that something was going on in
13	that work easier to do, because it's still –	13	Newfoundland. I had understood there was a
14	after years of being at it, it's still	14	closed claims study happening, but I wasn't
15	challenging for the health providers, as	15	quite clear on what was happening, and I
16	well as the insurers to manage that system.	16	think it was around May that IBC shared a
17	I'm not sure if I've missed anything.	17	submission that was made to the Board, so I
18	STAMP, Q.C.:	18	was able to read that submission, and they
19	Q. No, I don't think you did. That's fine.	19	asked me my thoughts on it. Then it was in,
20	MS. RIIS:	20	I believe, early July that they asked me to
21	A. A mixed bag of tricks really.	21	get more involved and comment on three
22	STAMP, Q.C.:	22	aspects of their submission, and these are
23	Q. So you're still a physiotherapist today?	23	the three areas I feel quite comfortable
24	MS. RIIS:	24	speaking to.
25	A. Yes.	25	Q. So tell me about that request and how did it
	Page 14		Page 16
1	STAMP, Q.C.:	1	come to you to do a report that you've done
2	Q. You still do actual physiotherapy work	2	and so on, and on the three –
3	yourself personally?	3	MS. RIIS:
4	MS. RIIS:	4	A. So Ryan Steyn basically approached me in
5	A. Yes, and I've had no complaints sustained	5	July. We discussed the submission that IBC
	against me.		-
6		6	was putting forward, and whether or not I
7	STAMP, Q.C.:	7	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three
7 8	Q. And you say about a third of your work	7 8	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and
7 8 9	Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or	7 8 9	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor
7 8 9 10	Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally?	7 8 9 10	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment
7 8 9 10 11	Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS:	7 8 9 10 11	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of
7 8 9 10 11 12	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by 	7 8 9 10 11 12	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. STAMP, Q.C.: 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as to how your report should be prepared?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Right, okay. Now then I want to come back 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as to how your report should be prepared? MS. RIIS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Right, okay. Now then I want to come back to your engagement. The reason you're here 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as to how your report should be prepared? MS. RIIS: A. No. Quite honestly, I think that my work
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Right, okay. Now then I want to come back to your engagement. The reason you're here in the first instance, of course, I think 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as to how your report should be prepared? MS. RIIS: A. No. Quite honestly, I think that my work over the – since 2004 around the topic of
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. And you say about a third of your work currently involves IBC – is it just IBC or insurers generally? MS. RIIS: A. Yeah, insurers because I have been hired by individual insurance companies to develop training programs for that company alone, so IBC and insurers would be about a third of my work. Another third would be other health professional organizations, clinics and so on, and then a third would be clinical practice in homecare. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Right, okay. Now then I want to come back to your engagement. The reason you're here 	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	was putting forward, and whether or not I would be willing to comment on the three points that they asked me to speak on, and that's the issue of how do you define minor injuries, evidence-based treatment protocols, as well as the impact of litigation on injuries. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Those are the three topics that you were asked to think about? MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Were you given any direction, Ms. Riis, as to how your report should be prepared? MS. RIIS: A. No. Quite honestly, I think that my work

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 17		Page 19
1	informed IBC submission. So in some	1	A. No, I submitted the final report to him. He
2	respect, I'm sort of speaking to	2	did not have any input on it.
3	recommendations I have made to IBC.	3	STAMP, Q.C.:
4	STAMP, Q.C.:	4	Q. Okay. So, the report that we have presented
5		5	
1	Q. You may come to this in your report		here is your report?
6	generally, but was there involvement that	6	MS. RIIS:
7	you had had also, for example, in other	7	A. Yes.
8	Atlantic region areas on the definition	8	STAMP, Q.C.:
9	issue of minor injury and so on?	9	Q. Prepared solely by you?
10	MS. RIIS:	10	MS. RIIS:
11	A. Did I have input on that?	11	A. Yes.
12	STAMP, Q.C.:	12	STAMP, Q.C.:
13	Q. Well, I'm just wondering if it's going to	13	Q. No input from anybody else except to
14	come up in your next—in your report	14	identify the three topics that you've been
15	discussion or in something we –	15	asked to speak about?
16	MS. RIIS:	16	MS. RIIS:
17	A. Yes.	17	A. Yes, yes.
18	STAMP, Q.C.:	18	STAMP, Q.C.:
19	Q. Okay.	19	Q. Okay. After you presented the report to Mr.
20	MS. RIIS:	20	Stein, did you have any communication with
1			
21	A. I'll be talking about the definition of	21	him? Was there any criticism on his part
22	minor injury. I didn't—I wasn't actively	22	that, you know, you've gone too far or
23	involved in developing IBC's submission to		didn't go far enough? Anything of that
24	the Board. They did that on their own and	24	nature that occurred?
25	gave it to me to read after it was done, and	25	MS. RIIS:
	Page 18		Page 20
1	Page 18 I had really no major suggestions to them at	1	=
1			A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I
2	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time.	2	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were
2 3	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry
2 3 4	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a	2 3 4	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a
2 3 4 5	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points –	2 3 4 5	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up.
2 3 4 5 6	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right.	2 3 4 5 6 7	A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the content of the report?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are you going to approach this?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the content of the report? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are you going to approach this? MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the content of the report? MS. RIIS: A. No, I –	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are you going to approach this? MS. RIIS: A. I was just going to speak to the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the content of the report? MS. RIIS: A. No, I – STAMP, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are you going to approach this? MS. RIIS: A. I was just going to speak to the presentation slides.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	I had really no major suggestions to them at that time. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Mr. Stein, as you say, contacted you with a request that on three specific points – MS. RIIS: A. Right. STAMP, Q.C.: Q could you provide some sort of a report to IBC that they would present to this Board? MS. RIIS: A. Right, yes. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. That's right, and then I wrote the report and submitted it to Mr. Stein. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. And did Mr. Stein have any input in the content of the report? MS. RIIS: A. No, I –	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. No, you know, I did mention to him that I may have said a couple of things that were not complementary to the insurance industry in the report, so I wanted to give him a head's up. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Okay. All right, well then, perhaps if we can bring up that report. You probably have a copy anyway, Ms. Riis, but we'll bring it up on the screen. MS. RIIS: A. Do you want to the report or the presentation? STAMP, Q.C.: Q. The presentation. MS. RIIS: A. The presentation. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. Yes, or the—you need both of those. How are you going to approach this? MS. RIIS: A. I was just going to speak to the

Page 21 1 MS. RIIS: 2 A. Which really speaks to the report, and then 3 I'm happy to entertain questions about 4 either. 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 6 Q. Sure. 6 Q. Sure. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Okay. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? 1- 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that— 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 23 counsel because we made that mistake earlier ourselves in here. CHAIR: Q. Yes, I understand that. I haven't seen the slides, so I'm not sure if— STAMP, Q.C.: Q. I don't know when they were—It hink they were passed to the PUB a couple of days ago. MS. KEAN: Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. STAMP, Q.C.: 10 Q. They might just be charts that— 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. No. STAMP, Q.C.: A paparently not. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. No.
2 A. Which really speaks to the report, and then if m happy to entertain questions about either. 3 I'm happy to entertain questions about either. 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 6 Q. Sure. 6 Q. Sure. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Okay. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? I- 11 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 14 CHAIR: 15 CHAIR: 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation— 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that— 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentation slides. SENNEDY, Q.C.: 4 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. SENNEDY, Q.C.: 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. STAMP, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 42 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentation slides. STAMP, Q.C.: 27 Q. No. 28 CTMARY, Q.C.: 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 No. 20 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 No. 21 GUANT. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 CYEN. All think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the particle state of the filing of the lawyer's panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIS: 10 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIS: 11 SENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witn
3 CHAIR: 4 Q. Yes, I understand that. I haven't seen the slides, so I'm not sure if — STAMP, Q.C.: 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 6 Q. Sure. 6 STAMP, Q.C.: 7 Q. Idon't know when they were—I think they were passed to the PUB a couple of days ago. MS. KEAN: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that 11 been provided? I - 11 STAMP, Q.C.: 12 Q. Okay. That would be Monday, you said, right? The 6th. CHAIR: 15 Q. The presentation — 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 19 Q. Apparently not. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 19 Q. Apparently not. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 No. 22 Q. No. 22 Q. No. 23 CHAIR: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filling of the presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides of any were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that 10 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 CENTER CENT
3
4 Q. Yes, I understand that. I haven't seen the slides, so I'm not sure if— 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Okay. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? I- 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation— 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. I's just that these are charts that— 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my understanding is we were to be provided with the Board on September 6th. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. Okay. That would be Monday, you said, right? The 6th. 23 CHAIR: 24 CHAIR: 25 CHAIR: 26 CHAIR: 27 Q. I spuss this is her presentation slides. I don't recall getting presentat
5 STAMP, Q.C.: 6 Q. Sure. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Okay. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? 1- 11 STAMP, Q.C.: 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the lift provided? 1- 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 3 from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Priday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIS: 10 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 10 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 11 Lithick there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 12 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 STAMP, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Condata they were passed to the PUB a couple of days ago. 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Idon't know when they were passed to the PUB a couple of days ago. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 11 It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 11 It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 12 Q. Okay. That would be Monday, you said, right? The 6th. 13 (FHAIR: 14 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 do Apparently not. 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 Q. No. 20 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 STAMP, Q.C.: 21 Q. Apparently not. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. Wo. 23 O'FLAHERITY, Q.C.: 24 document. I haven't seen the document is. A you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what
6 Q. Sure. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Okay. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? 1- 11 been provided? 1- 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 15 CHAIR: 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 15 CHAIR: 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 19 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my understanding is we were to be provided with copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my understanding is we were to be provided with copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 22 CHAIR: 23 CORALR: 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides a don't recall getting presentation slides a from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 4 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filling of the very spanel on Monday. 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 5 MS. RIIS: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at anybe we can deal with the day basis, but as the winces has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can ideal with no that basis, but as the winces h
7 MS. RIIS:
8 A. Okay. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? I - 11 been provided? I - 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been circulated. 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation – 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that – 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 3 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 4 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 Q. I's guess this is her presentation slides 1 doown't recall getting presentation slides 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they are provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 12 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 14 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 15 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 16 Q. Day and the Board on September 6th. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 STAMP, Q.C.: 21 Q. No. 22 O. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, 1 think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filling of the document. I haven't seen the document is. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and—or ten minutes to look at them and—or ten minutes to look at mad—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basi
9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that 11 been provided? I - 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 27 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 28 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 29 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 Q. It was filed with the Board on September 6th. 11 STAMP, Q.C.: 12 Q. Okay. That would be Monday, you said, 13 CHAIR: 15 Q. But not copied to other counsel? 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, 20 no. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an 25 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 26 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 27 you say, they haven't been distributed among 28 counsel. Maybe whave we can do is simply 29 MS. RIIS: 30 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 31 think there's much in terms of text that 32 they can be put on the—and we can have a 33 look at them and see what the document is. 34 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 35 his client feels we need to take five 36 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at maybe we can deal with on that 36 basis, but as the witness has commented, 37 think it's simply an 38 counsel. Maybe we can deal with on that 39 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 39 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 39 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 39 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 39 look at, maybe we can pust text in any event. So, maybe we can just 39 see what this is we're dealing with.
10 Q. I'm just wondering, Madam Chair, has that been provided? I -
11 been provided? I- 12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation – 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that – 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 No. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 25 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. 26 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at maybe we can deal with on that they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with.
12 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 27 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 28 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 29 Q. I guess this is her presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 Q. But not copied to other counsel? 16 CHAIR: 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That would be Monday, you said, 13 right? The 6th. 14 CHAIR: 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That would be Monday, you said, 13 right? The 6th. 14 CHAIR: 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That would be Monday, you said, 13 right? The 6th. 14 CHAIR: 16 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. Frahe was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. 4 document. I haven't seen the document is. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 5 document. I haven't seen the document is. 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 7 his client feels we need to take five 8 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that 16 basis, but as the witness has comm
13 Q. Well, they were sent in here to IBC—to the 14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation – 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that – 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 CHAIR: 16 CHAIR: 17 C. AHRIR: 17 Q. But not copied to other counsel? 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 STAMP, Q.C.: 21 Q. No. 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. 4 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 4 his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with.
14 PUB. I don't know where—if they've been 15 circulated. 16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 27 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 28 don't recall getting presentation slides 29 don't recall getting presentation slides 30 from the presenters in advance. I think 40 we've been getting the reports. 41 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 42 doy were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 43 panel on Monday. 44 mey can be put on the—and we can have a 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 47 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 48 panel on Monday. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 40 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 40 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 41 think there's much in terms of text that 41 you'll miss. 42 you'll miss. 43 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 44 they can be put on the—and we can have a 45 look at them and see what the document is. 46 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 47 his client feels we need to take five 48 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 49 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 40 basis, but as the witness has commented, 41 they appear to be descriptive rather than 40 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 41 see what this is we're dealing with. 42 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 43 see what this is we're dealing with.
15
16 CHAIR: 17 Q. The presentation - 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 17 Q. Apparently not. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that - 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20
17 Q. The presentation — 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that — 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. Ves, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an 27 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 28 don't recall getting presentation slides 29 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 5 Look at them and see what the document is. 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 No. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 No. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 4 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at maybe we can deal wi
18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 Q. It's just that these are charts that – 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 MS. KEAN: 19 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 25 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. 4 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 7 his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 That was Thursday and apparently not copied, no. 20 No. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the locument. I haven't seen the document is. 4 document. I haven't seen the document is. 4 hoo's transfer of the filing of the locument is. 5 Look at them and see what the document is. 6 And if
19 Q. It's just that these are charts that – 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an 27 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 28 vou say, they haven't been distributed among 29 from the presenters in advance. I think 20 don't recall getting presentation slides 20 you say, they haven't been distributed among 29 from the presenters in advance. I think 30 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 40 we've been getting the reports. 40 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 40 panel on Monday. 40 MS. RIIS: 40 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 42 panel on Monday. 43 MS. RIIS: 44 panel on Monday. 45 panel on Monday. 46 panel on Monday. 47 panel on Monday. 48 panel on Monday. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 42 panel on Monday. 43 panel on Monday. 44 panel on Monday. 45 panel on Monday. 46 panel on Monday. 47 panel on Monday. 48 panel on Monday. 49 panel on Monday. 49 panel on Monday. 40 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 41 panel on Monday. 42 panel on Monday. 42 panel on Monday. 43 panel on Monday. 44 panel on Monday. 45 panel on Monday. 46 panel on Monday. 47 panel on Monday. 47 panel on Monday. 48 panel on Monday. 49 panel on Monday. 40 panel on
20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my understanding is we were to be provided with copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: 26 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the lawyen's documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. 26 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 27 MS. RIIS: 28 Dio No. 29 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 29 Q. No. 21 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 Q. No. 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the locuments. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that think there's much in terms of text that think there's much in terms of text that they appear to be descriptive rather than they appear to be desc
21 Q. They might just be charts, but we haven't—my 22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 24 CHAIR: 25 CHAIR: 26 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 27 Q. No. 27 Q.C.: 28 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an 28 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 28 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 29 oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 29 don't recall getting presentation slides. I 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 29 from the presenters in advance. I think 30 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 31 double we've been getting the reports. 32 don't they can be put on the—and we can have a 32 look at them and see what the document is. 33 look at them and see what the document is. 34 don't trecall getting presentation slides 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 34 from the presenters in advance. I think 35 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 36 double we've been getting the reports. 36 look at them and see what the document is. 36 look at them and see what the document is. 37 double we've been getting the reports. 38 look at them and see what the document is. 39 look at them and see what the document is. 39 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the document is. 30 look at them and see what the d
22 understanding is we were to be provided with 23 copies of any documents to be referred to 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 U. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 2 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 3 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 4 they can be put on the—and we can have a 5 look at them and see what the document is. 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 6 his client feels we need to take five 7 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 10 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. No. 27 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 28 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 29 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 20 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 21 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 22 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 23 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 20 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 21 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 22 document. I haven't seen the foliation—in terms of the filing of the 24 document. I haven't seen the foliation—in terms of the filing of the 25 document. I haven't seen the foliation—in terms of the filing of th
copies of any documents to be referred to the day before the hearing. 24 the day before the hearing. 25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I document. I haven't seen the documents. As 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 10 think there's much in terms of text that 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 See what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the 12 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 2 toursel. Maybe what we can do is simply 3 they can be put on the—and we can have a 1 look at them and see what the document is. 1 look at them and see what the document is. 2 look at and—or ten minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 think there's much in terms of text that 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
the day before the hearing. 24 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. 8 MS. RIIS: 9 How we've been documents. As you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that think there's much in terms of text that they appear to be descriptive rather than you'll miss. 12 Lext in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Yes, Madam Chair, I think it's simply an oversight on—in terms of the filing of the oversight on—in terms of the filing of the oversight on—in terms of the filing of the oversight on—in terms of the minutes. As document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the documents. As document. I haven't seen the documents. As they are an document. I haven't seen the document is. 1 document. I haven't seen the documents. As you say, they haven't seen the document. And source in the prove seen decument. And source in the prove seen document. And source in the prove seen the document is. 1 document. I haven't seen the
25 CHAIR: Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 door't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you say, they haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 3 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 4 they can be put on the—and we can have a 5 look at them and see what the document is. 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 6 his client feels we need to take five 7 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 8 minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among 3 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 4 they can be put on the—and we can have a 1 look at them and see what the document is. 4 his client feels we need to take five 8 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
Page 22 1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you say, they haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't seen the documents. As 3 counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply 4 they can be put on the—and we can have a 5 look at them and see what the document is. 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 7 his client feels we need to take five 8 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 9 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
1 Q. I guess this is her presentation slides. I 2 don't recall getting presentation slides 3 from the presenters in advance. I think 4 we've been getting the reports. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 10 A. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 11 document. I haven't seen the documents. As 2 you say, they haven't been distributed among counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. 4 his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
don't recall getting presentation slides from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. MS. RIIS: A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. Mon't recall getting presentation slides counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
don't recall getting presentation slides from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. MS. RIIS: A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. Mon't recall getting presentation slides counsel. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
from the presenters in advance. I think we've been getting the reports. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. MS. RIIS: A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. Maybe what we can do is simply they can be put on the—and we can have a look at them and see what the document is. And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— his client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than they appear to be descriptive rather than lexical text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: RENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
we've been getting the reports. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. MS. RIIS: A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. MENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 look at them and see what the document is. 6 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is— 6 his client feels we need to take five 7 his client feels we need to take five 8 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 9 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
6 Q. Certainly the Campaign's slides the other 7 day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's 8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 16 And if it's something that Mr. Kennedy is—his client feels we need to take five 8 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 9 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. MS. RIIS: My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. KENNEDY, Q.C.: day were provided on Friday for the lawyer's panel on Monday. Mis client feels we need to take five minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to look at, maybe we can deal with on that basis, but as the witness has commented, they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
8 panel on Monday. 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 18 minutes to look at and—or ten minutes to 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 19 look at, maybe we can deal with on that 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
10 A. My slides are largely pictures. So, I don't 11 think there's much in terms of text that 12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 basis, but as the witness has commented, 16 they appear to be descriptive rather than 17 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 18 see what this is we're dealing with. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 basis, but as the witness has commented, 11 they appear to be descriptive rather than 12 text in any event. So, maybe we can just 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
think there's much in terms of text that you'll miss. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. they appear to be descriptive rather than text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.:
12 you'll miss. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 15 text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. 16 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 17 text in any event. So, maybe we can just see what this is we're dealing with. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 13 see what this is we're dealing with. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
14 Q. Perhaps the witness can—we can discuss this. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
THE WENDONG DE INDIVIDUCINADADO THE TOTAL THREE
may be, that's not the point. The question 19 Q. That's fine, yes.
is whether or not we have been provided with 20 CHAIR:
I / I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
them. And my understanding again, Madam 21 Q. We'll proceed and see where it goes.
22 Chair, is that you indicated to counsel that 22 MS. RIIS:
Chair, is that you indicated to counsel that they were to be to provided to all other 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. Thank you.
22 Chair, is that you indicated to counsel that 22 MS. RIIS:

Septe	11001 12, 2016		201 / Automobile insurance Review
	Page 25		Page 27
1	that what you prefer to see first of all?	1	soft-tissue injuries, whiplash associated
2	We all have a copy of the report, but we can	2	disorders or strains and sprains. And the
3	bring the slides up. You'd like the slides	3	term "minor injury" is a—it started out as a
4	brought up first?	4	term used in regulation or legislation and
5	MS. RIIS:	5	it has absolutely no medical basis. The
6	A. Sure.	6	term "minor" is an adjective. It's not a
7	STAMP, Q.C.:	7	diagnosis. It doesn't describe any kind of
8	Q. Okay.	8	an injury, but unfortunately the medical
9	MS. RIIS:	9	professionals seem start to use it and they
10	A. Yeah.	10	often talk about, "Oh, he has a minor
11	STAMP, Q.C.:	11	injury," as if I'm supposed to know what
12	Q. We'll do it that way.	12	that means. So, it's unfortunate that a
13	MS. RIIS:	13	term with no basis in medicine has become
14	A. All right, so again, thank you for allowing	14	used by healthcare professionals. IBC has
15	me to present here. I'm here because I do	15	proposed a definition that captures
16	want to speak in support of the	16	specifically strains, sprains and whiplash
17	recommendations made by IBC related to the	17	injuries including any clinically associated
18	auto insurance system in Newfoundland and	18	sequela, whether physical or psychological
19	Labrador, and I'm going to speak to defining	19	in nature, that does not result in serious
20	minor injuries. I'm going to say at this	20	impairment. This definition is consistent
21	point that I also in my report did make a	21	with what international researchers have
22	recommendation that that term not be used.	22	called type 1 injuries, and these are
23	It's been show in research that injured	23	defined as those traffic injuries which have
24	people find that it trivializes the impact	24	been shown in epidemiological studies to
25	of the injury on them. So, I will use the	25	have a favourable nature history with
	Page 26		Page 28
1	word "minor" for this hearing, but there is	1	recovery times ranging from days to a few
2	a recommendation in my report not to use	2	months. The injuries include
3	that term if you can avoid it. And I have	3	musculoskeletal injuries such as neck pain
4	offered an alternative. So, I'll also be	4	and associated disorders or what we now call
5	speaking to the rationale behind supporting-	5	NAD, grades 1 to 3; grade 1 and 2 sprains
6	evidence based treatment and treatment	6	and strains of spine and limbs; traumatic
7	protocols. And also, I'm going to make some	7	radiculopathies, that's nerve compression
8	comments on the impact of litigation on	8	that can be in the neck; mild traumatic
9	people who have suffered injury in traffic	9	brain injuries and post-traumatic
10	collisions. And I'm alsowhile not I'm not	10	psychological symptoms such as anxiety and
11	asked to do this, I did offer some	11	stress. Most often, type 1 injuries improve
12	suggestions on implementation. I was	12	within days to a few months of a collision,
13	involved in implementation of a minor injury	13	leaving no permanent serious impairment.
14	cap and diagnostic and treatment protocols	14	Typically, the impact of the even the most
15	in Alberta, and we had a really good	15	effective treatment for type 1 injuries is
16	implementation process because of a lot of	16	modest and usually limited to a reduction in
17	education and engagement with all	17	symptom intensity. What I just read was a
18	stakeholders. So, I will comment on those	18	quote from the research paper that I
19	as well. Next slide, please. So, the term	19	referred to the "OPTIMa Collaboration." So,
1 20		20	41.:. :14.41
20	"minor injury" I've used it. I'm not happy	20	this is what the researchers are saying
20 21	"minor injury" I've used it. I'm not happy about it. I think it downplays the effect	20	about type 1 injuries, and that's
21 22	110		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
21	about it. I think it downplays the effect	21	about type 1 injuries, and that's
21 22	about it. I think it downplays the effect of injuries on the lives of people who	21 22	about type 1 injuries, and that's essentially what IBC's definition captures.

1	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 29		Page 31
1	but researchers also point out that a small	1	defining serious impairment because again I
2	percentage may go on to develop prolonged	2	have had had many patients who have the
3	disability associated with chronic	3	exact same diagnosis, but who respond
4	conditions such as chronic pain syndromes or	4	completely differently to that injury and
5	debilitating psychological impairments which	5	how it impacts their ability to function.
6	may lead to serious impairment in the	6	So, as I said in my earlier example, the
7	person's ability to function in their daily	7	identical injury can affect one person
8	life, and it's for this reason, and there's	8	minimally and another person very
9	no way of predicting who will or won't	9	significantly. So that's why this kind of
10	recover, we have to address compensation for	10	biopsychosocial approach is very important.
11	those individuals who aren't at fault and in	11	So, the identification of serious impairment
12	spite of having sought evidence-based	12	must be based not solely on the diagnosis or
13	treatment, don't recover fully. So, to	13	the health condition, but also on an
14	address this, IBC has excluded from the	14	assessment of various factors that influence
15	definition, "Those who go on to suffer	15	how an individual functions in his or her
16	serious impairment." So, the now the	16	environment. So, it's a combination of all
17	question is what do we mean by "serious	17	these factors that determine the true effect
18	impairment"? So, that does need to be	18	of an injury on an individual's
19	defined and I don't believe IBC's submission	19	participation in the ordinary activities and
20	has defined it, but certainly in other	20	enjoyment of life. So, IBC has—their
21	provinces it's been defined using the	21	definition does allow to exclude people from
1	1		
22	person's ability to function at their pre-	22	a minor injury cap if they do go on to
23	accident level.	23	suffer impairment, and some will. The next
24	(9:30 a.m.)	24	slide, please. So, I'm going to move on to
25	MS. RIIS:	25	the discussion on evidence-based treatment.
١.	Page 30		Page 32
1	A. This is important because it's impossible to		
	1 1	1	Why is this important? Aren't treatment
2	define disability or one's ability to	2	providers doing the best they can? I do
3	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a	2 3	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to
3 4	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the	2 3 4	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is
3 4 5	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of	2 3 4 5	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is
3 4 5 6	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no	2 3 4 5 6	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries.
3 4 5 6 7	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to	2 3 4 5 6 7	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out
3 4 5 6 7 8	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a	2 3 4 5 6 7	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic interaction between his or her health	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims she's making, and it's a lot of fun to read.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic interaction between his or her health conditions, environmental factors and personal factors. It is a biopsychosocial	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims she's making, and it's a lot of fun to read. But people are interested in healthcare, people are on the internet, they want to try
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic interaction between his or her health conditions, environmental factors and	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims she's making, and it's a lot of fun to read. But people are interested in healthcare,
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic interaction between his or her health conditions, environmental factors and personal factors. It is a biopsychosocial model of disability based on an integration	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims she's making, and it's a lot of fun to read. But people are interested in healthcare, people are on the internet, they want to try a variety of different kinds of
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	define disability or one's ability to function without taking into account a variety of factors. And could I have the next slide? For example, amputation of someone's non-dominate baby toe may have no effect on the ability of say a lawyer to return to their occupation, but amputation of a baby toe can derail the career or a ballerina. The injury or diagnosis does not define the disability, and for this reason I put up the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. And this is essentially how they identify function and ability or disability. So, the World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning conceptualizes a person's level of functioning as a dynamic interaction between his or her health conditions, environmental factors and personal factors. It is a biopsychosocial model of disability based on an integration of the social and medical models of	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	providers doing the best they can? I do believe health professionals are trying to do their best, but the fact of the matter is that there is no single approach that is known to be effective for type 1 injuries. In addition, there's a lot of treatments out there that are very popular, but that have not shown—being shown to be effective or in fact have been shown to be ineffective. I don't know if any of you are following the—Dr. Caulfield and the Goop website. Gwyneth Paltrow has this website. She's making all kinds of medical recommendations on her website that have absolutely no basis in fact and there's a Canadian doctor/researcher out of Alberta who is basically contradicting all of the claims she's making, and it's a lot of fun to read. But people are interested in healthcare, people are on the internet, they want to try a variety of different kinds of intervention. So, there's a lot out there.

September			2017 Automobile insurance Review
	Page 33		Page 35
	treatment is good, more treatment must be	l	are following the "Exercise is Medicine"
2	better. And we see this approach in	2	piece, but the Canadian health care system
3	conversations about Canada's public health	3	has a program called Exercise is Medicine,
4	system. Many people are simply asking for	4	and they've basically said if you could put
5	more money to be put in and more money to be	5	exercise into a pill, 100 percent of us
6	put in, but when you go deeper into the	6	would be taking this pill. So, movement,
7	discussion about Canada's health system,	7	activity, resuming your normal activities is
8	there is recognition that we need to	8	the most important thing for people who have
9	structure it differently, not just put more	9	type 1 injuries, but if the injured person
10	money into it. So, I've seen many injured	10	has pain and nobody explains to them that
11	people because of this perception that more	11	it's okay for them to gradually increase
12	must be better. I've seen many injured	12	their activities, they tend to avoid
13	people subjected to months and years of a	13	activities which makes them weaker, which
14	variety of different treatment types	14	makes them less tolerant to healing and
15	including physiotherapy, chiropractic,	15	recovering from the injury. The next slide,
16	massage therapy, naturopathy, injections and	16	please. So, another reason to promote
17	so on. Often, I see that the only reason	17	evidence-based care in the form of
18	more treatment is recommended by a health	18	guidelines or protocols is that it's hard
19	professional is because the patient is not	19	for health professionals to stay current
20	getting better. And so, it seems like	20	with all of the literature that's published
21	trying something different might work. And	21	on the variety of health conditions they
22	I also think that as a health professional	22	treat. As a physiotherapist I treat people
23	we feel compelled to do something. So, even	23	after traffic collisions, but I also have
24	though I know my patient is not getting	24	patients with stroke, myasthenia gravis,
25	better, I feel I need to keep trying. And	25	ALS, spinal cord injury and so on. If I
	Page 34		Page 36
1	so, sometimes we sort of fall a victim to	1	were to stay current on all of those topics
2	this instinct to want to be helpful even	2	and what the best treatment is for all of
3	though we know it's not working, but in	3	those conditions, I wouldn't have any time
4	fact, the research on type 1 injuries shows	4	to see patients. Evidence-based guidelines
5	that high levels of initial health care	5	help me by summarizing what we know works
6	utilization are actually associated with	6	and what we know doesn't work. And often
7	poorer recovery, worse recovery from neck	7	they're sort of a middle ground. The
8	injuries after traffic collisions. Too many	8	guidelines often will say, "We know that
9	health visits, too many different care	9	this works. We're not sure about this.
10	providers seem to result in poorer outcomes.	10	We're 50/50 on this intervention. So, you
11	So, I can't say that that's an absolute	11	can try it if you think it'll work," or it
12	fact, but the research is pointing in that	12	will say, "This intervention is not
13	direction. So, much of the research we're	13	recommended because we know it doesn't work
14	reading now is recommending less treatment,		or it impedes recovery." The guidelines
15	not more treatment. And in fact, the sort	15	also offer me protection against malpractice
16	of common intervention that's recommended		suits, because it lays out in general terms
17	for all injuries is to offer reassurance and	17	what good treatment looks like. So, most
18	education. So, it's important to explain to	18	health professionals like working with
19	injured people who have type 1 injuries that	19	guidelines. Guidelines are not intended to
20	this will not disable for life, this will	20	be prescriptive. They are not written to
21	heal, and you need to resume your usual	21	say, "You must do this. You must do that."
22	activities as soon as possible. If people	22	Guidelines are written to offer a summary of
23	receive this kind of guidance, they tend not	23	the research, what research supports, what
24	to become fearful, they tend not to withdraw	24	it doesn't support, where treatment is
25	from activities. I don't know if any of you	25	considered to be equivocal, and it also
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 37 allows the treatment provider to exercise clinical judgment. So, if a patient comes in to me and I think they're going to benefit from doing yoga three times a week, I'm perfectly free to prescribe that. So, it does allow clinical judgment. It cannot be prescriptive, otherwise, health professionals would not adopt it. So, I'll give you a couple of examples. Acute low back pain is the leading cause of disability 10 worldwide. I would hazard to guess that 11 most of us in the room has had an episode of 12 low back pain, and you may have seen your 13 family doctor to get treatment for low back 14 pain, and you have likely been told to take 15 some Tylenol. Tylenol is the most common 16 medication prescribed for treatment of acute 17 low back pain, but the truth is there was an 18 article published in "The Lancet" in 2014 19 20 that there's actually no scientific evidence to support Tylenol as being any better than 21 placebo in reducing recovery time. So, 22 there's a lot of habitual practice that has 23 evolved over time and because health 24 providers often find it difficult to stay 25 Page 38

evidence-based guideline would say do not offer a collar. So that would protect me from getting a malpractice complaint. It would help me to know I shouldn't be prescribing a collar. But it would also say that yoga has been shown to be effective in some studies, not effective in other studies. So, even though it's not proven to be effective, if I think it might be suitable for an individual patient, I'd be free to prescribe that.

So, in my view, treatment should not be denied a patient if it is helping the person to recover their ability to function. But injured people shouldn't be subject to prolonged treatment that's ineffective or perhaps even harmful and Newfoundland drivers should not have to pay for ineffective or harmful treatment. So, I think that's another important piece. If ineffective treatment is being offered, it's costing everybody some money and it's not helping the patient.

And again, many of my patients are so frustrated by the system because they are

Page 40

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

abreast of all of the current literature, we continue to practice through habit. So, for example, you know, as a physiotherapist I often will put a hot pack on somebody and if I were to read up about it, I would probably find that hot packs are not shown to be particularly effective in management of neck pain. But it's something, you know, we learn to do as an undergraduate. You've done it. It feels good to the patient, so sometimes we keep doing those treatments.

told to continue attending treatment, even though they know it's not helping. And often I'll ask them, "well, why do you keep going to treatment if it's not helping? Well, my lawyer told me I should keep going." And I said "well, does your physiotherapist or chiropractor want you to keep going? No, they discharged me but the lawyer told me to keep going, so the physiotherapist said that's fine". And of course, as a physiotherapist, if I have a private practice, I'm happy to have patients come to me.

I also looked up images for whiplash treatment and I got many pictures like the one you're looking at showing somebody wearing a soft collar. But in fact, it's long been demonstrated that a soft collar in fact is detrimental to recovery from mild to moderate neck pain injuries. So, again, if you were to ask the general population what's the treatment for whiplash, I'll bet you many of them would to this day say "oh yeah, a collar is what you need after a whiplash injury". But in fact, the research shows us that we should not be prescribing collars. So, that's an example of an

So, I think this prolonged and ongoing treatment is a burden primarily to the injured person. So, I think if somebody is being subjected to prolonged and repetitive treatment, it's really important that it be helping them and that it be helping them to return their ability to participate in their families, their social lives and to become a contributing member of society as well. I think those larger goals are important to consider. STAMP, Q.C.:

Page 41 1 0. Ms. Riis, when we were here a couple of days 1 treatment for Type 1 injuries. 2 2 ago, I guess it was, I guess it was maybe And I don't have a great deal of data 3 Monday, we had two people who came in who 3 to share with you, but IBC did provide me 4 had been in accidents and the sense I had in 4 this information and I understand that 5 part from what they were telling us is that 5 treatment costs have increased by 108 6 how badly they were off was partly 6 percent between 2001 and 2017 as compared to 7 7 demonstrated by how many times they went to a 38 percent increase in inflation. But I 8 8 physio and chiropractic and massage and so also gather that general damages awards have 9 on. The more they went, the worse they 9 continued to increase. So, this suggests to 10 were. And that was explaining why they 10 me that in spite of more and more expensive treatment, injured persons still aren't 11 were, I guess, uncomfortable. 11 getting better because they're still able to 12 MS. RIIS: 12 13 13 settle for large pain and suffering amounts. Yes. So, it is my experience – and you 14 know, I'll talk about this a little bit more 14 Next slide please. So, the third topic 15 later too, but in speaking to some of the 15 that I wanted to speak on was litigation and the conflicting incentives around 16 Section B adjusters in Newfoundland, it's my 16 17 understanding that treatment continues until 17 litigation. In my mind, Section B is 18 the claim is settled. So, it appears to me 18 intended to promote recovery of injured 19 that, like in other provinces, that the 19 people. It's meant to provide access to 20 20 treatment is used as a mechanism to prove health care that's reasonable and necessary 21 how disabled somebody is, and this, of 21 that will promote recovery without forcing 22 22 the injured person to reach into their course, supports the claim for pain and 23 suffering. It's a frustrating conflict 23 pocket for large sums of money for ongoing 24 between the Section – in Section B and I 24 treatment. And this treatment should be 25 will talk about that a little bit more. 25 paid for by the person's own insurer and I Page 42 Page 44 1 believe the cap right now is \$25,000. And 1 (9:45 a.m.) in addition, there's compensation for loss 2 2 Next slide please. So, not only is it 3 unfair to injured persons to receive 3 of income and other damages. 4 ineffective treatment, it's also unfair to 4 So, I think when on the one hand you're 5 policyholders across the province to have to 5 being provided funds to seek good health 6 pay for ineffective treatment. So, that's care, but on the other hand your bodily 6 7 in part the goal of evidence-based care. 7 injury claim is based on how sick you are, 8 8 Injured persons shouldn't have to waste the injured person is in a conflicted 9 their time on treatment that's unlikely to 9 situation. On the one hand, they want to 10 help and drivers in Newfoundland should not 10 get better. On the other hand, if they get 11 better and go back to work and are perfectly 11 pay increasing premiums in order to pay for 12 treatment that doesn't work. 12 fine, then there's no bodily injury claim. 13 So, I think it puts people in an awkward 13 Currently, there seems to be little to situation and I think that's difficult. 14 support delivery of the best care possible 14 15 for injured persons. I believe that the 15 I also think if somebody who collides with a moose – and I don't believe moose 16 health care providers simply prescribe 16 whatever treatment they feel is appropriate 17 have insurance liability coverage – they're 17 and insurance adjusters are sort of left to 18 essentially left with no bodily injury claim 18 19 their own devices to figure out if they need 19 at all. And I think one of the 20 to approve that or not. And I suspect that 20 recommendations IBC put forward, I'm not 21 21 unreasonable denials of treatment are speaking to this, was to increase the cap to 22 happening and I'm certain that unreasonable 22 \$50,000 and I think this is going to be 23 approvals of treatment are happening as 23 beneficial for those people who don't have 24 well. Because again, there's no common 24 the opportunity to submit a bodily injury

25

understanding of what constitutes good

25

claim where it's a single vehicle accident,

September			2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 45		Page 47
1	so to speak.	1	The second piece is consumer education.
2	I think also that the conflict between	2	I think consumers need access to easy-to-
3	Section B intended for recovery and Section	3	understand information about navigating the
4	A to compensate for pecuniary and non-	4	system and knowing their rights. This is
5	pecuniary losses is confusing to many	5	hard because when we buy insurance we
6	injured people. I think many injured people	6	typically don't think we're going to need
7	don't understand the difference between	7	it. So, we don't read up about the system
8	Section B and Section A. They often don't	8	until after we've been in an accident. And
9	understand that there are two insurance	9	so, at that point, you're dealing with your
10	companies involved. Or if the third party	10	injury. You're dealing with the paperwork
11	was insured by the same insurance company	11	involved in making a claim. You're dealing
12	that covers Section B, they think it's all	12	with getting your car fixed. And it's not a
13	one person or one claim against the at-fault	13	great time to be reading about the
14	party. I think it generates a lot of	14	complexities of the auto insurance system.
15	difficulty for the injured person.	15	So, there needs to be education not only to
16	Also, one of the biggest problems with		consumers, but also to health care
17	this hybrid systems is that if an insurance	17	professionals, so in general there's a
18	adjuster denies a claim for treatment, the	18	heightened sense of how the system works and
19	patient often feels angry and they feel	19	that with Section B, you're working with
20	"this isn't fair. I should have this	20	your own insurance company.
21	treatment" and that creates a sense of	21	And I also think stakeholder education
22	injustice and the sense of injustice has	22	is critical. So, everybody involved in the
23	been shown in health care research to	23	system, if you're going to introduce a new
24	contribute to prolonged disability. So,	24	system, particularly the evidence-based
25	this system which is somewhat adversarial I	25	treatment protocols and the minor injury
	Page 46	-	Page 48
1	think actually can inhibit recovery because	1	cap, education and ongoing guidance during
2	it creates friction between the insurance	2	implementation can reduce a lot of conflict
3	company and the injured person. So, I think	3	and delays due to this misunderstanding of
4	that's also one of the downsides. So, one	4	the intent of the new system.
5	of the other recommendations I've made is to	5	In Alberta, when we implemented in
6	provide some more education for the general	6	2004, we set up a stakeholder dialogue prior
7	consumer, the public, as well as for the	7	to implementation and following
8	other stakeholders in the system.	8	implementation, we had a monthly
9	Next slide. So, these are the	9	teleconference with all stakeholders,
10	additional points that I wanted to mention.	10	including government representatives, the
11	I wasn't asked to comment on this, but I	11	health professional associations. I was
12	offered the information anyway to the Board.	12	there for IBC. Insurers were on the call.
13	I would hope that you could be the first	13	And we talked about what's working, what's
14	province in Canada not to use the term	14	not working. When something was not working
15	"minor injury". Type 1 injury is one	15	because of lack of clarity, the government
16	suggestion. You may find something better.	16	had the power to issue explanatory
17	But I do think the term "minor injury"	17	bulletins. So, the government would issue a
18	trivializes the impact of this injury on	18	bulletin underscoring the intent of certain
19	some people and it creates friction again.	19	parts of the process.
20	Patients have told us that, you know, "when	20	That was really helpful and the system
21	you tell me my injury is minor, I think you	21	implemented quite well and insurers and
		22	haulth professionals had a much stronger
22	don't believe me" and it forces the injured	22	health professionals had a much stronger
22 23	person to sort of prove that they're	23	working relationship. Prior to that, health
1			

Septe	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 49		Page 51
1	really improved after we had these	1	treatment protocol is, everybody knows what
2	stakeholder dialogues ongoing for several	2	the treatment is going to look like. So,
3	months. And that lasted for well over a	3	the insurer doesn't need to get a detailed
4	year and it really helped put the system	4	explanation of what treatment are you going
5	into play.	5	to do, how many times and so on. The
6	So, those are my comments and I will be	6	treatment is pre-approved. So, the
7	happy to entertain questions.	7	clinician knows they're going to get paid
8	STAMP, Q.C.:	8	for the protocol treatment and the insurer
9	Q. Ms. Riis, before you turn over to questions	9	knows that they're going to pay it. And so
10	from others, I did speak to you initially at	10	basically treatment starts.
11	one point about the Nova Scotia, New	11	STAMP, Q.C.:
12	Brunswick experience and so on. But I	12	Q. And how is it followed?
13	guess, maybe can you answer this way: how	13	MS. RIIS:
1		13	
14	does this protocol arrangement work? I		A. So, in the guideline, there's usually the
15	mean, a patient is injured. How does it	15	requirement for an initial assessment. That
16	actually work in practice? What happens?	16	would be included as part of the guideline.
17	MS. RIIS:	17	And you can include reporting periods, so
18	A. So, the scenario would be this: The	18	progress report might be required at 12
19	collision happens. Very often people with	19	weeks. So, at the 12-week mark so most of
20	Type 1 injuries do not feel the need to go	20	the guidelines cover a 12-week period, three
21	to emergency. They don't generally call the	21	months post injury because three months is
22	paramedics. They might go see their family	22	generally a timeline during which most of
23	doctor. But the first thing they'd	23	these injuries should be resolving. And at
24	typically do, if they've been in a	24	three months, the provider either discharges
25	collision, is call their insurance company	25	the nations if the nations has done well
1	comsion, is can then insurance company	23	the patient, if the patient has done well,
25		23	
1	Page 50		Page 52
1	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a	1	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional
1 2	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision.	1 2	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be
1 2 3	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta,	1 2 3	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional
1 2 3 4	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is	1 2 3 4	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point,
1 2 3 4 5	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure,	1 2 3 4 5	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based
1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg,	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 50 and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 52 or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets up a direct pay mechanism with the health	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now we're being asked to pay for more treatment.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets up a direct pay mechanism with the health care clinic. And I think that's a huge	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now we're being asked to pay for more treatment. How do we know this more treatment is going
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets up a direct pay mechanism with the health care clinic. And I think that's a huge advantage. Takes away a great deal of	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now we're being asked to pay for more treatment. How do we know this more treatment is going to help? So, there's a lot of work, I
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets up a direct pay mechanism with the health care clinic. And I think that's a huge advantage. Takes away a great deal of bureaucracy out of the process.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now we're being asked to pay for more treatment. How do we know this more treatment is going to help? So, there's a lot of work, I think, that could be done to help the health
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	and let them know they've been in a collision. And so, in say Nova Scotia or Alberta, what would happen, the insurance company is expected – I think I even – I'm not sure, but I think they're required to give the injured person guidance to seek medical attention. So, whether that's go to Emerg, go to your family doctor, go to your – you know, if you have a physiotherapist, your physiotherapist or chiropractor. And they would also tell the injured person to tell your health care professional to call us and we'll set up an arrangement so payment can happen directly to the clinic. So, when these have been implemented, one of the benefits of it is that the patient does not have to pay for the treatment and then get reimbursed by the insurer. The insurer sets up a direct pay mechanism with the health care clinic. And I think that's a huge advantage. Takes away a great deal of	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	or if the patient needs additional treatment, a progress report would be submitted with a request for additional treatment to continue. And at that point, the insurance company would adjudicate based on what they understand is going on. The health care providers, they're not very good at times in explaining to the insurance company why more treatment would help. They simply put in a request for more treatment. So, what the insurance company sees is "okay, this person has had 12 weeks of treatment. They don't seem to be any better" and sometimes health providers don't give a progress report on function to the insurer. So, the insurer thinks "well, they're no better". So, the insurance company is stuck with the situation where the patient's not getting better and now we're being asked to pay for more treatment. How do we know this more treatment is going to help? So, there's a lot of work, I

Page 53 1 questions to ask to understand why will this 2 additional treatment help. 3 But in any case, if somebody hasn't 4 recovered during the protocol, then they go 5 into the traditional system where they 6 submit a claim for further treatment, 7 explain to the insurance adjuster why. The 8 insurance adjuster approves or denies that 9 treatment. 10 STAMP, Q.C.: 11 Q. So, have you had any direct involvement with say the Nova Scotia situation or New 12 Brunswick, for example, and to see how it's 13 worked over there? 14 15 (10:00 a.m.) 16 MS. RIIS: I haven't been involved recently with Nova 17 Scotia. I was involved in the initial 18 19 introduction of the diagnosis treatment 20 protocols. I was involved in the training. 21 To be honest, I haven't heard anything good 22 or bad in terms of what's happening in Nova 23 Scotia. So, I'm assuming it's coasting. I 24 don't know. 25 STAMP, Q.C.: Page 54 1 Q. And what about Alberta, for example? 2 MS. RIIS: 3 Yeah. In Alberta, I continue to be involved A. and I think their diagnostic treatment 4 5 protocols continue to work quite well. I 6 believe the relationships between the health 7 industry and the insurance industry are 8 generally very good, much better than in 9 Ontario and other provinces. 10 STAMP, Q.C.: Ms. Riis, thanks very much. Others will 11 have questions for you, of course. 12 MS. RIIS: 13 14 A. Sure. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Thank you, Madam Chair. I will be asking some questions on behalf of the Campaign. 17 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 18 19 Excuse me, Mr. Kennedy. Just one moment. Q. 20 Madam Chair, just for the sake of order for

the assistance of counsel, we do have copies

want those now or would you like to have the

slides for the purposes of your questioning?

of the slides. I don't – I think they track

the presentation. I don't know if counsel

21

22

23

24

25

2017 Automobile Insurance Review 1 Because we have them printed right now. 2 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. I think what I'd prefer to do, because I 4 want to make sure that we use our time 5 wisely, I'll just continue with the 6 questioning, Mr. O'Flaherty, and there's a 7 break. There's one particular slide I want 8 to look at. So, we could either do it now 9 or do it then, Madam Chair, whatever you 10 want. CHAIR: 11 12 If you – when you request it, we can do it O. 13 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. Thank you. Ms. Riis, my name is Jerome Kennedy. I'm appearing on behalf of the 16 Campaign to Protect Innocent Victims – 17 Accident Victims. Ms. Riis, I'm going to 18 19 refer you to report, if we could call the report up, please, at page 13. In the 20 21 second paragraph there, Ms. Riis, you say 22 that you recommend – support the 23 recommendations made by IBC. Do you see 24 that? 25 MS. RIIS: Page 56 1 A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 2 3 Okay, now one of the recommendations made by IBC is that there be a minor injury cap of 4 5 \$5,000 for general damages for pain and suffering, are you aware of that? 6 7 MS. RIIS: 8 I am aware of that. 9 KENNEDY, O.C.: And do you support that recommendation? 10 Q. MS. RIIS: 11 12 I am not going to comment on the amount that's being recommended, but I do support 13 the concept of a cap. I have no objection 14 15 to that. 16 KENNEDY, Q.C.: And why would you support the recommendation 17 18 of a cap if we're dealing with implementation of protocols for evidence 19

based treatment, what is the relationship

Having worked with people with catastrophic

spinal cord—a young man with a spinal cord

injury, I really feel that somebody with a

between the two?

20

21

22

23

24

25

MS. RIIS:

A.

September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review Page 57 1 injury for the rest of his life is going to 1 two victims, innocent victims of motor 2 2 need a lot of money, shouldn't be capped, vehicle accidents and we heard from a panel 3 and I think the money needs to be directed 3 of lawyers, have you reviewed the testimony 4 towards those severe injuries. The 4 provided by these individuals? 5 pecuniary losses of an individual with a 5 MS. RIIS: 6 Type 1 injury is not going to be capped, as 6 I have copies of the testimony, but I A. 7 7 haven't reviewed all of it, I reviewed parts I understand it. This is a cap on general 8 8 damages, is that correct? of it. It was quite extensive. 9 9 KENNEDY, O.C.: KENNEDY, O.C.: That's correct, yes, that's the IBC 10 10 So when you say you reviewed parts of it, what have you reviewed? 11 proposal, yes. 11 MS. RIIS: 12 MS. RIIS: 12 Yeah, so it's my understanding that if 13 I reviewed, I believe it was two cases of 13 A. 14 somebody with a Type 1 injury requires 14 people who had Type 1 injuries who went on 15 treatment for a prolonged period of time, 15 to suffer prolonged disability and prolonged that that can be covered through the impact on their lives. 16 16 17 settlement. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. So if there was a cap in place, since you've 19 But I don't understand, I guess what I'm 19 given your opinion, would they be caught by Q. missing here as a healthcare provider, and 20 20 the cap, in your opinion as a healthcare -21 you're here talking about basically accident 21 MS. RIIS: 22 benefits, improving the delivery of 22 A. According to the definition as I read it, 23 benefits, why you would have any position on 23 the imposition of a minor injury cap? 24 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 MS. RIIS: 25 0. They wouldn't. Page 58 Page 60 I said I have no objection to the imposition MS. RIIS: 1 A. 1 2 of a cap and that's partly because of the 2 A. No. 3 comments I made about the effects of 3 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 4 litigation. I think that the pain and 4 So the woman with the whiplash, there was Q. 5 suffering award essentially compensations 5 three, I think, one woman had been involved 6 for disability and so I think people who are 6 in three accidents, you're saying that there 7 in the position of trying to recover, but at 7 would be a cumulative effect of all three 8 the same time wanting to maximize the pain 8 accidents? 9 and suffering award, I think that puts them 9 MS. RIIS: in an awkward situation. So I think if the 10 10 I don't know the case in sufficient detail, A. pain and suffering award is capped in cases so I don't want to comment on that. 11 11 of minor injury, or Type 1 injuries, I don't 12 12 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 think they're going to miss out on necessary You just commented, Ms. Riis, you said it 13 Q. wouldn't be caught by the cap. treatment, on lost income. I think it's a 14 14 15 cap on the general damages, which is 15 MS. RIIS: 16 different from capping future treatment. 16 A. I don't want to comment on it because I 17 KENNEDY, O.C.: 17 haven't read it in detail and I'm afraid 18 So this is, you're using the words "I that you are going to interpret my responses 18 Q. think", "my opinion", so it's basically your 19 19 as if I've read it in detail and I just subjective opinion, is that correct? 20 20 haven't. MS. RIIS: 21 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.:

22

23

24

25

Q.

A.

MS. RIIS:

Well you just said that –

My initial impression was that I didn't

think they would be caught by the cap

22

23

24

25

A.

Q.

Yes.

KENNEDYD, O.C.:

Okay. Now, on Monday I think it was, this

is Wednesday now, on Monday we heard from

September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review

1		mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
2		Page 61		Page 63
2	1	because it was my impression, having not	1	understand what he was saving, so yes, I
3	1			
4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 5 Q. So wouldn't a better answer have been "I 6 have no comment"? 6 MS. RIIS: 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Thank you. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Would that have been your better answer? 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, have you reviewed that? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, have you reviewed that? 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at in the Closed Claims Study? 20 MS. RIIS: 21 MS. RIIS: 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 definitions and you don't like the term 27 minor injury', did you review the evidence of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six days ago, on a Friday? 28 MS. RIIS: 29 A. A. Again, only in part. 4 Ca. A. Again, only in part. 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 8 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" ling Wish and the Nova Scotia and and only wing that the Nova Scotia and and you chave that the Nova Scotia and and you chave that the Nova Scotia and and you wing the minor wing minor wing minor wing minor wing minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." That's correct, is it? MS. RIIS: MS. RII				
So wouldn't a better answer have been "I have no comment"?	1	• • •		* · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
6 have no comment"? 7 MS. RIIS: 7 back to that, Mr. Stamp asked you how you got here. It's been a common question for everyone. You were asked by the IBC to review their submission and file a report. 10 Q. Would that have been your better answer? 11 MS. RIIS: 10 A. Yes, thank you. 12 A. Yes, thank you. 12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 16 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 17 MS. RIIS: 17 In the Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 18 A. No. 18 Physiotherapist in good standing since '79 and you have a Master's degree in Rehabilitation & Science, correct? 19 and you have a Master's degree in Rehabilitation & Science, correct? 19 A. No. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 29 WS. RIIS: 20 A. You also state, "I have been engaged in the Closed Claims Study? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. Again, only in part. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 37 A. No. 28 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 38 MS. RIIS: 39 MS. RIIS: 30 MS. RIIS: 30 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 33 MS. RIIS: 34 A. Yes. 34 MS. RIIS: 34 A. Yes. 34 MS. RIIS: 35 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 36 MS. RIIS: 36 MS. RIIS: 37 MS. RIIS: 38 MS. RIIS: 39 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 MS. RIIS: 33 MS. RIIS: 34 A. Yes. 34 MS. RIIS: 34 A. Yes. 35 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 35 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 35 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 36 MS. RIIS: 35 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 36 MS. RIIS: 36 MS. RIIS: 37 MS. RIIS: 38 MS. RIIS: 39 MS.	1	, · ·		
7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Thank you. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Would that have been your better answer? 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 MS. RIIS: 27 MS. RIIS: 28 A. No. 29 MS. RIIS: 29 MS. RIIS: 20 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 20 MS. RIIS: 21 A. No. 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 MS. RIIS: 27 MS. RIIS: 28 MS. RIIS: 29 MS. RIIS: 30 A. No. 31 MS. RIIS: 31 A. No. 32 MS. RIIS: 33 A. No. 34 A. Ayagan, only in part. 35 MS. RIIS: 36 A. Again, only in part. 37 That's correct, is if? 38 MS. RIIS: 39 MS. RIIS: 40 Chay, and what part did you review? 40 MS. RIIS: 41 A. The first two pages. 41 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 42 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 43 MS. RIIS: 44 A. Yes. 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. Yes. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 40 MS. RIIS: 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. No. 44 Mays ago, on a Friday? 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. No. 41 MS. RIIS: 41 A. No. 42 MS. RIIS: 41 A. No. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. No. 44 Mays ago, on a Friday? 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. No. 41 MS. RIIS: 41 A. No. 42 MS. RIIS: 41 A. No. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. No. 44 MS. RIIS: 44 A. Yes. 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 That's correct, is if? 48 MS. RIIS: 49 A. Correct. 40 And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. Yes. 44 MS. RIIS: 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 49 A. Correc		`		·
8 A. Thank you. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Would that have been your better answer? 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six days ago, on a Friday? 4 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 In the Closed Claims Study? 17 In the Closed Claims Study? 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Correct. 20 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 29 MS. RIIS: 21 A. Yes. 21 In the Closed Claims Study? 21 In the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 39 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages. 41 C. Okay, so othining unusual about that. If we could look at page 2 of your report, please? 42 Coday, so nothing unusual about that. If we could look at page 2 of your report, please? 40 Q. Okay, and whate part did we could look at page 2 of your report, please? 41 A. No. 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 43 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 44 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 MS. RIIS: 47 A. No. 48 Correct. 49 A. Correct. 40 Coday, so nothing unusual about that. If we could look at page 2 of your report, please? 40 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes	1			
9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Would that have been your better answer? 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 WS. RIIS: 27 A. Correct. 28 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 29 WS. RIIS: 20 A. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 20 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 21 definitions and you don't like the term 22 "minor injury", did you review the evidence of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 3 days ago, on a Friday? 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 19 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. No. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 39 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Correct. 41 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and Nova Scotia and Ontario. The first two pages of his testimony? 41 A. Yes. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. Yes. 44 Correct. 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 A. No. 48 Correct. 49 A. Correct. 40 Correct. 41 A. Yes.	1			
10	1			•
11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes, thank you. 12 A. Yes. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 16 have you reviewed that? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 18 physiotherapist in good standing since '79 18 kENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 physiotherapist in good standing since '79 19 kENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 A. No. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 25 MS. RIIS: 27 MS. RIIS: 28 A. No. 29 MS. RIIS: 29 MS. RIIS: 20 No. So when we're talking here about 27 MS. RIIS: 28 MS. RIIS: 29 MS. RIIS: 30	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
12 A. Yes, thank you. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 16 have you reviewed that? 17 could look at page 2 of your report, please? 18 A. No. 18 hysiotherapist in good standing since '79 19 and you have a Master's degree in 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 A. No. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 A. Again, only in part. 10 A. The first two pages. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 12 Ms. RIIS: 13 Ms. RIIS: 13 Ms. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and 17 Correct. 18 CENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 CENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 A. No. 19 A. Yes. 19	1			
13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, 16 have you reviewed that? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 definitions and you don't like the term 27 c definitions and you don't like the term 28 definitions and you don't like the term 29 definitions and you don't like the term 20 days ago, on a Friday? 31 A. No. 32 definitions and you don't like the term 33 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 44 days ago, on a Friday? 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Again, only in part. 47 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 48 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages. 41 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 42 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 43 MS. RIIS: 44 A. Yes. 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 40 MS. RIIS: 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 43 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 44 Correct. 45 A. No. 46 A. No. 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. A. The first two pages of his testimony? 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 41 MS. RIIS: 42 A. Correct. 43 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 44 MS. RIIS: 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 47 MS. RIIS: 48 A. No. 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 43 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 44 Correct. 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 MS. RIIS: 47 A. Correct. 48 MS. RIIS: 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 43 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 44 Correct. 45 MS. RIIS: 46 A. Yes. 47 MS. RIIS: 48 MS. RIIS: 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 MS. RIIS: 43 A. No. 44 MS. RIIS: 44 A. Yes. 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 MS. RIIS: 47 A. No. 48 MS. RIIS: 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes.	11	MS. RIIS:	11	MS. RIIS:
14 Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the 15 Closed Claim Study prepared by Oliver Wyman, have you reviewed that? 16 So you indicate here, as you have indicated 17 MS. RIIS: 17 in your CV, that you're a registered 18 physiotherapist in good standing since '79 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 and you have a Master's degree in 20 Rehabilitation & Science, correct? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 A. No. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 MS. RIIS: 28 A. No. 29 MS. RIIS: 29 A. No. 20 MS. RIIS: 20 No. So when we're talking here about 20 MS. RIIS: 21 A. No. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 MS. RIIS: 28 A. No. 29 MS. RIIS: 29 A. No. 20 MS. RIIS: 20 A. Correct. 20 A. The first two pages. 20 A. Correct. 20 A. The first two pages of his testimony? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 A. Correct. 24 A. Yes. 25 MS. RIIS: 25 A. No. 26 MS. RIIS: 26 A. Correct. 27 A. No. 28 MS. RIIS: 29 A. Correct. 28 A. Correct. 29 A. Correct. 20 A. Corre	12	A. Yes, thank you.	12	A. Yes.
15	13	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	13	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
15	14	Q. Yeah, it would, sure. Now, in terms of the	14	Q. Okay, so nothing unusual about that. If we
16			15	` ',
17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. No. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 definitions and you don't like the term 27 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 28 MS. RIIS: 29 MS. RIIS: 20 No. So when we're talking here about 20 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 29 MS. RIIS: 30 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 31 Trunswick and Ontario." 32 Trunswick and Ontario." 33 No. RIIS: 34 No. RIIS: 45 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 46 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 47 That's correct, is it? 48 NS. RIIS: 49 A. Correct. 40 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 48 NS. RIIS: 49 A. Correct. 40 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 49 MS. RIIS: 40 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 40 No. RENNEDY, Q.C.: 41 NS. RIIS: 42 No. Orrect. 43 No. 44 No. 45 No. 46 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 45 That's correct, is it? 46 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 47 That's correct, is it? 48 NS. RIIS: 49 NS. RIIS: 40 No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the	1			
18	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 MS. RIIS: 27 A. Correct. 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 29 MS. RIIS: 20 A. No. 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 28 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 39 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages. 41 Correct. 41 A. No. 42 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 43 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 30 A. The first two pages. 41 Correct. 42 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 43 A. No. 44 Correct. 45 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 45 A. Correct. 46 No. RIIS: 47 A. No. 48 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 49 MS. RIIS: 40 A. The first two pages. 40 Correct. 41 A. Ves. 41 A. Yes. 41 A. Yes. 42 Q. Correct. 42 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 40 C. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 41 C. A. The first two pages of his testimony? 42 C. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 43 A. No. 44 A. No. 45 C. No. You also	1			
20 Q. So do you know how many cases were looked at 21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about 26 definitions and you don't like the term "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 4 MS. RIIS: 4 A. Again, only in part. 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 12 (NS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 28 That's correct, is it? 29 A. Correct. 29 MS. RIIS: 20 A. Correct. 21 A. No. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. No. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 29 MS. RIIS: 20 A. Correct. 21 MS. RIIS: 21 A. No. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. Oo. 27 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 29 MS. RIIS: 30 A. Oorrect. 31 A. No. 4 A. No. 5 MS. RIIS: 4 A. Yes. 5 MS. RIIS: 5 A. No. 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	1			
21 in the Closed Claims Study? 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about Page 62 1 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. Correct. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 24 Q. So you're not a medical doctor, physician? 25 MS. RIIS: 1 A. No. 2 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 12 MS. RIIS: 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about Page 62 1 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 1 A. No. 2 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and		` '		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
23 A. No. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about Page 62 1 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 1 A. No. 2 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions 5 MS. RIIS: 5 and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, 6 A. Again, only in part. 6 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about Page 62 1 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" Page 62	1			
25 Q. No. So when we're talking here about Page 62 definitions and you don't like the term minor injury", did you review the evidence of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six days ago, on a Friday? MS. RIIS: MS.	1			
Page 62 1 definitions and you don't like the term 2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor Page 62 A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	1	, ,		
definitions and you don't like the term 'minor injury', did you review the evidence of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six days ago, on a Friday? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, and what part did you review? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Mo. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." That's correct, is it? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: MS. RII	25	Q. No. So when we're talking here about	25	MS. RIIS:
2 "minor injury", did you review the evidence 3 of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six 4 days ago, on a Friday? 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 2 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in the introduction of minor injury definitions and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and		Page 62		Page 64
3	1	definitions and you don't like the term	1	A. No.
4 the introduction of minor injury definitions 5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 14 the introduction of minor injury definitions 5 and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, 6 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Or. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	2	"minor injury", did you review the evidence	2	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 9 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 5 and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	3	of Dr. Karl Misik who testified five or six	3	Q. No. You also state, "I have been engaged in
5 MS. RIIS: 6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 15 MS. RIIS: 16 A. Again, only in part. 6 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	4	days ago, on a Friday?	4	the introduction of minor injury definitions
6 A. Again, only in part. 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario." 7 That's correct, is it? 8 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	5		5	and/or evidence based protocols in Alberta,
7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 9 A. Correct. 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	6	A. Again, only in part.	6	*
8 Q. Okay, and what part did you review? 9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	1	• • •		
9 MS. RIIS: 10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 19 A. Correct. 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	1			
10 A. The first two pages. 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and				MS RIIS.
11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor" 11 Q. And at each of these occasions you've been 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and				
12 Q. The first two pages of his testimony? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 12 hired by IBC, is that correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	9	MS. RIIS:	9	A. Correct.
13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	9 10	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages.	9 10	A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 14 A. Yes. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	9 10 11	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9 10 11	A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been
15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	9 10 11 12	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony?	9 10 11 12	A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct?
16 Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor 16 Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and	9 10 11 12 13	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS:	9 10 11 12 13	A. Correct.KENNEDY, Q.C.:Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct?MS. RIIS:
	9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	9 10 11 12 13 14	A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your
1	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship –
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very different and what you describe minor for	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship – MS. RIIS:
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very different and what you describe minor for one person would not be minor for a second	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship – MS. RIIS: A. Alberta was 2004.
	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very different and what you describe minor for one person would not be minor for a second person, do you agree with that assessment by	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship – MS. RIIS: A. Alberta was 2004. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very different and what you describe minor for one person would not be minor for a second person, do you agree with that assessment by Dr. Misik?	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship – MS. RIIS: A. Alberta was 2004. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Nova Scotia and New Brunswick were on 2003,
25 A. I wouldn't use that language, but I 25 2007?	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	MS. RIIS: A. The first two pages. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The first two pages of his testimony? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Dr. Misik also didn't like the term "minor injury", but for different reasons because he basically, if I can summarize, testified that the effect upon individuals can be very different and what you describe minor for one person would not be minor for a second person, do you agree with that assessment by Dr. Misik? MS. RIIS:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And at each of these occasions you've been hired by IBC, is that correct? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so we know that the Nova Scotia and New Brunswick definitions came in around—or the caps came in around 2003, 2004, so your relationship – MS. RIIS: A. Alberta was 2004. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Nova Scotia and New Brunswick were on 2003, 2004, weren't they? I thought Alberta was

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 65		Page 67
1	MS. RIIS:	1	you indicate that you have authored several
2	A. I don't think so, I think Nova Scotia was	2	injury reference manuals on the topic of
3	later than that. Amanda, do you know?	3	rehabilitation for auto insurance companies,
4	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	4	so that would have started with Allstate,
5	Q. We can deal with that, I don't think—I think	5	would it, and then with IBC and other
6	it's around—in 2007 there's a constitutional	6	individual insurance companies?
7	challenge in Nova Scotia, is that what	7	MS. RIIS:
8	you're talking about?	8	A. Yes.
9	MS. RIIS:	9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
1			, ,
10	A. Well I was involved in Nova Scotia in 2012.	10	Q. Okay. Then in 2004 to 2010, you were a
11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	11	consultant for the Insurance Bureau of
12	Q. Okay, so in any event, you've been involved	12	Canada participating as a researcher in a
13	in four different provinces in terms of the	13	survey among automobile insurers to gather
14	introduction of minor injury definitions and	14	data pertaining to the utilization of the
15	protocols?	15	minor injury guideline.
16	MS. RIIS:	16	MS. RIIS:
17	A. Yes.	17	A. Yes.
18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
19	Q. In each one of those provinces, IBC was the	19	Q. Okay, so we know at least until 1994 you're
20	proponent or a proponent for the cap, a	20	working in some aspect with the insurance
21	minor injury cap on general damages for pain		industry, is that the first time that you
22	and suffering?	22	had worked with the insurance industry or
23	MS. RIIS:	23	for the insurance industry?
24	A. Yes.	24	MS. RIIS:
25	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	25	A. Apart from treating patients that were
	Page 66		Page 68
1	Q. So your relationship with the IBC in terms	1	injured in traffic collisions, yes.
2	of this kind of hearing goes back 15 years,	2	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
$\frac{2}{3}$	maybe?	3	Q. So then in 2008, you consulted with the IBC
4	MS. RIIS:	4	in reparation and presentation of paper and
5		5	poster at World Congress on Neck Pain, a
6	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	6	survey—is this all the one thing, a survey
7	Q. Okay, have you ever testified at one of	7	examining the effect of reforms on the
8	these hearings for the other side, for the	8	Alberta benefit system?
9	people who are challenging the cap?	9	MS. RIIS:
10	MS. RIIS:	10	A. Yes.
11	A. I haven't testified in a government hearing	11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
12	for the other side, no.	12	Q. Okay, so in 2008 you consulted, I'm assuming
13	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	13	you were hired as a consultant to work with
14	Q. Okay, so your relationship with the IBC,	14	IBC?
15	though, I understand goes back further than	15	MS. RIIS:
16	15 years ago, it goes back to the '90s?	16	A. Yes, yes.
17	MS. RIIS:	17	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
18	A. I'm going to say early 2000s, I can't recall	18	Q. Okay, if we then go to page 2, you see
19	exactly when, but I'd say the turn of the	19	expert witness at the Nova Scotia
20	century.	20	Constitutional Challenge. Now that's why I
1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	21	think—I thought Nova Scotia and we had a
21	KENNEDI, Q.C		
21 22	Q. And if we could perhaps have your CV brought	22	lawyer from Nova Scotia here earlier, I
	Q. And if we could perhaps have your CV brought	22 23	,
22 23	Q. And if we could perhaps have your CV brought up for a second. And if we could go, Ms.	23	thought it was 2003, 2004, around then that
22	Q. And if we could perhaps have your CV brought		,

Septe	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 69		Page 71
1	your CV indicates that you were an expert	1	members and non-voting members?
2	witness at the Nova Scotia Constitutional	2	MS. RIIS:
3	Challenge?	3	A. Yes, and I was a non-voting member.
4	MS. RIIS:	4	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
5		5	, (
1 .			Q. Okay, how many voting members on that panel
6	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	6	were there?
7	Q. And that's 2009.	7	MS. RIIS:
8	MS. RIIS:	8	A. I'm going to say at least 15.
9	A. Yes.	9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	10	Q. And were there other non-voting members
11	Q. Did you testify there?	11	besides yourself?
12	MS. RIIS:	12	MS. RIIS:
13	A. Yes.	13	A. Yes.
14	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	14	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
15	Q. Who did you testify for as a witness? Who	15	Q. How many of those were there?
16	called you as a witness?	16	MS. RIIS:
17	MS. RIIS:	17	A. Again, I don't know what the accurate number
18	A. IBC.	18	is?
19	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	19	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
20	Q. IBC. When we look at the next one,	20	Q. What was the difference between a voting
21	Taskforce Member, May to October, 2011, you	21	member and a non-voting member to the best
22	were appointed as the IBC representative to	22	of your understanding?
23	New Brunswick Minor Personal Cap Working	23	MS. RIIS:
24	Group by the Minister of Justice to assist	24	
1			$\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$
25	in development of recommendations regarding	25	participated in the actual scientific
	Page 70		Page 72
1	Page 70 definition of minor personal injury and cap.	1	Page 72 research review process that lead to the
1 2	=	1 2	Page 72 research review process that lead to the
1	definition of minor personal injury and cap.		Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were
2 3	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS:	2 3	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a
2 3 4	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct.	2 3 4	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So
2 3 4 5	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the
2 3 4 5 6	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to	2 3 4 5 6	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto
2 3 4 5 6 7	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to,	2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 72 research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing thing, Ms. Riis?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel? MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing thing, Ms. Riis?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel? MS. RIIS: A. Oh, I'd have to count, but I'd say 20 at	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing thing, Ms. Riis? MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	definition of minor personal injury and cap. So you were the IBC representative? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In 2013, I think this one may be referred to in your report, I think it is referred to, actually, you call it the Optima Project Expert Panel. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You represent IBC on an expert panel which resulted in publication enabling recovery from common traffic injuries that focus on the injured person? MS. RIIS: A. Correct. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. How many people were on that panel? MS. RIIS: A. Oh, I'd have to count, but I'd say 20 at least.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	research review process that lead to the publication. The non-voting members were there to offer guidance and to establish a framework for some of the discussions. So we had a lot of researchers from around the world who didn't understand how the auto insurance system worked and the non-voting members were there to offer sort of a framework in which to consider the research. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If you go up a little bit further then, the National Pain Strategy, December 2017 to present, as stakeholder representing the Insurance Bureau of Canada at the McMaster Health Forum. So again, you were appointed or hired by the IBC. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Is that health forum, is that an ongoing thing, Ms. Riis? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.

September 12, 2018 Page 73 1 please? And we talked about 1992 to 2008, 1 associations" et cetera, but then in all of 2 2008 to the present, so Health Service 2 these circumstances you were hired by the Management, that's simply your company, I'm 3 3 IBC, is that correct? 4 assuming? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 MS. RIIS: 5 Yes, I was engaged with IBC, but I was also Α. Yes. 6 engaged separately by some health 6 A. 7 professional associations around the same 7 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 8 issue, but when I was engaged by, say the Okay. The second bullet from the bottom of 9 Ontario Physiotherapy Association or the 9 that one, I guess, develop training programs for insurance companies on catastrophic Alberta Physiotherapy Association, they 10 10 claims, we've talked about that, you talked wanted me to speak to them as a 11 11 about that earlier, did you? physiotherapist trainer. 12 12 KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: 13 13 14 Α. Yes. 14 0. When you were involved in Alberta, Nova 15 (10:15 a.m.) 15 Scotia, New Brunswick and Ontario in terms KENNEDY, Q.C.: of the introduction of minor injury 16 16 Consulting on auto insurance issues and 17 definitions and/or evidence based protocols, 17 reform in Alberta, Nova Scotia and New your submissions would have supported IBC's 18 18 19 Brunswick? 19 submission, is that correct? MS. RIIS: 20 20 MS. RIIS: 21 A. Yes. 21 A. I'd like to think that IBC supports my 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 recommendations. Okay, and you talked about that. And then 23 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: consulting with Ontario, Alberta and Nova IBC are paying you, correct? You're not 24 24 Q. 25 Scotia health professional associates and 25 paying them? Page 74 Page 76 1 MS. RIIS: academic groups. Who would—give me an 1 2 example, please, of a health professional 2 Α. That's correct. 3 association? 3 KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: 4 4 Yes. Have you ever been retained, for Q. 5 So the Ontario Physiotherapy Association; 5 example, to question the validity of a cap Α. the Registered Massage Therapist 6 6 or whether or not a minor injury cap should 7 Association; I spoke with the Nova Scotia 7 be brought in? Physiotherapy Association, I did 8 8 MS. RIIS: 9 presentations for them; University of 9 A. I've been asked to consider the pros and Toronto; Dalhousie, so various health cons of a cap, but certainly I have not 10 10 professional groups would invite me in to written this type of a submission opposing a 11 11 speak on the reforms and the impact on the 12 12 cap. delivery of healthcare. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Okay. We've talked about minor injuries, so 14 14 Okay. If I could now ask you to look at I'm not going to deal with that because you 15 15 Q. 16 page 2 again, we're still on page 2, and 16 are pretty clear on that, except I'm going to come back to that report that you refer 17 this is where you talk about—it's the 17 sentence after you talk about also been 18 to—or maybe, let's do it now. There has 18 engaged in the introduction of minor injury been a report prepared by the Newfoundland 19 19 definitions and/or evidence based protocols. 20 and Labrador Chiropractic Association which 20 Alberta, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and 21 has been filed with the Board, have you seen 21 Ontario. And you go on to say, "This has 22 22 that? 23 allowed me to work closely with multiple 23 MS. RIIS: 24 stakeholders, the general public, 24 No. I haven't.

25

KENNEDY, Q.C.:

governments, health professional

25

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 77		Page 79
1	Q. Could we bring that up, please? And first I	1	work. In general, passive treatments are
2	guess I should ask, since you determined	2	shown to offer symptomatic relief only and
3	that certain treatments are ineffective, do	3	tend generally not to contribute to
4	you accept that chiropractic is an effective	4	functional recovery.
5	treatment for some injuries sustained in	5	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
6	motor vehicle accidents?	6	Q. Okay, so let's deal with the ones that don't
7	MS. RIIS:	7	work. We talked about the ones you accept
8	A. Yes.	8	work, so the neck collar is one?
9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9	MS. RIIS:
10	Q. Do you accept that massage therapy is an	10	A. Right.
11	effective treatment for injuries sustained	11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
12	in motor vehicle accidents?	12	Q. Rest; in other words, to rest.
13	MS. RIIS:	13	MS. RIIS:
14	A. Yes.	13	A. Basically immobility is detrimental in most
15		15	, ,
	KENNEDY, Q.C.:		cases.
16	Q. Do you accept that physiotherapy is an	16	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
17	appropriate treatment?	17	Q. Avoiding your daily activities?
18	MS. RIIS:	18	MS. RIIS:
19	A. Yes.	19	A. Right.
20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
21	Q. Would kinesiology or a kinesiologist be	21	Q. What else? Is there anything else there?
22	individuals or a practice which could help	22	Like Tylenol, you said, doesn't work for
23	in the treatment of motor vehicle injuries?	23	lower back pain.
24	MS. RIIS:	24	MS. RIIS:
25	A. Yes.	25	A. For low back pain.
	Page 78		Page 80
1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2	Q. So when you say that there are certain	2	Q. Okay, anything else?
3	treatments that have been shown to be	3	MS. RIIS:
4	ineffective, which ones are you referring	4	A. I would not be able to comment right now
5	to?	5	because I would have to have it in front of
6	MS. RIIS:	6	me, there are so many studies that list so
7	A. Soft collar, rest, avoiding usual	7	many different interventions that work,
8	activities.	8	don't work, are equivocal, so I'm not
9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9	prepared to try to make a list of them right
10	Q. So you would consider those to be	10	now.
11	treatments?	11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
12	MS. RIIS:	12	Q. Okay, now I'm assuming that in your work you
13	A. Yes. A treatment, a term we often use	13	have done for IBC and as a physiotherapist
14	instead of treatment is "intervention", so	14	you've seen reports that have been prepared
15			
16	if I sit down with my patient and speak to	15	by medical doctors, by physicians?
1 10	if I sit down with my patient and speak to	15 16	by medical doctors, by physicians? MS. RIIS:
17			, , , , ,
1	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact	16	MS. RIIS:
17	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an	16 17	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
17 18	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an intervention that's geared towards	16 17 18	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And oftentimes we'll see in these medical
17 18 19	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an intervention that's geared towards supporting their health.	16 17 18 19	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And oftentimes we'll see in these medical reports, "I saw the patient within days of
17 18 19 20 21	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an intervention that's geared towards supporting their health. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	16 17 18 19 20	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And oftentimes we'll see in these medical reports, "I saw the patient within days of the accident, I prescribed rest, I told the
17 18 19 20 21 22	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an intervention that's geared towards supporting their health. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay.	16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And oftentimes we'll see in these medical reports, "I saw the patient within days of the accident, I prescribed rest, I told the patient to rest, to avoid doing their daily
17 18 19 20 21	if I sit down with my patient and speak to them about what happened to you, what's the anatomy of your injury, what is the impact of your injury, I consider that an intervention that's geared towards supporting their health. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And oftentimes we'll see in these medical reports, "I saw the patient within days of the accident, I prescribed rest, I told the

25

injuries cases, isn't it?

literature and what works and what doesn't

25

25

Yes.

A.

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 81		Page 83
1	MS. RIIS:	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2	A. That's right.	2	Q. So do you disagree with the medical
3	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	3	profession in terms of the prescribing of
4	Q. So do you disagree with the medical	4	the neck collar?
5	profession in that respect, that they're not	5	MS. RIIS:
6	doing things properly?	6	A. I can't comment on an individual case.
7	MS. RIIS:	7	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
8	A. I can't comment on an individual report.	8	Q. But you had made general statements here
9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9	that there are ineffective treatments—and
10	Q. I'm talking in general, Ms. Riis, and this	10	I've just given you examples, you've given
11	is something that we can provide probably	11	us examples, all of which appear to me to be
12	hundreds of reports where those kinds of	12	areas in which the physician prescribes the
13	comments are made by physicians. Do you		kinds of things that you deem to be
14	disagree with what physicians are	14	ineffective.
15	prescribing?	15	MS. RIIS:
16	MS. RIIS:	16	A. I also said that evidence based guidelines
17	A. I can't comment without knowing the	17	are not prescriptive, they don't prohibit a
18	specifics of the case.	18	health professional from prescribing a
19	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	19	treatment that may not have support in the
20		20	literature. That's why I can't comment on a
21	Q. The neck collar which you say is an ineffective treatment, can physiotherapists	21	specific case. I can't in general disagree.
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22\end{vmatrix}$	prescribe a neck collar? Can they give a	22	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
23	neck collar?	23	Q. Okay, so now if we can go to the
24	MS. RIIS:	24	Chiropractic Association Report and if I
25	A. Yes.	25	could ask you to look at, the pages are not
	Page 82		Page 84
1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	1	numbered, Ms. Riis, one, two, three, four,
2	Q. Okay, most often it would be the physician	2	five—the sixth page in defining minor
3	at first instance, is that correct? Or the	3	injury. Now, if we look at the minor injury
4	emergency, the doctor in the emergency ward?	4	here, you'll see that that's the term that's
5	MS. RIIS:	5	used in the provinces of Nova Scotia, New
Ι.			1
$\begin{bmatrix} 6 \\ 7 \end{bmatrix}$	3 31 3	6	Brunswick, Alberta, Ontario, with some
7	not to go to emergency, but if they do, then	7	differences in terms of, I'm not sure they
8 9	they would see a doctor. In some hospitals	8	all have the clinically associated sequelae.
l	they have implemented physiotherapists to do	9	MS. RIIS:
10	the triage, so it could be a doctor or	10	A. Right.
11	physiotherapist, depending on what programs	11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
12	that hospital had in place.	12	Q. Okay. So the Chiropractic Association then
13	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	13	goes on to talk about, they refer to this
14	Q. So do you know what happens in Newfoundland		report and this is the report on which you
15	and Labrador?	15	sat on a panel as a non-voting member.
16	MS. RIIS:	16	MS. RIIS:
17	A. No.	17	A. Uh-hm.
18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
19	Q. No. So in this province if a neck collar is	19	Q. Was this a qualified panel and report, do
20	prescribed, it's usually done at the	20	you think?
21	emergency, I would suggest to you at the	21	MS. RIIS:
22	emergency ward, the emergency department or	22	A. Was this a?
23	in the doctor's office.	23	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
24	MS. RIIS:	24	Q. The panel that looked at, that was put
25	A Ves	25	together to look at this to prepare this

25

together to look at this, to prepare this

	mber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
١.	Page 85		Page 87
1	report, were they qualified?	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2	MS. RIIS:	2	Q. Do you agree with that?
3	A. Yes.	3	MS. RIIS:
4	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	4	A. Yes.
5	Q. Was it ais the report a good report in	5	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
6	your opinion?	6	Q. Okay, there's a report here a little bit
7	MS. RIIS:	7	further down and I'll ask if you're familiar
8	A. Yes.	8	with this, it's quoted in this, "The Bone
9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	9	and Joint Decade Taskforce on Neck Pain and
10	Q. Okay, do you agree with the statement that's	10	Associated Disorders suggest that most
11	outlined there in the Chiropractic Report,	11	people with neck pain do not"—well, first,
12	"Having considered the narrative of persons	12	are you familiar with this report?
13	who have experienced injuries and received	13	MS. RIIS:
14	care under the MIG, Minor Injury Guidelines,	14	A. Yes.
15	we have concluded that it is not appropriate	15	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
16	to categorize either the injuries or their	16	Q. Okay. "Most people with neck pain do not
17	associated symptoms as minor injuries. In	17	experience a complete resolution of
18	as much as they can be associated with a	18	symptoms. Between 50 percent and 85 percent
19	broad range of symptomatology and with some	ı	of those who experience neck pain at some
20	degree of disability for activities of daily	20	initial point will report neck pain again
21	life and work. It is our view there is no	21	one to five years later. These numbers
22	scientific rationale or merit in continuing	$\frac{21}{22}$	appear to be similar in the general
23	to employ the term minor injury." Do you	23	populations in workers and after motor
24		24	1 1
25	agree with that statement? MS. RIIS:	25	vehicle crashes." Do you agree with that statement?
23		23	
,	Page 86	,	Page 88
	A. I do.		MS. RIIS:
2	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	2	A. Yes.
3	Q. Okay. Now if we go to the next page, excuse	3	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
4	me, it starts at the bottom of the page,	4	Q. Okay, so now I want to discuss very briefly
5	"Cote also acknowledges"—sorry, we have to	ı	the issue of the clinically associated
6	go back to the page we were on, yeah, next	6	sequelae that's part of the definition in a
7	page, right there, okay, up a little bit	. 7	
8		7	couple of provinces, does that relate to
1	further, thank you. "Cote also acknowledges	8	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress?
9	for the purpose of the development of this	8 9	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS:
9 10	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest	8 9 10	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
9 10 11	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries	8 9 10 11	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
9 10 11 12	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic	8 9 10 11 12	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that
9 10 11 12 13	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to	8 9 10 11 12 13	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not
9 10 11 12 13 14	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological	8 9 10 11 12 13 14	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but
9 10 11 12 13	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence	8 9 10 11 12 13	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional
9 10 11 12 13 14	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the	8 9 10 11 12 13 14	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress?
9 10 11 12 13 14 15	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress?
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS:
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement?	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement? MS. RIIS:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from the Optima paper?
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from the Optima paper? KENNEDY, Q.C.:
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from the Optima paper? KENNEDY, Q.C.:
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So that would mean that 50 percent of the	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from the Optima paper? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Sure, if you—where are you referring to this MS. RIIS:
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	for the purpose of the development of this guideline the population of interest included injured persons with injuries commonly caused or exacerbated by a traffic collision. These are injuries that lead to a physical, mental or psychological impairment for which the scientific evidence suggests that at least 50 percent of the patients recover within six months." Do you agree with that statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So that would mean that 50 percent of the patients don't recover within six months?	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	couple of provinces, does that relate to psychological or emotional pain or distress? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, would you agree with me, Ms. Riis, that the effect of motor vehicle injuries can not only be significant physical pain, but significant psychological and emotional stress? MS. RIIS: A. May I read an excerpt from that paper, from the Optima paper? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Sure, if you—where are you referring to this MS. RIIS:

2 MS. RIIS: 3 A. So it's the fourth paragraph in italics, 4 starts with "injuries resulting from traffic 5 collisions often present as clusters of 6 physical, mental and psychological 7 impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here 11 on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating 20 whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 with that? 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mothers who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-nedd. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look alter my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychological and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 19 forward and treatment protocols? 2 of more and a fire this protocole and a fire this like have confidence that reatment is his have confidence that treatment is his have confidence that treatment is his his or her family, insurers, the healt	Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
A. So it's the fourth paragraph in italics, 4 starts with "linjuries resulting from traffic 5 collisions often present as clusters of 6 physical, mental and psychological 7 impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here 11 on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress 14 was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is 19 what needs to be considered when evaluating 20 whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 27 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 3 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 8 single mothers, one single mother who was 9 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she was in 11 body building competitions, she was in 12 all of a sudden she gests rear-ended. She 13 sasys, "I don't feel L can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for 15 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologicall and emotional 17 feelt at that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that those be not really the whole as in the psychological and emotional 23 entry the physical pression. If a didressed early on and ithe guideline ce include management of those symptom on, I think that can only help. (10:30 a.m.) 24 MS. RIIS: 25 So are you, giess my question for you can, are you minimizing in any way the significance of psychological in		Page 89		Page 91
A. So it's the fourth paragraph in italics, destarts with "injuries resulting from traffic collisions offen present as clusters of physical, mental and psychological impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very physically, the physical plain, the emotional stress it what you like, is a minor injury? MS. RIIS: 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 20 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 21 EXENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 RENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 3 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 6 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the grame of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. Yes. 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very every day, she walked 10 kilometers and lated and of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She passing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. 4 children, I am depending	1	Q. Okay.	1	injuries, they need to be addressed early
starts with "Injuries resulting from traffic collisions often present as clusters of 6 by hysical, mental and psychological impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pian, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 20 whether someone has suffered a serious 22 impairment. 21 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree 3 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 27 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 28 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 29 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 29 con, are you minimizing in any way the significance of psychological injury, emotion distress. In the psychological injury, semotion distress. In the psychological injury is a psychological injury, semotion distress. In the psychological injury is a psychological injury, dependent it goes not become a serious impairment or not is a different in the psychological injury, dependent it goes not become a serious impairment or not is a different in the psychological injury, dependent in goes not become a serious impairment or not is a different in the psychological injury	2	MS. RIIS:	2	on. They shouldn't be allowed to blossom
starts with "Injuries resulting from traffic collisions often present as clusters of 6 byhysical, mental and psychological impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who were imjured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 20 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 21 kENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 27 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 27 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 28 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 27 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 27 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 28 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 29 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 29 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 29 see a broken bone, you know of the stream of the strea	3	A. So it's the fourth paragraph in italics,		
collisions oflen present as clusters of physical, mental and psychological impairments." So yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very physically, the physical injuries were real, the psychological pain, the emotional stress, the psychological pain, the emotional stress, was palpable. So is that a factor that so hould be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? A. Yes, I think that the operation of the ladies actually used this term, you get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? A. Yes, KENNEDY, Q.C.: G. So are you, I guess my question for yo can, are you minimizing in any way the significance of psychological injury, emotion distress, it what you like, is a minor injury? MS. RIIS:	1	1 9 1	I	addressed early on and the guideline can
6 physical, mental and psychological impairments." So yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very 11 physically, the physical injuries were real, 12 physically, the physical fine the sample of, we had two 12 says, "I don't leel I can look after my 12 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologically and emotionally Dayou 17 feel that that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting foroward and treatment protocols' is to ensure that the psychological is on the considered enough in terms of 18 promote good health outcomes. To depart the there considered make a considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious 20 page 90 the street, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree wery active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't leel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for the ethat that psychological and emotional I feffect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting foroward and treatment protocols' 21 MS, RIIS: 22 M. RIIS: 23 M. A psychological injury, emotion distress, it what you like, is a minor injury? MS, RIIS: 24 A. A psychological injury is a psychological injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different injury, whether it goes on to become	1		I	include management of those symptoms early
8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here 11 on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress 14 was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is 19 what needs to be considered a serious 19 whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 27 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 28 with that? 29 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 29 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 30 with that? 31 S. RIIS: 42 A. Yes. 43 MS. RIIS: 44 MS. RIIS: 55 A. Yes. 56 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 77 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 38 single mothers, one single mother who was 39 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 111 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 112 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 113 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 114 children, I am depending on everyone for 115 everything." She talked about the effect on 116 her psychologically and emotionally. Do you 117 feel that that psychological and emotional 118 effect is considered enough in terms of 119 these definitions that you are putting 120 forward and reatment protocols? 121 MS. RIIS: 222 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 233 C. Because we can see broken bone, I think one 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 27 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 28 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 29 the stress can be very real. 29 the stress can be very real. 20 the	1 .		l	
8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who 10 were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, the psychological pain, the emotional stress 14 was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is 19 what needs to be considered when evaluating 20 whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 21 impairment. 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 25 might hat? 25 might hat? 26 MS. RIIS: 26 A. Yes. 4 MS. RIIS: 27 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 A. Tyes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 29 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 11 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 29 quiet of the certything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologicall and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 19 the psychological sequelae that come with most 20 this or her fa	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
9 Q. Okay, because we heard from two ladies who were injured in motor vehicle accidents here 11 no monday and although they were very 12 physically, the physical injuries were real, 13 the psychological pain, the emotional stress 14 was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating 19 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 19 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 10 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 10 whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 11 may be see a broken bone, Jou know it's going to 11 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 12 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 11 with that? 18 A. Yes. 19 Wish in the stress can be very real. Do you agree 12 with that? 19 we were yactive, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she was in 10 body building competitions, she was in 10 body building competitions, she was in 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologicall and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 19 forward and treatment protocols? 20 ms. RIIS: 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 24 in the psychological sequelae that come with most 25 in the solution of the system and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adju	1		l	,
were injured in motor vehicle accidents here on Monday and although they were very physically, the physical injuries were real, the psychological pain, the emotional stress it what you like, is a minor injury? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: MS. RI		· -		, S
11 on Monday and although they were very physically, the physical injuries were real, the psychological pain, the emotional stress in the psychological pain, the psychologica	1		I	, , , , , ,
12 physically, the physical injuries were real, the psychological pain, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment or not is a different question. 19 Whether someone has suffered a serious impairment or not is a different question. 10 WS. RIIS: 11 impairment. 12 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 12 Q. So are you, I guess my question for you can, are you minimizing in any way the significance of psychological injury, emotional stress on individuals who are impairment. 12 EXENNEDY, Q.C.: 13 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 14 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 15 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating to the stress on individuals who are impairment or not is a different question. 15 Can, are you minimizing in any way the significance of psychological injury, emotional stress on individuals who are involved in motor vehicle accidents? 16 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is the these are broken bones, I think one involved in motor vehicle accidents? 16 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated to injury, whether it goes on to become a serious impairment or not is a different question. 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is the serious impairment or not is a different question. 19 A. Yes. 10 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated injury, emotional stress on individuals who are involved in motor vehicle accidents? 19 A. Yes. 10 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated injury. 21 In in a suddent who are in the search of the search of the significa		· ·	I	
the psychological pain, the emotional stress was palpable. So is that a factor that should be considered in terms of any definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: KENNEDY, Q.C.: CENNEDY, Q.C.: CENTEDY, Q.			I	
14 was palpable. So is that a factor that 15 should be considered in terms of any 16 definition of Type 1 or minor injuries? 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is 19 what needs to be considered when evaluating 20 whether someone has suffered a serious 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one 24 of the ladies actually used this term, you 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 with that? 27 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 28 with that? 29 whith that? 20 with that? 21 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 22 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 23 with that? 24 MS. RIIS: 25 A. Yes. 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 28 single mothers, one single mother who was 29 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 20 body building competitions, she went to the 21 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 22 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 23 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 24 children, I am depending on everyone for 25 left that that psychological and emotional 26 feel that that psychological and emotional 27 these definitions that you are putting 28 forward and treatment protocols? 29 MS. RIIS: 20 Li fl can now ask you to go to, just exer 29 me please, at pages 6, let's start at page 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 25 see a broken bone, you know it's going to 26 significance of spychological injury, 27 emotional stress on individuals who ar involved in motor vehicle accidents? 28 MS. RIIS: 29 historically, Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. 29 for a considered who was a finally injuries. 30 kinesiologists, massage therapis			I	
15	1		I	
definition of Type I or minor injuries? MS. RIIS: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, Q.C.: RENNEDY, Q.C.: RENNEDY, Q.C.: Respectively a see a broken bone, you know it's going to be sters, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: Respectively a with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MS. RIIS: A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated being injuries. As injuries have been undertreated being injuries have been undertreated being injuries. As injuries have been undertreated being injuries. As injuries have been undertreated being injuries such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and we to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she want in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotiona			I	
17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 3 MS. RIIS: 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and l2 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionall effect is considered enough in terms of good health outcomes. To dequality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision in that these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the gayschological sequelae that come with most of the gayschological sequelae that come with most of the system and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adju	1		I	
18 A. Yes, I think that those kinds of symptoms is what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. 21 impairment. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 with that? 3 WS. RIIS: 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She asays, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional feel th			I	•
what needs to be considered when evaluating whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated via this torically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the grym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She asays, "I don't feel I can look after my and the children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you fell that that psychological and emotional groward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: Can, are you minimizing in any way th significance of psychological injury, emotional stress on individuals who are involved in motor vehicle accidents? MS. RIIS: A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated historically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just exer me please, at pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, "Regardless of how a persc injured or who is at fault, treatment is likel promote good health outcomes. To dequality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision in unethical and will result in higher cost of the sedefinitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocol				, ,
whether someone has suffered a serious impairment. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to Page 90 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: With that? A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated historically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors with scinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and void a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of the sedefinitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: Land SHIS: A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated historically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors with to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: D. If I can now ask you to go to, just exciming the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. EXENNEDY, Q.C.: D. If I can now ask you to go to, just exciming the paragraph, "Regardless of how a perst injured or who is at fault, treatment she be consistent and based on the scientific evidence of effectiveness so the public have confidence that treatment is likel promote good health outcomes. To dequality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision in		, J 1	I	
impairment. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: MS.	1		I	
22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to Page 90 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated 23 MS. RIIS: 4 historically. Physical treatment provic such as physiotherapists, chiropractors with that to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just exci me please, at pages 6, let's start at pag of your report and it's the paragraph, gregardless of how a person injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific have confidence that treatment is likel promote good health outcomes. To de quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision in unethical and will result in higher cost injuries have been undertreated 24 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated 25 A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated 26 A. No. and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated 27 A. No, and in fact my position a page to historically. Physical treatment provid such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and vod a bet	1		I	
Q. Because we can see broken bones, I think one of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to Page 90 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 with that? 3 MS. RIIS: 4 historically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and very down on the body part and very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She asays, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionall feel that that psychological and emotional forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position as uncharted. A. No, and in fact my position as in price is kinesiologists, massage therapists, chiropractors such as physiotherapists, chiropractors such as physiotherapists, chiropractors the tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychologica				
of the ladies actually used this term, you see a broken bone, you know it's going to Page 90 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional good forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the gard and woo've spoken to some Section B adjute the streatment shore, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated A. No, and in fact my position is that thes injuries have been undertreated historically. Physical treatment provice such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In the streas can be very real. Do you had to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: ME. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just exer me please, at pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, "Regardless of how a person injured or who is at fault, treatment is likel evidence of effectiveness so the public evide		, ,	I	
get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for the reverything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: She talked who was the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for the everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most that you've spoken to some Section B adjuty ov've spoken to some spection B adjuty ov've spoken to some spection B adjuty ov've spok			I	
Page 90 1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? 2 with that? 3 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? 10 MS. RIIS: 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 23 system and society at large." You say 24 psychological sequelae that come with most			l	, J 1
1 get better, but the depression, and anxiety, 2 the stress can be very real. Do you agree 3 with that? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 8 single mothers, one single mother who was 9 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for 15 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologically and emotionally. Do you 17 feel that that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 1 historically. Physical treatment provic such as physiotherapists, chiropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excreate the paragraph, greated and it's the par	25		25	
the stress can be very real. Do you agree with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionall effect is considered enough in terms of for good forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: such as physiotherapists, chirropractors kinesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excreate the proport and it's the paragraph, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a personing injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific evidence of effectiveness so the public have confidence that treatment is likel promote good health outcomes. To do quality healthcare from persons who a good health outcomes. To do quality healthcare from persons who a good health outcomes. To do quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthc system and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adju	1	- I	1	Page 92
with that? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and large children, I am depending on everyone for children, I am depending on everyone for her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: Minesiologists, massage therapists, we tended to focus on the body part and w to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excimate me please, at pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a persor injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excimate paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a persor injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a persor injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific injuries. May a paragraph of your report and it's the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph of the paragraph of your report and it's the paragraph of your report and it's the paragraph	1 2		l	
4 MS. RIIS: 5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and lad of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She asays, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional seffect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? 20 MS. RIIS: 21 Lended to focus on the body part and v to do a better job of addressing the psychological after effects of traffic injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excrement protocol for injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excrement preason, get a pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, get a paragraph, "Regardless of how a person injuried or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific injuries. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excrement preason, get a pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, get a paragraph, "Regardless of how a person injuried or who is at fault, treatment she injuried or who is at fault, treatment she evidence of effectiveness so the public evidence of eff				
5 A. Yes. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? 2 A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most			I	
6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two 8 single mothers, one single mother who was 9 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for 15 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologically and emotionally. Do you 17 feel that that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 21 unethical and will result in higher cost 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most	1		l _	J 1
7 Q. And I'll just use the example of, we had two single mothers, one single mother who was 9 very active, she ran marathons, she was in 10 body building competitions, she went to the 11 gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and 12 all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for 15 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologically and emotionally. Do you 17 feel that that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 21 unethical and will result in higher cost 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 24 injured. 32 injured. 32 injured. 34 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 23 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 24 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 25 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 26 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 27 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 28 injured or who is at fault, treatment she 29 injured or who is at	1		l	3
single mothers, one single mother who was very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional feel that that psychological and emotional feel that that psychological and emotional forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. If I can now ask you to go to, just excume to me please, at pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, geardless of how a persor injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific evidence of effectiveness so the public have confidence that treatment is likel paragraph, "Regardless of how a persor injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific evidence of effectiveness so the public have confidence that treatment is likel promote good health outcomes. To de quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare system and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adjute the promote good health outcomes. To despect the promote good health outcomes. To d	1	, ,	I	- · ·
very active, she ran marathons, she was in body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotional feel that that psychological and emotional forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: Nervery active, she ran marathons, she was in the body building competitions, she went to the to the me please, at pages 6, let's start at pages of your report and it's the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a personal par			l	3
body building competitions, she went to the gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional seffect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: Think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most me please, at pages 6, let's start at page of your report and it's the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, "Regardless of how a person injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientification in the promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are putting the promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes. To define the promote good health outcomes are promote good hea		, ,	l	
gym every day, she walked 10 kilometers and all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most all of your report and it's the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and this is the paragraph, go down a little bit, please, and this is the down a little bit, please, and the little bit, please,			l	, , ,
all of a sudden she gets rear-ended. She 13 says, "I don't feel I can look after my 14 children, I am depending on everyone for 15 everything." She talked about the effect on 16 her psychologically and emotionally. Do you 17 feel that that psychological and emotional 18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 26 down a little bit, please, and this is the 27 paragraph, "Regardless of how a person 28 paragraph, "Regardless of how a person 29 injured or who is at fault, treatment she consistent and based on the scientific evidence of effectiveness so the public evidence			I	1 10 1
says, "I don't feel I can look after my children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most 13 paragraph, "Regardless of how a person injured or who is at fault, treatment sh be consistent and based on the scientif evidence of effectiveness so the public evidence of effectiveness so the public promote good health outcomes. To de quality healthcare from persons who a quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare system and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adju-		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
children, I am depending on everyone for everything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most on the promote good health outcomes. To design the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To design the promote good health outcomes are promote good health outcomes. To design the promote good health outcomes are prom			l	
be consistent and based on the scientification berypything." She talked about the effect on her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are putting and will result in higher cost the his or her family, insurers, the healthcare psychological sequelae that come with most psychological sequelae that come with most promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is good health outcomes. To design a promote good health outcomes.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	l	
her psychologically and emotionally. Do you feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most in the promote good health outcomes. To design and the promote good health outcomes. To design a quality healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are possible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are promote good health outcomes. To describe the promote good health outcomes.				
feel that that psychological and emotional effect is considered enough in terms of these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the promote good health outcomes. To de quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost way are provided in the protocol of the source for the family and the protocol of the source for the family and the protocol of th	1		I	
18 effect is considered enough in terms of 19 these definitions that you are putting 20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 28 promote good health outcomes. To de quality healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who a some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost way and society at large.				_
these definitions that you are putting forward and treatment protocols? MS. RIIS: A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most in the quality healthcare from persons who are quality healthcare from persons who are some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are quality healthcare from persons who are some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are quality healthcare from persons who are some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost his or her family, insurers, the healthcare from persons who are provided in the protocols?	1		I	
20 forward and treatment protocols? 21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 24 some way responsible for a collision is unethical and will result in higher cost 25 his or her family, insurers, the healthcat 26 system and society at large." You say 27 you've spoken to some Section B adjusted			I	
21 MS. RIIS: 22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the 23 treatment protocols is to ensure that the 24 psychological sequelae that come with most 25 unethical and will result in higher cost 26 his or her family, insurers, the healthcome system and society at large." You say 27 you've spoken to some Section B adjusting the solution of the system and society at large. You say 28 you've spoken to some Section B adjusting the solution of the system and society at large.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	I	1 2
22 A. I think that would be the whole point of the treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most 24 his or her family, insurers, the healthcarry and society at large." You say you've spoken to some Section B adju	1	<u> </u>	I	
treatment protocols is to ensure that the psychological sequelae that come with most psychological sequelae that come with most you've spoken to some Section B adjusted by the spoken to some Section B	1		I	
psychological sequelae that come with most 24 you've spoken to some Section B adju	1		I	
		<u>*</u>	I	
25 traffic collisions, strain and sprain 25 this province?	24	psychological sequelae that come with most	24	you've spoken to some Section B adjusters in
				4.1

September 12, 2018 Page 93 1 MS. RIIS: 1 MS. RIIS: 2 2 Yes. A. No, I didn't. So, the adjuster would not A. 3 approve a claim for additional treatment 3 KENNEDY, O.C.: 4 How many have you spoken to? 4 prescribed by the doctor. 5 5 MS. RIIS: STAMP, Q.C.: A. Two. 6 That's not actually what was said, Madam 6 Q. 7 7 KENNEDY, O.C.: Chair. What was said was there was a delay 8 8 Do they give you the impression that Section in getting the approval. That's a different Q. 9 9 B works wonderfully, that people are thing. provided with the treatments that they are KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 10 prescribed by their physicians and other 11 11 Q. If you can go back to—we got the transcript health care providers? and what Ms. Elliott said was that without 12 12 her lawyer getting involved, she would not 13 MS. RIIS: 13 have received the treatments. She said 14 Α. I would say that their comments suggested 14 15 that in some cases, treatment tends to be 15 there was a delay in the response from the prolonged and seemingly of no effect. Not Section B adjuster, but that she felt that 16 16 17 all cases, but some. 17 without the lawyer, the treatments wouldn't have been approved. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 19 Okay, I guess my question is, lawyers don't 19 STAMP, Q.C.: prescribed treatment, correct? 20 20 It wasn't refused, there was a delay. Q. 21 MS. RIIS: 21 CHAIR: I hope not. 22 I think the qualification as to the way she 22 A. Q. 23 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 23 felt is fine. We can check the transcript 24 No, that's correct. So, when you say that 24 for the accuracy. Q. 25 the lawyers tell the clients to continue to 25 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Page 94 Page 96 Q. 1 go to treatments, that's not an accurate 1 So, the Section B adjusters in this 2 statement in being prescribe treatments, is 2 province, we've heard from the lawyers on 3 it? 3 the Panel that it's very difficult—that MS. RIIS: they've got to fight for their clients to 4 4 5 Lawyers are not qualified to prescribe 5 get Section B coverage. Are you aware of 6 treatment, but in my experience, they have that? 6 7 given instruction to my patients to continue 7 MS. RIIS: 8 8 treatment. Α Yes 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: KENNEDY, O.C.: 9 10 Do you know how anything happens in 10 Okay. So, you're saying that Section B, and Newfoundland and Labrador? I'll go to the next page of your report, "I 11 11 12 acknowledge that there may be a few 12 MS. RIIS: Colleagues of mine in Newfoundland and misinformed adjusters who may not understand 13 A. 13 Labrador have indicated that that happens that costs decrease as health outcomes 14 14 15 here as well. 15 improve". What do you mean by that? 16 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 MS. RIIS: 17 Now, let's just look at what happened with 17 When people get better after injury, there Α. 18 one of our accident victims who testified 18 are lower costs to the insurance company, to 19 the individual, him or herself and to 19 the other day. She testified that on 20 numerous occasions or a number of occasions. 20 society. 21 if not numerous occasions, her lawyer had to 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 Okay, let's go to—if we could bring up the 22 get involved because the adjuster, her Q. 23 adjuster would not provide further treatment 23 Oliver Wyman report, April 25, 2018,

24

25

that were prescribed by the physician. Did

you read that part in her testimony?

24

25

Subject, Other Coverages Reviewed, Private

Passenger Automobiles. And you understand

Septe	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 97		Page 99
1	that Section B coverage in this province,	1	Q. Do you know what it costs for either massage
2	there's a maximum of \$25,000.00.	2	or physiotherapy or chiropractic in this
3	MS. RIIS:	3	Province per hour and per treatment?
4	A. Yes.	4	MS. RIIS:
5	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	5	A. I was told that typically treatments are
6	Q. That you refer to the disability income, I	6	billed per visit and it's approximately
7	think is \$140.00 per week. So, the maximum	7	\$90.00 an hour.
8	is \$25,000.00, but according to what you're	8	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
9	saying, we should never get close to the	9	Q. Okay. So, if the average of those 235
10	maximum, should we?	10	people was \$3,058.00, does that should to
11	MS. RIIS:	11	you like the right amount? Do you have any
12	A. I can't comment on an individual case. I	12	way to know what the right amount is?
13	think it's entirely conceivable that you	13	MS. RIIS:
14	might get close to a maximum.	14	A. I have no way of knowing that.
15	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	15	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
16	Q. Okay. So, let's just look at what—if we	16	Q. So, if we were simply to divide 90 into
17	could go to page 11 of this report prepared	17	\$3,058.00, can you help me there?
18	by Oliver Wyman, under the heading "Accident	l	MS. RIIS:
19	Benefits", next page, or next heading	19	A. I can't help you there.
20	please. So, we see here under Accident	20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
21	Benefits, "as part of the 2018 Closed Claim	21	Q. Okay. So, 30 treatments? Does that sound
22	Study, the survey asked for information	22	like that should be a good amount of
23	pertaining to amounts collected under	23	treatments to you?
24	Accident Benefits from the Third Party's own	24	MS. RIIS:
25	insurer", so that's Section B, correct?	25	A. I have no idea what went into that three
	Page 98		Page 100
1	MS. RIIS:	1	thousand dollars. It could have been a
2	A. Correct.	2	report for \$2,000.00; I have no idea what's
3	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	3	in there, so I can't comment. I can't take
4	Q "that reduced the amounts payable by the	4	this as a proxy for the number of treatments
5	first party insurer under bodily injury	5	somebody had.
6	coverage. The majority of claimant files	6	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
7	did not include this information and was	7	Q. Okay. Well, let's go down here now,
8	coded as unknown. Specifically, as we	8	further. "IBC who validated the data
9	stated in our Closed Claim Summary Report	9	collected for the Newfoundland and Labrador
10	dated April 19, 2018 'insurers were asked to	10	2018 Closed Claim Study is unable to verify
11	report Medical Rehabilitation costs and	11	the reported data for the Section B
12	Disability Income Costs pertaining to Auto	12	questions in the survey". So, it's coming
13	No-Fault (Section B). For the majority of	13	from, this data is coming from IBC, but they
14	claimants these items were reported as	14	can't validate it or whatever, but in any
15	unknown. For the 235 claimants that had	15	event, you're saying that improved treatment
16	reported Medical and Rehabilitation costs,	16	will—not improved treatment, let me put it
17	the average Medical and Rehabilitation costs	17	this way—that there would be more money
18	were \$3,058.00. For the 234 (sic.)	18	available for costs—we could go up to
19	claimants who had reported Disability Income	19	\$50,000.00, correct?
20	costs, the average paid disability income	20	MS. RIIS:
21	costs were \$462.00". So you see those	21	A. Right.
22	numbers there.	22	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
23	MS. RIIS:	23	Q. So, what difference does it make to the
24	A. I see those numbers.	24	injured person if they can only access three
	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	25	or five thousand if there's a maximum
25	NENNELLY U.C.	, , ,	

Page 101		nber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
MS. RIIS:		Page 101		Page 103
MS. RIIS:	1	increased?	1	an Australian inquiry in terms of linking
A L I'm afraid I don't understand the question. KENNEDY, Q.C.: So, we have a maximum right now of \$25,000,00. MS. RIIS: RENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: A Right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: A Right. La KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: A Right. La KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: A Right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: MS. RIIS: A Right. La KENNEDY, Q.C.: My would the situation improve? My would the situation improve? MS. RIIS: A Lean't comment on the financial analysis, Through the firm of accessing the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. MY. Wou're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. La Right. La Rig	2	MS. RIIS:	2	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
4 true in all cases, I can attest to it being true in patients with whom I have worked. S25,000,00. 6 So. one of whom received instruction from counsel not to go back to work or normal activities until they felt 100 percent better. So, that's something in your personal experience have encountered. MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 Work, they had no choice. They were accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 Work, they had no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the S140.00 per week that would come from the disability income is enough to keep people going while they are off work? MS. RIIS: 18 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 Tim sorry. 19 Why would the situation improve? 19 Why would the situation improve? 20 Q. Okay. 21 Why would the situation improve? 21 I KENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 24 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Dear from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 11 errms of accessing, the difficulty in 12 accessing Section B benefits." Litigation 13 and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones." Are you saying the massage, for example, and or usually physio them massage, for example, and or usually physio them massage is 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Why sold the surface of the massage therapist or the massage therapist or the massage therapist who are required and if so, how many? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if	1	A. I'm afraid I don't understand the question.		
5 Q. So, we have a maximum right now of 825,000.00. 6 S25,000.00. 7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Right. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. We have an average of 235 claimants with 11 \$3,000.00. 11 MS. RIIS: 12 MS. RIIS: 13 A. Right. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 What difference will it make if there were 21 not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 Fm sorry. 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talkling about the impact of 5 injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talkling about the impact of 5 injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talkling about the impact of 10 heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in 2 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones." Are you saying that the people are engaging in fraudulent 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 22 term here	1			
6 Some of whom received instruction from counsel not tog oback to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and to the polack to work or normal scutivities until they felt 100 percent squirity and the personal experience have encountered. 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Now, we heard from two accident victims here on Monday who said they had to polace to work. So, are you suggesting that the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the vork. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you suggesting that the polace and the prosposal is to increase the work. So, are you sught they are off work? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. Yes. 21 Lan't comment on the financial analysis, in first value the work. So, are you sught they are off work? 22 Q. Okay. 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, in first value the work. So, are you sught they are off work? 25 Q. Okay. 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 Q. Okay. 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Okay. 30 MS. RIIS: 30 A. Tran	1	, · ·		
7 MS. RIIS: 8 A. Right. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Deter? So, that's something in your personal experience have encountered. 11 MS. RIIS: 12 A. Yes. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase 16 accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Why would the situation improve? 19 MS. RIIS: 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. Okay. 19 MS. RIIS: 10 MS. RIIS: 10 MS. RIIS: 11 MS. RIIS: 12 My would the situation improve? 12 My would the situation improve? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 MS. RIIS: 15 MS. RIIS: 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 19 MS. RIIS: 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 11 terms of accessing section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones." Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent 17 activity? 19 A. No. 17 Lean just find it, 22 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 17 II come to your statement today. Page 10 24 MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 19 You're tatement today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 17 II come to your statement today. Page 10 24 MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 19 You're statement today. Page 10 24 MS. RIIS: 19 Yeah, let's go to your report first and then 17 II come to your statement today. Page 10 24 Wind activities until they felt 100 percent bave encountered. MS. RIIS: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 19 You're along the deciral vision was accident victims here on Monday who said they had to go back to work, hey had no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the standout or work? 20 MS. RIIS: 20 MS. RIIS: 21 A. I rem of qualified to comment on that. 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20	1			
8 A. Right. 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. We have an average of 235 claimants with \$10 MS. RIIS: 11 S.3,000,00. 12 MS. RIIS: 13 A. Right. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase 16 accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. What difference will it make if there were 17 why words. A regist will the regist of the massage in minury that \$50,000.00 being utilized? 21 why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. 18 VENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. 19 Page 102 1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord 5 injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord 6 injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of 9 litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 22 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation in 3 and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones." Are you saying the province, that the massage therapist or	1	,		
9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. We have an average of 235 claimants with 11 S 3,000,00. 12 MS. RIIS: 13 A. Right. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase 16 accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. What difference will it make if there were 21 not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis. 25 I'm sorry. Page 102 1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 2 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000 would be a great use. 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of or litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in that prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones." Are you saying 16 that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? M KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then 22 term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then 1'll come to your statement today. Page 10 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then 1'll come to your statement today. Page 10 15 A. No. 16 Detter". So, that's something in your mere and secondary in the cacident victims in the myend of the work. Sc, are you suggesting that the disability income is enough to keep people going while they are off work? MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis. 25 I'm sorry. 26 MS. RIIS: 27 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 27 A. Yes. 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Okay. 30 MS. RIIS: 31 A. Yes. 32 MS. RIIS: 40 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 41 Expressionally and the your advance	1			<u> </u>
10	1			* *
11 S3,000.00. 12 MS. RIIS: 13 A. Right. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase accident benefits to \$\$0,000.00. 16 MS. RIIS: 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. What difference will it make if there were not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 21 mot—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 Pm sorry. 25 MS. RIIS: 26 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 26 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 27 Q. Okay. 28 MS. RIIS: 29 A. I can asy that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 29 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 30 Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 40 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've look heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 30 A. No. 31 MS. RIIS: 31 MS. RIIS: 32 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 32 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 33 MS. RIIS: 44 A. I can asy that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 45 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 46 MS. RIIS: 47 A. Yes. 48 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 49 Q. Okay. 50 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 51 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 52 MS. RIIS: 53 A. Yes. 54 MS. RIIS: 55 Cokay. 56 MS. RIIS: 57 A. Yes. 58 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 59 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the		, ,		
12 MS. RIIS: 13 A. Right. 13 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 14 Q. Now, we heard from two accident victims here on Monday who said they had to go back to work, they had no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the S140.00 per week that would come from the disability income is enough to keep people going while they are off work? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. 25 Q. Okay. 26 MS. RIIS: 27 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 MS. RIIS: 20 MS. RIIS: 21 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 22 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 27 MS. RIIS: 28 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 28 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 29 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 29 RENNEDY, Q.C.: 30 MS. RIIS: 31 and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more 31 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 32 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 32 activity? 31 A. No. 32 A. No. 32 A. No. 33 MS. RIIS: 34 A. No. 34 A. No. 35 MS. RIIS: 35 MS. RIIS: 36 MS. RIIS: 37 MS. RIIS: 38 MS. RIIS: 39 A. No. 30 MS. RIIS: 30 MS. RIIS: 31 A. No. 32 MS. RIIS: 31 A. No. 32 MS. RIIS: 33 MS. RIIS: 34 MS. RIIS: 34 MS. RIIS: 35 MS. RIIS: 35 MS. RIIS: 36 MS. RIIS: 37 MS. RIIS: 38 MS. RIIS: 38 MS. RIIS: 39 A. No. 39 MS. RIIS: 39 MS. RIIS: 30 MS. RII	1	3		
13 A. Right. 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 Q. So, one of the proposals is to increase accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 16 accident benefits to \$50,000.00. 17 MS. RIIS: 18 A. Right. 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. What difference will it make if there were not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 21 why would the situation improve? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. Page 102 1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of 9 litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from two accident victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation is and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones." Are you saying 16 that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 You'go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and the rither with children; they needed to work, they had no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the state of work. So, are you suggesting that the shad no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the state of work. So, are you suggesting that the shad no choice. They were single mothers with children; they needed to work. So, are you suggesting that the disability income is enough to keep people going while they are off work? MS. RIIS: 1	1	,		
14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15				
15 A. Right. 18 NS. RIIS: 19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 20 Q. What difference will it make if there were content of the struction improve? 21 MS. RIIS: 19 MS. RIIS: 10 MS. RIIS:	1			7 - 3
16	1			
17	1			
18	1	*		
19 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21	1			
20 Q. What difference will it make if there were 21 not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. 26 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 27 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 28 MS. RIIS: 28 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving 29 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: 7 A. Yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the chiropractor, 29 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, 29 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more 29 generously the good ones.' Are you saying 29 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 1	1	•		, , , , , ,
21 not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized? 22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25 I'm sorry. Page 102 1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 2 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've 10 heard from the lawyers and the victims in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 12 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 13 and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones". Are you saying 16 that people are engaging in fraudulent 17 activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 17 Il come to your statement today. Page 10 21 MS. RIIS: 22 MS. RIIS: 23 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving Page 102 1 instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? 6 MS. RIIS: 7 A. Yes. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then 17 ll come to your statement today. Page 10		, ,		*
22 Why would the situation improve? 23 MS. RIIS: 23 A. I'm not qualified to comment on that. 24 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25 I'm sorry. 26 Q. Okay. 27 And then you say in receiving 27	1			
MS. RIIS: A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, I'm sorry. Page 102 RENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones. Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS	21	not—if it's only \$3,000.00 being utilized?		
A. I can't comment on the financial analysis, 25	22	Why would the situation improve?	22	MS. RIIS:
25 I'm sorry. 25 Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving Page 102	23	MS. RIIS:	23	A. I'm not qualified to comment on that.
Page 102 KENNEDY, Q.C.:	24	A. I can't comment on the financial analysis,	24	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 2 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 10 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 A. Yes. 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10	25	I'm sorry.	25	Q. Okay. And then you say in receiving
1 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 2 Q. Okay. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 10 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 Instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? 4 MS. RIIS: 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 9 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 A. Yes. 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10		Page 102		7 404
2		1 agc 102		Page 104
MS. RIIS: 4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10	1	_	1	_
4 A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 A. Yes. 18 KENNEDY (C.: 19 MS. RIIS: 10 The person goes to the physiotherapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 16 MS. RIIS: 17 A. Yes. 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 21 Professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?		KENNEDY, Q.C.:		instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—
injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS.	2	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay.	2	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to,
6 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of 9 litigation. So, we've talked about or we've 10 heard from the lawyers and the victims in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 12 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 13 and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones". Are you saying 16 that people are engaging in fraudulent 17 activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10	2 3	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS:	2 3	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example,
7 Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 8 You're talking about the impact of 9 litigation. So, we've talked about or we've 10 heard from the lawyers and the victims in 11 terms of accessing, the difficulty in 12 accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 13 and the prospects for large financial awards 14 tend to reward poor health outcomes more 15 generously the good ones". Are you saying 16 that people are engaging in fraudulent 17 activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10	2 3 4	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord	2 3 4	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is
You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more segnerously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. R	2 3 4 5	KENNEDY, Q.C.:Q. Okay.MS. RIIS:A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use.	2 3 4 5	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of?
litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in terms of accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 10 The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 13 The person goes to the physiotherapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? 14 MS. RIIS: 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS:
heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RI	2 3 4 5 6 7	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. 	2 3 4 5 6 7	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more sequence of that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 A. Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: 17 A. Yes. 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or
and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 and the prospects for large financial awards the massage therapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: RENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor,
tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the
generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 Treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: RENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a
that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 MS. RIIS: KENNEDY, Q.C.: Physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the
17	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more
18 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 19 Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they 20 physiotherapist or the massage therapist who 21 are presumably doing their job 22 professionally and ethically are referring 23 or are advising there should be further 24 treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many?
19 A. No. 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 19 Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS:
20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your 22 term here today, if I can just find it, 23 yeah, let's go to your report first and then 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 20 physiotherapist or the massage therapist who 21 are presumably doing their job 22 professionally and ethically are referring 23 or are advising there should be further 24 treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
21 Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 21 are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
term here today, if I can just find it, yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 Yeah, let's go to your report first and then I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 Yeah, let's go to your report first and then T'll come to your statement today. Page 10 Yeah, let's go to your report first and then T'll come to your statement today. Page 10	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: A. No. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they
yeah, let's go to your report first and then 23 or are advising there should be further 24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 24 treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who
24 I'll come to your statement today. Page 10 24 treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job
	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report. You're talking about the impact of litigation. So, we've talked about or we've heard from the lawyers and the victims in terms of accessing, the difficulty in accessing Section B benefits. "Litigation and the prospects for large financial awards tend to reward poor health outcomes more generously the good ones". Are you saying that people are engaging in fraudulent activity? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. You go on to state that, and I think your term here today, if I can just find it, 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring
of the report please. You're talking about 25 MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further
	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. MS. RIIS: A. I can say that if somebody had a spinal cord injury that \$50,000.00 would be a great use. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, let's go to page 9 of your report.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	instructions from counsel. Now, treatment—there's a prescription from a doctor as to, for physiotherapy or massage, for example, and/or, usually physio then massage. Is that the practice that you're aware of? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. The person goes to the physiotherapist or the massage therapist or the chiropractor, are you aware, in this province, that the Section B adjuster will then require a report from the physiotherapist or the massage therapist as to whether or not more treatments are required and if so, how many? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, how is the lawyer impacting that if they physiotherapist or the massage therapist who are presumably doing their job professionally and ethically are referring or are advising there should be further treatment? How is that the lawyers fault?

September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review

Page 105 Page 107 I didn't say that that was the lawyer's 1 what they perceive to be an adversarial 1 Α. 2 2 fault. system. So, I think when a patient comes KENNEDY, O.C.: 3 back or the lawyer calls my office and says 3 You said that the lawyer told me to keep 4 4 I want this patient to continue, I might be 5 going, but it's not helping me. The 5 tended to just go along with it because I individual said to you that the lawyer—I'm 6 don't want to get into any trouble. 6 7 7 going to treatments -KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 8 Well, would that be – MS. RIIS: Q. 9 MS. RIIS: 9 Yes, so in my – 10 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 I would say this is the exception and not - the lawyer told me to keep going. the rule. I don't want to imply that this 11 Q. 11 happens constantly, but it has happened and 12 MS. RIIS: 12 I'm sure it's happened in this province too. In my experience I have discharged a patient 13 13 to a home program with follow-up in a month 14 14 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 15 or two months and the patient called me back 15 Q. So, when you said no complaints were and said, my lawyer wants me to keep coming sustained against you earlier in your 16 16 on a weekly basis. testimony, that's what you're talking about. 17 17 18 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 MS. RIIS: 19 So, how many instances of that has occurred? 19 Q. A. Right. 20 MS. RIIS: 20 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 I would say at least 20 to 30. 21 Q. Okay. So, the physiotherapist--the Section A. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 22 B adjuster will require a report or an 22 23 23 update from the physiotherapist or massage Twenty to thirty, do you know if that happens in this province? therapist as to the number of treatments, 24 24 25 MS. RIIS: 25 whether or not further treatments are Page 106 Page 108 1 A. Yes, because colleagues of mine told me that 1 required. 2 MS. RIIS: 2 it happens. 3 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 3 Right. A. So, colleagues of yours being which 4 4 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. 5 colleagues? 5 You're aware that that happens, that's a MS. RIIS: standard thing? 6 6 7 Physiotherapists. 7 MS. RIIS: A. 8 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 8 Α. Yes. 9 9 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 0. Physiotherapists, okay. So, the physiotherapists you're saying, is simply 10 10 Q. Are you also aware that Section B adjusters agreeing with the lawyer that treatment will have or require their own insured to 11 11 should continue? engage in an independent medical 12 12 examinations? 13 MS. RIIS: 13 MS. RIIS: 14 A lot of physiotherapists and chiropractors 14 are intimidated when a lawyer gets involved 15 15 Yes. A. 16 in this kind of a case. There have been 16 KENNEDY, Q.C.: incidents where—I'll give you another And are you aware that that is something 17 17 example of mine. I had worked with a that regularly occurs? 18 18 patient's physiatrist. We had designed a 19 19 MS. RIIS: gradual return-to-work program. The 20 20 A. Yes. physiatrist supported that program. And 21 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.: when I tried to implement the program, a 22 22 And are you aware of recent problems, at Q. 23 complaint was filed against me to my 23 least in Ontario, with independent medical 24 college. So, there's some anxiety among 24 examiners? health professionals getting involved with MS. RIIS: 25 25

Septe	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 109		Page 111
1	A. There has always been problems with	1	me there?
2	independent medical examiners.	2	MS. RIIS:
3	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	3	A. No.
4	Q. Are you aware of a study or anything in	4	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
5	Ontario which found significant problems	5	Q. Have you seen letters from doctors in the
6	with the independent medical examiners being	6	province saying I advise so and so to be off
7	utilized?	7	work until two weeks, three weeks, come back
8	MS. RIIS:	8	and gives another letter?
9	A. No.	9	MS. RIIS:
10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	10	A. Not from this province, but from other
11	Q. Okay, so now let's continue here. So, if	11	provinces.
12	the person—if the lawyer says don't go back	12	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
13	to work or the lawyer says keep going to	13	Q. Okay. And are you aware of one of the
14	treatments, you're suggesting that the	14	victims who testified here the other day who
15	lawyer controls the situation, are you,	15	said, even though her doctor told her to
16	through intimidation or otherwise?	16	stay off work, she had to go back. Are you
17	(10:45 a.m.)	17	aware of situations –
18	MS. RIIS:	18	MS. RIIS:
19	A. I'm not sure what the lawyer's motivation	19	A. No, -
20	is, but I know that there are times when	20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
21	lawyers are giving the injured person advice	21	Q like that?
22	to continue with treatment or do a certain	22	MS. RIIS:
23	kind of treatment. In the same way, I	23	A oh yes, I understand there are people who
24	objected when insurance adjusters try to	24	will go back to work under any
25	make medical decisions. I don't think	25	circumstances.
	Page 110		Page 112
1	lawyers or insurance adjusters are qualified	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2	to decide what treatment is appropriate	2	Q. If I could ask you to look at page 10 of
3	treatment. I think that should be left in	3	your report, we're still here and another
4	the realm of the medical professionals.	4	common and often costly problem in
5	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	5	adversarial systems is when two
6	Q. The lawyers who testified here the other day	6	medical/legal reports come to conflicting
7	said their motivation was to get the best	7	opinions. We had an individual, an actuary
8	job done they could for their clients.	8	who gave evidence here—I think it came
9	MS. RIIS:	9	through Mr. Allen, I'm not sure at times,
10	A. I'm sure that's true.	10	but—who talked about, I think it was the
11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	11	Osborne or Coulter Osborne report in Ontario
12	Q. Now, let's go back to the return to work.	12	around 2007 which identified this as one of
13	So, the lawyers says, "don't return to	13	the problems.
14	work". We've had two people here who have	l	MS. RIIS:
15	to go to work. If a person doesn't return	15	A. Yes.
16	to work and doesn't have the appropriate	16	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
17	medical documentation or support, then any	17	Q. So, if we go two conflicting opinions, then
18	loss of wage income will not be sustained	18	a court is certainly qualified to determine
19	will it?	19	which of two conflicting opinions to accept,
20	MS. RIIS:	20	is that correct?
21	A. I imagine not.	21	MS. RIIS:
22	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	22	A. I don't know if they're qualified, but I
23	Q. A doctor has to be the one who indicates to	23	understand they have the authority to do so.
24	an individual whether or not he or she	24	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
25	should go back to work. Do you agree with	25	Q. Okay, so wait now, so doctors—let's play
	bilowing 50 outer to work. Do you upico with	L	Z. Omaj, so man nom, so according for a play

Bepter	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 113		Page 115
1	this out now. So doctors prescribe	1	correct, your testimony was you would hope
2	treatments that don't work, lawyers	2	that we would be the first province in
3	involvement in the system simply obstructs	3	Canada to avoid the use of minor. So, that
4	the system and judges are not qualified to	4	pre-supposes the introduction of a minor
5	make decisions. Are those accurate	5	injury cap, is that correct? Because it
6	summaries of your comments?	6	doesn't matter if they're general damages
7	MS. RIIS:	7	for—if the system stays the same, the
8		8	definition of minor injury doesn't matter,
	, ,	l	does it?
9	I said.	9	
10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	10	MS. RIIS:
11	Q. I thought you said judges are not qualified	11	A. I don't think I understand your question.
12	or they're –	12	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
13	MS. RIIS:	13	Q. Okay. Your testimony was that you would
14	A. I don't think judges are qualified to make	14	hope that we would be the first province in
15	medical decisions.	15	Canada to avoid the use of minor, the term
16	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	16	minor or minor injury.
17	Q. Wait now, so judges are not qualified to	17	MS. RIIS:
18	make medical decisions. So, experts testify	18	A. Yes.
19	in front of judges. A judge has to make a	19	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
20	determination, that's the way our system	20	Q. So, that pre-supposes that there will be a
21	works.	21	cap brought in.
22	MS. RIIS:	22	MS. RIIS:
23	A. I think the judge is qualified to make the	23	A. So, if these changes are implemented, I
24	determination based on medical information	l	would hope that Newfoundland would avoid the
25	provided by medical experts, yes.	25	
23	1 2	23	use of the term "minor". I do not pre-
1	Page 114		
.	_	,	Page 116
1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	1	suppose that these changes are happening.
2	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when	1 2	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at
2 3	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two	3	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider
2	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when		suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct?
2 3	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two	3 4	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting	3 4	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct?
2 3 4 5	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or	3 4 5	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether	3 4 5 6	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't
2 3 4 5 6 7	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought	3 4 5 6 7	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in –
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it? MS. RIIS: A. No.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm perplexed, perhaps that's my answer. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it? MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm perplexed, perhaps that's my answer. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in — MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it? MS. RIIS: A. No.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm perplexed, perhaps that's my answer. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, if we look at these evidence based 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay. So, my question to you was, when there are two—you talk about two medical/legal reports with conflicting opinions and my question to you was whether or not the judge is in a good position or qualified to make that decision. I thought you said you didn't know if they were qualified, but they had the authority to do it. MS. RIIS: A. That's right. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, are they qualified or not to make the decision? MS. RIIS: A. If somebody without medical training reads to medical reports and doesn't assess the patient, it is unclear to me how they can made the medical decision. Perhaps I'm perplexed, perhaps that's my answer. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. So, if we look at these evidence based protocols you're talking about and again, I 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	suppose that these changes are happening. It's my understanding that's why we're at the hearing so the Board can consider whether or not to proceed. Am I correct? KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Yes, but that's not the way you phrase your answer. You said you would hope, you didn't say if this Board or if the Province brings in – MS. RIIS: A. I apologize for my mis-statement. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Now, the insurance industry doesn't need a cap to argue for evidence based treatment protocol, do they? They're two separate issues. MS. RIIS: A. I believe you're right, yes. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. That's not in your report, is it? MS. RIIS: A. No. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. In terms then of the IBC proposal to make Section B mandatory and I don't think anyone

	mber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 117		Page 119
1	disagrees with that and to increase benefit	1	things I'm going to address and then we can
2	levels to \$50,000.00 for medical	2	walk through them, alright?
3	rehabilitation. Are you aware of what	3	MS. RIIS:
4	percentage of claimants in this province get	4	A. Fine.
5	cut off after \$5,000.00 of benefits?	5	MR. GITTENS:
6	MS. RIIS:	6	Q. The first one I'm going to address is your
7	A. No.	7	background and go over your CV again, but in
8	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	8	very short form. The second item I'm going
9	Q. Are you aware of what percentage of	9	to address with you is you're here
10	claimants get cut off after \$1,000.00,	10	ostensibly as an independent consultant, is
11	\$3,000.00 or \$4,000.00 of benefits?	11	what I understand you. And then I'll with
12	MS. RIIS:	12	the definition you have of "minor"; your
13	A. No.	13	evidence in relation to—your testimony in
14	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	13	relation to the evidence based treatment
1			
15	Q. Do you know what percentage of claimants in	15	protocols, which by the time, I find very
16	Newfoundland and Labrador actually exhaust	16	helpful; and then, I think your third item
17	the limit of \$25,000.00?	17	was the effective litigation. I have some
18	MS. RIIS:	18	disagreements with you on that one. So, no
19	A. No.	19	secret.
20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	20	If we can go back to your resume, your
21	Q. So, do you know whether the move to	21	CV, if we can go back to your earlier years,
22	\$50,000.00 from \$25,000.00 would even make a	22	please. We can go around the year 2000, go
23	practical difference to any claimants if you	23	down to there. It's no secret from what
24	had not looked at these statistics?	24	you've identified here that you have an
25	MS. RIIS:	25	extensive involvement, not just with, as a
	Page 118		Page 120
			1 age 120
1		1	
1	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord	1 2	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the
2	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00	2	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious
2 3	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00.	2 3	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over
2 3 4	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.:	2 3 4	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount
2 3 4 5	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know 	2 3 4 5	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies
2 3 4 5 6	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a 	2 3 4 5 6	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time,
2 3 4 5 6 7	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the 	2 3 4 5 6 7	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.)	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your —
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. CHAIR: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you, Mr. Kennedy. Mr. Gittens? 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q assessment of what the policies you will
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you, Mr. Kennedy. Mr. Gittens? Sorry, I was waiting for you to get seated. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q assessment of what the policies you will support are pretty much congruent with
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. I know that if someone has a spinal cord injury or severe brain injury, \$50,000.00 will be well appreciated over \$25,000.00. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Perhaps Madam Chair, at this point, I know it's five minutes early, but it might be a good time to break. I'll just get the presentation and have a look at it. I don't think I have any questions on it, but I want to make sure. CHAIR: Q. Sure. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Thank you very much. (BREAK – 10:53 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:24 .AM.) KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. I don't have any further questions, Madam Chair, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you, Mr. Kennedy. Mr. Gittens? Sorry, I was waiting for you to get seated. MR. GITTENS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	physiotherapist, but also in relation to the insurance industry. I mean, that's obvious on the face of it. But it's also that over the years you have done an extensive amount of work for independent insurance companies and then for an extensive period of time, you've been—we'll use whatever expression you want to use—carrying the water for the IBC is the one I would use, but you've been acting on their behalf. Is that a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes, I've consulted to them. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, you're a consultant to them, but in many of these situation that you find yourself, your — MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q assessment of what the policies you will support are pretty much congruent with theirs.

	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 121		Page 123
1	MR. GITTENS:	1	don't see anything wrong with your being
2	Q. Okay. So, we know then and we can go	2	here on behalf of the IBC, maybe I should be
3	through the rest of it for the more recent	3	clear on that, but I think it's—the word
4	times from 2014 coming up now, you can give	4	I'll use is disingenuous for an independent
5	us that there. Yeah, you went back into	5	consultant to come forward and say I'm here
6	physiotherapy in one third of your	6	because I'm an independent consultant and my
7	professional life.	7	views are entirely my own, when in fact,
8	MS. RIIS:	8	they are—I'm going to try for another
9	A. Um-hm.	9	expression, not carrying the water this
10	MR. GITTENS:	10	time—I'm here to support the proposals being
11	Q. You've maintained one third of your	11	put forward by the IBC, shall we say in this
12	professional life with the IBC or within the	12	particular case, okay?
13	industry and I didn't get—the other third	13	MS. RIIS:
14	was what?	14	A. Yes.
15	MS. RIIS:	15	MR. GITTENS:
16	A. The other third was working with health care	16	Q. So, once we get past that, we can say that's
17	companies, health professional associations,	17	what you're here for, am I –
18	working with the health care industry.	18	MS. RIIS:
19	MR. GITTENS:	19	A. I would like to say that many of the
20	Q. Okay, got ya. So, you have a cross-section	20	positions that IBC takes have been informed
21	of involvement, but it's not unfair to you	21	by my engagement with them.
$\frac{21}{22}$	to say that, as I've used the expression,	22	MR. GITTENS:
23	you've carried the water for the IBC before.	23	Q. Um-hm.
24	MS. RIIS:	24	MS. RIIS:
25	A. Yes.	25	A. So, I genuinely do believe that they reflect
25	Page 122	23	Page 124
$\mid \mid_{1}$	MR. GITTENS:	1	my own views also, but I'm here, being paid
$\frac{1}{2}$		2	by IBC to support my views and their views.
$\frac{2}{3}$	Q. Okay. Feel free to disagree with me, most people do.	3	MR. GITTENS:
4	* *	4	
5	MS. RIIS: A. I'm not sure about the language.	5	Q. Understood. This is one of those cases where you can't throw out the bathwater
	A. I'm not sure about the language. MR. GITTENS:		without throwing out the baby.
$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		6 7	MS. RIIS:
8	•	8	
8	believe it's my way of being down with the earthy guys, right. So, anyhow we've	9	A. That's right.
1 9	earthy guys, fight. So, anyhow we ve	9	
10			(11:30 a.m.)
10	established number 1 that you've got a	10	MR. GITTÉNS:
11	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC.	10 11	MR. GITTÉNS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your
11 12	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on	10 11 12	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree
11 12 13	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a	10 11 12 13	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging
11 12 13 14	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of	10 11 12 13 14	MR. GITTÉNS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're
11 12 13 14 15	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants	10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view?
11 12 13 14 15 16	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some	10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS:
11 12 13 14 15 16 17	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS:
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent consultant. The views I give are my own.	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of "minor" that you took some issue with. And
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent consultant. The views I give are my own. That's a fair statement?	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of "minor" that you took some issue with. And I actually thank you for that because we had
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent consultant. The views I give are my own. That's a fair statement? MS. RIIS:	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of "minor" that you took some issue with. And I actually thank you for that because we had Dr. Misik give us testimony a couple, well
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent consultant. The views I give are my own. That's a fair statement? MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of "minor" that you took some issue with. And I actually thank you for that because we had Dr. Misik give us testimony a couple, well sometime last week I think it was, and one
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	established number 1 that you've got a meaningful involvement with the IBC. They've asked you to come here to speak on this matter. And when people come before a Board like this, many of them, several of them, like actuaries who are consultants will say, well, you know, I've done some work for the insurance companies, but I've also done work for plaintiffs in this regard. I am essentially an independent consultant. The views I give are my own. That's a fair statement? MS. RIIS:	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. GITTENS: Q. Alright. So, now, we've established your background. We've established your degree of independence and you're not challenging the fact when I suggest to you that you're here to support the IBC view? MS. RIIS: A. Yes. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay. Let's move onto the definition of "minor" that you took some issue with. And I actually thank you for that because we had Dr. Misik give us testimony a couple, well

	nber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
1	Page 125		Page 127
1	every single one of my patients is an	1	put any words you want in it, right, the
2	individual needing individual treatment.	2	people –
3	But then you came today and what did you	3	MS. RIIS:
4	say? Well, you said, well no two people	4	A. Exactly.
5	react the same to the same injury.	5	MR. GITTENS:
6	MS. RIIS:	6	Q who we say you don't qualify for any type
7	A. Correct.	7	of settlement except what we are going to
8	MR. GITTENS:	8	say is 5 or 7 or \$10,000.00, words are
9	Q. Which is just another way of saying what	9	words. You can define it as minor; we can
10	he's saying.	10	define it as Type One; or we can define it
11	MS. RIIS:	11	as those people we are going to screw out of
12	A. Yes.	12	the current system, so that we can do better
13	MR. GITTENS:	13	
14		13	for the other people. Understand what I'm
1	Q. He was basing a lot of his comments that you		saying?
15	saw on his research into what he says was	15	MS. RIIS:
16	genetics. And he was saying like, you know,	16	A. I do understand.
17	each person, even the person who is very	17	MR. GITTENS:
18	stoic gets hurts, says, no big deal, keeps	18	Q. Okay. Now, when we use the definition of
19	on going. You can trace some of that, he's	19	what was minor and I'll take you to page 3
20	suggesting, back to the genetic makeup of	20	of your report, the top of page 3, the
21	that person. Whereas somebody else got the	21	"minor" definition was sprains, strains and
22	same injury, same degree of pain and they're	22	whiplash injuries including any clinically
23	out of it for god knows how long; they're a	23	associated sequelae whether physical or
24	basket case. So, I take it when you use the	24	psychological in nature that does not result
25	word—you say you're not supporting the use	25	in serious impairment. We're all familiar
	Page 126		Page 128
1	of the word "minor", you're essentially	1	with that definition. It takes in most of
2	saying much of what he is saying, is you	2	what is going on in Ontario, Nova Scotia,
3	can't take this definition and put a line	3	New Brunswick and PEI, at least. I haven't
4	through and mark off a whole bunch of	4	checked with the other provinces. If you go
5	people.	5	1 1 1 1 1 1
1	people.		down to the second paragraph on that page,
6	MS. RIIS:		down to the second paragraph on that page, define minor injuries realistically you say,
6 7		6	define minor injuries realistically you say,
7	MS. RIIS:	6 7	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of
7 8	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS:	6 7 8	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define
7 8 9	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went	6 7 8 9	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1
7 8 9 10	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more	6 7 8 9 10	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which
7 8 9 10 11	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition	6 7 8 9 10 11	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem –
7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct?	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS:	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, so I used Type 1 injuries, but I wouldn't be	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this. MS. RIIS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, so I used Type 1 injuries, but I wouldn't be opposed to other terms either. 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this. MS. RIIS: A. I'm citing from a paper.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, so I used Type 1 injuries, but I wouldn't be opposed to other terms either. MR. GITTENS: 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this. MS. RIIS: A. I'm citing from a paper. MR. GITTENS:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, so I used Type 1 injuries, but I wouldn't be opposed to other terms either. MR. GITTENS: Q. Well, you know, as a lawyer representing 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this. MS. RIIS: A. I'm citing from a paper. MR. GITTENS: Q. Right. "These injuries include
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. RIIS: A. Correct. MR. GITTENS: Q. Okay, but when you said minor, you then went on to say, well you know, it's probably more like a Type One—you'll accept the definition of say Type 1 type of injuries and run with that, instead of using the word minor. Am I getting that correct? MS. RIIS: A. I borrowed the term from the OPTIMa Collaboration Publication, Enabling Recovery from Traffic Injuries. That's what they called it. So, I don't have a better word, so I used Type 1 injuries, but I wouldn't be opposed to other terms either. MR. GITTENS: 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	define minor injuries realistically you say, that's where you introduce the concept of Type 1. And the Type 1 injury as you define at the very bottom there, you say, Type 1 injuries are those traffic injuries which have been shown in epidem – MS. RIIS: A. Epidemiological. MR. GITTENS: Q. Thank you—studies to have a favourable natural history, recovery times ranging from days to a few months. And then you go on to say, you're not saying but you're adopting this. MS. RIIS: A. I'm citing from a paper. MR. GITTENS:

September 12, 2018	2017 Automobile Insurance Review
Page 129	Page 131
grades one through three. Grades one and 1 MR. GITT	ENS:
2 two sprains and strains of the spine and 2 Q. Rig	ght.
3 limbs, traumatic radio—can you say that word 3 MS. RIIS:	
	Type 1 injuries, it's not a simple,
·	vsical injury. There are various other
1	ngs that happen simultaneously. And it's
1	ficult to tease out to say that the sore
	kk is one piece and the anxiety is a
	arate injury. They are part and parcel
	the same syndrome or pattern.
11 you take your Type 1 and you really stuff a 11 MR. GITT	
	ay, so is it fair for me to say to this
	ard that when we use the expression that
	been used so far, "minor injury" or
** *	ether we translate it into the new and
	proved Type One, there are a lot of
1 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 -	ails—the devil is in the detail, as they
	_
1	
	I these additional things that make up
	at is intended to be covered by whatever
	is going to be imposed.
25 also includes physical and psychological 25 MS. RIIS:	
Page 130	Page 132
symptoms such as back pain, headaches, arm 1 A. Yes.	
pain, temporomandibular disorders and 2 MR. GITTE	
	ght. So, first we know you got an
	ressive background; second we know you're
	for the IBC; third we know that the
1 / / / /	nition of minor includes a lot of other
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	that is being proposed that there be a
	on. Am I getting it all correct so far?
9 in serious impairment, when you transform 9 MS. RIIS:	
	uldn't say it's including a lot of other
	I think it's being clear about what
	nean when we talk about neck associated
1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	rders. Neck associated disorders is not
	pple neck injury. Neck associated
	rder may be neck pain as well as
	ety, as well as some pain down the arm,
· ·	ell as some dizziness. So, we're trying
1 10 MD AUTTENIA	· · ·
	escribe the actual injury more
19 Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a 19 prec	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have
19 Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a prec generic term, you've simply put all these 20 a here	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have alth practitioner's guide where they
19 Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a 20 generic term, you've simply put all these 21 additional things into that minor injury 21 spec	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have alth practitioner's guide where they ifically define what do we mean by
19Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a19prec20generic term, you've simply put all these20a her21additional things into that minor injury21spec22definition.22Grad	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have alth practitioner's guide where they ifically define what do we mean by les 1 and 2 sprain. So, I think that
19 Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a 20 generic term, you've simply put all these 21 additional things into that minor injury 21 spec 22 definition. 22 Grad 23 MS. RIIS: 23 kind	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have alth practitioner's guide where they ifically define what do we mean by les 1 and 2 sprain. So, I think that of detail can be very helpful
19 Q. Okay. So, therefore, instead of using a 20 generic term, you've simply put all these 21 additional things into that minor injury 22 definition. 23 MS. RIIS: 24 A. I just cited from the paper what the 29 prec 20 a her 21 spec 22 Grac 23 kind 24 implies	escribe the actual injury more isely. And I know in Alberta they have alth practitioner's guide where they ifically define what do we mean by les 1 and 2 sprain. So, I think that

D 122	omobile Insurance Review
Page 133	Page 135
1 MR. GITTENS: 1 MR. GITTENS:	
2 Q. So, it's fair to say then that, you know, we 2 Q. "Type 1 injury is that	at at least 50 percent
	e expected to recover
4 public, whether at the end of the day this 4 within six months".	expected to recover
6 Type 1 cap or whatever expression is being 6 A. Yes.	
7 used, the general public will not, at first 7 MR. GITTENS:	
	ery type, I read that to
9 as being caught up in that definition. 9 say 50 percent of the	e patients will not be
10 MS. RIIS: 10 expected to recover	within six months?
11 A. That's why I've recommended public education 11 MS. RIIS:	
12 should this be implemented. 12 Q. Yes.	
13 MR. GITTENS:	
14 Q. Okay, some public education is a wonderful 14 Q. Fair statement?	
thing. Even myself, even with insurance, 15 MS. RIIS:	
you know, you learn a thing or two. Let's 16 A. Yes.	
move on then from – that's the third item I 17 MR. GITTENS:	
	ver definition is used, is
1,	
	ine for all the people,
protocols, and I must say, as a layperson I 20 and I don't know wh	
21 can see the merit, and I see what I 21 months, if they aren	
	t some point we know
	months if we were to
	all those people who
physicians can utilize, don't have to 25 normally would be r	esolved within six
Page 134	Page 136
1 utilize, but may utilize as they go along 1 months, so we don't	have to have them go
2 with their jobs, and I must say that seems 2 through the litigation	stream and cause all
to be completely on all fours with what Dr. 3 the problems they are	e apparently causing
	that at least one out of
	t will be caught by the
6 he has about 48 years, or some foolish 6 cap will not fit the de	9
7 number like that, of treatment of injuries 7 resolved within six m	
8 in this province. So we then went on to 8 MS. RIIS:	1011110.
9 reference, if I recall correctly, the 9 A. I think if you apply the	he can
10 Chiropractic Association's submission, and 10 chronologically, that	•
11 if we can get to that and look at – let's 11 MR. GITTENS:	would be true.
·	
see what page that would be. The 7th page of 12 Q. Okay.	
the chiropractic submission, and that one is 13 MS. RIIS:	, , 11 1
the – yes, the very first paragraph, and 14 A. And remember there	's an exception allowed
	•
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is 15 for people who go on	to sustain serious
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is for people who go on made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the for people who go on impairment. They w	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 17 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains the second line impairment. They was also of interest that contains the second line impairment in the second line impairment. They was also of interest that contains the second line impairment in the second line impairment.	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 15 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment.	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 17 also of interest that contains 18 50 percent of patients should be expected to recover within six months". 15 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 19 the International Association 19 of Pain is underway in the International Association 19 of Pain is und	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 15 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains 18 for people who go on impairment.	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 15 for people who go on 16 impairment. They was 16 least 17 also of interest that con 18 second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 17 least 19 recover within six months". 19 of Pain is underway in 19 least 19 leas	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 15 for people who go on 16 impairment. They was 16 least 17 also of interest that con 18 second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 17 least 19 recover within six months". 19 of Pain is underway in 19 least 19 leas	ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just at at any time in the the population reports
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least second line, "Type 1 injury is that	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just at at any time in the the population reports en present for three
that's where the reference to the Type 1 is made, and it says, "Type 1 injury", the second line, "Type 1 injury is that at least 50 percent of patients should be expected to recover within six months". MS. RIIS: A. Sorry, are you on the Chiropractic Report? MR. GITTENS: Q. I certainly hope so. Yeah, second line. 15 for people who go on impairment. They was also of interest that contains the International Assortance of Pain is underway in published a report that world, 30 percent of the International Assortance of Internatio	n to sustain serious ould not be capped. It's urrently in Boston ociation for the Study right now, and they just at at any time in the the population reports en present for three

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 137		Page 139
1	So there's already a pretty high prevalence	1	(11:45 a.m.)
2	of next pain. So to think that recovery is	2	MR. GITTENS:
3	equivalent to being pain free is a concept	3	Q. Okay. So you're telling me there are caps
4	that the health care professionals are	4	in several provinces across Canada. You're
5	starting to recognize is possibly not	5	here as an expert in this field, and correct
6	achievable.	6	me if I'm wrong, but I'm hearing you telling
7	MR. GITTENS:	7	this Board that at this point in time you
8	Q. Okay, so I gather what you're saying is	8	are not satisfied with a definition that's
9	everybody is hurting somewhat, so to bring	9	really applicable?
10	everybody back to a point where they're not	10	MS. RIIS:
11	hurting is unrealistic?	11	A. I have only seen the definition that's being
12	MS. RIIS:	12	put forward. It offers an exception based
13	A. Right.	13	on serious impairment, and it would be my
14	MR. GITTENS:	14	recommendation that should it be adopted,
15	Q. All right, but a cap and a definition of	15	that serious impairment be carefully
16	what it applies to is going to have some	16	defined. It has been defined in other
17	component of when it is – where you cut it	17	provinces, and I think that it has been
18	off, where you realistically expect these	18	effective in other provinces.
19	people to be no longer suffering from the	19	MR. GITTENS:
20	injury caused by the accident. Isn't that	20	Q. Okay. So when you talk about serious
21	implicit in this process?	21	impairment then, are we talking – is there a
22	MS. RIIS:	22	time limit, is there a six month – I'm
23	A. One of my comments was that should the Board	23	looking at the documentation that was
24	implement this cap, I think that there needs	24	produced.
25	to be great consideration given to the	25	MS. RIIS:
	Page 138		Page 140
1	exception. So those people that have a	1	A. I would say that it not be based on a time
2	level of suffering that goes beyond and	2	limit because there's so much variation. I
3	affects their ability to function in life,	3	think – it's my sense that basing the
4	and I think that needs to be based on their	4	definition of serious impairment on a
5	ability to function in their pre-accident	5	person's ability to do activities that they
6	activity. We use the word "recovery", but	6	did prior to the accident would be the
7	we often don't talk about what do we mean by	7	fairest way of proceeding. So if somebody
8	that; does recovery mean they're back at	8	is impeded from being able to work, if they
9	work, they're playing golf, they're able to	9	are unable to carry on with their child care
10	take their dog for a walk, or does recovery	10	activities, et cetera, then they should be
11	mean that they don't have any pain at all.	11	able to escape the cap. I don't think it
12	So there's so much nuance in this language,	12	should be based on chronological symptoms or
13	and that's why should some kind of a cap be	13	stiffness or anything like that.
14	assigned, it needs to be clearly defined.	14	MR. GITTENS:
15	Any of the uncertainties, like, when we	15	Q. Okay. It's curious because when you made
16	rolled this out in Alberta, most of the	16	that comment, it reminds me of some of the
17	questions were from health professionals and	17	testimony of Dr. Misik, when he kept
18	insurers on, does this person fit into the	18	referring to the fact that, you know, I've
19	minor injury cap or not, are they eligible	19	got clients – patients that he's dealt with
20	for treatment in the diagnostic and	20	seven or eight years ago, and they come back
21	treatment protocols. So the art of defining	21	and he knows that what they're suffering
22 23	the language in the definition is very	22 23	from six, seven, eight years later has its
23	important, and at this stage we haven't – I haven't seen a definition that's	23 24	genesis in the incident that he treated them for five to seven years earlier. So when
1	comprehensive enough to be able to do that.	25	you are talking about not having a time
25	COMPLEASING ENGINE IN NE SNIE IN NA INSI	/ -	VOIL ALE TAIKTUO AUVIII UVI DAVIDO A TIME

Page 141 Page 143 1 frame of – I was using six months because of 1 imposed, should have a time frame for people 2 what they had here. You are saying that 2 who should not be underneath it? 3 there should be some mechanism that allows a 3 MS. RIIS: 4 person who experiences some impact or 4 A. I have a sense, but I'm not prepared to put 5 deficiency in their functioning, regardless 5 an answer forward. 6 of when that occurs, to escape the cap? 6 MR. GITTENS: 7 7 MS. RIIS: Maybe we can meet after and you can tell it 8 8 Assuming that sufficient time has passed to to me in sign language or something. A. 9 allow for healing, and after the person has 9 MS. RIIS: 10 sustained whatever treatment is necessary to 10 A. I would be happy to do that. promote the healing. So I wouldn't want to 11 11 MR. GITTENS: 12 assign that definition two days after the 12 Fine. The circumstances that jump at me 0. when I hear the definition of any of that, 13 accident, but I think after a sufficient 13 14 amount of time has passed for healing to 14 however, is the clients that I have who come 15 happen, for appropriate treatment to have 15 forward later and say, you know, Ernest, everything is fine, I'm doing great, but I been received, to have ruled out the 16 16 17 possibility of further improvement, I think 17 have the occasional flare up, you know. They seem to be able to function completely, do 18 at that point it is probable reasonable to 18 19 assess their ability to function. 19 all their jobs they used to do before, MR. GITTENS: 20 20 they've plateaued or whatever the expression 21 Q. Okay. Forgive me for not letting you get 21 the doctors want to use for them, but they 22 off this one easy by saying I think it 22 continue to experience the occasional – the 23 should be some time frame. You're here as 23 best words I can use is the words they use. 24 the expert in the physiotherapy and in the 24 "flare ups". How does a cap deal with, or 25 insurance industry, and you're carrying—good 25 how will a cap that you're contemplating Page 142 Page 144 1 deal with those individuals? God, and I (unintelligible) a lot again— 1 2 you're carrying the -MS RIIS: 2 3 MS. RIIS: 3 It's my understanding that the cap is not A. 4 4 intended to deal with health care needs Water. Α. 5 5 MR. GITTENS: going forward. I would think that the 6 6 settlement would deal with that as a Q. - argument for the IBC. No, no, the 7 argument. What time frame do you have in 7 pecuniary loss. For example, if I had a 8 mind should be applied to say to these 8 patient who had had ongoing symptoms related 9 9 people, you know, if you go beyond that, to a Type 1 type injury, and they came to you're probably not capped? me, I'd been seeing them for six months, 10 10 they come back every two or three weeks and MS. RIIS: 11 11 say, oh, I had a flare up last week, and I 12 A. I'm not prepared to answer that question. 12 It wasn't part of my submission. I would be see this as a pattern, I would make a 13 13 able to come up with an answer if I was recommendation that they have access to 14 14 15 treatment on a monthly basis for, you know, given a chance to do some more review about 15 16 healing times and recovery times, and 16 for treatments on an ongoing basis, and I 17 rehabilitation times, but I can't give you 17 would think that would be covered by the an answer right now. pecuniary settlement. 18 18 19 MR. GITTENS: 19 MR. GITTENS: 20 0. So you're telling this Board that despite 20 0. Okay. That actually brings up another issue your many years of involvement on all these I have with what you've said, and it takes 21 21 policy groups and so on, and being us into the third category of your evidence, 22 22 23 intricately involved in this analysis, up to 23 your presentation, and that is when you were 24 this point in time you don't have a sense of 24 dealing with the role of litigation and the whether or not a cap, if it's going to be 25 process. Correct me if I'm wrong, but I 25

Septer	nber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 145		Page 147
1	gather from what you've said, and this is my	1	well, we could offer them another three
2	summation of it, my interpretation, that you	2	weeks or four weeks, five weeks of treatment
3	saw the litigation process as being the	3	to deal with the immediate issue that
4	mechanism by which there would be	4	they're dealing with, and I didn't see a
5	compensation primarily for pecuniary	5	sense – I didn't get a sense from you of a
6	damages; loss of wages, cost of future care,	6	component that has to deal with the fact
7	things of that sort. I didn't gather from	7	that it's been 15 damn years and I'm still
8	you that you appreciated that part of the	8	having this irritation every few weeks or
9	litigation process is designed to compensate	9	every couple of months, you know,
10	someone for, as best as it can,	10	frustrating.
11	inconvenience, pain, discomfort, you know,	11	MS. RIIS:
12	loss of the lifestyle?	12	A. Uh-hm. If somebody is having flare ups that
13	MS. RIIS:	13	are significantly impacting their lives,
14	A. I do understand that, and I apologize if I	14	they need to go and see a doctor and have
15	didn't make that clear. I'm not opposed to	15	that checked out. Most flare ups, in my
16	the non-pecuniary loss settlement or damages	16	experience, can be dealt with through short
17	being paid out. There's something called	17	periods of treatment, and I'm hoping that
18	perceived injustice. Research shows us that	18	that treatment will work, it will reduce the
19	if injured people feel that they've been	19	flare up, it will get them back up on their
20	treated unfairly, that that actually	20	feet and going. So to me, I see the flare
21	contributes to prolonged symptoms, more	21	up as a temporary problem. It doesn't flare
22	severe symptoms, prolonged disability. So	22	and stay there. It's an up and down, and
23	trying to achieve a sense that some justice	23	the whole point of treatment, which is a
24	has happened is actually good for your	24	health care expense, is to reduce the
25	health. So I'm not opposed to the concept	25	symptoms during that flare up and help the
	Page 146		Page 148
1	of pain and suffering awards, but at the	1	person cope with it.
2	same time, I know that whenever my patients	2	MR. GITTENS:
3	have received that compensation, it doesn't	3	Q. Okay, but there's no component for the
4	make them better, and they've said to me,	4	aggravation.
5	well, they could have given me \$100,000.00	5	MS. RIIS:
6	and I still would have been no better.	6	A. I would think that would be in the pain and
7	MR. GITTENS:	7	suffering award.
8	Q. Right.	8	MR. GITTENS:
9	MS. RIIS:	9	Q. Okay, and the pain and suffering award is
10	A. So it's my understanding that the non-	10	the one that you're trying to put the cap
11	pecuniary losses are to try to even the	11	on?
12	scales of justice a little bit, so the	12	MS. RIIS:
13	victim feels that some punishment or some	13	A. Talking about cap on, yes.
14	justice has been achieved because they were	14	MR. GITTENS:
15	injured through no fault of their own. So I	15	Q. Got ya. Now the biggest issue I had with
16	don't think it's a bad thing, but again I	16	what you were saying throughout your
17	know from my experience that it doesn't cure	17	testimony, and Mr. Kennedy picked up on it
18	patients, and whether you give them	18	earlier, so I feel confident that I'm not
19	\$5,000.00 or \$5,000,000.00, they're not	18	the only one, is that your background in
20	going to feel any better.	20	
1	MR. GITTENS:	20	treatment of people who have been injured,
21 22			and your promotion of the concept of
. //	Q. I couldn't agree with you more, but when I	22	evidence-based treatment protocols, which I
		'12	
23	just asked you about what is your	23	said earlier on, and I stay with, just seems
23 24	just asked you about what is your recommendation in relation to flare ups, for	24	quite sensible and quite practical and
23	just asked you about what is your		

Page 151

Page 152

Page 149 1 got from that spot where you're saying, you 2 know, I think we should have these treatment 3 protocols, it should help because as a 4 practitioner, I'm all about getting my 5 patients back to good health as best as I 6 can, I didn't see the link between your 7 professional background, what appears to be 8 your personal interest, and the concept of a 9 cap. It just seems to me what's the 10 connection is what I was asking myself 11 between the two. You are here saying, you 12 know, I'd like to find mechanisms by which we can help individuals who have been hurt 13 14 get back to utility, get back to the best 15 place as they can in, I take it, the shortest time with the least amount of pain 16 and at the least cost – I mean, that makes 17 18 sense, but I didn't see the link between 19 that and what's that got to do with imposing 20 a cap on their pain and suffering, their 21 non-pecuniary awards or their settlement. 22 Please make that link for us, because I'm 23 sure you've got it in there someplace, it's 24 just I didn't see it when you were giving 25 your presentation? Page 150 1

0. I've always been concerned about the psychologist or the scientist who put the fly in the bottle, and then congratulate themselves because they teach the fly how to get out of the bottle. You're creating a cap, okay, you're creating a cap, and then you're telling us it's going to be helpful for people if they're able to find a way not to be covered by the cap, because that's going to assist them in their recovery, unless I'm misinterpreting what you're saying, that appears to be what you're saying?

MS. RIIS: 14

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15 Yeah, quite honestly, I'm sort of confused A. at what you just said also. Can you repeat? 16

MR. GITTENS: 17

18 Q. Sure

19 MS. RIIS:

20 Yeah, quite honestly, I'm sort of confused Α. 21 at what you just said also. Can you repeat?

MR. GITTENS: 22

23 Sure. It just means that we're both on the 0. 24 same page. Right now, there is no cap in 25 this province.

MS. RIIS:

25

MR. GITTENS:

2 A. Wherever a minor injury cap and diagnostic 3 and treatment protocols have introduced, there's a link between the two. So people 4 5 who are injured with the type of injury 6 that's defined as a minor injury are 7 eligible for treatment in the treatment 8 protocols. So they're fast tracked to 9 receive pre-approved treatment, and that's part of the condition of – if they want to 10 escape the cap, if they turn out not to have 11 a good recovery that's anticipated, we know 12 that they have done everything they can to 13 mitigate their injuries, and, therefore, if 14 15 they do have a serious impairment, in my 16 view that would be inability to function at their pre-accident activities, then they 17 would be eligible to escape the cap. So I've 18 19 always seen there to be a link between the 20 diagnostic treatment protocols, eligibility for the treatment protocols, and then moving 21 22 forward to the cap, and IBC asked me to 23 comment on the definition from a health care 24 perspective.

MS. RIIS: 1

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2 Α Um-hm

3 MR. GITTENS:

> Q. A person gets injured, you are suggesting that we should be basing their treatment on evidence-based treatment protocols. Full marks. I'm with you on that. We can be in lockstep on that one. And when the personbecause we've implemented that, we expect that their treatments will be shorter, their recovery time will be shorter, they'll get better faster. That's the basis on which you're saying that?

14 MS. RIIS:

15 Α. Right, right.

16 (12:00 p.m.)

MR. GITTENS: 17

Okay. And that's what we have right now. Q. Well, apart from a better, oh no, you're right, a better evidence-based treatment protocol. I'm with you. Then you stop there, and you say, "Oh by way, while we're talking about this, you should implement a cap." And I'm saying—I'm asking you to please show the Board why one is connected

Page 153 Page 155 1 to the other. And then, I understand you to 1 0. Okay. I hear what you're saying, and I 2 say, "Well, you know, it's connected because 2 understand you come before the Board as an 3 3 a person is able to not be covered by the expert in the treatment and that you have 4 cap, they will get this evidence-based 4 said that in—when it comes to the treatment, 5 treatment which will get them back to good 5 you're a proponent of this evidence-based health sooner." 6 treatment protocols. And then, I hear you 6 7 7 MS RIIS. to say in your last answer, at some point 8 8 that's the way it stops. And then you've So, it's my understanding that ultimately A. 9 the issue is to try to reduce the cost of 9 been told that there is this cost situation 10 auto insurance premiums for drivers. And I 10 that has to be dealt with, and you've been think that imposition of a cap is intent to told by the IBC that this cost situation can 11 11 12 try to do that. I'm not an expert on the 12 be dealt with by a cap, and you're all in actuarial analysis around that and I'm not for that? Am I getting this correct, or am 13 13 14 going to comment on any figures, but 14 misrepresenting you? 15 theoretically if--the literature suggests 15 MS. RIIS: that about 80 percent of the injuries 16 16 I'd say that's accurate. A. 17 sustained in traffic collisions worldwide MR. GITTENS: 17 18 tend to be soft-tissue injuries. And many 18 Q. Okay. So, let's nail down—I think I'm 19 of these go on to heal without any need for 19 almost done. Number one, you have an 20 treatment, any claim for benefits. Some of 20 extensive background assisting the IBC. 21 them go onto need some treatment, and the 21 Number two, you're here not really as an person recovers fully, and gets back to 22 independent person giving independent 22 analysis, you're here as part of the IBC's 23 their life and doesn't have any events. And 23 24 then, there are a few people that will go on 24 proposal that they want this Board to 25 to suffer prolonged disability. I think 25 understand. Number three, when it comes to Page 156 Page 154 that if--the treatment protocols are 1 1 minor—the definition of a minor injury, 2 intended to get the best possible treatment 2 you're more inclined to go with the type 1, 3 to these people as soon as possible. In 3 but when you go with the type 1, you're 4 Newfoundland I've seen that your treatment 4 recognizing that that includes a fair number 5 costs have gone up and I understand from IBC 5 of other things that need to be made—people 6 that the cost of settlement for nonneed to be made aware of? 6 7 7 MS. RIIS: pecuniary damages have gone up. So, that 8 8 tells me that you're paying more and more Α Yes 9 for treatment, but people aren't getting 9 MR. GITTENS: better which is why you're paying more and 10 10 Because it covers all of those things? Q. MS. RIIS: more for pain and suffering, because more 11 11 12 people are having more pain and more 12 A. Yes. suffering in spite of the industry paying 13 13 MR. GITTENS: 14 for more treatment. So, something is not 14 0. Not just whatever one might think the word "minor" says? 15 working. And I think if we can put in a 15 16 situation where we have some assurance that 16 MS. RIIS: 17 more people will recover better and faster. And treatment needs to be focused on that. 17 Α. 18 there is going to be less need for the pain MR. GITTENS: 18 19 and suffering. And as I said, in my 19 And treatment. And then, you get to the Q. 20 experience, whether you give somebody X or Y 20 treatment protocols. You're accepting that some people who will normally go through 21 dollars, it's not going to cure them. 21 22 They're going to continue to have some 22 that process, 50 percent of them within six 23 issues if they have that kind of a 23 months or thereabouts, but you don't have 24 settlement. 24 any—no, I'm sorry, I don't say you don't have any idea. You're not willing to share 25 MR. GITTENS: 25

September 12, 2018 Page 157 with the Board what you think the timeframes 1 O. Thank you very much. No further questions, 1 2 should be as a cut-off point for those 2 Madam Chair. 3 CHAIR: individuals. So, we're not able to that, 3 4 but that's fair enough. I'm not going to 4 Thank you, Mr. Gittens. Mr. Fraize? O. 5 force you on that. And finally, when it 5 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 6 comes to the link between the cap and what 6 We have some questions. My colleague is Q. 7 you're knowable about, which is treatment 7 going first, I'm going second. 8 8 protocols and your patients, you're CHAIR: 9 acknowledging that that's just the stuff 9 0. Okay. 10 that the IBC passed onto you and you're 10 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: passing onto the Board? Am I getting – 11 11 Ο. I just have a few questions and then we'll move onto him. In your practice or your 12 MS. RIIS: 12 experience dealing with other medical I think you're characterizing my 13 13 14 understanding of the cap as a cost-saving 14 professionals, have you seen patients that 15 measure in a limited way. I have been 15 were capped, say either in any of the other engaged in conversations about that and I do provinces that do have a cap right now, that 16 16 17 believe that IBC generally believes it will 17 you would consider to have a serious 18 be a cost-saving measure, but I can't give 18 impairment? So, have you experienced people 19 testimony in that regard. I also want to 19 falling through the cracks? comment about my independence. I am first 20 20 MS. RIIS: 21 and foremost a licensed physical therapist. 21 Oh, so people capped when they serious Α. MR. GITTENS: impairment? 22 22 23 23 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: Got you. O. 24 MS. RIIS: 24 Q. Yes. MS. RIIS: 25 Α. I am on the Board of the Canadian 25 Page 160 Page 158 Physiotherapy Association. I've just been 1 1 A. I have seen many disputes like that. I 2 2 personally have not had a case like that, invited to the Board of Spinal Cord Injury 3 Ontario which is an advocacy group promoting 3 but I definitely have seen disputes around 4 health care and integration issues for where an insurance company said, "We think 4 5 5 people with spinal cord injury. I am in that they fall under the cap," whereas the injured person says, "No, I don't." And 6 great part motivated by what's best for 6 7 injured people. And I think at some level 7 I've seen these disputes go both ways, and 8 all of the stakeholders are, but I think as 8 often it's dueling medical examinations and 9 9 a health care professional like Dr.—was it you know, there's—in provinces there are different dispute resolution mechanisms or 10 Misik? 10 MR. GITTENS: trial. So, I have seen situations where 11 11 there are grey areas. And again, these 12 Q. Misik. 12 disputes often will highlight where there's 13 MS. RIIS: 13 a problem with the definition. And that's 14 Misik. I think I'm on that team as well. 14 15 why, thinking now, so if Newfoundland 15 MR. GITTENS: 16 Q. Got you. 16 decides to put in place some sort of a cap, MS. RIIS: 17 thinking carefully about the language around 17 that is important. 18 I appreciate they're not paying me to be 18 here, but I want to assure you that I very 19 19 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: much am sitting on that bench as well. 20 20 0. Just as a -MS. RIIS: 21 MR. GITTENS: 21 I don't challenge you in that regard at all. 22 Q. 22 A. People can fall through the cracks, yes. 23 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: MS. RIIS: 23

24

25

Q.

MS. RIIS:

And so, it has happened?

24

A.

Okay.

MR. GITTENS:

Page 161 Page 163 1 A. I'm sure it's happened. I'm sure that 1 injury? people with serious impairment have been 2 2 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 3 capped, and I'm sure people without serious 3 O. Um-hm. 4 impairment have escaped the cap. I've seen 4 MS. RIIS: 5 5 it go both ways. A. And is rear-ended and has then a whiplash 6 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 6 7 But in that situation, wouldn't it be better 7 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 8 for everybody that you err on the side of 8 Um-hm. Q. 9 caution in terms of maybe they're not quite 9 MS. RIIS: 10 as injured as they say, than someone who is 10 A. So, it's feasible that it could be a dealing with an injury every day being Type 1 injury; it could be treated as Type 1 11 11 12 denied compensation for that? injury, or because of pre-existing 12 complications related to the spinal cord 13 MS. RIIS: 13 injury that this person may go on to suffer 14 Α. Yeah. In my experience, this tends to be a 14 serious impairment in which their ability to 15 legal question, and legal questions are not 15 well answered in the realm of human function, quality of life, does not return 16 16 17 experience. So, it really ultimately boils 17 to their pre-accident level of functioning. down to how convincing one expert is versus So, I can see that going either way. 18 18 19 another. I mean, if I could invent a 19 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 20 system, I would just give everybody all the 20 Okay. And so when a person in their 0. treatment they wanted and all the money they physiotherapist's opinion has been 21 21 22 felt they needed for justice, but it's not 22 determined to get all the benefit they can 23 feasible. The drivers of Newfoundland would 23 from treatment but is still dealing with pain on say a daily basis, where are they 24 not put up with that. So, there has to be 24 25 sort of a balance of being as fair as 25 supposed to go from there? Page 162 Page 164 MS. RIIS: 1 possible around health care needs, but also 1 2 being fair to the people who are paying for 2 Α Again, every province has its own sort of 3 the system. 3 network of pain resources and I know right MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: now there's a great deal of movement in all 4 4 5 Okay. And I heard you just mention that you 5 the provinces on managing pain and have joined the Board of Spinal Cord Injury 6 6 particularly chronic pain more effectively. 7 Ontario? 7 So, I can't speak to exactly where somebody 8 MS RIIS. 8 would go in Newfoundland and Labrador, but 9 certainly in Ontario there are a variety of 9 A. Yes. pain societies, the Canadian Pain Society. 10 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 10 Obviously we're Spinal Cord Injury There's support groups and networks. So, 11 11 Newfoundland and Labrador. that's one option. Again, perhaps this 12 12 MS. RIIS: person needs their settlement to include 13 13 14 health care expenses to manage chronic pain 14 A. Yes. 15 going forward. So, they would continue with 15 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 16 Q. So, I will ask if a person with a spinal 16 whether it's physiotherapy, with physician, cord injury was to say receive a secondary with medication, et cetera. 17 17 injury in an automobile accident, and that 18 So, it's hard to comment in a general 18 would be say a minor injury or a type one, 19 19 way, but I think there's a lot more 20 what kind of impact would you expect that 20 attention being put on pain management right injury to have on their quality of life? 21 now and I hope that in future that will 21 become much more accessible to all. 22 MS. RIIS: 22 23 Again, I can't comment on an individual 23 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: A. 24 situation. So, you're talking about 24 Q. Okay. And I might be incorrect in this, but somebody who already has a spinal cord 25 25

Page 165 Page 167 in some of your previous evidence, you 1 and I think that's unfortunate. 1 discuss certain treatments that primarily 2 2 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 3 3 deal with the management of symptoms rather Q. Oh, I'm going to get to that in a couple of 4 than dealing with -4 minutes. 5 5 MS. RIIS: MS. RIIS: 6 But I think that the industry at large 6 Right. A. A. 7 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: 7 recognizes that they're going to maximize 8 8 - what's causing the issue. But, those their profits by getting people well. Q. 9 9 treatments, if they're allowing that person FRAIZE, O.C.: 10 to be able to live their daily life as best 10 Do you also agree that one of the – the cap Q. they can, isn't there some inherent value in is supposed to reduce the premiums for the 11 11 12 that in and of itself? 12 insured, a person that caused the accident, MS. RIIS: 13 correct? 13 MS. RIIS: 14 Α. Yeah, and so this is – we're talking about 14 15 maintenance and this has been sort of a 15 No. The cap is supposed to reduce the A. controversial thing and various health premium for all drivers who buy an insurance 16 16 17 professional associations have taken varying policy. 17 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 18 positions on it feeling that maintenance is 18 19 something separate from treatment. I think 19 But, it's the insured is the person that Q. 20 causes the accident and they're the ones if it's clear that say a massage therapy 20 21 treatment, you know, every couple of weeks 21 that paid the premium. So, indirectly, 22 keeps that person able to work or able to 22 we're trying to reduce the premiums maybe 23 play a golf game every week, I think that's 23 across the board, but it's the party that's fair game. But to me, that would not be caused the injury that we're trying to 24 24 25 affected by the cap. That would be covered 25 reduce the premium for, correct? Page 166 Page 168 by the pecuniary side of the settlement. 1 1 MS. RIIS: 2 2 MS. FRAIZE-BURRY: Α Well, if you could predict who's going to All right. Do you want to -3 3 cause the injury then you're going to be – Q. you can select who you apply the reduction 4 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 4 5 I have some questions. Can you hear me? 5 to or not. But, I don't know how you could MS. RIIS: 6 do that. 6 7 Yes. 7 FRAIZE, Q.C.: A. 8 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 8 Okay. Now, and of course, the victim wants Q. 9 9 O. Just a couple of things. I think you agree to be compensated, put back to where they 10 that insurance companies, for the most part, 10 were, because of the accident and so forth. MS. RIIS: want to maximize their profits. Do you 11 11 12 agree with that? 12 A. Right. MS. RIIS: 13 13 FRAIZE, Q.C.: One of the problems that is going to be 14 A. No. 14 created with a cap is that we're going to FRAIZE, Q.C.: 15 15 16 Q. They're private enterprise. 16 have a definition and for lawyers that MS. RIIS: 17 represent injured parties, the innocent 17 parties, the first thing we're going to have 18 I can only give you my experience, based on 18 working with the insurance industry. to argue that this injury is not within this 19 19 Certainly they're private companies. Just 20 definition. So, not only do we have to 20 as all of us with private businesses want to argue the injury, the quantum of damages, 21 21 maximize our profits, I think insurance now we got to get us outside of a definition 22 22 23 companies don't want to be in the red. I 23 suggested by the insurance company. 24 think that the behaviour of some insurance 24 Now, in litigation there's a little 25 catch 22. It's called when you go to court, 25 adjusters certainly gives that impression

September 12, 2018 Page 169 1 they can put in an offer in a sealed 1 2 envelope. At the end of the day, if you 2 3 don't win all the costs go against you. You 3 4 can bet that the amount offered by the 4 5 insurance company will be the cap amount. 5 6 So, one of the dangers of this cap and 6 7 7 the definition, depends on how it make – how 8 8 big you make the definition, is you've made 9 9 the situation uneven for the injured party 10 versus the insurance company. So, going to 10 what you were saying about the definition, 11 11 the definition is critical because the wider 12 12 13 that definition, the harder it is to get 13 14 compensation for the victim. Are you with 14 15 me? 15 MS. RIIS: 16 16 17 I'm with you, but I have a question about 17 Α. 18 your first statement. You said the first 18 19 thing you have to do is figure out how to 19 20 get somebody out of the cap. But -20 21 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 21 What I mean by that is outside the 22 0. 22 23 23 definition. 24 MS. RIIS: 24 25 A. Right. 25 Page 170 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 1 1 2 Because if you fall within the definition, a 2 3 cap applies. 3 MS. RIIS: 4 4 5 A. To the general damage, the non-pecuniary 5 losses. 6 6 7 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 7 8 8 So, litigation in other provinces have shown the battle is trying to get outside of the 9 9 definition. Now, with that said, I want to 10 10

2017 Automobile Insurance Review 0. But you've indicated in your report like the protocol as you call it for Section B and Section A. MS. RIIS: Um-hm. A. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Now, in this province, our accidents are going down, okay. For some reason, they're going down. We got safer drivers maybe, I don't know. MS. RIIS: Fewer moose. Α. FRAIZE, Q.C.: 0. Less potholes. I'm not quite sure what the problem is. But, if we are correct that you seem to be emphasizing in your report that if we can somehow get these – I think you used the words "treatment protocols" put in place that will get people better quicker and reduce the quantum of damage. So, theoretically, if we listen to what you've said and that works and our accidents are going down, so therefore the damage awards that insurance companies would have to pay would go down without the cap. Page 172 MS. RIIS: Α I can't comment on that because I haven't are. I know that treatment costs have been going up. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. But if accidents are going down -

go back to a point my learned colleagues 11 have raised. Part of your report talks 12 about changing the treatment process. I'm 13 going to use the word treatment process. Is 14 that a fair statement, how injured parties 15 16 are treated, the treatment given? Isn't that what you're saying inside your report? 17

MS. RIIS: 18 19 I'm going to say that it may not result in A. 20 much change in treatment, but hopefully it will improve treatment in some 21 22 circumstances. I mean, I'm assuming that 23 most health care professionals are doing the 24 best they can.

25

FRAIZE, Q.C.:

seen – I don't know what all of the numbers

MS. RIIS:

A. You would hope, but I don't know if that's true.

FRAIZE, O.C.: 11

12 Q. Yeah, and your process is the treatment protocols are going to make people get 13 better quicker. So, two of them together 14 15 should somehow reduce the amounts that the 16 insurance companies have to pay out theoretically. 17

MS. RIIS: 18

19 It sounds like a logical assumption, but I A. 20 can't confirm it.

(12:15 p.m.) 21

22 FRAIZE, Q.C.:

23 Okay. Now, you're a physiotherapist. I Q. 24 don't know if you've encountered this, but 25 as a practising lawyer, I've encountered

	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 173		Page 175
1	problems dealing with insurance companies	1	what I've observed is that when seniors get
2	when we have to get medical reports, and I	2	into an accident, especially say around 75,
3	suggested we get a physiotherapist's report,	3	when they have an accident, what is called a
4	a massage report, a chiropractor, then the	4	soft tissue, what the insurance company
5	insurance company comes back or the adjuster	5	calls minor and I have other words for it,
6	says "no, we're not going to pay for those,	6	but that person ends up getting treatment.
1 7	but we want the doctor to give us a report	7	So, they end up having to go back and forth
8	telling us all about the treatments". Now,	8	and so forth and they get numerous
9	that's sort of arse backwards. I find that.	9	treatments because as they're older, they
10	Have you encountered that in your practice?	10	take longer for them to get better.
11	MS. RIIS:	11	MS. RIIS:
12	A. Yes, and I agree with you on this.	12	A. Yes.
13	FRAIZE, Q.C.:	13	FRAIZE, Q.C.:
14	Q. Right, it's arse backwards.	14	Q. And as one of my clients did a math exercise
15	MS. RIIS:	15	for me and they looked at what their pension
16	A. I'm not going to say that.	16	was and how much time they spent doing the
17	FRAIZE, Q.C.:	17	physio and massage and the chiropractor over
18	Q. Okay. I'm just picking up where Mr. Gittens	18	the three years and when we did the
19	left off.	19	
20	MR. GITTENS:	20	calculations, the settlement that that person got was sort of equal to that.
		20	1 0
21	Q. Bad example.		Because it opened my eyes to a question.
22	FRAIZE, Q.C.:	22	When we look at a senior, because they're in
23	Q. Almost there, Ernie. Almost there. Now,	23	later years of life, an accident has a great
24	question for you. We have an aging	24	effect on their quality of life. A. they
25	population and that means we got more people	25	don't move as fast, number one, plus they
	Page 174		Page 176
1	out there driving that are seniors. Do you	1	got to take time out of their limited time
2	agree that an accident would affect a senior	2	to get the necessary treatments. Now do you
1 2	more than a young person?		
3	, ,,	3	agree that because of a senior, their
4	MS. RIIS:	3 4	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than
5	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health	4 5	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old?
4 5 6	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of	4 5 6	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS:
4 5 6 7	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of	4 5 6 7	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement.
4 5 6 7 8	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because	4 5 6 7 8	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior
4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or	4 5 6 7 8 9	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis	4 5 6 7 8 9 10	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have	4 5 6 7 8 9 10	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact,	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care system. So, I think the protocols will help	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but I think – I don't think we can take it as a blanket rule.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care system. So, I think the protocols will help that happen.	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but I think – I don't think we can take it as a
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care system. So, I think the protocols will help that happen. FRAIZE, Q.C.:	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but I think – I don't think we can take it as a blanket rule.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care system. So, I think the protocols will help that happen. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. Well, the reason why I – I end up dealing	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but I think – I don't think we can take it as a blanket rule. FRAIZE, Q.C.:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. RIIS: A. So, I go back to my World Health Organization International Classification of Functioning. That's the whole point of using that kind of a framework is because you can't judge a person's injury or severity of injury based on the diagnosis alone. There are so many factors that have to be taken into consideration and in fact, one of the other things that I got from the International Association for the Study of Pain is that psychologically informed practice which balances the individuals and societal needs is something that we have to get better at doing in the health care system. So, I think the protocols will help that happen. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. Well, the reason why I – I end up dealing with a number of seniors, mostly dealing	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	agree that because of a senior, their quality of life is far more affected than say a 22-year-old? MS. RIIS: A. I wouldn't say that as a blanket statement. I do agree that in many situations a senior can be more severely affected. I just had dinner with a woman yesterday who fell off a ladder and broke her humerus in four spots. She's 82. And she had surgery six months ago; had to totally reconstruct her arm and shoulder, and she basically said "I'm back to normal now". So, I think everybody's different and that's why sometimes I'm reluctant to comment on these general statements. So, I think what you're saying may be true in many cases with seniors, but I think – I don't think we can take it as a blanket rule. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. But if we get into the situation of a senior

Page 177 Page 179 1 or whatever would catch that senior. That 1 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 2 could be soft tissue, but the effect on 2 Q. And that's where the field is going to 3 3 quality of life is dramatic. And that's become uneven for the victims because first 4 what's – and I don't know if this is fair 4 you got to argue either you're outside the 5 question. But many times when we end up 5 cap or it's a serious impairment and you're 6 having to go to court and prove our case, 6 going to have the medical evidence, so 7 7 that's what courts look at. They look at you're going to have that first line. So, 8 8 the quality of life affected by the injury these treatment protocols that you're 9 9 and that victim should be compensated talking about are completely independent of 10 fairly. 10 the concept of a cap, correct? MS. RIIS: 11 Now, in your report you talk on the 11 12 treatment side. But, the danger of a cap is 12 Yes. Α. once we try to fit things into a little box FRAIZE. O.C.: 13 13 not everything fits in that little box. 14 14 0. Okay. Have no connection? The cap is 15 And with that, let me raise another 15 simply question for you. I had another case MS. RIIS: 16 16 involving – it was an automobile accident, 17 No, that's not true. That's not true. I 17 Α. 18 but the bags went off and the young people 18 made a comment earlier that in some 19 aboard the vehicle, each time they boarded a 19 provinces in order to escape the cap, one vehicle were scared because when the bags 20 20 has to do everything they can to mitigate their loss, their injury, and part of that 21 went off, they thought the car was on fire. 21 22 So, psychologically they weren't affected, 22 is receiving evidence-based treatment. It 23 but the problem with a definition like a cap 23 doesn't mean the person has to subject would affect their ability to receive themselves to protocol treatment, but as 24 24 25 something. But for a young person, that is 25 long as they can prove that they've had good Page 178 Page 180 1 treatment to try and recover from their 1 very dramatic. Never had been in that situation and bingo. It takes years. 2 injuries. And so, if they can show that 2 3 3 MS. RIIS: they've done everything they can to recover from their injuries and they continue to 4 So, you're talking about posttraumatic 4 A. 5 stress disorder? 5 have a serious impairment, then they can 6 escape the cap. 6 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 7 Yes. 7 FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. 8 MS. RIIS: 8 But your report, for the most part, has Q. 9 9 A. So, as I understand it, if somebody is nothing to do with a cap. You're talking affected by a psychological impairment that 10 10 about treatments. You're talking about the affects their ability to function in life, 11 11 treatment protocols. they could escape the cap. MS. RIIS: 12 12 13 FRAIZE, Q.C.: 13 A. Yes. 14 0. But the definition, the way it's worded or 14 FRAIZE, O.C.: how they're trying to treat it, makes it a 15 15 Q. A person that's injured, what they should 16 situation we have a two-tier test. We have 16 have. 17 to go and try to get us outside the cap. MS. RIIS: 17 18 Now, bear with me for a second. I lost 18 To me, the treatment protocols are what I'm most familiar with as a health care 19 my train of thought. 19 20 Going back to this concept of serious 20 provider. This is a process whereby if impairment, that in itself becomes – can somebody has a certain kind of injury that's 21 21 become a legal argument, can't it? What is relatively well described in the definition, 22 22 23 a serious impairment? 23 they can just go ahead and get that 24 MS. RIIS: 24 treatment right away without a lot of back and forth with the insurance company, 25 A. Yes. 25

	mber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 181		Page 183
1	without waiting for approvals. They can	1	questions. Thank you.
2	just start treatment. The treatment	2	CHAIR:
3	provider doesn't have to submit a report	3	Q. Thank you.
1	about how many visits or what kind of		•
4	•	4	STAMP, Q.C.:
5	treatment. It speeds the process of	5	Q. Oh, I'm sorry, yes. I was just going to say
6	starting treatment. The injured person, I	6	a point, but I forgot -
7	hope, would feel like wow, this is happening	7	CHAIR:
8	fast and I'm not arguing with anybody.	8	Q. Sure.
9	There's less paperwork. So, I think that's	9	STAMP, Q.C.:
10	one of the real benefits of the protocol.	10	Q. My apologies.
11	Secondly, the injured person, the	11	CHAIR:
1			
12	health care provider and the insurer all	12	Q. Consumer Advocate.
13	know what is involved in evidence-based	13	MR. WADDEN:
14	treatment and they feel confident that this	14	Q. Afternoon, Ms. Riis. How are you? Thanks
15	person's getting the best treatment possible	15	very much for coming. I'm Andrew Wadden.
16	for them.	16	I'm counsel for the Consumer Advocate, Mr.
17	FRAIZE, Q.C.:	17	Browne sitting to my right. We appreciate
18	Q. But you can have all of that without having	18	your evidence today and we were discussing
19	a cap?	19	over the break how it's thus far been quite
20	MS. RIIS:	20	helpful, so we thank you for that.
21	A. Yes, you could.	21	MS. RIIS:
22	· •	22	A. Thank you.
1	FRAIZE, Q.C.:		
23	Q. Because a cap is just for reducing premiums.	23	MR. WADDEN:
24	You made a comment of making a connection	24	Q. I just got a few sort of points of
25		25	clarification and follow up. Mr. Browne may
	Page 182		Page 184
1	Page 182 after a settlement of an accident that	1	
1	after a settlement of an accident that		Page 184
2	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our	2	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS:
2 3	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years	2 3	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure.
2 3 4	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B	2 3 4	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN:
2 3 4 5	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity.	2 3 4 5	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today
2 3 4 5 6	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS:	2 3 4 5 6	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for
2 3 4 5 6 7	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 184 as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and -
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got their treatments or not because it wouldn't	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and - MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got their treatments or not because it wouldn't be done by the Section B. It would just be	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and - MS. RIIS: A. Like Batman.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got their treatments or not because it wouldn't	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and - MS. RIIS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got their treatments or not because it wouldn't be done by the Section B. It would just be	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and - MS. RIIS: A. Like Batman.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	after a settlement of an accident that treatments stop? Okay. Because under our Section B, I think it goes to four years after the accident. So, you know, Section B has a timeline, not only a quantity. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. An amount, but also expires. MS. RIIS: A. Yes. Four years here. FRAIZE, Q.C.: Q. My point being that sometimes these accidents are settled two years or three years out and then the treatments, as supplied by Section B, are no longer available and in the settlement, they are provided funding for future treatment, okay. So, consequently, I don't even know how you would even gauge if the people still got their treatments or not because it wouldn't be done by the Section B. It would just be the person doing it themselves. Maybe	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	as well. MS. RIIS: A. Sure. MR. WADDEN: Q. One of the things you started off with today is talking about training that's needed for adjusters in terms of new accident benefits regimes and that's been done, and I think you said you've done some training in fact with All State in the US. MS. RIIS: A. Um-hm. MR. WADDEN: Q. Give me a better idea, if you would, of what that looks like. Let's just say the new – a new accident benefits regime comes in in Newfoundland. What happens? I mean, do you and others like you sort of descend on the province and sort of go to the insurance companies and - MS. RIIS: A. Like Batman. MR. WADDEN:

Page 185 Page 187 1 A. What has happened in other provinces is that 1 physiotherapy person would contact me and 2 I'd talk to the insurance company and say – 2 the government facilitates that. 3 MR. WADDEN: 3 I try to give them information about why 4 Okav. 4 this is perhaps not a reasonable approach or 0. 5 MS. RIIS: 5 a supportable approach. 6 So, the government pulls together 6 (12:30 p.m.) A. 7 7 stakeholders prior to implementation, So, we did a lot of very casual back 8 8 discusses with stakeholders what the plans and forth without having to go through 9 9 disputes and engaging lawyers in the early are for implementation. So, for example, 10 the medical association, the chiropractic 10 stage of a process. So, I personally association, the physiotherapy association, thought that was really good and I know in 11 11 they could then convey this information back conversations I've had with other 12 12 to their members prior to implementation. 13 13 stakeholder groups, they also felt that Most of these associations also have private 14 14 worked really well. MR. WADDEN: 15 practice groups which are the people that 15 most typically treat auto collisions and so, 16 16 Okay. Thank you. I guess sticking with the O. 17 these private practice groups would get more topic of accident benefits and reform, in 17 and more involved. The insurance industry that vein. We're trying to get a better 18 18 19 would also be considered a stakeholder and 19 idea of sort of consumer satisfaction where 20 20 would be given preliminary information and that's been done elsewhere, okay, consumer, 21 my experience has been government pulls 21 injured person satisfaction. One of the 22 these stakeholders together. 22 things we heard from a panel of injured 23 I have worked with all stakeholder 23 people that were here today, and we've all heard anecdotally I'm sure at times, is 24 groups to produce training and we had 24 25 25 issues with response times. In other words, Page 186 Page 188 1 insurance adjusters, health care providers 1 the injured person being able to avail of 2 and actually lawyers, plaintiff lawyers, in 2 their accident benefits, okay. So, have you 3 the same room. So, we all heard the same 3 seen in other jurisdictions that that 4 information. A lot of questions, good particular issue is rectified? 4 5 questions were raised which gave guidance to 5 MS. RIIS: 6 the government in terms of where do we need 6 I know the problem is universal. I think A. 7 to issue interpretive bulletins to clarify 7 there's always room for the insurance 8 the intent of the new regulation. 8 industry to respond more rapidly and I've 9 9 heard many complaints of injured persons and So, that's what we've done in the past. And as I also mentioned earlier, in Alberta, health care providers saying "the insurer 10 10 won't call me. The insurer won't call me." we followed up with monthly stakeholder 11 11 conversations where we shared what's I've heard just as many complaints from the 12 12 working, what's not working. So, insurance insurance industry saying "the health 13 13 companies would call me and say "you know, provider won't call me", physicians refusing 14 14 15 we've got chiropractors and they're always to hand over medical records until they 15 16 trying to put in for 30 visits for 16 receive huge payments for it. So, the 17 temporomandibular joint". I'd contact the 17 problem comes from both sides. 18 registrar of the College of Chiropractors in 18 But from the perspective of the Alberta and say "is this reasonable insurance industry, I know that's a problem. 19 19 20 practice?" The registrar would say "well, 20 It's certainly one in the training sessions not really. I'll talk to them." Or the 21 21 I've done, it's one of the things we health – a physiotherapist would call the emphasize is that in this system, we don't 22 22 23 physiotherapy association and say "this 23 want to be adversarial. We don't want the patient to feel that they're not being 24 adjuster refuses to approve any of my 24 recommendations for this treatment" and the 25 25

September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review

Page 189 Page 191 1 serviced by their own insurance company. 1 treatment protocols in place did reduce 2 2 disputes. It's not – I can't prove that This is your policyholder. You need to be 3 responsive to them. So, it's certainly 3 it's 100 percent there and it's still 4 something we've emphasized. Have we cured 4 continuing, but at that time, it was looking 5 it in all cases? I can't comment on that. 5 good. 6 MR. WADDEN: 6 MR. WADDEN: 7 7 Q. Okay. Right, okay. Thank you. We have that up 8 8 MS. RIIS: now. Can we go to page nine? And I should ask you as well, Ms. Riis, did you – have 9 I wish we could cure it. But I hope that 9 10 that kind of behaviour is reduced when the 10 you reviewed – have you seen this report? MS. RIIS: 11 system becomes more cooperative. 11 12 MR. WADDEN: 12 No. I saw their May submission. I don't Α. 13 Okay. Can we bring up the – it's the IBC 13 think I've reviewed their February February 2018 report or submission, I should 14 14 submission. 15 say. And Ms. Riis, while we're waiting for 15 MR. WADDEN: that, is that a report you – you wouldn't Okay. So, you wouldn't have had any input 16 16 17 have that physically in front of you, do 17 into this particular report then? 18 you? 18 MS. RIIS: 19 MS. RIIS: 19 A. No. MR. WADDEN: 20 I don't have it in front of me. 20 21 MR. WADDEN: 21 Q. All right. Well, that's fine. Can we pan 22 down just under that graph that paragraph 22 Q. Okay. 23 MS. RIIS: 23 there, starts with "Alberta"? Yeah. And 24 I was just thinking about one of the – may I 24 they're speaking of their proposal here in Α 25 just go ahead? 25 terms of accident benefits and you can see Page 192 Page 190 MR. WADDEN: 1 1 "Alberta and Nova Scotia also have 2 2 Go ahead. Yeah, while we're waiting you diagnostic and treatment protocols. The Q. 3 might as well go ahead. 3 intent is to provide people with common MS. RIIS: injuries with immediate access to evidence-4 4 5 A. In Alberta, we studied injury claims data 5 based treatment" and it goes on. And I can 6 prior to implementation of the reforms and 6 tell you that the – without bringing it up, 7 after implementation of the reforms and one 7 that Intact, in their submission, has also 8 of the things we discovered is that 8 suggested a similar change to the accident 9 9 insurance companies were paying more per benefits program and have touted that it claim in the first 12 weeks post-injury. 10 10 will mean easier and faster access, okay. So, insurers were paying more to support So that sounds great, but this idea of 11 11 treatment of injured people, but at 26 immediate access, and I suppose the word 12 12 weeks, at six months after, there was a "immediate" has various definitions, but 13 13 lower average cost per claim. So, this sort we're trying to get an idea of how quickly a 14 14 of supports the concept that if you treat consumer is going to be able to get at their 15 15 16 people well and give them good treatment 16 Section B, okay. And you're telling me that 17 early on, it can reduce the overall cost of 17 there's still, in other jurisdictions, claims. 18 presumably Nova Scotia and Alberta where new 18 Section B ways have been implemented, that 19 The other thing we looked at is 19 disputes. So, we used the IME as a proxy there are still delays for the client, the 20 20 21 for dispute and we had fewer episodes of 21 consumer? disputes requiring an independent medical MS. RIIS: 22 22 23 examination. So, this study suggests that 23 I meant that sometimes when a client tries A.

24

25

the process of having the diagnostic

24

25

to reach an adjuster, does the adjuster return the phone call immediately.

September 12, 2018			2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 193		Page 195
1 MR. WADDEN:		1	MR. WADDEN:
2 Q. Right.		2	Q. Right. That simple?
3 MS. RIIS:			MS. RIIS:
4 A. So, I'm talking about	that		A. It's that simple. And that's why the
5 MR. WADDEN:	i tilat.	5	education is important. If this is
6 Q. Yeah.		6	implemented, the physiotherapist and
7 MS. RIIS:		7	chiropractor or massage therapist have to
	. 4. 4		
	s to treatment, I would	8	know they need to contact the insurer to
say that that's happen		9	tell the insurer.
all that has to happen			MR. WADDEN:
	· /		Q. Yes, right.
	1 3 1		MS. RIIS:
	, i		A. There's a claim coming forward, but they're
14 treat me?" and it star	ts then. The patient	14	here for treatment now.
15 would have to give h	is insurance information	15	MR. WADDEN:
to the physiotherapis	t. I would call the	16	Q. Okay. And in practice, in your view, that
1 2 2		17	appears to be working in these other
He's just had an acci		18	jurisdictions?
19 will tell me "great, go	l l		MS. RIIS:
20 MR. WADDEN:	l l		A. Yes.
21 Q. So that has sped up, of			MR. WADDEN:
22 MS. RIIS:	3		
			•
23 A. That has sped up.			MS. RIIS:
24 MR. WADDEN:			A. I would say that works. The only time it
25 Q. Okay. That's helpfu	I. And I think Mr.	25	gets complicated, sometimes patients want to
	Page 194		Page 196
1 Stamp was asking yo	ou earlier sort of what it	1	see a physiotherapist, a chiropractor and a
2 looks like on the gro	und when someone gets	2	naturopath and they would go see all three
3 hurt, right.		3	and then instead of having one person
4 MS. RIIS:		4	coordinating treatment, you've got multiple
5 A. Yes.		5	treatment providers. So, the insurer has to
6 MR. WADDEN:		6	get involved and the patient needs to
	n't mind, can I just go	7	realize that there needs to be one person to
8 into that in a little m		8	coordinate that treatment. That's been part
9 MS. RIIS:	ore detair!	9	of the – that's another reason the protocols
I			*
10 A. Sure.		10	are good is that the protocols typically
11 MR. WADDEN:		11	require a single coordinating practitioner.
12 Q. I'm in an accident or	·	12	MR. WADDEN:
	~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Q. Right.
	, , ,	14	MS. RIIS:
1	1 3		A. It's up to the injured person to decide who
So, how am I getting	there?	16	that is and so, for example, if the injured
17 MS. RIIS:		17	person says "you're my family doctor. I
18 A. Have you called you	r insurer?	18	want you to coordinate my care," you're the
19 MR. WADDEN:		19	one then decides, "okay, what kind of
20 Q. No, but I will if you		20	treatment do you want? You want to see
21 MS. RIIS:		21	physiotherapy and massage. That's fine."
1		∠ ⊥	prijoromerapy una massage. That sille.
$(1/2)$ Δ (1/28) Δ all varied			And the nations can see physiotherany and
	have to do is contact	22	And the patient can see physiotherapy and
23 your physiotherapist	have to do is contact, chiropractor, doctor,	22 23	massage. Or if they come to me and say
your physiotherapist 24 to say "I was in an a	have to do is contact, chiropractor, doctor, ccident. I need to be	22 23 24	massage. Or if they come to me and say "Viivi, I want you to coordinate my care",
your physiotherapist	have to do is contact, chiropractor, doctor, ccident. I need to be	22 23 24 25	massage. Or if they come to me and say "Viivi, I want you to coordinate my care", I'm going to say "great. I think you need

24

25

MR. WADDEN:

clinic that's familiar to them.

Page 197 1 some physiotherapy and I think you could 1 0. Yes. Any issues in the other jurisdictions 2 2 benefit from massage" and I could coordinate where this sort of methodology has been 3 3 all of that. implemented whereby there's trouble 4 But there needs to be some coordination 4 accessing a coordinating physician, you 5 5 because what has happened in the past is know. 6 patients are seeing multiple treatment 6 MS. RIIS: 7 7 providers, none of whom talk with each Α Honestly physicians are not primarily the 8 other. In the private sector, there's a lot 8 coordinators. 9 of silos of health care. We don't have team 9 MR. WADDEN: 10 meetings. Nobody's paying for it. So, 10 Okay. Q. there's a lack of coordination. But the MS. RIIS: 11 11 12 protocols permit a structure that encourages 12 It tends to be physiotherapists and Α. coordination of care, which I think is good. chiropractors in the other jurisdictions. 13 13 14 MR. WADDEN: 14 MR. WADDEN: 15 Okay, so you've taken me to my next point 15 Q. Oh, all right, okay. Q. and I want to get a better understanding of MS. RIIS: 16 16 17 the role of this coordinating position, and Most physicians aren't interested in doing 17 Α. it's actually referenced in the next 18 18 this piece of the work, so it tends to go to 19 paragraph in that report, and I guess that 19 physiotherapists and chiropractors, so many 20 20 patients who see a physician, the physician is in terms of the ongoing treatment for 21 that person, right? 21 says that's not a problem, you should see a 22 MS. RIIS: 22 physiotherapist or a chiropractor and that 23 23 physio or chiropractor will coordinate and Yes. keep the family physician in the loop. 24 MR. WADDEN: 24 25 So this can generally be that person's 25 MR. WADDEN: Page 200 Page 198 existing family physician or if it could be-Q. 1 1 Okay, so I want to backtrack there now, you what if they don't have a family physician? 2 just said oftentimes it seems to be the 2 3 MS. RIIS: 3 case, in your view, that physicians aren't 4 4 interested in that particular piece of work. You know, ideally it's perfect if it would A. 5 be the person's existing family physician or 5 Is it not the case that, and that paragraph 6 an existing chiropractor or existing physio, 6 in fact discussed it, where we just were, 7 somebody who knows this person because 7 the one that starts with "The protocols", 8 that's often the question, at what level 8 that in those jurisdictions there's a 9 9 were you functioning prior to the accident? government approved fee schedule, so it is. But if the person has been perfectly healthy 10 10 they do get paid for it? all their life, they've never seen a doctor MS. RIIS: 11 11 in their life, then they can go to a walk-in 12 12 A. Yes. clinic, they can go to the physiotherapist 13 13 MR. WADDEN: down the road, the chiropractor down the 14 14 But it's the case that generally it ends up road. And again, hopefully if they don't 15 15 not being the coordinating—a physician being 16 know what to do, they will contact their 16 the coordinating individual? insurance company who can give them this MS. RIIS: 17 17 kind of advice. The insurance company That's my experience, yes. 18 18 Α. shouldn't be able to force them to go to any 19 19 MR. WADDEN: 20 20 particular clinic, that's how it's worked in 0. Okay. One of the things that was discussed is this idea that under a new accident 21 the other jurisdictions, so again, if a 21 patient has a history with a certain clinic, 22 benefits regime the auto insurer, at least 22 23 the patient is free to continue with the 23 in the other jurisdictions, as I understand

24

25

MS. RIIS:

it, becomes first payer?

Page 201 Page 203 1 Yes, in Alberta and I think Nova Scotia the 1 injuries from motor vehicle collisions. A. 2 2 auto insurer becomes first payer, so that MR. WADDEN: 3 3 means that the injured individual does not Q. Okav. 4 have to exhaust their group health benefits 4 MS. RIIS: 5 or their work benefits and I think that's a 5 Q. The other area that I think requires a lot good thing. 6 of sort of explanation is I believe in 6 7 7 Newfoundland the insurance industry does pay MR. WADDEN: 8 8 Sure, yes, because as you know here in a levy because it's given that people Q. 9 Newfoundland when people want to go to their 9 injured in automobile accidents are going to Section B, they first, for example, have to 10 10 use some public health services, like go to perhaps their own Blue Cross that they emergency rooms, maybe x-rays, so there is a 11 11 12 pay for or health benefits under their 12 levy paid. So I think that's something a lot of healthcare providers don't understand employer. 13 13 MS. RIIS: 14 14 and needs to be shared. 15 Right, right, and that again, they feel that 15 MR. WADDEN: A. that's unfair because I didn't cause the Okay. Can we just flip to page 10, the next 16 16 page of IBC submission? You can see there 17 accident, why should I have to use up my 17 on page 10 there are some submissions there 18 benefits? So again, it contributes to that 18 19 perceived injustice, so I think making the 19 with respect to the development of the 20 auto insurer first payer for these 20 treatment protocols, none of which, I'm situations can be a benefit. 21 21 sure, are unfamiliar to you. There was some 22 MR. WADDEN: 22 comment there, I think, about, let's see, 23 23 timelines on treatments. Yes, under No. 1 Right, and this may be outside your purview O. but I'm hoping you might know this, in those 24 24 there, not the first point No. 1, the second 25 jurisdictions where that's been implemented 25 point No. 1 under filing provisions, do you Page $\overline{204}$ Page 202 and we have people, for example who have 1 1 see that? 2 their own, we'll say Blue Cross insurance 2 MS. RIIS: 3 that they pay for and a change has been 3 Yes. A. 4 made, so now Blue Cross is no longer the MR. WADDEN: 4 5 first payer, do you know if people in those 5 "The treatment protocol should consist of up 6 jurisdictions have experienced a reduction to 10 or 21 treatment visits, depending on 6 7 in premiums for those insurers who normally 7 the injury seriousness for up to 90 days as 8 they would have gone to to be the first 8 in Alberta and Nova Scotia." Now I know 9 9 this is not your submission, you didn't payer? write that, so this is not a fair question, 10 MS. RIIS: 10 that's fine, but I'm trying to get a better I have no idea. 11 11 12 understanding what that means, this 90-day 12 MR. WADDEN: period, what's that all about? 13 Q. Okay. 13 MS. RIIS: (12:45 p.m.) 14 14 MS. RIIS: 15 It's interesting, though, in Ontario where 15 Α. 16 the auto insurer is still last payer, I have 16 A. Well essentially it means that these 17 seen group health insurers exclude coverage 17 protocol treatments should be delivered for motor vehicle accidents. within a 90-day period and when the 90-day 18 18 19 19 MR. WADDEN: period is up, then it reverts to 20 conventional Section B procedures. 20 0. Optionally or – MS. RIIS: 21 21 MR. WADDEN: 22 No, they basically say that, so, if it's a 22 Okay, why is that? A. Q. 23 group health carrier, they'll say that, you 23 MS. RIIS: know, we'll cover whatever musculoskeletal 24 24 A. The expectation, the whole concept of 25 injuries you have, but we don't cover treatment protocols is if you treat people 25

6

September 12, 2018 Page 205 1 effectively, they're going to get better, 2 and it's accepted that 90 days or three 3 months is typical tissue healing time. So 4 if at 90 days this individual is not 5 recovered or significantly improved, one 6 needs to start asking some questions about 7 is there something we missed? Is there an 8 occult fracture that has been overlooked, is 9 this person developing chronic pain 10 syndrome? There needs to be a sober second look at what's happening here, so that's why 11 it's sort of a chance to pause and reassess 12 the whole situation at 90 days, which is 13 from a medical point of view, a reasonable 14 15 point for this type of an injury. MR. WADDEN: 16 17 Tell me what you've seen in other Q. 18 jurisdictions with respect to this 90-day 19 time period? Are people getting, you know, practically are people getting cut off after 20 90 days and it becomes much more difficult 21

22 for them to avail, to continue to avail of 23 the benefits or what's happening?

24 MS. RIIS:

25 Α. In my experience they're not getting cut off

Page 206

1 at all, again if the healthcare professional 2 can explain why further treatment is needed, 3 what the goals of treatment are and if the

4 health professional can report on their 5 success in achieving the goals, I find the

6 insurers are happy to approve ongoing 7 treatment. So I haven't had the experience

8 that they get cut off. That's not to say 9 that there aren't some insurers that may

10 just try to cut people off at the 90 days, but certainly that hasn't been my experience 11

in Alberta, Ontario or Nova Scotia. 12

13 MR. WADDEN:

14 0. Okay, and after that 90-day period, assuming that there is some sort of report required, 15 16 who is dealing with that? Is it again that coordinating individual, is the onus upon 17 the insured to get that report and get it to 18 the insurer or what's going on there? 19

20 MS. RIIS:

No, the healthcare practitioner, the 21 A. coordinating healthcare practitioner has to 22 23 write a report on what's happening, what's 24 needed going forward and again, I find 25 there's fewer disputes at this point because 1 the working relationship generally is very 2 good during the course of the protocols. 3 And as I said, there was less reliance on IMEs when we looked at the Alberta data 4 5 after implementation.

Page 207

Page 208

MR. WADDEN:

7 Okay. Can we just move down, it's already 8 there on the screen, No. 4 there and I'll 9 just read it into the record, it says, "Also 10 as in Alberta and Nova Scotia, physicians, physiotherapists and chiropractors should be 11 the only health providers eligible to 12 coordinate treatment within the protocols; 13 however, they should be able to use some of 14 15 the injured person's treatment visits for massage therapy, acupuncture, dental 16 17 services, psychological services and 18 occupational therapy." So I read that and 19 it kind of struck me that there almost seems 20 to be some sort of imposed segregation 21 between the professions. So, someone such 22 as yourself, a physiotherapist, you can be a 23 coordinator?

MS. RIIS: 24

25 A. Right.

MR. WADDEN:

2 Q. Or a physician obviously, right?

MS. RIIS: 3

1

11

Right. 4 A.

5 MR. WADDEN:

6 But if you're a massage therapist, you don't 0. 7 get to do that. What's the rationale there?

8 MS. RIIS:

9 A. I think that the original rationale is that massage therapists are not regulated health 10 professionals in all provinces, I'm not sure if they are regulated here or not, but 12 physicians, physiotherapists, chiropractors 13 are regulated health professionals and 14 again, they're sort of the obvious treatment 15 16 providers for musculoskeletal injury, that's what these people do. 17

MR. WADDEN: 18

19 Q. Sure.

20 MS. RIIS:

21 The reason that they didn't include an A. 22 acupuncturist, for example, again, there are 23 a variety of people doing acupuncture and 24 the regulation of that field is, varies from place to place. Dental services are 25

Page 209 1 probably rarely required, if somebody has a 2 jaw strain or sprain, and likewise 3 psychological services, most of these people 4 start with a physical injury first and then 5 it might progress and psychological symptoms 6 become recognized in the first week or two Page 209 1 the new accident benefits regime that may be new decident benefits regime that may be new decident benefits regime that may be new accident benefits regime that may be new decident benefits regime tha	been
jaw strain or sprain, and likewise psychological services, most of these people start with a physical injury first and then timight progress and psychological symptoms have been implemented, where a cap ha implemented, right, so we'll say Nova Scotia, obviously as you know there's oftentimes disputes as between the injury	been
psychological services, most of these people start with a physical injury first and then timight progress and psychological symptoms it might progress and p	
start with a physical injury first and then 5 it might progress and psychological symptoms 5 Scotia, obviously as you know there's 6 oftentimes disputes as between the injury	ed
5 it might progress and psychological symptoms 5 oftentimes disputes as between the injur	ed
	ed
7 of treatment. So as a starting point most 7 counsel and the insurer, right?	
8 of these injuries start as a physical 8 MS. RIIS:	
9 injury, so the physical treatment provider 9 A. Yes.	
10 is engaged. All of these treatment 10 MR. WADDEN:	
providers, physicians, physiotherapists, and 11 Q. Do you ever get called in on any of thes	;
chiropractors are able to assess for 12 disputes to give sort of any—or any of y	our
psychological symptoms, they cannot diagnose 13 colleagues to give a professional opinio	on
a psychological problem, but I am required 14 whether or not a person should be restri	ted
to determine if somebody says "I can't to cap damages or if they fall outside the	
sleep, I'm crying all the time", I need to 16 cap?	
17 recognize that this person needs help, so I 17 MS. RIIS:	
might call their family physician and say I 18 A. No, to me that's a legal definition.	
think there's some psychological issues that 19 MR. WADDEN:	
20 need to be addressed, or I can say to the 20 Q. Right.	
21 patient are you interested in seeing a 21 MS. RIIS:	
psychologist or a councillor and we can put 22 A. So as a physiotherapist I'm called to	
23 that into play. 23 provide my opinion on what the injuries	
24 MR. WADDEN: 24 and so I would provide my opinion to sa	
25 Q. Okay. Let me just ask you generally, rather 25 here's what I think the injuries are, here	S
Page 210 Pa	e 212
1 than going through, you know, 50 different 1 what I think the physiotherapy prognos	s is,
2 questions, in your experience in these other 2 and that's the end of my expertise. I th	ık
3 jurisdictions where this new accident 3 that's where we've had a lot of problem	S.
4 benefits regime has been put in place, what 4 When these systems are implemented,	
5 are the main, if any, problems? 5 sometimes the healthcare professionals	hink
6 MS. RIIS: 6 it's their job to make that legal	
7 A. I would say ambiguity around the definition 7 determination and they don't understan	
8 and how people interpret the definition. 8 it is a legal determination, not a medical	
9 That's where I have seen a lot of the 9 one. So there's confusion about who sl	ould
10 dispute. I always say to health 10 be making the determination, so again,	
professionals it's not your business to 11 underscore the need to educate all the	
decide if this falls in the cap or not, it's stakeholders about the definition being	l
irrelevant. You just need to treat that legal definition and it's not one that	
patient, assess the patient, figure out 14 health providers should be making or tr	ing
what's wrong with them and treat them. But 15 to make. Did I go off on a tangent?	
then if the insurance company starts to say 16 MR. WADDEN:	
they're in the cap, they're not in the cap, 17 Q. No, no, not at all, that's fine. Just one	
the ambiguity around the definition has more point of clarification because whe	
always been a problem and that's why there 19 asked you a moment ago about struggle	and
20 have been efforts to refine and improve the 20 problems in terms of any new accident	
21 definition in some areas. 21 benefits regime that's been implemente	l, you
22 MR. WADDEN: 22 started talking more about the cap and	-
23 Q. In terms of, and you're talking about the 23 arguments over the definitions, that's w	ıy I
cap now, so let me just go to the cap for a 24 followed up with a question.	
25 second. In other jurisdictions, aside from 25 MS. RIIS: Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028 Page 209 - Page 200	

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 213		Page 215
1	A. Yes.	1	because health providers think that they're
2	MR. WADDEN:	2	supposed to be making the determination
3	Q. But let me go back to that for a second	3	which, in my view, they should not be. They
4	because, you know, someone could avail of	4	should simply be assessing the patient,
5	their accident benefits, as long as they're	5	treating them. So I'd say again, I think
6	injured, you know, it's a no fault type of	6	I'm repeating myself, I guess the other
7	regime, but I'm just trying to get an idea	7	problems I've seen, I mean, I'm thinking of
8	with all these new protocols that are being	8	an example in Ontario but we're not talking
9	suggested for Newfoundland and which have		about the Ontario system here. If I think
10	already been implemented elsewhere, and	10	of anything else, I'll –
11	under which we're being told the system	11	MR. WADDEN:
12	works better, people get more treatment,	12	Q. All right, that's fine. I think Mr. Browne
13	this accident benefits regime is overall	13	may have a couple of questions for you as
14	better than what you have in Newfoundland	14	well. Thank you very much.
15	right now, I get the sense from you it is	15	BROWNE, Q.C.:
16	better, in your view, but again, I want to	16	Q. Yes, I wanted to go to the Ontario system
17	get—there's got to be challenges with it,	17	because in the Ontario system –
18	right, there's got to be the criticisms in	18	MS. RIIS:
19	other jurisdictions.	19	A. Don't.
20	MS. RIIS:	20	BROWNE, Q.C.:
21	A. Of course.	21	Q you have a large deductible as one of the
22	MR. WADDEN:	22	possibilities there and here we're all
23	Q. So if our government, this Board decides	23	talking cap, a deductible is one of terms of
24	that this new regime that's being suggested	24	reference that has to be looked at as well.
25	is a good idea, what can we expect to be the	25	Can you comment on the Ontario system
		L 22	can you comment on the ontario system
		23	
	Page 214		Page 216
1	Page 214 main problems to come out of it?	1	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of
1 2	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.)	1 2	Page 216
1	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS:	1	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS:
1 2 3 4	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter	1 2 3 4	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had
1 2 3 4 5	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms	1 2 3 4 5	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the
1 2 3 4	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable
1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 214 main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 216 deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like they're going to get a larger settlement and	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process cannot undermine achievement of this latter
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like they're going to get a larger settlement and that's going to be more fair for them. So	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process cannot undermine achievement of this latter goal. This has been documented in the medical literature." Can you expand upon that?
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like they're going to get a larger settlement and that's going to be more fair for them. So over time sometimes we see erosion of the premium savings that come from implementation. So I'd say that's one	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process cannot undermine achievement of this latter goal. This has been documented in the medical literature." Can you expand upon
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like they're going to get a larger settlement and that's going to be more fair for them. So over time sometimes we see erosion of the premium savings that come from implementation. So I'd say that's one problem and again, it often revolves around	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process cannot undermine achievement of this latter goal. This has been documented in the medical literature." Can you expand upon that? MS. RIIS: A. So again, I've provided two examples where
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	main problems to come out of it? (1:00 p.m.) MS. RIIS: A. I think there's always criticisms no matter what you do, you're going to have criticisms if you stay where you are, you're going to have criticisms if you implement a new system. I would think that initially when implemented effectively so everyone understands their role in the process, I think you're going to see some benefits. I think over the long term there will be some effort to find ways of escaping the cap, because I think people who have been injured through no fault of their own feel that they want as much justice as possible, so escaping the cap makes them feel like they're going to get a larger settlement and that's going to be more fair for them. So over time sometimes we see erosion of the premium savings that come from implementation. So I'd say that's one	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	deductible and how that works in terms of your profession? MS. RIIS: A. No. I'll be honest with you, I have not had much to do in any discussions around the deductible, exactly how that is applied and how it works, so I would be uncomfortable commenting on that. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. In terms of your own report, you stated on page 10, if we can go to page 10 and we see on the top of the page there, "The purpose of auto insurance is to facilitate recovery of any financial loss and most importantly enable injured persons to recover and return to their pre-accident lives. It is my experience that the litigation process cannot undermine achievement of this latter goal. This has been documented in the medical literature." Can you expand upon that? MS. RIIS:

Septer	mber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 217		Page 219
1	unwilling to accept any liability, so this	1	physiotherapists, kinesiologists,
2	forces the injured person into a posture	2	chiropractors where you get the job
3	where they have to prove their disability,	3	description of the patient, look at what the
4	emphasize their disability, focus on their	4	physical demands of the job are and you
5	disability and that's from a rehabilitation	5	actually put them through their paces to see
6	perspective, that's the last thing you want	6	if they can or cannot do those activities.
7	somebody to do is focus on how horrible	7	Often I have found patients may have
8	their life is, but the system sort of forces	8	difficulty with a certain activity, so we
9	one to think about how disabled I am, you	9	might say, "He can't be lifting anything
10	have to answer a lot of questions about what	10	over 25 pounds, but other than that, he can
11	I can't do, what I wish I could do, how much		do his work." So the general recommendation
12	pain I have and you're repeating this over	12	right now in both the auto insurance sphere
13	and over. And, of course, there's the	13	and the Workers' Compensation sphere, is
14	perception that the size of the award, the	14	that with soft-tissue injuries, I'm not
15	non-pecuniary damages is tied to absence of	15	talking about somebody who is fractured or
16	recovery, so there's a perception that	16	dislocated a joint, but with soft-tissue
17	there's a disincentive to recovery in some	17	injuries generally speaking are returned to
18	situations.	18	
		19	usual activities as soon as possible is the
19	BROWNE, Q.C.:	20	best recommendation. And again, if I am a
20	Q. In terms of the, you're talking about a		GP and I have known you for 40 years and I
21	return to their pre-accident lives, a return	21	have a sense of who you are and how you
22	to work, and in terms of a return to work,	22	function, it still may be appropriate for me
23	you go to the first, a person who is injured	23	to say take a couple of days off work, so
24	in an accident, goes to see their physician.	24	I'm not saying it's wrong, I'm just saying
25	The physician's first diagnosis really is	25	that in general we should be seeing more
	Page 218		Page 220
1	you need a few days off work and therefore,	1	recommendations to resume normal activities
2	three or four days off to see how you are	2	as soon as possible. That seems to result
3	doing. And there's now some concern that	3	in better health outcomes in the long term.
4	that immediate prescription of taking the	4	BROWNE, Q.C.:
5	first few days off is not perhaps the	5	Q. You also mention in your evidence about the
6	correct one. Some employers get notes that	6	Tylenol study, you know, they go to the
7	say "So and so has been in an accident",	7	doctor and the doctor says, well take
8	they can't work because they have a doctor's	8	Tylenol for a few days, but some doctors are
9	note saying they're off for three or four	9	prescribing other than Tylenol and we have a
10	days. There's some jurisdictions that are	10	bit of a crisis in this country now because
11	considering an implementation at that	11	of what is out there in the system. Can you
12	particular point of the doctor's note, for	12	tell us your experience in reference to
13	the doctor to also give the employer a	13	that? Is there an over prescription of
14	functional abilities, can you comment on	14	painkillers that have addiction in their
15	that?	15	result, have you had that experience?
16	MS. RIIS:	16	MS. RIIS:
17	A. Abilities, uh-hm. I think in most cases	17	A. I'm a drugless practitioner so I don't have
18	when a doctor is asked to comment on	18	expertise in prescription medications, et
19	disability, it's a very difficult thing to	19	cetera. I think I would just refer you to
20	do. Essentially when you go to see your	20	what you can read in the media, there are a
21	doctor, the doctor is going to say, you	21	lot of initiatives by the Canadian Pain
22	think you can work? And if you say no, I	22	Society, there's a number of national groups
23	can't work, the doctor is going to sign you	23	that are publishing information and
24	off. A functional abilities evaluation is	24	recommendations on prescribing patters of
1 - '	011, 11 1911 VI OIIWI WOIIIVI W V WIMWIOII ID		recommendations on presenting patters of
25	something that's carried out by, typically	25	physicians and alternative treatments for

Page 221 Page 223 1 pain, instead of medication. So I think 1 the litigation, the court litigation, do you 2 2 there's some movement happening in that have any comments on that from your own 3 3 regard and I suspect that is going to experience? 4 continue for a number of years now. 4 MS. RIIS: 5 5 BROWNE, Q.C.: Again, not my area of expertise. I don't A. 6 You must have worked within your own 6 think I want to comment on that without Q. 7 being able to give it much more thought. profession with clients who are under some 7 8 8 kind of pain prescription as well, have you BROWNE, Q.C.: 9 9 come across it, anecdotally? Thank you very much. Q. 10 MS. RIIS: 10 MS. RIIS: Yes, so certainly as a physiotherapist, or 11 A. 11 A. Thank you. chiropractors, we're supposed to ask what 12 12 CHAIR: medication are you taking, because often a Thank you. Any questions, Mr. O'Flaherty? 13 13 0. patient may be experience headaches or 14 14 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 15 dizziness and that may be a side effect of 15 Q. I don't have any questions for the medication. So, you know, if we are presenter, thank you. 16 16 17 concerned that medication is causing side 17 STAMP, Q.C.: effects, we have to contact the physician, 18 18 Q. Madam chair, I just have one question. Ms. 19 express our concern and the physician would 19 Riis, a couple of questions have focussed on 20 then review the medication. So certainly the issue of serious impairment because 20 21 I've seen those cases, I've seen cases in 21 that's obviously an exclusion from the 22 particular where patients had prescription 22 definition, whatever you want to call that 23 medication from their physician and then 23 definition or how do you define it or what they're buying over-the-counter stuff as you call it, how you label it, and it talks 24 24 25 well, and so that's of great concern, so we 25 about, these definitions appear to talk Page 222 Page 224 1 always have to refer back to the physician, 1 about impairment of a physical or cognitive 2 let them know that there's over-the-counter, 2 function, is that the standard type of 3 so I think the medication issue is being 3 exclusion? 4 looked at far more closely by all healthcare 4 MS. RIIS: 5 professionals. 5 I know that's one definition, but it really— Α. 6 BROWNE, Q.C.: so physical or cognitive function, physical 6 means the functioning of your body, your 7 In terms of your resumé, some things caught 7 Q. 8 my attention there under your professional 8 anatomy; and cognitive means the functioning 9 activities it states there, the third last 9 of your mind and your ability to think. But from, the bottom there, it says, "Expert then the question is what constitutes a 10 10 witness at FSCO arbitration, file number serious impairment of that and that again, 11 11 between Shiva Ahmadi and Allstate. my feeling is referring to the World Health 12 12 13 MS. RIIS: Organization classification and framing that 13 in terms of functioning would be the most 14 A. That was a financial services commission of 14 reasonable way to go because I think what I 15 Ontario which would be the counterpart to 15 16 the Board, and it was a case, that case I 16 heard is that many presenters have commented 17 had mentioned earlier where I had developed 17 that the same injury in two different people 18 a return to work plan with the woman's 18 manifests itself or can manifest itself in physiatrist and the claimant disputed that I 19 19 very different ways, so that's why we have 20 was appropriate in recommending that return 20 to look at the end result of how are they 21 to work problem, so it was a dispute functioning. 21 resolution mechanism. 22 22 STAMP, Q.C.: 23 BROWNE, Q.C.: 23 And so the serious impairment definition is Q. 24 Okay, do you see dispute resolution 24 also important because that picks up on both Q. mechanisms as more appropriate than perhaps the psychological, as well as the physical? 25 25

24

25

Page 225 MS. RIIS: 1 1 2 Yes, of course. 2 Α. 3 CHAIR: 3 STAMP, Q.C.: 4 Thank you. 4 O. 5 5 CHAIR: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Riis, that's very 6 6 Q. helpful, very interesting. 7 8 8 CHAIR: MS. RIIS: 9 9 A. Thank you. Q. 10 10 CHAIR: 11 O. I guess you can step down whenever you're 11 12 12 ready. You don't have to sit there and listen to us. 13 13 Q. 14 MS. RIIS: 14 15 Okay. 15 A. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 16 Members of the Board, we've got a bit of a 17 CHAIR: 17 Q. scheduling problem here. We have two 18 18 Q. 19 individuals from Ontario who are here and 19 20 ready to give evidence, but based on what 20 21 I'm seeing, even if we can present their 21 evidence in an hour, we're going to need who 22 22 23 knows for cross-examination, so I'd think at 23 24 a minimum it would be an hour and a half. I 24 25 don't know would the Board, we'd obviously 25 Page 226 1 1 ask you to consider hearing this evidence, 2 whether or not you want to take a break and 2 O. 3 come back after lunch. We can't bring them 3 4 back for tomorrow and Dr. Lazar is here 4 Q. 5 tomorrow and he's going to be, I would 5 assume the full morning. 6 6 7 7 CHAIR: 8 8 Are your presenters available in the morning CHAIR: Q. 9 to finish if they get part of it done today? 9 O. KENNEDY, Q.C.: 10 10 I don't think so. They are scheduled to 11 11 head back to Ontario tonight. 12 12 O. 13 CHAIR: 13 14 O. So your proposal is that they present 14 everything today? 15 CHAIR: 15 16 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Q. Yes. 17 17 O. CHAIR: 18 18 19 And how long is their presentation? 19 Q. Q. KENNEDY, O.C.: 20 20 21 Well I can, again, lawyers are horrible at 21 predicting timeframes, but I would think 22 22 CHAIR: 23 that their presentation, from our 23 Q.

perspective, would be an hour. Now, as for

cross-examination, I'm sure that Mr. Stamp

2017 Automobile Insurance Review Page 227 will have a few questions for sure, and other counsel, I don't know. So we need at least an hour. KENNEDY, Q.C.: We need an hour and a half, I think to be fair Let's suggest we take a nature break because we're going to be here for an hour and a half in any event, if we come back. MR. WADDEN: Madam Chair, we really want to hear from the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association, quite frankly, but we have other commitments this afternoon. That's what I was going to say, you're going to have to canvass amongst each other to see if there's either party who can't stay for the afternoon, then I guess we can't – MR. WADDEN: Maybe there's another solution, maybe we can even start earlier tomorrow, I don't know, but this afternoon is going to be a problem. Page 228 CHAIR: Okay. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Well maybe can we just start now and we need to present these witnesses, they're going to be also referring to some of the things that Ms. Riis talked about. Well if we're going to start now and you're going to be an hour, I need a break. KENNEDY, O.C.: Sure, and I know staff and everyone is going to need a break, that's what I'm saying, yeah. I can sit here until 5:00 but I do need a few minutes break. STAMP, Q.C.: Madam Chair, have we determined what time the consumer advocate has to leave, is that something we can identify? Yes, that would be helpful, so can I just

24

25

suggest, maybe you can canvass amongst each other, that will be helpful too. I'll go do

Septe	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 229		Page 231
1	what I business and you can take care of it.	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
2	(RECESS – 1:10 p.m.)	2	Q. So, if we could now have some introductory
3	(RESUME – 1:17 p.m.)	3	comments, Mr. Wynperle, perhaps you could
4	CHAIR:	4	give some background of what OTLA does and
5	Q. Welcome gentlemen.	5	Mr. Karapita can talk about how you fellows
6	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	6	got here today?
7	Q. Thank you.	7	MR. KARAPITA:
8	CHAIR:	8	A. You go ahead, yes.
9	Q. Don't feel rushed, but I understand we are	9	MR. WYNPERLE:
10	here until 2:30.	10	A. Okay, what I wanted to talk about was a
11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	11	little bit about the Ontario experience
12		12	*
	Q. No, we are going to shorten up our		because I think it's important that when you
13	presentation a little to make sure other	13	start going down the road of amending auto
14	parties have time for cross-examination.	14	insurance legislation you consider that
15	CHAIR:	15	experience and what has happened to us. We
16	Q. Excellent, so we're good until you tell us	16	have had, since 1990, a no-fault or a hybrid
17	we're done.	17	legislation where there's accident benefits
18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	18	and there is a limited right to lawsuit and
19	Q. Okay. Thank you very much, Madam Chair	19	every government has had their hand in
20	members of the Board. The next presentation	20	changing that balance, but over the last 10
21	we have will be from the Ontario Trial	21	years mostly, there have been significant
22	Lawyers Association. We have with us Allen	22	complaint by the insurance industry of lack
23	Wynperle who is the present elect of the	23	of profitability, there have been
24	association and John Karapita, the director	24	significant complaints from insureds that
25	of Public Affairs. I'm going to have both	25	they're paying too much for premiums, and so
	Page 230		Page 232
1	of these gentlemen introduce themselves with	1	the government has gone on a probably once
2	a couple of minutes of their background and	2	every year or two cycle of cutting benefits
3	some introductory statements that will	3	for insureds, and this is, like I said,
4	probably take around five minutes each.	4	generally brought up by the insurance
5	Gentlemen, whoever wishes to start.	5	industry who feel that they cannot support
6	MR. KARAPITA:	6	the present product at the premiums that are
7	A. I'll jump in. My name is John Karapita, I'm	7	presently existing in Ontario. And I will
8	the director of Public Affairs with the	8	say that the premiums in Ontario seems to
9	Ontario Trial Lawyers Association. I am not	9	be, from everything we understand, to be the
10	a lawyer, I'll just be clear about that	10	most expensive in the country. So, for
1	• • •	10	1 2 /
11	upfront. I'm a staff member within the		example, in Ontario pain and suffering
12	Association and I've been with OTLA now for		damages are not given at all to an injured
13	the last eight years or so.	13	person unless their injuries are serious and
14	MR. WYNPERLE:	14	permanent. There is a deductible of
15	A. I am Allen Wynperle, I am a lawyer from	15	\$38,000, unlike your \$2,500 deductible and
16	Hamilton, Ontario, being called to the bar	16	we have mostly juries who decide these cases
17	in 1996. I'm a certified specialist in	17	in Ontario and they don't know about the
18	civil litigation in Ontario in 2002, past	18	deductible. So if they think they're giving
19	president of the Hamilton Law Association,	19	somebody \$50,000, they believe they're
20	past president of the Hamilton Medical Legal	20	giving somebody \$50,000. They don't know
21	Society, present elect of the Ontario Trial	21	that \$38,000 of that is going back to the
22	Lawyers Association, as my friend already	22	at-fault driver's insurance company. That's
23	said today, and I did sit on the board of	23	done afterwards by a judge. There's no
	said today, and I did sit on the board of Spinal Cord Injury Ontario for about 8 years previously as well.	23 24 25	done afterwards by a judge. There's no prejudgment interest on pain and suffering damages and past loss of income is only at

September 1.	2, 2010		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 233		Page 235
1	70 percent, so past loss to date of trial is	1	better off. Injured people are getting less
2	only at 70 percent. And with respect to the	2	damages and they're getting less treatment
3	accident benefits, we heard a lot today	3	because there's just not as much funding on
4	about, you know, injury protocol, treatment	4	the accident benefit side, and policy
5	protocols and so on and so forth. We have	5	holders are not receiving the benefit of
6	what's called a minor injury guideline for	6	reduced premiums. Sadly, you know, when
7	accident benefits in Ontario. It provides	7	some of these benefit cuts were implemented,
8	\$3,500 for treatment early on. There's no	8	there was temporary reduction in premiums
9	doubt that people can get that \$3,500 of	9	but as of last year, several large insurers
10	treatment early on without much dispute from	10	have received premium increases in the
11	their insurance company. The problem	11	province of Ontario by our regulator. And
12	happens with what after that if anything is	12	so what we see is a system where we're on a
13	necessary because the vast majority of	13	carousel, we're on a ferris wheel, we're
14	disputes that we have on accident benefits	14	going round and round and round, we end up
15	are with respect to whether someone stays	15	in the same spot every two to three years
16	within the minor injury guideline cap of	16	and that's causing the government to take
17	\$3,500 for treatment, or they can get out of	17	away rights from injured victims which is,
18	that cap. So there's a process for that,	18	in my submission, highly unfair. We have a
19	but the fact is I suspect that there is a	19	situation in Ontario where we have 9 million
20	significant inefficiency in that dispute	20	policy holders, insurance companies are
21	process. The insurance company will assess	21	taking in 13 billion dollars in auto
22	them with medicals, oftentimes the insured	22	insurance revenue for policies, and we do
23	person will have to get medicals, there's a	23	not seem to be able to get the system under
24	dispute resolution process and we're told	24	control because those 9 million policy
25	that 50 percent of the matters within the	25	holders continue to pay increasing premiums
	Page 234		Page 236
1	_	1	Page 236
1 2	dispute resolution process are does the	1 2	
	_	l	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.:
2	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge	2	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to
2 3	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today	2 3	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.:
2 3 4	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge	2 3 4	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a
2 3 4 5	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are	2 3 4 5	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to
2 3 4 5 6	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on	2 3 4 5 6	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine.
2 3 4 5 6 7	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are	2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and qualify what's right, what's wrong. The fact of the matter is it's a very expensive	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is our auditor general in Ontario describing a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and qualify what's right, what's wrong. The fact of the matter is it's a very expensive process, both for injured people and for	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is our auditor general in Ontario describing a downloading from the auto insurance system
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and qualify what's right, what's wrong. The fact of the matter is it's a very expensive process, both for injured people and for insurance companies when you start amending	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is our auditor general in Ontario describing a downloading from the auto insurance system onto the public system, which is, in my
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and qualify what's right, what's wrong. The fact of the matter is it's a very expensive process, both for injured people and for insurance companies when you start amending legislation. We have experienced a lot of	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is our auditor general in Ontario describing a downloading from the auto insurance system onto the public system, which is, in my submission very dangerous. As a taxpayer it
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	dispute resolution process are does the person suffice to get out of the minor injury guideline? And it's a huge, huge issue. You know, we've heard a lot today about defining regulations and defining legislation. Every time these things are redefined and they have been redefined on almost a continuous basis, there is significant cost to the system. Every lawyer will tell you that uncertainty is costing their clients money and the more you amend the legislation, the more uncertainty you create. That is absolutely the case, in Ontario we have found that it is a very costly process because every time they amend the legislation, ultimately the courts will need to define that, those regulations and qualify what's right, what's wrong. The fact of the matter is it's a very expensive process, both for injured people and for insurance companies when you start amending	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 236 all the time, despite all of these cuts. O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Q. Madam Chair, just one moment, I'm sorry to interrupt the presentation. We have a technical issue. We need a moment just to change the card in the machine. (OFF RECORD) REPORTER: Q. We are back on the record, thank you. CHAIR: Q. Thank you very much. MR. WYNPERLE: A. A few things that were raised today which I found very interesting, in Ontario one of the significant issues has been whether the auto insurance system is paying its fair share of the rehabilitation costs in the province, and what we have actually seen is our auditor general in Ontario describing a downloading from the auto insurance system onto the public system, which is, in my

Page 239

Page 240

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

25

Page 237 dollars over almost thirty years now. The auditor general said in 2014 that over a billion dollars was essentially missing from the Ontario healthcare coffers over the course of time as a result of the shifting of the burden, if you will, by not having people properly funded for their healthcare by their auto insurer. And it is a significant issue.

The other thing I just want to raise that I heard today in the discussions was about seniors. I think they are the most affected by the changes in legislation. They don't have claims for loss of income because they're retired, generally speaking, and pain and suffering damages mean a lot to them, and taking that away has seriously affected the rights of senior citizens; in fact, I've had that conversation with politicians who are responsible for senior citizens in Ontario. It is a very hard thing to tell someone whose life has been dramatically affected, their quality of life has been dramatically affected there is very little or nothing I can do for you because

1 property casualty insurance industry in 2 general. And in the letter a number of 3 points stood out to me because, as I say, 4 they were similar to what we've seen, that 5 auto insurance premiums are too high, our 6 claims are too high relative to premiums, 7 that real change is needed, that there is a 8 well-meaning dialogue that is being sought 9 with elective officials, but on that point 10 there is a complaint about sources from outside the industry and a suggestion that -11 12

STAMP, O.C.:

13 Excuse me, Madam Chair, if I just might Q. 14 inquire, do we have a copy of this letter 15 that is being referred to?

CHAIR: 16

The Board? 17 Q.

18 STAMP. O.C.:

19 Is it in the materials we have? Q.

20 MR. FELTHAM:

21 Q. No, it's not in the Board record, I just made that inquiry myself. 22

23 STAMP, O.C.:

24 Okay, that's fine, go ahead, thank you. Q.

MR. KARAPITA: 25

Page 238

1

2

the cost of taking a case to trial is worth far more than your pain and suffering damages once we take off the deductible, or in a situation like there where you are taking a huge risk with a senior in a situation where the case might be capped at \$7,500 or something like that. It is very hard to tell them that. It is not something they deserve after a lifetime's worth of work, so those are my comments.

KENNEDY, O.C.:

Mr. Karapita, could you please have some Q. preliminary comments? 13

MR. KARAPITA: 14 15 Thank you. I was just going to add to the Α. 16 dialogue here today to give you some context 17 for why we got involved, and I think it started when we saw the letter that the IBC 18 19 had sent to MHAs last week about the review 20 before this Board and I read it, and as I 21 read it, it brought to mind many of the 22 experiences that we faced in Ontario is 23 eerily reminiscent over the last several 24 years of what we've seen in our dealings

with the Insurance Bureau of Canada, the

A. And I'll just clarify, it is a letter that the IBC sent. And as I say, it brought to

3 mind some of the experiences that we had in 4 Ontario and I just want to hark back to a

5 time in 2013 when we saw something from the 6 Ontario vice-president of the Insurance

7 Bureau who said many of the same things. We

8 know that the price of auto insurance is too

9 high, consumers deserve a competitive auto 10 insurance system. And what's significant

11 about that quote and I truncated it 12 somewhat, is that if the context of those

13 remarks that came in the aftermath of some

14 of the biggest changes to the policies, as 15 my colleague referred to in 2010, we had the

16 imposition of a minor injury guideline that

17 saw benefits slashed from \$100,000 to a 18 maximum of \$3,500. We saw those changes

19 take effect almost immediately and

20 typically, I know having some experience

21 with the industry that these things, you know, a change to the policy does not 22

23 necessarily always show up in data right

away. Sometimes it can take a number of years, but in the case of the minor injury

Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028

24

25

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 241		Page 243
1	guideline with claims under accident	1	our own experience. It's what we saw as a
2	benefits, those changes showed up right	2	pattern of the industry focussing on
3	away, so much so that one insurance CEO from	3	selected mounting claims costs, using the
4	the Economical Mutual Insurance Company, at	4	Ontario context, if you will, and the
5	the time one of the largest companies, said,	5	pattern of downplaying the insurance
6	and this was barely six months into the	6	industry's profitability and dismissing the
7	implementation of that new product, they	7	need, frankly, for accountability and
8	said, "We are starting to see the benefits	8	transparency in some of that data.
9	of the 2010 auto insurance reforms that was	9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
10	combined with underwriting discipline to	10	Q. Okay, so if I could just ask you a couple of
11	generate stronger results." And some of	11	points of clarification, Mr. Karapita.
12	that underwriting discipline was a push for	12	First, I see from your background, which is
13	higher premiums from 2009 to 2012, we saw	13	attached to the letter that's been filed
14	premiums increase in Ontario by some 15	14	with the Board, that at one point did you
15	percent. The reductions that they saw,	15	work with the Insurance Bureau of Canada?
1	1	16	MR. KARAPITA:
16	those benefits to the industry combined to	l .	
17	create more than 27 percent, a 27 percent	17	A. That's correct, sir, I did.
18	reduction in overall claims costs, not just	18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
19	accident benefits, first party no-fault	19	Q. Where did you work with them and for how
20	benefits, but it was an overall benefit to	20	long?
21	the industry. Through that same time period	21	MR. KARAPITA:
22	when the IBC VP had issued that statement,	22	A. I worked for the IBC in Toronto from March
23	we were putting out information to our own	23	1999 until January 2008.
24	elected representatives voicing some concern	24	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
25	about that situation, that we were seeing	25	Q. And what was your role with the Insurance
	Page 242		Page 244
1	claims costs drop. We saw the trends	1	Bureau of Canada?
2	towards higher premiums and yet the IBC went	2	MR. KARAPITA:
3	so far as to suggest that we were	3	A. Initially I was the manager of government
4	provocating myths and that they were the	4	relations in the Ontario regional office of
5	purveyors of fact and they alone.	5	IBC which is part of the headquarters in
6	(1:30 p.m.)	6	Toronto, and then I moved on to the public
7	MR. KARAPITA:	7	affairs and marketing department of IBC
8	Q. What they did at the time too, they were	8	first as an external relation or media
9	warning of what they called a tsunami	9	relations manager and manager of regional
10	rolling through Ontario's auto insurance	10	issues.
11	system because of unresolved legal disputes,	11	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
1 12		11	KENNEDI, Q.C
1 12	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	l .	
12	which never came to pass. They wrote to our	12	Q. How long have you been with the Ontario
13	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern	12 13	Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association?
13 14	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that	12 13 14	Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA:
13 14 15	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform.	12 13 14 15	Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association?MR. KARAPITA:A. Just over eight years now.
13 14 15 16	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since	12 13 14 15 16	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.:
13 14 15 16 17	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data	12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated
13 14 15 16 17 18	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data	12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your
13 14 15 16 17 18 19	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from,
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is generated by the industry itself, but it	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from, any lawyers in St. John's contact you or
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is generated by the industry itself, but it proved that those savings were permanent and	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from, any lawyers in St. John's contact you or anyone on behalf of the Campaign to Protect
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is generated by the industry itself, but it proved that those savings were permanent and well entrenched. So it was in the context	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from, any lawyers in St. John's contact you or anyone on behalf of the Campaign to Protect Accident Victims?
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is generated by the industry itself, but it proved that those savings were permanent and well entrenched. So it was in the context of that history that we faced in Ontario	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from, any lawyers in St. John's contact you or anyone on behalf of the Campaign to Protect Accident Victims? MR. KARAPITA:
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	which never came to pass. They wrote to our finance minister at the time urging concern about the term the "fragile savings" that were brought about through the 2010 reform. And it's pretty clear that the data since that time, the data initially, but the data since that time has confirmed and the data I'm talking about is the GISA data which is generated by the industry itself, but it proved that those savings were permanent and well entrenched. So it was in the context	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. How long have you been with the Ontario Trial Lawyers Association? MR. KARAPITA: A. Just over eight years now. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Okay, so eight years. Now, you indicated that you brought to the attention of your colleagues in St. John's, did anyone from, any lawyers in St. John's contact you or anyone on behalf of the Campaign to Protect Accident Victims?

Page 245 Page 247 1 KENNEDY, O.C.: 1 0. If we could then move to number two, the 2 2 Q. Roebothan McKay Marshall. need for greater transparency and 3 3 accountability from the property and MR. KARAPITA: 4 casualty insurance sector on the performance 4 Thank you. 5 5 KENNEDY, Q.C.: of auto insurance companies in Canada, with 6 Okay, so when did you contact Mr. Marshall 6 examples from Ontario, would either of you 7 and how did you go about that? 7 like to speak to that, please? 8 8 MR. WYNPERLE: MR. KARAPITA: 9 9 I contacted him by email and I believe it Well, I think that's what I was just talking A. 10 was early last week. 10 about, it's just that we believe that because every motorist in Ontario, and I 11 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 11 presume here as well, is required to carry 12 And what was your purpose in contacting Mr. 12 auto insurance when they drive a car, and Marshall? 13 13 14 that's become a fact of life that most MR. KARAPITA: 14 15 My purpose was to highlight some of the 15 people have to drive in order to get to work A. concerns that I saw with respect to the IBC and get around. You know, the insurance 16 16 17 communications and interest and 17 companies are in a privileged position, and as such with privileges come 18 encouragement to lawyers here and other 18 responsibilities, and we believe that one of 19 concerned parties to raise some of these 19 concerns with elected officials. 20 those responsibilities should be fair 20 disclosure of information so that everybody 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 21 22 Okay, so if we can now look at – if we can 22 can see real evidence of the need for the Q. changes before we go and make all these 23 go to your letter in terms of number one. 23 Mr. Wynperle, or Mr. Karapita, is there any 24 24 changes. further comment you'd make on your brief MR. KARAPITA: 25 25 Page 246 Page 248 1 A further point to add to that, insurers 1 review of Ontario's no fault auto insurance A. 2 reports financial data on a global basis 2 system? 3 MR. WYNPERLE: 3 across the country, and they'll do that to 4 the federal regulator, the office of the Well, I think that we – again what you 4 A. 5 experience is, you know, a system where the 5 Superintendent of Financial Institutions. They do not break down specific information 6 insurance companies have us on a – really on 6 7 a carousel of amendments; if at first you 7 by line of business, auto insurance, for 8 don't succeed, try, try, try, try again, and 8 example, in Newfoundland and Labrador. So 9 continue to amend the legislation. Each 9 that we do not have access to detailed amendment really taking away rights of 10 10 information, apart from the claims injured victims, and also costing all information that we might see with GISA, but 11 11 parties a significant amount of money to that's the issue, and one further point that 12 12 then figure out how to implement these I'll just add as part of that background, 13 13 systems without, I should say, real 14 IBC used to release that global financial 14 verifiable audited financial statements from 15 data and I believe it was when I was there 15 16 the insurance companies to prove the need 16 12 or 13 years ago, they stopped releasing for either reduction in the policy rights of 17 even the publicly available data. It is 17 individuals or to increase premiums either 18 available, but it's kind of tricky to find. 18 way. That has never been provided in You have to navigate the site at OSFI and 19 19 20 Ontario. The insurers can get increases in understand how to combine the numbers. 20 premiums. They do not have to provide line 21 21 KENNEDY, Q.C.: item statements to the regulator or to the 22 22 Number three refers to a review of the Q. 23 public, and nor do they have to when they 23 profitability of insurers with examples from 24 ask for reductions in the policy. 24 a York economics professor, Fred Lazar. Do either of you want to comment on that, 25 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 25

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 249		Page 251
1	please?	1	product is either losing money or just not
2	MR. KARAPITA:	2	sustainable as it exists in its form at that
3	A. Yeah, I'll just comment on that briefly.	3	time.
4	Following that period in 2012 or so, the	4	MR. KARAPITA:
5	latest analysis by Dr. Lazar from York	5	A. It's often the challenge of getting
6	University shows that profitability in	6	information on that because while they can
7	Ontario auto increased dramatically, some 60	7	sometimes and frequently claim to be losing
8	percent to 1.5 billion dollars in 2016, or a	8	money, they seldom admit to making money.
	return on –	9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	10	Q. In terms of number four, and we can get some
11	Q. Sorry, how much – what was that, sir?	11	further examples from Dr. Lazar tomorrow,
	MR. KARAPITA:	12	
12			number four, perhaps if either of you would
13	A. 1.5 billion dollars in Ontario auto premium	13	like to speak to the pertinent examples from
14	or auto insurance alone, and that represents	14	recent Ontario history where insurers have
15	16 percent return on equity for the entire	15	promised better and more responsive
16	industry in Ontario.	16	coverage?
17	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	17	MR. WYNPERLE:
18	Q. What year was that, Mr. Karapita?	18	A. Well, I think one of the examples I already
19	MR. KARAPITA:	19	spoke about today was the minor injury
20	A. 2016.	20	guideline, which is that type of, you know,
21	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	21	sort of canned treatment, if you will, that
22	Q. Sorry. Continue, sir.	22	starts off the process and how it's really
23	MR. KARAPITA:	23	used in the province of Ontario is to try
24	A. What he also suggested - because Dr. Lazar	24	and cap out injured people from taking more
25	and his colleagues some years previously had	25	than \$3,500.00 in treatment. So you
	Page 250		Page 252
1	reviewed for the Ontario government the	1	essentially have to get – you have to get
2	profitability benchmark that companies would	2	beyond the minor injury guideline, and they
3	be allowed to shoot for as part of their	3	restrict you significantly in how you do
4	underwriting criteria for setting premiums	4	that, and as I said, that has come at a
5	and rates, and he did that review, and as	5	serious cost for the defence, the
6	part of our analysis, he has suggested that	6	plaintiffs, and the system itself, the
7	what they ought to have done was settled on	7	government run system is at an expense, the
8	a rolling ten year average to see the	8	dispute resolution system. You know, it
9	profitability benchmark move more quickly	9	costs a lot of money to do that.
10	than it has over time. He suggests, based	10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
11	on his analysis and economic considerations,	11	Q. And of you mentioned earlier that at one
12	that again going back to that 2016 year,	12	point there were medical benefits of
13	that where the industry earned 16 percent,	13	\$100,000.00, reduced to \$3,500.00?
1	1 '		
14	according to his calculation he feels that	14	MR. WYNPERLE:
15	the benchmark should have been no more than		A. Prior to September of 2010, every Ontario
16	5.1 percent return on equity for the	16	resident injured in a motor vehicle
17	industry.	17	accident, or every person injured in Ontario
18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	18	in a motor vehicle accident, would get up to
19	Q. Mr. Wynperle, and Mr. Karapita, has there	19	\$100,000.00 in medical and rehabilitation
20	ever been in your experience a time when the	20	benefits, so long as the treatment was
21	insurance industry or IBC, on behalf of the	21	reasonable and necessary and related to the
22	insurance industry, has claimed to be losing	22	injury. In 2010 that changed and that minor
23	money in the automobile insurance industry?	23	injury guideline was brought in, and I would
24	MR. WYNPERLE:	24	estimate that probably 75 to 85 percent of
25	A. Quite regularly they are claiming that the	25	people injured in accidents get caught in

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 253		Page 255
1	that minor injury guideline. Now a number	1	Q. And number five, have you already spoke
2	of them eventually get out of the minor	2	about that, Mr. Wynperle, in terms of the
3	injury guideline with the help of legal	3	offloading of services from the insurance
4	counsel, but that is a long difficult	4	system to the public health care system?
5	process and a costly one, unfortunately.	5	MR. WYNPERLE:
6	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	6	A. Thank you. I believe that my comment about
7	Q. So when did it go down to \$3,500.00?	7	the Auditor General's Report, the Auditor
8	MR. WYNPERLE:	8	General has reported on this issue twice now
9	A. 2010, September.	9	in Ontario, not recently, but I believe the
10	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	10	last time was 2014, and it should be a
11	Q. And so do you know – in terms of the	11	significant concern for all taxpayers that
12	profitability of the insurers, you're saying	12	the insurance industry is under funding the
13	Dr. Lazar says 1.5 million in 2016.	13	health care system significantly.
14	MR. WYNPERLE:	14	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
15	A. Billion.	15	Q. And number six, need for a more thorough
16	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	16	review of insurer operations, especially
17	Q. Do you know if they made money in other	17	with regard to insurance expenses and
18	years between 2010 and 2016?	18	efficiencies, would either of you like to
19	(1:45 p.m.)	19	comment on that, please?
20	MR. WYNPERLE:	20	MR. WYNPERLE:
21	A. Well, we believe that they are making money	21	A. I don't know that there's any more I can add
22	in Ontario, although that's always in	22	on that.
23	serious question, and the issue in Ontario	23	MR. KARAPITA:
24	has been to try and reduce premiums. There	24	A. I'd just add that one of the points that Dr.
25	has been a big push on to reduce premiums	25	Lazar raised was the current expense ratio
	Page 254		Page 256
1	because, as I said earlier, we have the	1	of 25 percent allowable in Ontario is
2	unenviable position of having the most	2	something that's probably not been looked at
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	expensive premiums, and, unfortunately,	3	for a long time, and as he said, I believe,
4	despite all of these changes, that has not	4	in his report, it's quite likely that
5	happened, and so the money really has to be	5	companies have worked and achieved greater
6	going somewhere.	6	efficiencies and are, in fact, hitting below
7	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	7	that number and, therefore, deriving further
8	Q. When were the – this threshold, this verbal	8	profit as a result.
9	threshold, when was this system brought in	9	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
10	in Ontario?	10	Q. My last question for you at this point, and
11	MR. WYNPERLE:	11	again it reiterates the comment that Mr.
12	Q. It was first brought in in 1990 in a	12	Stamp put to Dr. Misik in terms of why are
13	different form, but the present form of	13	you here today, I know you've explained
14	verbal threshold where you have to prove	14	that, Mr. Karapita, in your introductory
15	serious and permanent injuries to get any	15	comments, but could either one of you
16	pain and suffering damages, and by the way,	16	elaborate on why the Ontario Lawyers
17	any future cost of care damages as well, was	17	Association, the two of you, have taken time
18	in its present form brought in in 1996,	18	out of your busy schedules to come to and
19	November, '96.	19	appear before the PUB here in Newfoundland
20	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	20	and Labrador?
21	Q. Mr. Karapita, is there anything you want to	21	MR. WYNPERLE:
22	add on number four?	22	A. Well, we believe that all Canadians who in
23	MR. KARAPITA:	23	their provinces have private insurance, auto
24	A. No, sir.	24	insurance systems, are facing the same
25	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	25	problems. The insurance companies are

The political pressure on elected officials because they believe the product is not profitable, but at the same time we all face the same difficulty in that we do no have the necessary financial data, and they certifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that in information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order to that you not face those as well. To kenneby, O.C.: Renneby, O.C.: Questions, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to example, with respect to bodily injury cost in sway into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were home one one concerning, however, as that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not hore out by the data in subsequent last machine and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not hore out by the data in subsequent last machine and the correct, the information that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially and showed up in that data, they were not hore out by the data in subsequent last even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information, the out of date now, out and image and the province, and of date now, out and information from 2014. So we've of the understance of the product, and I'm speaced along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaced along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaced and the serio	Septer	mber 12, 2018		201 / Automobile Insurance Review
2 putting political pressure on elected 3 officials because they believe the product 4 is not profitable, but at the same time we 5 all face the same difficulty in that we do 6 not have the necessary financial data, 7 audited verifable financial information, in 8 order to allow us to make decisions. Not 9 just politicians, but all stakeholders 10 within the industry, should have that 11 information available before any decisions 12 are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage 13 in the way things are being done in our 14 province, and we hope to help show you some 15 of the pitfalls that we have faced in order 16 that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there 19 ever been any – one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there 21 was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for 2 example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 5 increase in both the number and the cost per 6 in sured vehicle, and the serousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information in the was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 spacking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he		-		Page 259
officials because they believe the product is not profitable, but at the same time we all face the same difficulty in that we do not have the necessary financial data, and dided verifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some to the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made it sway into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to bose costs that they were not borne out by the data in subsequent 15 gass. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend 19 cornect, the information that was initially apassed along was even included in much more center eviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in cornect, the information, the out of date now, out	I			* *
4 sis not profitable, but at the same time we all face the same difficulty in that we do not have the necessary financial data, audited verifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pirfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 12	2	putting political pressure on elected	2	incorrect data isn't corrected.
all face the same difficulty in that we do not have the necessary financial data, audited verifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage. It is in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. It KENNEDY, Q.C.: Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made be reto counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per four respect to those costs that they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned to to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more requent even for the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine file of the product, and I	3	officials because they believe the product	3	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
all face the same difficulty in that we do not have the necessary financial data, audited verifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage. It is in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. It KENNEDY, Q.C.: Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made be reto counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per four respect to those costs that they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned to to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more requent even for the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 garden for fine file of the product, and I	4		4	Q. My last point, is there anything you want to
6 mot have the necessary financial data, 7 audited verifiable financial information, 8 order to allow us to make decisions. Not 9 just politicians, but all stakeholders 10 within the industry, should have that 11 information available before any decisions 12 are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage 13 in the way things are being done in our 14 province, and we hope to help show you some 15 of the pitfalls that we have faced in order 16 that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there 19 ever been any – one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there 21 was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 26 NR. WYNPERLE: 27 NR. WYNPERLE: 28 Q. Okay. 29 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 Q. Mr. Karapita, lirst of all, if I can just 29 rage 256 20 Mr. KARAPITA: 30 A. No finitially, no. It was a government 31 flower trends if they existed at all 32 initially and showed up in that data, they 33 are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage 34 is way into the legislated review of the 35 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 36 that was borne out because that information made 37 Mr. KARAPITA: 38 A. No, sir. 39 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 39 Good. So those would be my questions, Madar 31 Chair. 30 APTLA waives any questions. Thank you. 31 CHAIR: 31 Q. Thank you, Mr. Gittens. Mr. Fraize? 31 PRAIZE, Q.C.: 32 Q. Okay. 32 STAMP, Q.C.: 33 Q. Okay. 34 STAMP, Q.C.: 34 STAMP, Q.C.: 35 MR. KARAPITA: 35 A. No finitially, no. It was a government 36 relations or lobbying. 36 STAMP, Q.C.: 37 Q. What does that mean? 38 Mr. KARAPITA: 39 A. Robertor doing the decisions, Madar 39 Mr. KARAPITA: 40 A. Ow that one the decisions, Madar 41 A. No finitially and showed up in that data, they 41 was horne out be because that information made 42 in the product, and, therefore, some conclusions 43 A. Or many the product and the product and those trends				
audited verifiable financial information, in order to allow us to make decisions. Not just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 15 of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 16 CHAIR: 17 KERNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was hat there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent tyears. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 24 g. A. No, sir.		•		
8 A. No, sir. 9 put politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any – one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there way, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 27 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out brecause that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend to words higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	1			
9 just politicians, but all stakeholders within the industry, should have that 11 information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 16	I			
within the industry, should have that information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 15 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 16 Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any – one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there ever been any – one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there aver, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost of insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made is its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to bodily in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially and showed up in that data, they are seen the formation that was initially and showed up in that data, they are seen more concerning, however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially apassed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in 22 spackal ong was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in 22 spacking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out				
11 information available before any decisions are made, and we see an ongoing miscarriage in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 15 of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there or was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 23 MR WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions to that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and in those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not gassed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm years. What was even more done out by the data in subsequent towards higher costs turned out to be not gassed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm years. What was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm years. What was even included in much more recent reviews of	1	• •		
12	l .			• •
in the way things are being done in our province, and we hope to help show you some of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. KENNEDY, Q.C.: Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not towards high	l .			
14	ı	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
15 of the pitfalls that we have faced in order that you not face those as well. 16 that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any – one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario; 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for 25 example, with respect to bodily injury cost 36 four or five years ago where the initial 49 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 59 increase in both the number and the cost per 69 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 100 that were reached by the regulator with 111 respect to those costs that they were, in 112 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 113 those trends if they existed at all 114 initially and showed up in that data, they 115 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 116 towards higher costs turned out to be not 119 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 24 expending the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 25 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 25 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 25 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 25 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein, 26 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data bein,	1	, , ,		
16 that you not face those as well. 17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there 19 ever been any – one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there 21 was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but 22 they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for 2 example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 5 increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out	l .			
17 KENNEDY, Q.C.: 18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there to counsel for APTLA was that there ever been any – one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? 24	15	of the pitfalls that we have faced in order	15	Q. APTLA waives any questions. Thank you.
18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 27 WR. WYNPERLE: 28 YAMP, Q.C.: 29 WR. WYNPERLE: 29 WR. WANPERLE: 29 WR. WANPE	16	that you not face those as well.	16	CHAIR:
18 Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there ever been any — one of the suggestions made 20 here to counsel for APTLA was that there was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 23 Q. Okay. 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 MR. WYNPERLE: 25 WR. WYNPERLE: 26 WR. WYNPERLE: 27 WITH ARCHIVE AND ARC	17	KENNEDY, Q.C.:	17	Q. Thank you, Mr. Gittens. Mr. Fraize?
ever been any – one of the suggestions made here to counsel for APTLA was that there they would overestimate reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 Page 258 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not passed along was even included in much more correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm correct the	18	Q. Before I get to you, Mr. Karapita, has there	18	FRAIZE, Q.C.:
20		- · · · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		, ,
21 was, I don't know if hiding of reserves, but they would overestimate reserves in one year 23 to show a loss in another year. Have you 24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for 24 example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 21 CHAIR: 21 Q. CHAIR: 22 STAMP, Q.C.: 23 Q. Okay. 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just Page 266 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. 5 TAMP, Q.C.: 7 Q. What does that mean? 8 MR. KARAPITA: 9 A. Government relations? 10 STAMP, Q.C.: 11 Q. Yeah, what does it mean? 12 MR. KARAPITA: 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just Page 266 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. 5 STA	1	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		` 1
they would overestimate reserves in one year to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per foiling its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with the were reached by the regulator with those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent for years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm not, sir. Expect 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 268 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost that a communications position? MR. KARAPITA: A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. STAMP, Q.C.: Page 260 MR. KARAPITA: A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. STAMP, Q.C.: What does that mean? MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPIT	1			
to show a loss in another year. Have you encountered anything like that in Ontario? MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with the seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	ı			· ·
24 encountered anything like that in Ontario? 25 MR. WYNPERLE: Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 5 increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 Q. Mr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 25 A. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. STAMP, Q.C.: 10 STAMP, Q.C.: 11 Q. What does that mean? 11 Q. Yeah, what does it mean? 12 MR. Karapita. 12 A. That means primarily a role facilitating 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating 14 contact with elected officials. 15 Tamp, Q.C.: 17 MR. Karapita. 18 A. I'm not, sir. 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 21 MR. Karapita. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 22 A. No, sir. 23 A.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 5 increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 25 Q. Mrr. Karapita, first of all, if I can just 12 ask you: the position you had with IBC, was that a communications position? 1 ask you: the position you had with IBC, was that a communications position? 1 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. STAMP, Q.C.: 1 Q. What does that mean? 8 MR. KARAPITA: 1 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. STAMP, Q.C.: 1 Q. Yeah, what does it mean? 1 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 1 STAMP, Q.C.: 2 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 1 MR. KARAPITA: 4 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 2 STAMP, Q.C.: 2 Q. You're not an actuary? 3 MR. KARAPITA: 4 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 2 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 3 MR. KARAPITA: 4 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 4 Q. So,	1			
Page 258 1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	l .			
1 A. We have experienced some situations, for example, with respect to bodily injury cost four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	25		25	
2 example, with respect to bodily injury cost 3 four or five years ago where the initial 4 estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic 5 increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 2 that a communications position? 3 MR. KARAPITA: 4 A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. 5 relations or lobbying. 6 STAMP, Q.C.: 7 Q. What does that mean? 8 MR. KARAPITA: 10 STAMP, Q.C.: 11 Q. Yeah, what does it mean? 12 MR. KARAPITA: 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 A. No, sir. 25 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 A. No, sir. 27 MR. KARAPITA: 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 A. Sovernment relations? 20 A. Government relations? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 STAMP, Q.C.: 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 A. No, sir. 25 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 A. No, sir. 27 MR. KARAPITA: 28 A. I'm not, sir. 29 A. Government relations? 20 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 29 A. I'm not, sir. 20 A. No, sir. 21 MR. KARAPITA: 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 A. No, sir.		_		_
four or five years ago where the initial estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out a. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. Not many. A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: A. Not initially, no. It was a government relations or lobbying. A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: O. So, you're not an actuary? MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not,	l .			
estimates in the GISA data showed a dramatic increase in both the number and the cost per 6 insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that 7 was borne out because that information made 8 its way into the legislated review of the 9 product, and, therefore, some conclusions 10 that were reached by the regulator with 11 respect to those costs that they were, in 12 fact, seriously high and out of control, and 13 those trends if they existed at all 14 initially and showed up in that data, they 15 were not borne out by the data in subsequent 16 years. What was even more concerning, 17 however, was that even though that trend 18 towards higher costs turned out to be not 19 correct, the information that was initially 20 passed along was even included in much more 21 recent reviews of the product, and I'm 22 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 23 Ontario just last year, where he cited the 24 same information, the out of date now, out 19 correct, the information, the out of date now, out 10 correct in the GISA data being 15 correct in the GISA data being 16 correct in the Host information of the review of the product, and I'm 24 contact with elected officials. 25 correct, the information that was initially 26 passed along was even included in much more 27 correct, the information that was initially 28 speaking of the review by David Marshall in 29 Contact with elected officials. 20 Contact with elected officials. 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 Speaking of the review by David Marshall in 29 Contact with elected officials. 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 A. No, sir. 25 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 Contact with elected officials. 27 Contact with elected officials. 28 Contact with elected officials. 29 Contact with elected officials. 20 Contact with elected officials. 21 Contact with elected officials. 22 Contact with elected officials. 23 Contact with elected official				
increase in both the number and the cost per insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Contact in the product of the product of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Contact in the product of the product of the product of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Contact in the product of the product of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Contact in the product of the product o		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3	
insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent were not borne out by the data in subsequent however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not recent reviews of the product, and I'm passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm contact with elected officials. If m not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. No, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. No, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. A. No, sir.	4			
was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in An Hat means primarily a role facilitating Contact with elected officials. An That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: An I'm not, sir. An I'm not, s	5	increase in both the number and the cost per	5	relations or lobbying.
was borne out because that information made its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in An Hat means primarily a role facilitating Contact with elected officials. An That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: An I'm not, sir. An I'm not, s	6	insured vehicle, and the seriousness of that	6	STAMP, Q.C.:
its way into the legislated review of the product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	7	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	7	Q. What does that mean?
product, and, therefore, some conclusions that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm contact with elected officials. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: Q. You're not an actuary? MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm not, sir. MR. KARAPITA: A. I'm No, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. I'm not, sir. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir. A. No, sir. A. A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: A. No, sir.	8	its way into the legislated review of the	8	
that were reached by the regulator with respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm contact with elected officials. STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: STAMP, Q.C.: STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: MR. KARAPITA: STAMP, Q.C.: MR. KARAPITA: MR		,		
respect to those costs that they were, in fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 11 Q. Yeah, what does it mean? MR. KARAPITA: 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 A. No, sir. 27 A. No, sir. 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 A. No, sir. 20 A. And when you talk about the GISA data being	1	* ' '	-	
fact, seriously high and out of control, and those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 12 MR. KARAPITA: 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Same information, the out of date now, out 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	l .			· -
those trends if they existed at all initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 13 A. That means primarily a role facilitating contact with elected officials. 14 Contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	1	•		,
initially and showed up in that data, they were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 14 contact with elected officials. 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 25 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 STAMP, Q.C.: 27 A. No, sir. 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	l .	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
were not borne out by the data in subsequent years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 26 STAMP, Q.C.: 27 A. No, sir. 28 STAMP, Q.C.: 29 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		* *
years. What was even more concerning, however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 16 Q. So, you're not an actuary? MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	l .			
however, was that even though that trend towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 17 MR. KARAPITA: 17 MR. KARAPITA: 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	1	1		
towards higher costs turned out to be not correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 18 A. I'm not, sir. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•
correct, the information that was initially passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 Q. You're not an economist? 21 MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	I	•		
passed along was even included in much more recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 20 Q. You're not an economist? MR. KARAPITA: 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being		-		· ·
recent reviews of the product, and I'm speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out	1			, .
speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	20	passed along was even included in much more	20	Q. You're not an economist?
speaking of the review by David Marshall in Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 22 A. No, sir. 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	21	recent reviews of the product, and I'm	21	MR. KARAPITA:
Ontario just last year, where he cited the same information, the out of date now, out 23 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	22		22	A. No, sir.
same information, the out of date now, out 24 Q. And when you talk about the GISA data being	I			
	l .			/ •
1 25 of auto information from 2011. So we to 125 unformation of incorrect, you to retyring on	l .			•
Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028 Page 257 - Page 26				

Page 261 1 someone else's opinion to say that that's 1 that appeared four years previously and that 2 report by David Marshall was prepared in 2 the case? 3 MR. KARAPITA: 3 association with our Ministry of Finance and 4 Not entirely, no. I'm relying on the 4 our regulator and yes, I maintain, based on 5 observations that I made based on an 5 the clear numbers on the page, which I think 6 understanding of GISA data and an 6 are readily understandable by people with 7 7 some understanding and some orientation to understanding that I think probably compares 8 8 well with several in the industry, perhaps that data, as incorrect. 9 not as advanced as an actuary, but the 9 STAMP, Q.C.: 10 trends were clear. They were well 10 You talk about this incorrect data and yet established. I saw numbers that in one year the data that GISA generates is generated 11 11 were significantly higher than in subsequent strictly for the rate regulators across the 12 12 years as a result of the development of country. They tell GISA what to generate. 13 13 GISA generates the data. How does it 14 data. And I think it takes that 14 15 understanding of how industry data does 15 possibly make sense that the rate regulators develop over time. It's not like a across the country and the regulators 16 16 17 financial report where you see a number 17 generally, the Superintendents of Insurance and so on, don't know what they're doing and 18 issued by XYZ company in their financial 18 19 statements and it's like that for all time. 19 you do know? 20 We know that insurance data does develop. 20 MR. KARAPITA: 21 And as a result of that understanding, we 21 I think that's an unusual characterization Α. saw changes in bodily injury -22 of what I said. I think what I'm getting at 22 23 23 is that I have faith in the GISA data. I STAMP, Q.C.: 24 24 Who's "we saw"? Who's we? understand how the GISA data works and it's Q. 25 MR. KARAPITA: 25 on the basis of the reputation of GISA that Page 264 Page 262 1 I concluded that there were changes in the 1 A. Well, I think our association, but I saw it. 2 STAMP, Q.C.: 2 accident years 2013 and 2012, 2013 and 2014 3 You saw it. So, again, you're not an 3 and that the revisions that showed up in the Q. 4 actuary. You're not an economist. Yet GISA data upon which, you know, I've made my 4 5 you're seeing this actuarial unfolding --5 statements that the previous data, which may 6 this actuarial information unfolding in have been correct at the time that it was 6 7 front of you? 7 initially compiled, could no longer be seen 8 8 MR. KARAPITA: as correct because it was changed by GISA 9 A. Let me specify that. No, I don't think it's 9 itself. actually actuarial data. These are claims 10 10 MR. WYNPERLE: trends that are well established. The And just to continue that thought, the 11 11 12 numbers are – we could have a discussion, problem is people who are assessing the need 12 for change in the government, some of them, 13 I'll show you the numbers on the page. It's 13 quite obvious. are still using the out of date GISA data, 14 14 15 not the updated GISA data, in order to 15 STAMP, Q.C.: 16 Q. Okay. You're asserting that you've studied 16 justify decisions which are being made. 17 these documents and you're coming here to That's the comment. 17 this Board and telling them that you're 18 18 STAMP, Q.C.: 19 satisfied that the GISA data shows that the 19 Mr. Perland – I'm sorry, Wynperle 20 - that GISA data is incorrect. That's what 20 MR. WYNPERLE: 21 you're saying? 21 Yeah. A. 22 MR. KARAPITA: 22 STAMP, O.C.: 23 I'm suggesting that the GISA that was 23 Is it Wynperle, I'm sorry? MR. WYNPERLE: 24 represented in a report issued by David 24 Marshall in April 2016 parroted the data 25 25 Yeah, that's fine.

25

MR. WYNPERLE:

Page 265 Page 267 STAMP, Q.C.: 1 Absolutely not, sir. I cannot speak to the 1 A. 2 One of the things you spoke about was this 2 Newfoundland experience. That's not my area Q. 3 downloading of insurance costs to the public 3 of knowledge. 4 system. 4 STAMP, Q.C.: 5 MR. WYNPERLE: 5 Now, one of the areas, Mr. Wynperle, that Q. 6 you spoke about was this issue of getting 6 Yes. A. 7 7 STAMP, Q.C.: your clients, others I guess, get their 8 8 Why would that happen when the Minister of clients out of the - what do you -Q. 9 9 Finance or whichever minister is responsible MR. WYNPERLE: 10 for it can apply a levy against the 10 Minor injury guidelines. insurance companies to recover the 11 11 STAMP, Q.C.: downloaded costs? 12 12 Minor injury guideline. And I understand O. MR. WYNPERLE: 13 your firm has published an article on that 13 14 Well, that's a great question and I suspect 14 very point. Α. MR. WYNPERLE: 15 that you would have to ask the governments 15 of the day why they would tolerate that. 16 16 Okay. It may be so. It may be so. 17 All I can really speak to is what the 17 STAMP, Q.C.: 18 Auditor General of Ontario has said, which 18 Q. Well, I'm looking at an article published by 19 is that the governments are not collecting 19 your firm April 3rd, 2018. So, it's just – 20 an amount of money in the levy which is 20 it's not very old. 21 commensurate with the cost on the system and 21 MR. WYNPERLE: 22 it's shortchanging what we call OHIP, the 22 A. Okay. 23 Ontario health area system, by hundreds of 23 STAMP, O.C.: 24 millions of dollars a year and it's a real 24 "There are three readily accessible methods Q. 25 problem that's being pointed out. But, no 25 for removing an injured person from the Page 266 Page 268 1 1 government has taken up the torch, so I MIG." 2 2 can't speak to that. MR. WYNPERLE: 3 STAMP, Q.C.: 3 Yes. A. 4 And can you speak to the fact that the levy 4 STAMP, O.C.: Q. 5 is placed in Newfoundland every year? It 5 Psychological or psychiatric impairment. 6 varies every year based on the calculations MR. WYNPERLE: 6 7 that are done by the appropriate officials? 7 Yes, related to the accident. A. 8 MR. WYNPERLE: 8 STAMP, Q.C.: 9 9 A. I don't want to make any comment about the 0. Chronic pain. levy in Newfoundland. I don't know anything 10 10 MR. WYNPERLE: about that. But what I do know is that -Yes. 11 11 A. again, just speaking about the Ontario 12 12 STAMP, Q.C.: system, that changes to the system have 13 13 Q. Pre-existing condition. And then you go on caused increasing downloading, not only by to explain what to do about having these 14 14 15 the way on the health care system, but on 15 issues canvassed and, I guess, pushed 16 the social services system and that that 16 forward so to try and make sure that a 17 will continue to be the case. And taxpayers client comes out. 17 18 ought to be aware of that risk and I MR. WYNPERLE: 18 19 certainly commend your legislature to 19 Right. So, in Ontario, what happens is if A. 20 protect taxpavers against that risk. And if you get to the end of the minor injury 20 they're doing that then that's great. guideline and the health care practitioner 21 21 STAMP, Q.C.: asks for a further extension of treatment. 22 22 23 23 the insurer can accept that or reject it and Q. And you have no reason to believe that in 24 Newfoundland it's not being done? 24 if they reject it, what's going to happen is

25

they're going to send the insured person to

Page 269 Page 271 1 medical assessment. Oftentimes the medical 1 about these changes. But, the changes have 2 2 assessment says they should be maintained been significant and to the benefit of 3 3 within the minor injury guideline. Then the insurance companies, absolutely to the 4 insured person has to dispute that if they 4 benefit of insurance companies and not one 5 want further treatment paid by the insurance 5 benefit has come to insured individuals and 6 company. Either that or they have to go 6 injured individuals in the last eight years 7 7 without treatment or they have to pay for it in the Province of Ontario. The system has 8 8 out of their own pocket because it's not gone out of whack because we are – like I 9 9 covered elsewhere. said, before we're on this carousel of every 10 STAMP, Q.C.: 10 couple of years there's a crisis and we're 11 Q. Or, as you say, they are determined to be 11 back to amending the legislation and then 12 outside the guideline? 12 there's another crisis and we're back to it (2:00 p.m.)13 again and in the meantime, nine million 13 14 MR. WYNPERLE: 14 motorists are not getting reduced premiums 15 Well, right. The insurance company has that 15 either. So, again, the money has to go A. option, but oftentimes what has to happen is 16 16 somewhere. 17 the insured person, through help by legal 17 STAMP, Q.C.: 18 counsel, has to mount medical evidence to 18 Q. Well, one of the things that we have to 19 prove that. And unfortunately, we've had 19 concern ourselves on where the money goes is 20 amendments to the process of how disputes 20 the kinds of costs that are lost costs in 21 work in Ontario. So that if an injured 21 the system; how much it costs to pay claims; 22 22 person has such a dispute with their how much it costs to manage those claims. 23 23 insurance company and is found to actually MR. WYNPERLE: 24 be properly outside the minor injury 24 Sure. A. 25 guideline and incurred cost, not just from a 25 STAMP, Q.C.: Page 272 Page 270 1 lawyer but for medical people to write 1 Q. All that's part of the process we have to 2 reports and so on and so forth, none of that 2 deal with 3 is recoverable in Ontario in the accident 3 MR. WYNPERLE: 4 benefits system any longer. Yes. 4 Α. 5 That is a further change that the 5 STAMP, Q.C.: 6 insurance industry really wanted. They were I want to refer you to another one of your 6 7 very unhappy with the previous dispute 7 publications, your firm's publications. 8 8 This is a publication that was March 14th, resolution system and they asked for changes 9 9 2018, "Don't Post and Plead", and in this and they received changes which have 10 essentially led us to a point where 10 publication, you talk about a Supreme Court insurance companies, even if they were wrong BC case in 2015 Tombasso and Holmes, and you 11 11 in the initial decision, do not have to pay point out in the publication that an 12 12 any contribution towards legal costs or argument had focused on the injuries 13 13 disbursements, which is very problematic for suffered by a young woman as a result of two 14 14 motor vehicle accidents, injuries that 15 injured people, a number of whom are not 15 16 working. 16 included depression, had left the claimant STAMP, Q.C.: 17 "scared to go outside" and in a state where 17 18 18 she had even "stopped seeing her friends". Let's just be clear though. Insurance Q. 19 companies don't write legislation, do they? 19 Then the defence, you say in the 20 MR. WYNPERLE: 20 publication, entered her Facebook page into 21 21 But the insurance – I can say with absolute evidence. 184 entries to be exact. Updated 22 certainty that the insurance industry 22 photographs, other posts showed her engaged 23 advocated very strongly for that last change 23 in activities that include snowboarding, 24 that I speak of with you and Justice 24 hiking, water tubing, partying with her friends. It didn't look like - to say what 25 Cunningham in a report certainly talked 25

Septer	September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review						
	Page 273		Page 275				
1	you say in this publication, "it sure didn't	1	piece is that the lesson your firm puts out				
2	look like she was suffering". When	2	to the public, to your clients I guess as				
3	addressing the Court, Justice Jenkins noted	3	well, the lesson for plaintiffs it says is				
4	that the statements by Ms. Tombasso are	4	not to tell the truth. Don't put the				
5	simply not true. As a result, the plaintiff	5	damaging evidence on the social media.				
6	received no damages. The judge also awarded		MR. WYNPERLE:				
7	special costs against the plaintiff for her	7	A. Facebook pictures can be misconstrued, just				
8	ongoing effort to deceive the court. But	8	as surveillance can be misconstrued.				
9	this is the part I find really interesting.	9	STAMP, Q.C.:				
10	MR. WYNPERLE:	10	7 \$				
1			Q. Well, Judge Jenkins didn't get confused by it.				
11	A. Okay.	11					
12	STAMP, Q.C.:	12	MR. WYNPERLE:				
13	Q. Your publication then goes on to say "the	13	A. Well, again, you're talking about a British				
14	lesson for plaintiffs, family and friends,	14	Columbia case, and like I said, I didn't				
15	is clear. During the course of personal	15	write that article.				
16	injury litigation, avoid posting pictures on	16	STAMP, Q.C.:				
17	social media." So, the lesson is not that	17	Q. I'm talking about your article.				
18	don't fabricate claims. Don't come to Court	18	KENNEDY, Q.C.:				
19	and tell lies. Don't post information on	19	Q. Perhaps the witness could be shown the				
20	social media. Because you go down a little	20	article? We have not been provided with				
21	further down and you say "by making social	21	that in advance.				
22	media posts, you are essentially providing	22	MR. WYNPERLE:				
23	opposing parties with access to evidence of	23	A. It's not an article authored by myself.				
24	your daily activity. It may contradict the	24	KENNEDY, Q.C.:				
25	plaintiff's own evidence." Now that, to me,	25	Q. If Mr. Stamp is going to make allegations				
25	Page 274		Page 276				
1	Mr. Wynperle, is a scandalous recommendation	1					
1 2	for a law firm to make.	1	like that against other lawyers, that's				
2		2 3	pretty serious stuff.				
3	MR. WYNPERLE:		STAMP, Q.C.:				
4	A. Yeah, I don't think that I wrote that	4	Q. Well, Mr. Wynperle's -				
5	article. I don't know where you got that	5	MR. WYNPERLE:				
6	from. But in any event, here's what I would	6	A. It's okay. It's not authored by me.				
7	say to you. Certainly if somebody is not	7	STAMP, Q.C.:				
8	telling the truth, then they should be dealt	8	Q firm posted it.				
9	with accordingly.	9	MR. WYNPERLE:				
10	STAMP, Q.C.:	10	A. It's not something authored by me in any				
11	Q. Sure.	11	event.				
12	MR. WYNPERLE:	12	STAMP, Q.C.:				
13	A. Absolutely. I don't have any issue with	13	Q. Wynperle Law.				
14	that, okay. I absolutely couldn't agree	14	MR. WYNPERLE:				
15	with you more. If a person is not telling	15	A. So, initially it was said to be authored by				
16	the truth to the court or to their doctors	16	me. It's not -				
17	or to their insurer, they should not be	17	MR. GITTENS:				
18	proper – they should not be compensated for	18	Q. Madam Chair, I would interrupt simply				
19	that mistruth.	19	because there are times when as lawyers we				
20	STAMP, Q.C.:	20	do despicable things because we feel we're				
21	Q. And we're in full agreement on that.	21	serving our client's interest. To suggest				
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22\end{vmatrix}$	MR. WYNPERLE:	21					
1			to Mr. Wynperle that he is somehow				
23	A. Okay.	23	responsible for an article that someone in				
24	STAMP, Q.C.:	24	his firm has posted and to suggest that he				
25	Q. But what I find, as I said, the troubling	25	or his firm are coaching people to lie when				

Page 277 Page 279 1 in fact all that is being said, from what 1 are interrupting each other. 2 2 the extraction that has been put before the MR. WYNPERLE: 3 Board, is that cautioning individuals who 3 Sorry. A. 4 are making claims that you should not post 4 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 5 anything on social media because it gives 5 And we do want to maintain a genuine Q. 6 the opposing party opportunities to 6 discussion of the issues, I think. It's the challenge you is a normal part of 7 7 mandate of the Board to do that 8 8 representing a client. CHAIR: 9 9 I can tell this body that in our firm, Q. And thank you, Mr. O'Flaherty. I'd like to 10 we make a commitment to the client at the 10 just take that just a little bit further and very start: these are things you should do. the issues have to stay germane to what the 11 11 12 These are things you shouldn't do. You Board is actually being charged to do. So, 12 should keep receipts for everything you I'd just caution on that piece as well. 13 13 spend. You should keep track of when you go 14 14 STAMP, Q.C.: 15 to psychotherapy or whatever it might be. 15 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. I just have one And you should not post anything on the last question for Mr. Wynperle. 16 16 17 media – on social media. Because we know 17 CHAIR: that these things can be taken and used 18 18 Q. Absolutely. 19 against a client. 19 STAMP, Q.C.: 20 To suggest that Mr. Wynperle is in 20 Am I correct in understanding on the bio O. 21 anyway supporting perjury or anything of 21 that's attached to the letter that you are 22 that sort is improper and I would ask that 22 the principal of Wynperle Law? 23 23 MR. WYNPERLE: it be stopped. 24 STAMP, Q.C.: 24 A. I am. 25 O. Madam Chair, I'm referring to publications 25 STAMP, Q.C.: Page 278 Page 280 1 by Wynperle Law posted, as I said, on March 1 Q. That's what it says. I don't know if -2 14th and the other on April 3rd, both 2018. 2 MR. WYNPERLE: 3 I'll be happy to provide Mr. Wynperle with 3 I am. A. 4 4 STAMP, O.C.: copies. 5 MR. WYNPERLE: 5 Okay. So, you are the Wynperle of Wynperle 6 You can. Again, they're not – they're Law? A. 6 7 things – if they're posted, you know, 7 MR. WYNPERLE: 8 they're not authored by me and I've There is no other. I don't think you'd find 9 explained to you, as I said, people who are 9 that name too often. not telling the truth should not be 10 10 STAMP, Q.C.: compensated. That is not the role of a Those are all my questions. Thank you, Mr. 11 11 lawyer to suggest otherwise. Wynperle. 12 12 MR. WYNPERLE: 13 STAMP, Q.C.: 13 14 Q. Can I just make sure, Mr. Wynperle -14 A. Thank you. 15 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: 15 CHAIR: 16 Q. So, Madam Chair -16 Q. Thank you, Mr. Stamp. Mr. Wadden. STAMP, O.C.: MR. WADDEN: 17 17 - you are the principal -Good morning, gentlemen. My name is Andrew 18 18 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.: Wadden. I'm counsel for the Consumer 19 19 20 Just one second, Mr. Stamp. I'd just like 20 Advocate. Unfortunately he had to leave a to point out as hearing counsel that the 21 little earlier than I because we've gone 21 witness is not under cross-examination in an beyond our time today, but I do want to say 22 22 23 adversarial hearing and we're now starting 23 thank you very much for taking it upon 24 to disintegrate into a stage where we're not 24 yourselves to travel here. 25 getting a proper transcript because people 25 MR. WYNPERLE:

Septer	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 281		Page 283
1	A. Thank you for your indulgence.	1	that, but in terms of the claims process,
2	MR. WADDEN:	2	they would report to their insurance
3	Q. I think it's very good of you. I only have	3	company. They would get an application for
4	a couple of questions and the first one is	4	accident benefits, and I would say that even
5	just a quick point of clarification. You	5	before the accident benefits claims forms
6	referenced, Mr. Wynperle, a report from a	6	are completed, an insurance company will
7	David Marshall in Ontario. Was that some	7	usually agree to allow an injured person to
8	sort of review of the product in Ontario?	8	start the treatment under the Minor Injury
9	MR. WYNPERLE:	9	Guidelines. So, that treatment, as the
10	A. Yeah, so it was specifically meant to be a	10	witness said earlier today, that Minor
11	review of the accident benefits legislation	11	Injury Guideline treatment does happen
12	in Ontario. It did make some comments on	l	quickly usually if the person seeks out, you
13	tort reform as well, but it was largely	13	know, a chiropractor, massage, you know
14	authored for accident benefit amendments.	14	physiotherapy type treatment.
15	MR. WADDEN:	15	MR. WADDEN:
16	Q. Okay. And that's a recent report? We can	16	Q. Okay. And the MIG, the Minor Injury
17	access that publicly online, I suppose?	17	Guidelines relate solely to accident
18	MR. WYNPERLE:	18	benefits and availing of those benefits?
19	A. Yes.	19	Correct?
20	MR. WADDEN:	20	MR. WYNPERLE:
21	Q. If you don't mind, let's just get back to	21	A. Yes. Sorry if that wasn't clear. I
22	basics here. Because I will admit to you,	22	apologize.
23	quite frankly, that I'm not entirely	23	MR. WADDEN:
24	educated in the Ontario system. I know the		Q. No, no, that's fine. Thank you.
25	accident benefit system is quite a different	25	MR. WYNPERLE:
1	Page 282	1	Page 284
1	animal than the one we have here.		A. Yes.
$\frac{2}{2}$	MR. WYNPERLE: A. Yes.	2	MR. WADDEN:
3 4	A. Yes. MR. WADDEN:	3 4	Q. Now, here, as I'm sure you know, aside from
5		5	availing of accident benefits, Section B benefits, people also sue for pain and
1	Q. So, let's – to put everything in context for the Board, the participants and any member	l .	suffering, loss of income, et cetera.
6 7	of the public who may want to review what's	6 7	MR. WYNPERLE:
8	gone on here during these hearings, let's	8	A. Right.
9	just look at what happens when you have an	9	MR. WADDEN:
10	accident in Ontario.	10	Q. Is that option not available or is available
11	MR. WYNPERLE:	11	to a much more limited extent in Ontario?
12	A. Yes.	12	Explain that.
13	MR. WADDEN:	13	MR. WYNPERLE:
14	Q. So, you know, someone is rear-ended.	14	A. Must more limited extent. So, it depends on
15	There's no question of liability.	15	your situation that you found yourself in
16	MR. WYNPERLE:	16	before the accident, but again, pain and
17	A. Yes.	17	suffering damages and cost of care damages,
18	MR. WADDEN:	18	health care cost of care are only payable if
19	Q. What do they do then? I know what they do	19	the injuries related to the accident are
20	here. What happens in Ontario?	20	both serious and permanent. And so, that's
21	MR. WYNPERLE:	21	the restriction, and then assuming that you
22	A. They would hopefully call their insurance	22	meet that criteria, you can make the claims,
23	company and report the accident shortly	23	but on pain and suffering damages, there is
24	after the incident. You know, obviously	24	an additional deductible which now stands at
25	they might seek medical treatment before	25	\$38,000. It's indexed to inflation. So,
	/		+,

2017 Automobile Insurance Review

z cptoi	mber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 285		Page 287
1	any claim for pain and suffering under	1	A. Yes.
2	\$125,000 is subject to that deductible. In	2	MR. WADDEN:
3	fairness people with, for example, a spinal	3	Q. In terms of accident benefits?
4	cord injury would not be subject to that	4	MR. WYNPERLE:
5	same deductible.	5	A. Yes.
6	MR. WADDEN:	6	MR. WADDEN:
7	Q. Right.	7	Q. These other reforms I suppose in terms of
8	MR. WYNPERLE:	8	the deductible, did those also come into
9	A. So, it vanishes after \$125,000, but anyone	9	effect in 2010?
10	with chronic pain essentially would be	10	(2:15 p.m.)
11	captured within that—with that 38-thousand-		MR. WYNPERLE:
12	dollar deductible.	12	A. Well, the deductible has been this every-
13	MR. WADDEN:	13	increasing sort of snowball rolling down the
14	Q. Okay. So, is it fair to say then for the	14	hill. It started originally in 1994 at
15	most part in Ontario, people with soft-	15	\$10,000 and then in '96 it was changed to
16	tissue injuries end up not claiming for or	16	15, and then I'm going to say in 2003 it
		I	
17	do not get anything for pain and suffering? MR. WYNPERLE:	17	became 30, and now in the last two years
18		18	it's on this indexation. So, again, it's at
19	A. Well, they get a limited recovery often	19	38 this year, and next year it will probably
20	times, and as the deductible goes up each	20	be 40 or something like that. You know, and
21	year, more and more people are excluded. I	21	so we go.
22	said earlier to the Board, I really think	22	MR. WADDEN:
23	that senior citizens have beenyou know,	23	Q. Okay. So, the deductible has steadily
24	somebody used the words "fall through the	24	increased over the –
25	cracks" earlier today. Well, senior	25	MR. WYNPERLE:
	Page 286		Page 288
1	citizens as a group have fallen through the	1	A. Oh, it is increasing, yes.
2	cracks in a big way in the Ontario system	2	MR. WADDEN:
3	because if you do not—if you have chronic	3	Q. Okay. We don't have the data in front of us
4	pain as a senior citizen related to an	4	to speak to this specifically, but can you
5	accident, and maybe your pain and suffering		
6		5	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto
	damages are worth \$75,000 or \$85,000 on a	5 6	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on
7	damages are worth \$75,000 or \$85,000 on a full value assessment, I have to tell you		tell me anecdotally in terms of auto
7 8	~	6	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on
	full value assessment, I have to tell you	6 7 8 9	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story?
8	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is	6 7 8 9	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained?
8 9	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance	6 7 8 9	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story?
8 9 10	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is	6 7 8 9 10	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE:
8 9 10 11	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm	6 7 8 9 10 11	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt
8 9 10 11 12	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly,
8 9 10 11 12 13	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're prepared to take, and you know, that's my	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy that the government made in Ontario. And so, a lot of cuts which have occurred
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're prepared to take, and you know, that's my experience. MR. WADDEN:	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy that the government made in Ontario. And so, a lot of cuts which have occurred recently have been towards achieving that
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're prepared to take, and you know, that's my experience. MR. WADDEN: Q. I think you indicated the Minor Injury	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy that the government made in Ontario. And so, a lot of cuts which have occurred recently have been towards achieving that goal for motorists in Ontario. And
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're prepared to take, and you know, that's my experience. MR. WADDEN:	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy that the government made in Ontario. And so, a lot of cuts which have occurred recently have been towards achieving that
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	full value assessment, I have to tell you that \$38,000 of that is coming right off the top and going back to the at-fault insurance company because that's the way the system is run in Ontario. And that often times, I'm telling them that their award gets cut in half for that very reason. So, it's very difficult. And as you can imagine, the system of litigation is expensive. So, you know, if the damages aren't of a reasonable value, they might not seek to claim anything because it might not be a risk they're prepared to take, and you know, that's my experience. MR. WADDEN: Q. I think you indicated the Minor Injury Guidelines came into effect September of	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	tell me anecdotally in terms of auto premiums in Ontario, what's been going on the past 10 to 15 years? Have they gone up? Have they gone down? Have they maintained? What's the story? MR. WYNPERLE: A. Well, over 10 or 15 years there's no doubt auto premiums have gone up significantly, but you know, since some of these reforms in two thousand and—I think starting in 2013 the government went on a real campaign of trying to reduce premiums. There was a goal set of reducing premiums by 15 percent. It was a well-recognized statement of policy that the government made in Ontario. And so, a lot of cuts which have occurred recently have been towards achieving that goal for motorists in Ontario. And initially there were some decreases in

September 12, 2018 2017 Automobile Insurance Review

Septer	11001 12, 2018		201 / Automobile insurance Review
	Page 289		Page 291
1	percent premium increase. I believe Sonnet	1	crystalize that definition when it comes to
2	Insurance which is an online insurer that is	2	senior citizens. So, again senior citizens
3	part of Economical Group got a ten percent	3	because they weren't working before the
4	increase. And these are significant	4	accident, it's much harder to have a clear
5	insurers in the province of Ontario. These	5	yes, you would qualify, or no, you wouldn't.
6	are not—you know, Intact is probably the	6	It's much greyer, no pun intended, in the
7	biggest insurance company in the Province of	7	case of senior citizens as to whether they
8	Ontario. So, would say that once again	8	will get over that serious and permanent
9	despite these cuts, we're seeing this trend	9	threshold, much more difficult to assess as
10	back to rising premiums, and you know, it's	10	lawyers, and that doubt creates problems. I
11	a problem. And I think already what that's	11	think it's almost a sense of coercion I
12	caused is that, you know, many in the	12	think for older people because they don't
13	insurance industry are already calling, you	13	like to take risk. It's not something that
14	know, upon a new government who has just	14	they are comfortable generally doing.
15	taken over in the summer to make further	15	They're at a point in their life when
16	cuts, probably to the accident benefit	16	they're on a fixed income and it's just—it's
17	system in order to achieve more savings.	17	not something that they like doing. And so,
18	MR. WADDEN:	18	if the lawyer is uncertain about whether
19	Q. The definition that's used in terms of how	19	they'll meet the definition, and get any
20	it's determined how people are able to	20	pain and suffering damages, then seniors
21	achieve pain and suffering awards, you know,	21	tend to be—tend to shy away from the system,
22	in terms of somebody not being subject to	22	and that happens a lot I think.
23	that 38-thousand-dollar deductible, has that	23	MR. WADDEN:
24	definition changed much over the years? Has	24	Q. Thank you. Madam Chair, I don't have any
25	it been edited?	25	more questions. That's fine.
	Page 290		Page 292
1	MR. WYNPERLE:	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
1		1	

2 The application of—if you're saying the 3 threshold, what we call the threshold

4 definition –

- 5 MR. WADDEN:
- 6 Q. Yes, thank you.
- 7 MR. WYNPERLE:
- which is the definition which requires the injury to be serious and permanent –
- 10 MR. WADDEN:
- 0. Yes. 11

25

12 MR. WYNPERLE:

13 Α. - the definition has changed over the years 14 actually. And the government, and I'm 15 trying to remember what year it was now, 16 brought in a regulation. I believe it was 17 after 2010, but I could stand to be 18 corrected on that, brought in a regulation 19 clarifying, if I can use that term, this 20 issue of serious and permanent. So, it gave 21 further definition to what is considered 22 serious. And again, if you're—if you were 23 working before the accident and you're not 24 after, that would generally be considered

serious, but it's much harder to, you know,

2 0. Madam, there is one point I'd like to 3 clarify, Madam Chair.

CHAIR: 4

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

- 5 Q. Yes, sure, absolutely.
- 6 KENNEDY, Q.C.:
 - Mr. Wynperle, while Mr. Stamp was Q. questioning you on that article, you started to interject and say it's not what it seemed or something like that, but I just want to read you the quote he put to you, and then read a little bit further down. What he put to you was the quote, "The lesson for plaintiffs, family and friends is clear. During the course of personal injury litigation, avoid posting pictures on social media." The concluding paragraph in the article states, "Smiling faces on a screen, contradicting updates, activities or locations that raise questions; if you post on social media, you run the risk of misinterpretation because these pictures may portray a desired appearance or a snapshot in time. Social media posts are a variable and allow for a wide margin for

Septem	nber 12, 2018		2017 Automobile Insurance Review
	Page 293		Page 295
1	interpretation. This can be detrimental to	1	Q. Safe travels home.
2	your personal injury claim, making it more	2	O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.:
3	difficult or even impossible to reverse what	3	Q. Thank you.
4	now seems obvious to the viewer." Could you	4	CHAIR:
5	explain to the Board, please, what you meant	5	Q. Thank you.
6	by those comments, what Mr. Stamp put to you	1	KENNEDY, Q.C.:
7	and what I just read to you?	7	Q. Yes, I would also like to thank you, Madam
8	MR. WYNPERLE:	8	Chair and members of the Board indulging us
9	A. People who have psychological injuries are	9	here today. So, thank you, and all the
10	put under a tremendous amount of scrutiny	10	counsel, thank you.
11	because their injuries are very hard to see,	11	CHAIR:
12	and it's—you know, most of my clients, I	12	Q. We're on again for 9:00 a.m. tomorrow and
13	hope, try to get on with their life as best	13	Dr. Lazar. We'll see you in the morning.
14	they can, which means interacting with their	14	Thank you.
15	families for example, whether it's at family	15	Upon conclusion at 2:25 p.m.
16	occasions or whether it's going, you know,	16	•
17	visiting. In my area, Niagara Falls would	17	
18	be a popular tourist site close to home, and	18	
19	a smiling picture taken of someone who is	19	
20	claiming to be depressed or anxious	20	
21	certainly can be misinterpreted and can be	21	
22	misused in very unfortunate ways despite the	22	
23	fact that on all other information available	23	
24	the person is truly suffering and is truly	24	
25	having those functional restrictions that	25	
	Page 294		Page 296
1	your earlier witness today talked about.		CERTIFICATE
2	And it's just not right that that occur.		ODKIH IOKIL
3	And so, I don't encourage social media. To	1 1	ady Moss, hereby certify that the foregoing is a
4	be honest with you as a personal point I		and correct transcript in the matter of the 2017
5	don't. I don't really engage in personal		omobile Insurance Review heard before the Board of
6	media. It's not wise that you give people	1	nmissioners of Public Utilities 120 Torbay Road

7 misimpressions. It happens all the time. I see it with my kids quite frankly, when they

9 use social media. It happens all the time. 10 People misinterpret that information, and in

11 the context of a lawsuit, where you are 12 under a magnifying glass, and you are, as an 13 injured person under a magnifying glass,

that is very hard to deal with. That's it. 14 15

KENNEDY, Q.C.:

16 Q. That would be the only point I'd like to 17 clarify.

18 CHAIR:

21

19 Q. Thank you, Mr. Kennedy. Any questions? And 20 we have no questions from the Panel. Thank you, gentlemen. Have a safe –

22 O'FLAHERTY, Q.C.:

23 Thank you for your time and thank you for 24 staying extra-long and helping us out.

25 CHAIR:

Commissioners of Public Utilities, 120 Torbay Road, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador and was transcribed by me to the best of my ability by means of a sound apparatus.

Dated at St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador this 12th day of September, 2018

Judy Moss

Α **AB -** 7:12, 7:24 **Abilities - 218:14**, 218:17, 218:24 **Ability -** 29:7, 29:22, 30:2, 30:7, 30:15, 31:5, 39:14, 40:20, 138:3, 138:5, 140:5, 141:19, 163:15, 177:24, 178:11, 224:9 Able - 2:20, 8:24, 8:25, 11:2, 15:18, 43:12, 80:4, 138:9, 138:25, 140:8, 140:11, 142:14, 143:18, 151:8, 153:3, 157:3, 165:10, 165:22, 188:1, 192:15, 198:19, 207:14, 209:12, 223:7, 235:23, 289:20 **Aboard - 177:19 Abreast - 38:1 Absence - 217:15 Absolute -** 34:11, 270:21 Academic - 74:1 Accept - 77:4, 77:10, 77:16, 79:7, 112:19, 126:11, 217:1, 268:23 Accepted - 205:2 Accepting - 156:20 Access - 43:19, 47:2, 100:24, 144:14, 192:4, 192:10, 192:12, 193:8, 248:9, 273:23, 281:17 Accessible - 164:2 2, 267:24 Accessing - 102:1 1, 102:12, 199:4 Accidents - 41:4, 59:2, 60:6, 60:8, 77:6, 77:12, 89:10, 91:22, 171:7, 171:22, 172:7, 182:14, 202:18, 203:9, 252:25, 272:15 According - 59:22, 97:8, 250:14 Accordingly - 274:

Account - 30:3

43:7, 247:3

Accountability - 2

Accuracy - 95:24 **Accurate -** 71:17, 94:1, 113:5, 155:16 Accustomed - 11:1 5 Achievable - 137:6 Achieve - 145:23, 289:17, 289:21 Achieved - 146:14, 256:5 Achievement - 216 :18 Achieving - 206:5, 288:21 Acknowledge - 96: 12 Acknowledges - 8 6:5, 86:8 Acknowledging - 1 57:9 Across - 5:23, 6:23, 6:24, 7:13, 42:5, 139:4, 167:23, 221:9, 248:3, 263:12, 263:16 Acted - 4:22 Acting - 120:10 **Active -** 90:9 Actively - 17:22 Activities - 10:25, 31:19, 34:22, 34:25, 35:7, 35:12, 35:13, 78:8, 79:17, 80:23, 85:20, 103:8, 140:5, 140:10, 150:17, 219:6, 219:18, 220:1, 222:9, 272:23, 292:19 Activity - 35:7, 102:17, 138:6, 219:8, 273:24 Actual - 14:2, 71:25, 132:18 **Actuarial - 153:13**, 262:5, 262:6, 262:10 **Actuaries - 122:15 Actuary - 112:7**, 260:16, 261:9, 262:4 Acupuncture - 207 :16, 208:23 Acupuncturist - 20 8:22 Acute - 37:9, 37:17 **Add -** 129:12, 130:10, 238:15, 248:1, 248:13, 254:22, 255:21,

255:24, 259:5 Addiction - 220:14 Addition - 32:7. 44:2 Address - 29:10, 29:14, 119:1, 119:6, 119:9 Addressed - 91:1, 91:4, 209:20 Addressing - 92:5, 273:3 Adjective - 27:6 Adjudicate - 52:5 Adjudicates - 11:9 Adjudicating - 5:1 Adjudication - 6:9, 11:10 Adjuster - 45:18, 53:7, 53:8, 94:22, 94:23, 95:2, 95:16, 104:12, 107:22, 173:5, 186:24. 192:24 Adjusters - 5:14. 5:15, 5:24, 6:1, 6:18, 7:5, 7:12, 7:15, 7:20, 7:24, 7:25, 8:2, 41:16, 42:18, 92:24, 96:1, 96:13, 108:10, 109:24, 110:1, 166:25, 184:7, 186:1 Adjuster's - 6:6 Adjustment - 7:18 Admit - 251:8, 281:22 **Adopt -** 11:15, 37:8 **Adopted - 139:14 Adopting - 128:18 ADP -** 3:14, 3:20 **Advance - 22:3**, 275:21 Advanced - 261:9 Advantage - 50:22 Adversarial - 45:25 , 107:1, 112:5, 188:23, 278:23 Advice - 109:21, 198:18 **Advise - 111:6 Advising - 104:23** Advocacy - 158:3 Advocate - 183:12, 183:16, 228:20, 280:20 Advocated - 270:2 Affairs - 229:25, 230:8, 244:7

Affect - 31:7. 174:2, 177:24 Affected - 165:25, 176:4, 176:9, 177:8, 177:22, 178:10, 237:13, 237:18, 237:23, 237:24 Affects - 138:3, 178:11 **Afraid -** 60:17, 101:3 **Aftermath - 240:13 Afternoon - 183:14** , 227:16, 227:21, 227:25 **Against - 14:6**, 36:15, 45:13, 106:23, 107:16, 169:3, 265:10, 266:20, 273:7, 276:1, 277:19 Aggravation - 148: **Aging -** 173:24 Agree - 62:22, 63:2, 85:10, 85:24, 86:18, 87:2, 87:24, 88:12, 90:2, 110:25, 146:22, 166:9, 166:12, 167:10, 173:12, 174:2, 176:3, 176:8, 274:14, 283:7 Agreeing - 1:23, 106:11 Agreement - 274:2 Ahead - 180:23, 189:25, 190:2, 190:3, 231:8, 239:24 Ahmadi - 222:12 **Alberta -** 7:13, 13:7, 26:15, 32:17, 48:5, 50:3, 54:1, 54:3, 64:5, 64:21, 64:24, 68:8, 73:18, 73:24, 74:21, 75:10, 75:14, 84:6, 132:19, 138:16, 186:10, 186:19, 190:5, 191:23, 192:1, 192:18, 201:1, 204:8, 206:12, 207:4. 207:10 **Align -** 10:17 Allegations - 275:2 Allen - 112:9,

229:22, 230:15 **Allow -** 31:21, 37:6, 141:9, 257:8, 283:7, 292:25 Allowable - 256:1 Allowed - 74:23, 91:2, 136:14, 250:3 **Allowing -** 25:14, 165:9 Allows - 37:1, 141:3 **Allstate -** 67:4. 222:12 **Alone -** 14:14, 174:11, 242:5, 249:14 Alright - 119:2, 124:11, 129:18, 132:3 **ALS -** 35:25 Alternative - 26:4, 220:25 **Amanda -** 65:3 Ambiguities - 214: Ambiguity - 210:7, 210:18 Amend - 234:12, 234:15, 246:9 **Amending -** 231:13 , 234:21, 271:11 Amendment - 246: Amendments - 24 6:7, 269:20, 281:14 Among - 24:2, 67:13, 106:24 **Amongst -** 227:19, 228:24 Amount - 56:12, 99:11, 99:12, 99:22, 120:4, 141:14, 149:16, 169:4, 169:5, 182:9, 246:12, 265:20, 293:10 **Amounts** - 43:13, 97:23, 98:4, 172:15 Amputation - 30:5, 30:8 **Analysis - 101:24**, 142:23, 153:13, 155:23, 249:5, 250:6, 250:11 **Anatomy -** 78:17, 224:8 And/Or - 64:5, 74:20, 75:17, 104:4 Andrew - 183:15, 280:18 Anecdotally - 187:

24, 221:9, 288:5 **Angry -** 45:19 **Animal - 282:1** Anticipated - 150:1 **Anxiety -** 28:10, 90:1, 106:24, 129:10, 131:8, 132:16 **Anxious - 293:20 Anyhow -** 122:9 Anyway - 20:9, 46:12, 277:21 **Apologies -** 183:10 Apologize - 3:2, 116:11, 145:14, 283:22 Apparently - 23:17 , 23:19, 134:5, 136:3 Appear - 24:11, 83:11, 87:22, 223:25, 234:25, 256:19 Appearance - 292: 23 Appeared - 263:1 Appearing - 55:16 Appears - 41:18, 149:7, 151:12, 195:17 Applicable - 139:9 Application - 283:3 , 290:2 **Applied - 142:8**, 216:6 **Applies -** 137:16, 170:3 Apply - 134:5, 136:9, 168:4, 265:10 Appointed - 69:22, 72:15 Appointment - 5:9 Appreciate - 158:1 8, 183:17 Appreciated - 118: 3, 145:8 Approach - 5:11, 20:20, 31:10, 32:5, 33:2, 187:4, 187:5 Approached - 5:7, 16:4 Appropriate - 42:1 7, 77:17, 85:15, 110:2. 110:16. 141:15, 219:22, 222:20, 222:25, 266:7 Approval - 95:8

Approvals - 42:23,

264:12

181:1 Approve - 42:20, 95:3, 186:24, 206:6 **Approved -** 51:6, 95:18, 150:9, 200:9 Approves - 53:8 Approximately - 9 April - 96:23, 98:10, 262:25, 267:19, 278:2 **APTLA - 257:20**, 259:15 Arbitration - 222:1 **Area -** 4:1, 12:18, 13:12, 203:5, 223:5, 265:23, 267:2, 293:17 Areas - 15:23, 17:8, 83:12, 160:12, 210:21, 267:5 Aren't - 29:11, 32:1, 43:11, 135:21, 154:9, 199:17, 200:3, 206:9, 286:16 Argue - 116:14, 168:19, 168:21, 179:4 **Arguing - 181:8 Argument - 142:6**, 142:7, 178:22, 272:13 Arguments - 212:2 **Arise -** 15:10 Arm - 11:5, 130:1, 132:16, 176:13 Arrangement - 8:6, 49:14, 50:14 Arse - 173:9, 173:14 Art - 138:21 Article - 37:19, 267:13, 267:18, 274:5, 275:15, 275:17, 275:20, 275:23, 276:23, 292:8, 292:18 Articles - 66:24 **Aspect -** 67:20 **Aspects - 15:22** Asserting - 262:16 Assess - 114:18. 141:19, 209:12, 210:14, 233:21, 291:9 Assessing - 215:4,

Assessment - 31:1 4, 51:15, 62:22, 120:21, 269:1, 269:2, 286:7 **Assign -** 141:12 **Assigned - 138:14** Assist - 6:10, 69:24, 151:10 Assistance - 54:21 **Assisting - 155:20** Associated - 27:1, 27:17, 28:4, 29:3, 34:6, 84:8, 85:17, 85:18, 87:10, 88:5, 127:23, 128:25, 130:7, 132:12, 132:13, 132:14, 133:8 Associates - 73:25 Association - 74:3, 74:5, 74:7, 74:8, 75:9, 75:10, 76:20, 83:24, 84:12, 136:18, 158:1, 174:14, 185:10, 185:11, 186:23, 227:14, 229:22, 229:24, 230:9, 230:12, 230:19, 230:22, 244:13, 256:17, 262:1, 263:3 Associations - 9:1 1, 48:11, 75:1, 75:7, 121:17, 165:17, 185:14 Association's - 13 4:10 Assumption - 172: Assurance - 154:1 **Assure - 158:19** Atlantic - 7:14, 13:7, 17:8 Attached - 243:13, 279:21 Attempting - 6:12 Attending - 2:24, 40:1 Attention - 50:8, 164:20, 222:8, 244:18 Attest - 103:4 **Audited -** 246:15, 257:7 Auditor - 236:19, 237:2, 255:7, 265:18 Australian - 103:1,

275:23, 276:6, 276:10, 276:15, 278:8, 281:14 **Authority -** 112:23, 114:9 Authorizer - 3:14, 3:20 Auto - 5:2, 8:15, 10:5, 10:6, 11:5, 12:15, 13:12, 25:18, 47:14, 67:3, 72:6, 73:17, 98:12, 153:10, 185:16, 200:22, 201:2, 201:20, 202:16, 216:13, 219:12, 231:13, 235:21, 236:16, 236:20, 236:23, 237:8, 239:5, 240:8, 240:9, 241:9, 242:10, 246:1, 247:5, 247:13, 248:7, 249:7, 249:13, 249:14, 256:23, 288:5, 288:12 Automobile - 67:1 3, 162:18, 177:17, 203:9, 250:23 Automobiles - 96: 25 Avail - 188:1, 205:22, 213:4 Available - 4:8, 100:18, 182:17, 226:8, 248:17, 248:18, 257:11, 284:10, 293:23 **Availing - 283:18**, 284:4 **Average - 98:17**, 98:20, 99:9, 101:10, 190:14, 250:8 **Avoid -** 26:3, 35:12, 80:22, 115:3, 115:15, 115:24, 273:16, 292:16 Avoiding - 78:7, 79:17 Award - 58:5, 58:9, 58:11, 148:7, 148:9, 217:14, 286:12 **Awarded - 273:6** Awards - 43:8, 102:13, 146:1, 149:21, 171:23, 289:21 Aware - 56:6, 56:8,

Authored - 67:1.

96:5, 104:5, 104:11, 108:5, 108:10, 108:17, 108:22, 109:4, 111:13, 111:17, 117:3, 117:9, 156:6, 266:18 Awkward - 44:13, 58:10 В Baby - 30:6, 30:9, 124:6 Background - 119:

7, 124:12, 132:4, 148:19, 149:7, 155:20, 230:2, 231:4, 243:12, 248:13 Backtrack - 200:1 Backwards - 173:9 , 173:14 **Badly - 41:6 Bag -** 13:21 **Bags -** 177:18, 177:20 **Balance -** 161:25, 231:20 **Balances - 174:16** Ballerina - 30:10 **Bar -** 230:16 **Barely - 241:6** Based - 16:10, 26:6, 29:12, 30:22, 31:12, 31:25, 35:17, 36:4, 39:1, 42:7, 44:7, 47:24, 52:5, 56:20, 64:5, 74:20, 75:17, 83:16, 92:15, 113:24, 114:23, 116:14, 119:14, 133:19, 138:4, 139:12, 140:1, 140:12, 148:22, 152:6, 152:20, 153:4, 155:5, 166:18, 174:10, 179:22, 181:13, 192:5, 225:20, 250:10, 261:5, 263:4, 266:6 **Basics - 281:22** Basing - 125:14, 140:3, 152:5 Basis - 24:10, 27:5, 27:13, 32:15, 105:17, 144:15, 144:16, 152:12, 163:24, 234:8, 248:2, 263:25

216:24

Basket - 125:24 Bathwater - 124:5 **Batman - 184:22 Battle - 170:9 Bay -** 12:17 **BC - 272:11** Bear - 178:18 **Became -** 2:18, 5:18, 287:17 **Become - 27:13**, 34:24, 40:21, 91:14, 164:22, 178:22, 179:3, 209:6, 247:14 Becomes - 46:25, 178:21, 189:11, 200:24, 201:2, 205:21 Behaviour - 166:24 . 189:10 **Behind - 26:5 Believes -** 157:17 **Below - 256:6** Bench - 158:20 Benchmark - 250:2 , 250:9, 250:15 Beneficial - 44:23 Benefit - 7:25, 37:4, 68:8, 117:1, 163:22, 197:2, 201:21, 234:24, 235:4, 235:5, 235:7, 241:20, 271:2, 271:4, 271:5, 281:14, 281:25, 289:16 Bet - 38:20, 169:4 **Big -** 125:18, 169:8, 253:25, 286:2 **Biggest -** 45:16, 148:15, 240:14, 289:7 **Billed - 99:6** Billion - 235:21, 237:3, 249:8, 249:13, 253:15 **Bingo - 178:2 Bio -** 279:20 Biopsychosocial -30:21, 31:10 Bit - 41:14, 41:25, 72:11, 86:7, 87:6, 92:12, 146:12, 220:10, 225:17, 231:11, 279:10, 292:12 **Bits** - 8:9 **Black - 10:10** Blanket - 176:7, 176:21

Blossom - 91:2 **Blown -** 91:3 Blue - 201:11, 202:2, 202:4 **Board -** 2:14, 2:16, 15:17, 17:24, 18:10, 22:24, 23:10, 46:12, 76:21, 116:3, 116:8, 122:14, 131:13, 132:24, 137:23, 139:7, 142:20, 152:25, 155:2, 155:24, 157:1, 157:11, 157:25, 158:2, 162:6, 167:23, 213:23, 222:16, 225:17, 225:25, 229:20, 230:23, 238:20, 239:17, 239:21, 243:14, 262:18, 277:3, 279:7, 279:12, 282:6, 285:22, 293:5, 295:8 **Boarded - 177:19 Bodily -** 9:3, 44:6, 44:12, 44:18, 44:24, 98:5, 258:2, 261:22 Body - 90:10, 92:4, 224:7, 277:9 **Boils - 161:17** Bone - 87:8, 89:25 Bones - 89:23 Borne - 258:7, 258:15 **Borrowed - 126:16** Boston - 136:17 Both - 10:13, 10:15, 20:19, 151:23, 160:7, 161:5, 188:17, 219:12, 224:24, 229:25, 234:20, 258:5, 278:2, 284:20 Bottle - 151:3, 151:5 Bottom - 73:8, 86:4, 128:9, 222:10 **Box -** 177:13, 177:14 **Brain -** 7:8, 28:9, 118:2. 129:8 **Break -** 55:7. 118:7, 118:15, 183:19, 226:2,

227:9, 228:10,

228:13, 228:17,

248:6 **Brief - 245:25 Brings - 116:8**, 144:20 **British -** 275:13 **Broad -** 85:19 **Broke - 176:11 Broken -** 89:23, 89:25 Brought - 2:2, 25:4, 66:22, 76:7, 115:21, 232:4, 238:21, 240:2, 242:15, 242:24, 244:18, 252:23, 254:9, 254:12, 254:18, 290:16, 290:18 **Browne - 183:17**, 183:25, 215:12, 215:15, 215:20, 216:9, 217:19, 220:4, 221:5, 222:6, 222:23, 223:8 Brunswick - 49:12, 53:13, 64:6, 64:17, 64:23, 69:23, 73:19, 74:21, 75:15, 84:6, 128:3 **Building - 90:10 Bullet - 73:8 Bulletin -** 48:18 **Bulletins - 48:17**, 186:7 **Bunch - 126:4**, 129:12 **Burden -** 40:15, 237:6 Bureau - 67:11, 72:14, 238:25, 240:7, 243:15, 244:1 **Bureaucracy - 50:** 23 **BURRY - 159:10**, 159:23, 160:19, 160:23, 161:6, 162:4, 162:10, 162:15, 163:2, 163:7, 163:19, 164:23, 165:7, 166:2 Business - 3:24, 210:11, 229:1, 248:7 Businesses - 166: 21 **Busy - 256:18** Buy - 47:5, 124:25, 167:16

Buying - 221:24 С Calculation - 250:1 Calculations - 175: 19, 266:6 Call - 1:13, 26:25, 28:4, 48:12, 49:21, 49:25, 50:13, 55:19, 70:8, 91:10, 126:24, 171:2, 186:14, 186:22, 188:11, 188:14, 192:25, 193:16, 209:18, 223:22, 223:24, 265:22, 282:22, 290:3 Called - 3:6, 3:24, 11:5, 27:22, 35:3, 69:16, 105:15, 126:19, 145:17, 168:25, 175:3, 194:18, 211:11, 211:22, 230:16, 233:6, 242:9 Calling - 289:13 Calls - 107:3, 175:5 Campaign - 54:17, 55:17, 244:21, 288:15 Campaign's - 22:6 **Camps - 10:15** Canada - 5:23, 7:13, 46:14, 67:12, 72:14, 115:3, 115:15, 139:4, 238:25, 243:15, 244:1, 247:5 Canada's - 33:3, 33:7 Canadian - 11:22, 26:24, 32:16, 35:2, 157:25, 164:10, 220:21 Canadians - 256:2 Canned - 251:21 Can't - 9:19, 34:11, 66:18, 81:8, 81:17, 83:6, 83:20, 83:21, 97:12, 99:19, 100:3, 100:14, 101:24, 124:5, 126:3, 142:17, 157:18, 162:23, 164:7, 172:2, 172:20, 174:9, 178:22, 189:5, 191:2, 209:15, 217:11, 218:8,

218:23, 219:9, 226:3, 227:20, 227:21, 266:2 Canvass - 227:19, 228:24 Canvassed - 268:1 Capped - 57:2, 57:6, 58:11, 136:16, 142:10, 159:15, 159:21, 161:3, 238:6 **Capping - 58:16** Caps - 64:18, 139:3 **Captured - 285:11 Captures - 27:15**, 28:22, 130:16 Car - 47:12, 177:21, 193:11, 193:13, 247:13 Card - 236:6 Cardiac - 12:2. 12:23 Career - 2:10, 30:9 **Carefully -** 139:15, 160:17 Carousel - 235:13, 246:7, 271:9 Carried - 121:23, 218:25 Carrier - 202:23 **Carry -** 8:20, 140:9, 247:12 Carrying - 120:8, 123:9, 141:25, 142:2 Case - 4:21, 5:6, 53:3, 60:10, 81:18, 83:6, 83:21, 97:12, 106:16, 122:25, 123:12, 125:24, 160:2, 177:6, 177:16, 200:3, 200:5, 200:14, 222:16, 234:13, 238:1, 238:6, 240:25, 261:2, 266:17, 272:11, 275:14, 291:7 Caseload - 12:19, 12:24 Cases - 58:11, 59:13, 61:20, 79:15, 80:25, 93:15. 93:17. 103:4, 124:4, 176:19, 189:5, 218:17, 221:21, 232:16 Casual - 187:7

Casualty - 239:1, 247:4 Catastrophic - 56: 23, 73:10 Catch - 168:25, 177:1 Categorize - 85:16 **Category - 144:22** Caught - 59:19, 60:14, 60:25, 133:9, 136:5, 222:7, 252:25 Caulfield - 32:12 Cause - 37:10, 136:2, 168:3, 201:16 Caused - 86:12, 137:20, 167:12, 167:24, 266:14, 289:12 Causes - 167:20 Causing - 136:3, 165:8, 221:17, 235:16 **Caution -** 161:9, 279:13 Cautioning - 277:3 **Centre - 2:17** Century - 66:20 **CEO - 241:3** Certain - 42:22, 48:18, 77:3, 78:2, 109:22, 165:2, 180:21, 198:22, 219:8 Certainly - 6:7. 10:15, 15:4, 22:6, 29:20, 76:10, 112:18, 134:23, 164:9, 166:20, 166:25, 188:20, 189:3, 206:11, 221:11, 221:20, 266:19, 270:25, 274:7, 293:21 **Certainty - 270:22** Certified - 230:17 Cetera - 75:1, 140:10, 164:17, 220:19, 284:6 Challenge - 65:7, 68:20, 68:25, 69:3, 158:22, 251:5, 277:7 Challenges - 10:2, 213:17 Challenging - 13:1 5, 66:9, 124:13 **Chance -** 142:15, 205:12 Change - 170:20,

192:8, 202:3, 236:6, 239:7, 240:22, 264:13, 270:5, 270:23 **Changed -** 5:17, 252:22, 264:8, 287:15, 289:24, 290:13 Changes - 115:23, 116:1, 237:13, 240:14, 240:18, 241:2, 247:23, 247:24, 254:4, 261:22, 264:1, 266:13, 270:8, 270:9, 271:1 Changing - 170:13, 231:20, 236:24 Characterization -263:21 Characterizing - 1 57:13 **Charged -** 279:12 **Charts - 21:19**, 21:21 Check - 95:23 Checked - 128:4, 147:15 **Child - 140:9 Children - 90:14**, 103:17 Chiropractic - 33:1 5, 41:8, 76:20, 77:4, 83:24, 84:12, 85:11, 99:2, 134:10, 134:13, 134:21, 185:10, 193:12 **Chiropractor -** 40: 7, 50:11, 104:10, 173:4, 175:17, 194:23, 195:7, 196:1, 198:6, 198:14, 199:22, 199:23, 283:13 **Chiropractors** - 92 :2, 106:14, 186:15, 186:18, 199:13, 199:19, 207:11, 208:13, 209:12, 219:2, 221:12 **Choice - 103:16** Chronic - 29:3, 29:4, 164:6, 164:14, 205:9, 268:9, 285:10, 286:3 Chronological - 14 0:12 Chronologically -136:10

CIHI - 11:24

Circulated - 1:8, 21:15 Circumstance - 14 :25 Circumstances - 7 5:2, 111:25, 143:12, 170:22 Cited - 130:24, 258:23 Citing - 128:21 Citizen - 286:4 **Citizens - 237:18**, 237:21, 285:23, 286:1, 291:2, 291:7 Civil - 230:18 Claim - 11:7, 41:18, 41:22, 44:7, 44:12, 44:18, 44:25, 45:13, 45:18, 47:11, 53:6, 61:15, 95:3, 97:21, 98:9, 100:10, 153:20, 190:10, 190:14, 195:13, 251:7, 285:1, 286:17, 293:2 **Claimant - 98:6**, 222:19, 272:16 **Claimants - 98:14**, 98:15, 98:19, 101:10, 117:4, 117:10, 117:15, 117:23 **Claimed - 250:22 Claiming - 250:25**, 285:16, 293:20 **Claims -** 6:11, 7:11, 7:21, 8:17, 11:5, 12:15, 15:14, 32:18, 61:21, 73:11, 190:5, 190:18, 237:14, 239:6, 241:1, 241:18, 242:1, 243:3, 248:10, 262:10, 271:21, 271:22, 273:18, 277:4, 283:1, 283:5, 284:22 Clarification - 183: 25, 212:18, 243:11, 281:5 **Clarify - 186:7**, 240:1, 292:3, 294:17 Clarifying - 290:19 **Clarity - 48:15** Classification - 30: 13, 30:17, 174:6, 224:13

96:4, 110:8, 140:19, 143:14, 175:14, 221:7, 234:11, 267:7, 267:8, 275:2, 293:12 Client's - 276:21 Clinic - 2:25, 50:15, 50:21, 193:12, 198:13, 198:20, 198:22, 198:24 **Clinical - 13:2,** 14:19, 37:2, 37:6 Clinically - 27:17, 84:8, 88:5, 127:22 Clinician - 51:7 **Clinics - 9:10**, 14:17 Close - 97:9, 97:14, 293:18 Closed - 15:14, 61:15, 61:21, 97:21, 98:9, 100:10 Closely - 74:23, 222:4 **Clusters - 89:5**, 129:22 Coaching - 276:25 Coasting - 53:23 Coded - 98:8 **Coercion - 291:11** Coffers - 237:4 Cognitive - 224:1, 224:6, 224:8 Collaboration - 28: 19, 126:17 Collar - 38:15, 38:16, 38:22, 39:2, 39:5, 78:7, 79:8, 81:20, 81:22, 81:23, 82:19, 83:4 **Collars - 38:25** Colleague - 159:6, 240:15 Colleagues - 9:20, 94:13, 106:1, 106:4, 106:5, 170:11, 211:13, 242:25, 244:19, 249:25 Collected - 97:23, 100:9 Collecting - 265:19 College - 106:24, 186:18 **Collides - 44:15** Collingwood - 11:1 Collision - 8:15, 28:12, 49:19, 49:25, 50:2, 86:13, 92:20

Collisions - 4:6, 4:9, 12:21, 26:10, 34:8, 35:23, 68:1, 89:5, 90:25, 129:21, 153:17, 185:16, 203:1 Colloquialisms - 1 **Columbia -** 275:14 Combination - 31: **Combine - 248:20 Combined -** 241:10 , 241:16 Come - 1:23, 2:21, 14:21, 16:1, 17:5, 17:14, 40:13, 63:6, 76:17, 90:24, 102:24, 103:19, 111:7, 112:6, 122:12, 122:13, 123:5, 140:20, 142:14, 143:14, 144:11, 155:2, 196:23, 214:1, 214:21, 221:9, 226:3, 227:11, 247:18, 252:4, 256:18, 271:5, 273:18, 287:8 Comes - 37:2, 107:2, 155:4, 155:25, 157:6, 173:5, 184:16, 188:17, 268:17, 291:1 Comfortable - 4:16 , 15:23, 291:14 Coming - 100:12, 100:13, 105:16, 121:4, 183:15, 195:13, 262:17, 286:8 **Commend - 266:19** Commensurate - 2 65:21 Comment - 15:21, 16:7, 26:18, 46:11, 56:12, 60:11, 60:16, 61:6, 80:4, 81:8, 81:17, 83:6, 83:20, 97:12, 100:3, 101:24, 103:23, 140:16, 150:23, 153:14, 157:20, 162:23. 164:18. 172:2, 176:17, 179:18, 181:24, 189:5, 203:22, 215:25, 218:14, 218:18, 223:6,

Clients - 93:25,

245:25, 248:25, 249:3, 255:6, 255:19, 256:11, 264:17, 266:9 Commented - 24:1 0, 60:13, 224:16 Commenting - 216 **Comments - 26:8**, 49:6, 58:3, 81:13, 93:14, 113:6, 125:14, 137:23, 223:2, 231:3, 238:10, 238:13, 256:15, 281:12, 293:6 Commission - 222: Commitment - 277 Commitments - 22 7:15 Common - 34:16. 37:16, 42:24, 63:8, 70:15, 80:23, 112:4, 192:3 **Commonly -** 86:12 Communicate - 52 Communication -19:20 Communications -245:17, 260:2 Companies - 4:14, 5:7, 6:14, 7:4, 14:13, 45:10, 67:3, 67:6, 73:10, 120:5, 121:17, 122:17, 166:10, 166:20, 166:23, 171:24, 172:16, 173:1, 176:25, 184:20, 186:14, 190:9, 234:21, 235:20, 241:5, 246:6, 246:16, 247:5, 247:17, 250:2, 256:5, 256:25, 265:11, 270:11, 270:19, 271:3, 271:4 Company - 3:6, 4:21, 7:3, 9:19, 11:9, 14:14, 45:11, 46:3, 47:20, 49:25, 50:4. 50:24. 52:5. 52:9, 52:11, 52:18, 73:3, 96:18, 160:4, 168:23, 169:5, 169:10, 173:5, 175:4, 180:25,

187:2, 189:1, 198:17, 198:18, 210:16, 232:22, 233:11, 233:21, 241:4, 261:18, 269:6, 269:15, 269:23, 282:23, 283:3, 283:6, 286:10, 289:7 Compared - 43:6 **Compares - 261:7** Compelled - 33:23 Compensate - 45:4 , 145:9 Compensated - 16 8:9, 177:9, 274:18, 278:11 Compensation - 2: 14, 29:10, 44:2, 145:5, 146:3, 161:12, 169:14, 219:13 Compensations -58:5 Competitions - 90: 10 Competitive - 240: **Compiled - 264:7** Complaining - 257 Complaint - 39:3, 106:23, 231:22, 239:10 Complaints - 14:5, 107:15, 188:9, 188:12, 231:24 Complementary -20:3 **Complete - 87:17** Completed - 283:6 Completely - 31:4, 134:3, 143:18, 179:9 **Complex -** 5:3, 7:21 Complexities - 9:1 7, 10:5, 47:14 Complicated - 9:7, 9:14, 195:25 Complications - 1 63:13 Component - 137: 17, 147:6, 148:3 Comprehensive -138:25 Compression - 28: Conceivable - 97:1

Concept - 56:14,

128:7, 137:3, 145:25, 148:21, 149:8, 178:20, 179:10, 190:15, 204:24 Conceptualizes - 3 0:17 Concern - 218:3, 221:19, 221:25, 241:24, 242:13, 255:11, 271:19 Concerned - 151:1 , 221:17, 245:19, 257:1 Concerning - 258: 16 Concerns - 242:24, 245:16, 245:20 **Concluded - 85:15**, 264:1 Concluding - 292: 17 Conclusion - 295:1 Conclusions - 258: **Condition - 31:13.** 150:10, 268:13 Conditions - 29:4, 30:20, 35:21, 36:3 Confidence - 92:17 Confident - 148:18 , 181:14 **Confirm - 172:20** Confirmed - 242:1 **Conflict -** 41:23, 45:2, 48:2 Conflicted - 44:8 Conflicting - 43:16 , 112:6, 112:17, 112:19, 114:4 Confused - 151:15, 151:20, 275:10 Confusing - 45:5 Confusion - 212:9 Congratulate - 151 Congress - 68:5 Congruent - 120:2 Connected - 152:2 5, 153:2 Connection - 149: 10, 179:14, 181:24 **Cons -** 76:10 **Consent - 9:22** Consequently - 18 2:19 Consider - 40:24,

78:18, 116:3, 159:17, 226:1, 231:14 Consideration - 13 7:25, 174:12 Considerations - 2 50:11 Considered - 30:2 5, 36:25, 85:12, 89:15, 89:19, 90:18, 185:19, 290:21, 290:24 Considering - 218: 11 Consist - 204:5 Consistent - 27:20, 92:15 Constantly - 107:1 Constitutes - 42:2 5, 224:10 Constitutional - 65 :6, 68:20, 68:25, 69:2 Consult - 15:3. 15:10 Consultant - 2:9, 3:7, 67:11, 68:13, 119:10, 120:15, 122:20, 123:5, 123:6 Consultants - 122: 15 Consultation - 13: Consulted - 68:3. 68:12, 120:13 Consulting - 73:17 73:24 Consumer - 46:7, 47:1, 183:12, 183:16, 187:19, 187:20, 192:15, 192:21, 228:20, 280:19 Consumers - 47:2, 47:16, 240:9 **Contact -** 186:17, 187:1, 194:22, 195:8, 198:16, 221:18, 244:20, 244:24, 245:6, 260:14 Contacted - 14:24, 18:4, 245:9 Contacting - 245:1 Contemplating - 1 43:25 **Content - 18:20** Context - 238:16,

240:12, 242:22, 243:4, 282:5, 294:11 Continue - 11:2, 38:2, 40:1, 52:4, 54:3, 54:5, 55:5, 93:25, 94:7, 106:12, 107:4, 109:11, 109:22, 143:22, 154:22, 164:15, 180:4, 198:23, 205:22, 221:4, 235:25, 246:9, 249:22, 264:11, 266:17 Continued - 43:9 Continues - 41:17 Continuing - 13:11 , 85:22, 191:4 Continuous - 234: Contracted - 7:10. 10:24 Contradict - 273:2 Contradicting - 32: 18, 292:19 Contribute - 45:24. 79:3 Contributes - 145: 21, 201:18 Contributing - 40:2 Contribution - 270: 13 Control - 6:12, 235:24, 258:12 **Controls -** 109:15 Controversial - 16 5:16 Conventional - 20 Conversation - 23 7:19 Conversations - 3 3:3, 157:16, 186:12, 187:12 Convey - 185:12 Convincing - 161:1 Cooperative - 189: Coordinate - 196:8 , 196:18, 196:24, 197:2, 199:23, 207:13 Coordinating - 196 :4, 196:11, 197:17, 199:4, 200:15, 200:16, 206:17, 206:22

72:9, 76:9, 78:10,

September 12, 2018
Coordination - 197 :4, 197:11, 197:13 Coordinator - 207: 23
Coordinators - 199
Cope - 148:1 Copied - 23:15, 23:19
Copies - 21:23, 54:21, 59:6, 278:4
Copy - 2:3, 20:9, 22:16, 25:2, 239:14
Cord - 4:2, 7:8, 12:22, 35:25,
56:25, 102:4, 118:1, 158:2, 158:5,
162:6, 162:11, 162:17, 162:25,
163:13, 230:24, 285:4
Corrected - 259:2, 290:18
Correctly - 134:9 Cost - 145:6,
149:17, 153:9, 154:6, 155:9,
155:11, 157:14, 157:18, 190:14,
190:17, 234:9, 238:1, 252:5,
254:17, 258:2, 258:5, 265:21,
269:25, 284:17, 284:18
Costing - 39:22, 234:11, 246:11
Costly - 112:4, 234:15, 253:5
Costs - 43:5, 92:21, 96:14,
96:18, 98:11, 98:12, 98:16, 98:17,
98:20, 98:21, 99:1, 100:18, 154:5,
169:3, 172:4, 236:17, 241:18,
242:1, 243:3, 252:9, 258:11,
258:18, 265:3, 265:12, 270:13,
271:20, 271:21, 271:22, 273:7,
288:24 Cote - 86:5, 86:8
Couldn't - 146:22, 274:14
Coulter - 112:11 Councillor - 209:2
2 Counsel - 22:22,
Ī

22:24, 23:1, 23:15,
24:3, 54:21, 54:23,
103:7, 104:1,
183:16, 211:7,
227:2, 253:4,
257:20, 269:18,
278:21, 280:19,
295:10
Count - 70:22
Counter - 221:24,
222:2
Counterpart - 222:
15
Country - 6:24,
6:25, 220:10,
232:10, 248:3,
263:13, 263:16
Couple - 20:2,
23:8, 37:9, 41:1,
88:7, 124:22,
147:9, 165:21,
147:9, 165:21, 166:9, 167:3,
215:13, 219:23,
223:19, 230:2,
243:10, 271:10,
281:4
Course - 4:3,
14:23, 40:11, 41:22,
54:12, 168:8,
207:2, 213:21,
217:13, 225:2,
237:5, 273:15,
292:15
Court - 112:18,
168:25, 177:6,
223:1, 272:10,
273:3, 273:8,
273:18, 274:16
Courts - 177:7,
234:16
Cover - 51:20,
182:24, 202:24,
202:25
Coverage - 44:17,
96:5, 97:1, 98:6,
202:17, 251:16
Coverages - 96:24
Covered - 13:5,
57:16, 131:23,
144:17, 151:9,
153:3, 165:25,
269:9
Covers - 45:12,
156:10
Cracks - 159:19,
160:22, 285:25,
286.2

286:2

241:17

Crashes - 87:24

Create - 234:13,

Created - 168:15

```
Creates - 45:21,
46:2, 46:19, 291:10
Creating - 151:5,
151:6
Crisis - 220:10,
271:10, 271:12
Criteria - 250:4,
284:22
Critical - 47:22,
169:12
Criticism - 19:21
Criticisms - 213:18
, 214:4, 214:5,
214:7
Cross - 121:20,
201:11, 202:2,
202:4, 225:23,
226:25, 229:14,
278:22
Crying - 209:16
Crystalize - 291:1
Cumulative - 60:7
Cunningham - 270
:25
Cure - 146:17.
154:21, 189:9
Cured - 189:4
Curious - 140:15
Current - 35:19,
36:1, 38:1, 127:12,
255:25
Currently - 14:9,
42:13, 136:17
Cut - 117:5, 117:10,
135:24, 137:17,
157:2, 205:20,
205:25, 206:8,
206:10, 286:12
Cuts - 234:23.
235:7, 236:1,
288:20, 289:9,
289:16
Cutting - 232:2
CV - 1:8, 2:2, 3:3,
63:17, 66:22, 69:1,
72:25, 119:7,
119:21
Cycle - 232:2
         D
Daily - 29:7, 79:17,
80:22, 85:20,
163:24, 165:10,
273:24
Dalhousie - 74:10
Damage - 170:5,
171:20, 171:23
Damaged - 193:11
Damages - 43:8,
```

```
145:6, 145:16,
154:7, 168:21,
211:15, 217:15,
232:12, 232:25,
235:2, 237:16,
238:3, 254:16,
254:17, 273:6,
284:17, 284:23,
286:6, 286:16,
291:20
Damaging - 275:5
Damn - 147:7
Danger - 177:12
Dangerous - 236:2
Dangers - 169:6
Data - 11:18, 11:24,
12:11, 43:2, 67:14,
100:8, 100:11,
100:13, 190:5,
207:4, 240:23,
242:16, 242:17,
242:18, 242:19,
243:8, 248:2,
248:15, 248:17,
257:6, 258:4,
258:14, 258:15,
259:2, 260:24,
261:6, 261:14,
261:15, 261:20,
262:10, 262:19,
262:20, 262:25,
263:8, 263:10,
263:11, 263:14,
263:23, 263:24,
264:4, 264:5,
264:14, 264:15,
288:3
Date - 233:1.
258:24, 258:25,
264:14
Dated - 98:10
David - 258:22,
262:24, 263:2,
281:7
Day - 5:4, 9:15,
12:18, 21:24, 22:7,
22:17, 38:21, 90:11,
94:19, 110:6,
111:14, 133:4,
161:11, 169:2,
204:12, 204:18,
205:18, 206:14,
265:16
Days - 23:8, 28:1,
28:12, 28:25, 41:1,
62:4, 80:20,
128:17, 141:12,
204:7, 205:2,
205:4, 205:13,
205:21, 206:10,
```

```
218:1, 218:2,
218:5, 218:10,
219:23, 220:8
Deal - 24:9, 43:2,
50:22, 65:5, 76:15,
79:6, 125:18,
133:3, 133:18,
143:24, 144:1,
144:4, 144:6,
147:3, 147:6,
164:4, 165:3,
272:2, 294:14
Dealing - 3:21,
9:18, 24:13, 47:9,
47:10, 47:11, 56:18,
144:24, 147:4,
159:13, 161:11,
163:23, 165:4,
173:1, 174:22,
174:23, 206:16
Dealings - 238:24
Dealt - 140:19,
147:16, 155:10,
155:12, 274:8
Debilitating - 29:5
Decade - 8:25,
87:9
Deceive - 273:8
December - 72:12
Decide - 6:3, 110:2,
132:24, 196:15,
210:12, 232:16
Decides - 160:16,
196:19, 213:23
Decision - 11:10,
114:7, 114:15,
114:20, 270:12
Decisions - 6:7,
6:9, 6:11, 7:21,
109:25, 113:5,
113:15, 113:18,
257:8, 257:11,
259:1, 264:16
Decrease - 96:14
Decreases - 288:2
Deductible - 215:2
1, 215:23, 216:1,
216:6, 232:14,
232:15, 232:18,
238:3, 284:24,
285:2, 285:5,
285:12, 285:20,
287:8, 287:12,
287:23, 289:23
Deem - 83:13
Deeper - 33:6
Defence - 252:5,
272:19
```

58:15, 65:21, 115:6,

44:3, 56:5, 57:8,

Deficiency - 141:5

Define - 16:9, 30:2,

30:11, 127:9, 127:10, 128:6, 128:8, 132:21, 223:23, 234:17 **Defined - 27:23**, 29:19, 29:20, 29:21, 138:14, 139:16, 150:6 **Defining - 25:19**, 31:1, 84:2, 133:22, 138:21, 234:5 Definitely - 160:3 Definitions - 16:24, 62:1, 64:4, 64:17, 65:14, 74:20, 75:17, 90:19, 176:24, 192:13, 212:23, 223:25 Degree - 63:19, 85:20, 124:12, 125:22 **Delay -** 95:7, 95:15, 95:20 **Delayed -** 103:2 **Delays -** 48:3, 192:20 **Deliver - 7:14** Delivered - 204:17 Delivering - 4:11 **Delivery - 42:14**, 57:22, 74:13 **Demands - 219:4 Demonstrated - 38** :16, 41:7 **Denials - 42:21 Denied -** 39:13, 161:12 **Denies - 45:18**, 53:8 **Dental - 207:16**, 208:25 Department - 2:19, 5:10, 82:22, 244:7 Depressed - 293:2 Depression - 90:1, 91:3, 272:16 Depressive - 130:3 , 130:12 **Deprive -** 92:18 **Derail - 30:9 Deriving - 256:7 Descend -** 184:18 Describe - 27:7, 62:20, 132:18 Described - 180:22 Describing - 236:1 **Description - 219**: Descriptive - 24:11

Deserve - 238:9. 240:9 **Designed - 106:19.** 145:9 Despicable - 276:2 **Despite - 142:20**, 234:23, 236:1, 254:4, 289:9, 293:22 Detailed - 51:3, 248:9 **Determination - 11** 3:20, 113:24, 212:7, 212:8, 212:10, 215:2 **Determine - 31:17**, 112:18, 209:15 Determined - 77:2, 163:22, 228:19, 269:11, 289:20 Detrimental - 38:1 7, 79:14, 293:1 **Develop -** 5:21, 7:11, 14:13, 29:2, 73:9, 261:16, 261:20 Developed - 222:1 Developing - 17:23 205:9 **Development - 69**: 25, 86:9, 203:19, 261:13 **Devices - 42:19 Devil - 131:17 Diagnose -** 209:13 Diagnosis - 10:12, 27:7, 30:10, 31:3, 31:12, 53:19, 174:10, 217:25 Diagnostic - 15:9, 16:24, 26:14, 54:4, 138:20, 150:2, 150:20, 190:24, 192:2 **Dialogue -** 48:6, 238:16, 239:8 Dialogues - 49:2 Didn't - 9:6, 17:22, 19:23, 60:24, 62:16, 72:6, 95:2, 105:1, 114:8, 116:7, 121:13, 145:7, 145:15, 147:4, 147:5. 148:25. 149:6, 149:18, 149:24, 201:16, 204:9, 208:21, 272:25, 273:1,

275:10, 275:14

Difference - 9:24, 45:7, 71:20, 100:23, 101:20, 117:23 Differences - 84:7 Different - 2:9, 32:22, 33:14, 33:21, 34:9, 58:16, 62:17, 62:20, 63:3, 65:13, 80:7, 91:15, 95:8, 160:10, 176:16, 210:1, 224:17, 224:19, 254:13, 281:25 Differently - 31:4, 33:9 Difficult - 5:4, 37:25, 44:14, 96:3, 131:7, 205:21, 218:19, 253:4, 286:14, 291:9, 293:3 Difficulty - 10:4, 45:15, 102:11, 219:8, 257:5 **Dinner - 176:10** Directed - 57:3 Direction - 16:19, 34:13, 132:25 **Directly - 11:8,** 50:15, 146:25 Director - 229:24, 230:8 Disabilities - 3:23 Disability - 29:3, 30:2, 30:11, 30:15, 30:22, 30:24, 37:10, 45:24, 58:6, 59:15, 85:20, 97:6, 98:12, 98:19, 98:20, 103:20, 145:22, 153:25, 217:3, 217:4, 217:5, 218:19 **Disable -** 34:20 **Disabled - 41:21**, 46:24, 217:9 **Disagree -** 81:4, 81:14, 83:2, 83:21, 122:2 Disagreements - 1 19:18 Disagrees - 117:1 **Disbursements - 2** 70:14 Discharged - 40:8, 105:13 Discharges - 51:24 Discipline - 241:10 , 241:12 Disclosure - 247:2

Discomfort - 145:1 Discovered - 4:16, 190:8 Discusses - 185:8 Discussing - 183:1 Discussions - 72:4 , 216:5, 237:11 **Disincentive - 217**: 17 Disingenuous - 12 3:4 Disintegrate - 278: 24 Dislocated - 219:1 Dismissing - 243:6 **Disorder - 132:15**, 178:5 Disorders - 27:2, 28:4, 87:10, 128:25, 130:2, 130:11, 132:13, 133:8 **Dispute - 160:10**, 190:21, 210:10, 222:21, 222:24, 233:10, 233:20, 233:24, 234:1, 252:8, 269:4, 269:22, 270:7 **Disputed - 222:19 Disputes - 160:1**, 160:3, 160:7, 160:13, 187:9, 190:20, 190:22, 191:2, 206:25, 211:5, 211:12, 233:14, 242:11, 269:20 **Distress - 88:8,** 91:10 Distributed - 24:2 **Divide - 99:16 Dizziness - 132:17**, 221:15 **Doctor -** 37:14, 49:23, 50:9, 63:24, 82:4, 82:8, 82:10, 95:4, 104:2, 110:23, 111:15, 147:14, 173:7, 194:23, 196:17, 198:11, 218:13, 218:18, 218:21, 218:23, 220:7 Doctor/ Researcher - 32:17 **Doctors -** 80:15,

111:5, 112:25, 113:1, 143:21, 220:8, 274:16 Doctor's - 82:23, 218:8, 218:12 Document - 24:1, 24:5, 61:2 Documentation - 1 10:17, 139:23 **Documented - 216** :19 Documents - 21:23 , 22:16, 24:1, 262:17 Doesn't - 27:7, 36:6, 36:13, 36:24, 42:12, 51:3, 78:25, 79:22, 110:15, 110:16, 114:18, 115:6, 115:8, 116:13, 146:3, 146:17, 147:21, 153:23, 179:23, 181:3 **Dog -** 138:10 **Dollar - 285:12**, 289:23 **Dollars -** 5:19, 100:1, 154:21, 235:21, 237:1, 237:3, 249:8, 249:13, 265:24 Dominate - 30:6 Doubt - 233:9, 288:11, 291:10 Downloaded - 265: 12 **Downloading - 236** :20, 265:3, 266:14 **Downplaying - 243** Downplays - 26:21 Downsides - 46:4 **Dr** - 32:12, 62:3, 62:16, 62:23, 124:22, 134:3, 140:17, 158:9, 226:4, 249:5, 249:24, 251:11, 253:13, 255:24, 256:12, 295:13 **Dramatic - 177:3**, 178:1, 258:4 **Dramatically - 237**: 23, 237:24, 249:7 **Draw -** 135:19 **Drive - 247:13**, 247:15 **Drivers - 12:6**, 39:18, 42:10, 153:10, 161:23,

167:16, 171:9 **Driver's** - 232:22 **Driving** - 174:1 **Drop** - 242:1 **Drugless** - 220:17 **Due** - 48:3 **Dueling** - 160:8 **Dynamic** - 3:24, 30:18

Ε

Each - 64:11, 65:19, 125:17, 177:19, 197:7, 227:19, 228:24, 230:4, 246:9, 279:1, 285:20 Earlier - 23:1, 31:6, 68:22, 73:12, 107:16, 119:21, 140:24, 148:18, 148:23, 179:18, 186:10, 194:1, 222:17, 227:24, 252:11, 254:1, 280:21, 283:10, 285:22, 285:25, 294:1 Early - 15:20, 66:18, 91:1, 91:4, 91:5, 118:6, 187:9, 190:17, 233:8, 233:10, 245:10 **Earned -** 250:13 **Earthy - 122:9** Easier - 13:13, 192:10 Easy - 47:2, 141:22 **Economic - 250:11** Economical - 241: 4, 289:3 Economics - 248:2 Economist - 260:2 0, 262:4 Edited - 289:25 Educate - 212:11 **Educated - 281:24** Education - 8:23, 26:17, 34:18, 46:6, 47:1, 47:15, 47:21, 48:1, 66:24, 133:11, 133:14, 195:5 Educational - 3:7 **Eerily - 238:23** Effect - 26:21. 30:7, 31:17, 60:7, 62:19, 68:7, 88:13, 90:15, 90:18, 93:16, 175:24, 177:2, 221:15,

240:19, 259:1, 286:23, 287:9 **Effective -** 28:15, 32:6, 32:9, 38:7, 39:6, 39:7, 39:9, 77:4, 77:11, 119:17, 139:18 Effectively - 164:6, 205:1, 214:9 Effectiveness - 92: **Effects -** 58:3. 92:6, 194:13, 221:18 Efficiencies - 255: 18, 256:6 Effort - 214:13, 273:8 Efforts - 210:20 Eight - 140:20, 140:22, 230:13, 234:25, 244:15, 244:17, 271:6 Elaborate - 256:16 **Elect -** 229:23. 230:21 Elected - 241:24, 245:20, 257:2, 260:14 **Elective - 239:9** Electrical - 3:11, 3:12 Electronic - 11:16 Electronically - 11: 8, 11:12 Eligibility - 150:20 Eligible - 138:19, 150:7, 150:18, 207:12 Elliott - 95:12 Else's - 261:1 Elsewhere - 187:2 0, 213:10, 269:9 **Email - 245:9 Emerg - 50:8** Emergency - 49:21 , 82:4, 82:7, 82:21, 82:22, 203:11 **Emotion -** 91:10 Emotional - 88:8, 88:15, 89:13, 90:17, 91:21 Emotionally - 90:1 Emphasize - 188:2 2. 217:4 Emphasized - 189: Emphasizing - 171 :16

Employ - 85:23

Employer - 201:13, 218:13 Employers - 218:6 **Enable -** 216:15 **Enabling -** 70:14, 126:17 Encountered - 103 :10, 172:24, 172:25, 173:10, 257:24 Encourage - 294:3 **Encouragement -**245:18 **Encourages - 197**: 12 **Ends -** 175:6, 200:14 **Enemy -** 48:25 **Engage -** 108:12, 294:5 Engaged - 11:13, 64:3, 74:19, 75:5, 75:6, 75:8, 157:16, 209:10, 272:22 Engagement - 8:11 , 12:14, 14:22, 26:17, 123:21 **Engaging - 102:16**, 187:9 Enjoyment - 31:20 Ensure - 90:23 Entered - 272:20 Enterprise - 166:1 Entertain - 21:3, 49:7 **Entire -** 61:2, 249:15 **Entirely - 97:13**, 123:7, 261:4, 281:23 Entrenched - 242: 22 **Entries - 272:21 Envelope - 169:2** Environment - 31: 16 **Environmental - 3** 0:20 **Epidem - 128:11** Epidemiological -27:24, 128:13 **Episode -** 37:12 **Episodes - 190:21 Egual -** 175:20 Equipment - 3:16. 3:18, 3:19, 3:22 **Equity -** 249:15, 250:16 Equivalent - 137:3 Equivocal - 36:25,

8:08 **Ernest - 143:15 Ernie - 173:23 Erosion -** 214:20 **Err** - 161:8 **Error -** 3:4 **Escape - 140:11**, 141:6, 150:11, 150:18, 178:12, 179:19, 180:6 **Escaped - 161:4 Escaping - 214:13**, 214:17 Essentially - 3:8, 6:23, 28:22, 30:14, 44:18, 58:5, 122:19, 126:1, 204:16, 218:20, 237:3, 252:1, 270:10, 273:22, 285:10 Establish - 72:3 Established - 122: 10, 124:11, 124:12, 261:11, 262:11 **Estate - 174:24 Estimate - 6:22.** 252:24 Estimates - 258:4 Et - 75:1, 140:10, 164:17, 220:18, 284:6 **Ethically - 104:22** Evaluating - 89:19 Evaluation - 218:2 **Events - 12:2**, 153:23 Eventually - 253:2 Everybody - 1:3, 12:20, 39:22, 47:22, 51:1, 136:4, 137:9, 137:10, 161:8, 161:20, 247:21 Everybody's - 176: **Everyone -** 63:9, 90:14, 214:9, 228:12 Everything - 90:15, 143:16, 150:13, 177:14, 179:20, 180:3, 226:15, 232:9, 277:13, 282:5 **Evidence - 16:10**, 26:6, 29:12, 31:25, 35:17, 36:4, 37:20, 39:1, 42:7, 47:24, 56:19, 62:2, 64:5,

74:20, 75:17, 83:16, 86:15, 92:16, 112:8, 114:23, 116:14, 119:13, 119:14, 133:19, 144:22, 148:22, 152:6, 152:20, 153:4, 155:5, 165:1, 179:6, 179:22, 181:13, 183:18, 192:4, 220:5, 225:20, 225:22, 226:1, 247:22, 269:18, 272:21, 273:23, 273:25, 275:5 **Evolved - 15:1**, 37:24 Exacerbated - 86:1 Examination - 190: 23, 225:23, 226:25, 229:14, 278:22 Examinations - 10 8:13, 160:8 Examiners - 108:2 4, 109:2, 109:6 Examining - 68:7 **Example - 6:18**, 17:7, 30:5, 31:6, 38:3, 38:25, 53:13, 54:1, 74:2, 76:5, 90:7, 104:3, 106:18, 144:7, 173:21, 185:9, 196:16, 201:10, 202:1, 208:22, 215:8, 232:11, 248:8, 258:2, 285:3, 293:15 **Examples - 37:9**, 83:10, 83:11, 216:23, 247:6, 248:23, 251:11, 251:13, 251:18, 288:24 Excellent - 229:16 **Except -** 19:13, 76:16, 127:7 Exception - 107:10 , 136:14, 138:1, 139:12 Excerpt - 88:18 **Exclude - 31:21**, 202:17 **Excluded - 29:14**, 285:21 Exclusion - 223:21 , 224:3 Exercise - 35:1,

35:3, 35:5, 37:1, 175:14 **Exhaust -** 117:16, 201:4 Exhausted - 182:2 **Existed -** 258:13 **Exists - 251:2 Expand - 216:20 Expanded -** 130:13 **Expect - 137:18**, 152:9, 162:20, 213:25 Expectation - 204: 24 Expected - 50:5, 134:18, 135:3, 135:10 **Expense - 147:24**, 252:7, 255:25 **Expenses - 164:14** , 255:17 **Expensive -** 43:10, 232:10, 234:19, 254:3, 286:15 Experience - 3:21, 41:13, 49:12, 87:17, 87:19, 94:6, 103:10, 105:13, 143:22, 146:17, 147:16, 154:20, 159:13, 161:14, 161:17, 166:18, 185:21, 200:18, 205:25, 206:7, 206:11, 210:2, 216:17, 220:12, 220:15, 221:14, 223:3, 231:11, 231:15, 240:20, 243:1, 246:5, 250:20, 267:2, 286:20 Experienced - 85:1 3, 159:18, 202:6, 234:22, 258:1 Experiences - 141: 4, 238:22, 240:3 **Expert - 1:13**, 68:19, 69:1, 70:9, 70:13, 139:5, 141:24, 153:12, 155:3, 161:18, 222:10 Expertise - 4:3. 212:2, 220:18, 223:5 **Experts -** 113:18, 113:25 **Expires - 182:9** Explain - 34:18,

53:7, 206:2, 268:14, 284:12, 293:5 **Explained - 256:13** . 278:9 Explaining - 41:10, 52:8 **Explains - 35:10** Explanation - 51:4, 203:6 Explanatory - 48:1 **Express - 221:19** Expression - 120:7 , 121:22, 123:9, 131:13, 133:6, 143:20 **Extension - 268:22** Extensive - 59:8, 119:25, 120:4, 120:6, 155:20 **Extent -** 12:9, 284:11, 284:14 **External - 244:8 Extra -** 294:24 Extraction - 277:2 **Eve -** 9:4 **Eyes - 175:21**

F

Fabricate - 273:18 Face - 120:3, 257:5, 257:16 Facebook - 272:20 275:7 Faced - 238:22, 242:23, 257:15 Faces - 292:18 Facilitate - 184:24, 216:13 Facilitates - 185:2 Facilitating - 260:1 Facing - 256:24 **Factors - 30:4**, 30:20, 30:21, 31:14, 31:17, 174:11 Faculty - 5:9 Fair - 45:20, 120:10, 122:21, 129:12, 130:14, 131:12, 133:2, 135:14, 156:4, 157:4, 161:25, 162:2, 165:24, 170:15, 177:4, 204:10, 214:19, 227:7, 236:16, 247:20, 285:14

Fairest - 140:7

Fairly - 177:10 Fairness - 285:3 Faith - 263:23 Fall - 34:1, 160:5, 160:22, 170:2, 211:15, 285:24 Fallen - 286:1 **Falling -** 159:19 Falls - 210:12, 293:17 **Families - 40:21**, 293:15 **Family -** 37:14, 49:22, 50:9, 92:22, 196:17, 198:1, 198:2, 198:5, 199:24, 209:18, 273:14, 292:14, 293:15 Far - 19:22, 19:23, 131:14, 132:8, 176:4, 183:19, 222:4. 238:2. 242:3 Fast - 150:8. 175:25, 181:8 Faster - 152:12, 154:17, 192:10 Fault - 7:17, 29:11, 45:13, 92:14, 98:13, 104:24, 105:2, 146:15, 213:6, 214:15, 231:16, 232:22, 241:19, 246:1, 286:9 Favourable - 27:25 , 128:15 **Fearful - 34:24** Feasible - 161:23, 163:10 February - 189:14, 191:13 **Federal - 248:4 Fee -** 200:9 Feel - 15:23, 33:23, 33:25, 42:17, 45:19, 49:20, 56:24, 90:13, 90:17, 122:2, 145:19, 146:20, 148:18, 181:7, 181:14, 188:24, 194:15, 201:15, 214:15, 214:17, 229:9, 232:5, 276:20 Feeling - 165:18, 224:12

Feet - 147:20 **Fell - 176:10** Fellows - 231:5 Felt - 95:16, 95:23, 103:8, 161:22, 187:13 **FELTHAM - 239:20** Ferris - 235:13 Fibromyalgia - 8:1 3, 8:14 Field - 2:11, 139:5, 179:2, 208:24 **Fight -** 96:4 Figure - 42:19, 169:19, 210:14, 246:13 **Figures - 153:14** File - 63:10, 222:11 Filed - 23:10, 76:21, 106:23, 243:13 Files - 98:6 Filing - 23:25, 203:25 **Final - 19:1 Finally - 157:5** Finance - 242:13, 263:3, 265:9 **Financial - 101:24**, 102:13, 216:14, 222:14, 246:15, 248:2, 248:5, 248:14, 257:6, 257:7, 261:17, 261:18 **Find -** 5:4, 13:12, 25:24, 37:25, 38:6, 46:16, 102:22, 119:15, 120:16, 149:12, 151:8, 173:9, 206:5, 206:24, 214:13, 248:18, 273:9, 274:25, 280:8 Fine - 1:15, 13:19, 24:15, 24:19, 40:10, 44:12, 95:23, 119:4, 143:12, 143:16, 191:21, 196:21, 204:11, 212:17, 215:12, 239:24, 264:25, 283:24, 291:25 Fire - 177:21 Firm - 244:25. 267:13, 267:19, 274:2, 275:1, 276:8, 276:24, 276:25, 277:9

Firm's - 272:7

Five - 24:7, 62:3, 84:2, 87:21, 100:25, 118:6, 118:25, 140:24, 147:2, 230:4, 255:1, 258:3, 288:25 Fixed - 47:12, 291:16 Flare - 143:17, 143:24, 144:12, 146:24, 147:12, 147:15, 147:19, 147:20, 147:21, 147:25 **Flip -** 203:16 Fly - 151:3, 151:4 Focus - 70:15, 92:4, 217:4, 217:7 **Focused -** 2:22, 156:17, 272:13 **Focussed - 223:19** Focussing - 243:2 Follow - 105:14, 183:25 **Followed -** 51:12, 186:11, 212:24 **Following - 32:11**, 35:1, 48:7, 249:4 Foolish - 134:6 **Foot -** 10:15 Force - 3:8, 157:5, 198:19 Forced - 12:25 Forces - 46:22, 217:2, 217:8 **Forcing -** 43:21 Foremost - 157:21 Forgive - 141:21 Forgot - 183:6 **Form -** 35:17, 119:8, 251:2, 254:13, 254:18 Formatting - 3:4 Forms - 11:7, 283:5 Forth - 168:10, 175:7, 175:8, 180:25, 187:8, 233:5, 270:2 Forum - 72:15, 72:20 **Forward - 16:6**, 44:20, 90:20, 123:5, 123:11, 139:12. 143:5. 143:15, 144:5, 150:22, 164:15, 195:13, 206:24, 242:24, 268:16 Found - 109:5,

Feels - 24:7, 38:10,

45:19, 146:13,

250:14

216:24, 219:7, 234:14, 236:14, 269:23, 284:15 **Four -** 65:13, 84:1, 147:2, 176:11, 182:3, 182:11, 218:2, 218:9, 251:10, 251:12, 254:22, 258:3, 263:1 **Fours - 134:3** Fourth - 89:3 Fracture - 205:8 Fractured - 219:15 Fragile - 242:14 Frame - 8:5, 141:1, 141:23, 142:7, 143:1 Framework - 72:4, 72:9, 174:8 Framing - 224:13 Frankly - 227:15, 243:7, 281:23, 294:8 Fraudulent - 102:1 Fred - 248:24 Free - 37:5, 39:11, 122:2, 137:3, 198:23 Frequently - 251:7 **Friction -** 46:2, 46:19 Friday - 22:7, 62:4 Friend - 230:22 Friends - 1:10. 272:18, 272:25, 273:14, 292:14 Front - 2:3, 80:5, 113:19, 189:17, 189:20, 262:7, 288:3 Frustrated - 39:25 Frustrating - 41:23 147:10 **FSCO -** 222:11 **Full -** 91:3, 152:6, 226:6, 274:21, 286:7 Fully - 29:13, 153:22 Fun - 32:19 Function - 29:7, 29:22, 30:3, 30:15, 31:5, 39:14, 52:15, 138:3. 138:5. 141:19, 143:18, 150:16, 163:16, 178:11, 219:22, 224:2, 224:6 Functional - 3:12,

79:4, 218:14, 218:24, 293:25 Functioning - 30:1 3, 30:17, 30:18, 141:5, 163:17, 174:7, 198:9, 224:7, 224:8, 224:14, 224:21 Functions - 31:15 **Fund -** 3:19 Funded - 4:7, 4:8, 11:23, 12:5, 237:7 Funding - 182:18, 235:3. 255:12 **Funds - 44:5** Further - 53:6, 66:15, 72:11, 86:8, 87:7, 94:23, 100:8, 104:23, 107:25, 118:18, 141:17, 159:1, 206:2, 245:25, 248:1, 248:12, 251:11, 256:7, 268:22, 269:5, 270:5, 273:21, 279:10, 289:15, 290:21, 292:12 Future - 58:16, 145:6, 164:21, 182:18, 254:17 G

Game - 165:23. 165:24 Gauge - 182:20 Gave - 17:25, 112:8, 186:5, 290:20 Geared - 78:19 General - 36:16, 38:19, 43:8, 46:6, 47:17, 56:5, 57:7, 58:15, 65:21, 74:24, 79:1, 81:10, 83:8, 83:21, 87:22, 115:6, 133:3, 133:7, 136:23, 164:18, 170:5, 176:17, 219:11, 219:25, 236:19, 237:2, 239:2, 255:8, 265:18 Generally - 14:10, 17:6, 26:24, 49:21, 51:22, 54:8, 79:3, 157:17, 197:25, 200:14, 207:1, 209:25, 219:17, 232:4, 237:15,

263:17, 290:24,

291:14 **General's - 255:7 Generate - 241:11**, 263:13 Generated - 242:2 0, 263:11 Generates - 45:14, 263:11, 263:14 Generic - 130:20 Generously - 102: Genesis - 140:23 Genetic - 125:20 **Genetics - 125:16** Gentlemen - 229:5, 230:1, 230:5, 280:18, 294:21 **Genuine - 279:5 Genuinely - 123:25** Georgian - 12:17 **Germane - 279:11 Gets -** 90:12. 106:15, 125:18, 152:4, 153:22, 194:2, 195:25, 286:12 **GISA - 242:19**, 248:11, 258:4, 260:24, 261:6, 262:19, 262:20, 262:23, 263:11, 263:13, 263:14, 263:23, 263:24, 263:25, 264:4, 264:8, 264:14, 264:15 Give - 5:24, 6:9, 20:4, 37:9, 50:6, 52:15, 74:1, 81:22, 93:8, 106:17, 121:4, 122:20, 124:22, 142:17, 146:18, 154:20, 157:18, 161:20, 166:18, 173:7, 184:14, 187:3, 190:16, 193:15, 198:17, 211:12, 211:13, 218:13, 223:7, 225:20, 231:4, 238:16, 294:6 Given - 16:19, 59:19, 83:10, 94:7, 137:25, 142:15, 146:5, 170:16, 185:20, 203:8,

294:13 Global - 248:2, 248:14 Goal - 42:7, 216:19, 288:16, 288:22 Goals - 40:23, 206:3, 206:5 Golf - 138:9, 165:23 Gone - 7:16, 19:22, 154:5, 154:7, 194:14, 202:8, 232:1, 271:8, 280:21, 282:8, 288:7, 288:8, 288:12 Good - 1:3, 1:21, 1:22, 6:8, 6:11, 7:21, 26:15, 33:1, 36:17, 38:10, 42:25, 44:5, 52:8, 53:21, 54:8, 63:18, 85:5, 92:18, 99:22, 102:15, 114:6, 118:7, 141:25, 145:24, 149:5, 150:12, 153:5, 179:25, 186:4, 187:11, 190:16, 191:5, 196:10, 197:13, 201:6, 207:2, 213:25, 229:16, 259:10, 280:18, 281:3 Goop - 32:12 Got - 4:14, 38:13, 63:8, 95:11, 96:4, 121:20, 122:10, 125:21, 132:3, 140:19, 148:15, 149:1, 149:19, 149:23, 157:23, 158:16, 168:22, 171:9, 173:25, 174:13, 175:20, 176:1, 179:4, 182:20, 183:24, 186:15, 196:4, 213:17, 213:18, 225:17, 231:6, 238:17, 274:5, 289:3 Government - 3:17 . 3:18. 48:10. 48:15, 48:17, 66:11, 185:2, 185:6, 185:21, 186:6, 200:9, 213:23, 231:19, 232:1,

Glass - 294:12.

235:16, 244:3, 250:1, 252:7, 260:4, 260:9, 264:13, 266:1, 288:15, 288:19, 289:14, 290:14 Governments - 74: 25, 265:15, 265:19 **GP - 194:14**, 219:20 **Grade - 28:5 Grades - 28:5.** 129:1, 132:22 Gradual - 106:20 Gradually - 35:11 **Graph -** 191:22 Gravis - 12:21, 35:24 Gray - 10:11 Greater - 247:2, 256:5 **Grew -** 8:16 Grey - 160:12 Greyer - 291:6 **Ground -** 36:7, 194:2 Group - 69:24, 129:16, 158:3, 201:4, 202:17, 202:23, 286:1, 289:3 Groups - 74:1, 74:11, 142:22, 164:11, 185:15, 185:17, 185:24, 187:13, 220:22 **Guess -** 8:5, 22:1, 37:11, 41:2, 41:11, 49:13, 57:19, 73:9, 77:2, 91:18, 93:19, 187:16, 197:19, 215:6, 225:11, 227:21, 267:7, 268:15, 275:2 **Guidance - 34:23**, 48:1, 50:7, 72:3, 186:5 **Guide - 132:20** Guideline - 39:1, 51:14, 51:16, 67:15, 86:10, 91:4, 233:6, 233:16, 234:3, 240:16, 241:1, 251:20, 252:2, 252:23, 253:1. 253:3. 267:12, 268:21, 269:3, 269:12, 269:25, 283:11 Guidelines - 35:18, 36:4, 36:8, 36:14,

232:12

Gives - 111:8,

166:25, 277:5

Glance - 133:8

36:19, 36:22, 51:20, 83:16, 85:14, 133:24, 267:10, 283:9, 283:17, 286:23 Guys - 122:9 Gwyneth - 32:12 Gym - 90:11

Н

Habit - 38:2 **Habitual -** 37:23 Half - 225:24, 227:6, 227:11, 286:13 **Hamilton - 230:16**, 230:19, 230:20 Hand - 44:4, 44:6, 44:9, 44:10, 188:15, 231:19 Happening - 15:14, 15:15, 42:22, 42:23, 53:22, 116:1, 129:14, 181:7, 193:9, 205:11, 205:23, 206:23, 221:2 **Happy - 21:3**, 26:20, 40:12, 49:7, 143:10, 206:6, 278:3 **Hard -** 9:7, 35:18, 47:5, 164:18, 237:21, 238:8, 293:11, 294:14 **Harder -** 169:13, 290:25, 291:4 **Hark -** 240:4 Harmful - 39:17. 39:19 Hasn't - 53:3, 206:11 Haven't - 21:21, 23:4, 24:1, 24:2, 53:17, 53:21, 59:7, 60:17, 60:20, 66:11, 76:24, 128:3, 138:23, 138:24, 172:2, 194:14, 206:7, 259:6 **Hazard -** 37:11 Head - 226:12 Headaches - 130:1 , 221:14 **Heading -** 97:18, 97:19 **Headquarters - 24** 4:5 **Head's -** 20:5 **Heal -** 34:21,

153:19

Healing - 35:14, 141:9, 141:11, 141:14, 142:16, 205:3 Healthcare - 27:14, 32:20, 57:20, 59:20, 74:13, 92:19, 92:22, 203:13, 206:1, 206:21, 206:22, 212:5, 222:4, 236:25, 237:4, 237:7 **Healthy - 198:10 Hear - 143:13**, 155:1, 155:6, 166:5, 227:13 Heard - 7:9, 53:21, 58:25, 59:2, 89:9, 96:2, 102:10, 103:14, 162:5, 186:3, 187:22, 187:24, 188:9, 188:12, 224:16, 233:3, 234:4, 237:11 Hearing - 21:24, 26:1, 66:2, 66:11, 116:3, 139:6, 226:1, 278:21, 278:23 **Hearings -** 66:8, 282:8 Heightened - 47:18 Help - 1:24, 9:12, 10:21, 11:14, 36:5, 39:4, 42:10, 52:10, 52:22, 52:23, 53:2, 77:22, 91:6, 99:17, 99:19, 147:25, 149:3, 149:13, 174:19, 209:17, 253:3, 257:14, 269:17 **Helped -** 49:4 Helpful - 34:2, 48:20, 119:16, 132:23, 148:25, 151:7, 183:20, 193:25, 225:7, 228:23, 228:25 Helping - 39:13, 39:23, 40:2, 40:4, 40:19, 105:5, 294:24 Here's - 211:25, 274:6 **He's -** 125:10, 125:19, 140:19, 193:18, 226:5 Hiding - 257:21

High - 34:5, 137:1,

240:9, 258:12 Higher - 92:21, 241:13, 242:2, 258:18, 261:12 Highlight - 160:13, 245:15 **Highly - 235:18** Hiking - 272:24 **Hill - 287:14** Hip - 12:1 Hired - 7:4, 9:9, 14:12, 64:12, 68:13, 72:16, 75:2 Historically - 26:25 , 92:1 History - 27:25, 128:16, 198:22, 242:23, 251:14 Hitting - 256:6 Holders - 235:5, 235:20, 235:25 **Holmes - 272:11** Home - 2:21, 4:12, 105:14, 293:18, 295:1 **Homecare - 12:16,** 13:2, 14:19 Honest - 53:21, 130:3, 216:4, 294:4 Honestly - 16:22, 151:15, 151:20, 199:7 Hope - 46:13, 93:22, 115:1, 115:14, 115:24, 116:7, 134:23, 164:21, 172:9, 181:7, 189:9, 257:14, 293:13 **Hopefully - 170:20**, 198:15, 282:22 Hoping - 147:17, 201:24 Horrible - 217:7, 226:21 **Hospital - 82:12** Hospitals - 3:9, 82:8 **Hot -** 38:4, 38:6 **Hour -** 99:3, 99:7, 225:22, 225:24, 226:24, 227:4, 227:6, 227:10, 228:10 Hours - 11:1 Huge - 50:21, 188:16, 234:3, 238:5 **Human - 161:16**

239:5, 239:6,

Hundreds - 81:12, 236:25, 265:23 Hurt - 149:13, 193:13, 194:3 Hurting - 46:24, 137:9, 137:11 Hurts - 125:18 Hybrid - 7:17, 45:17, 231:16

IB - 7:2 **IBC's -** 17:23, 28:22, 29:19, 75:18, 155:23 **I'd -** 1:24, 8:17, 8:24, 10:24, 13:1, 13:3, 39:10, 55:3, 66:19, 70:22, 75:21, 144:10, 149:12, 155:16, 186:17, 187:2, 214:22, 215:5, 225:23, 255:24, 278:20, 279:9, 279:13, 292:2, 294:16 **Ideally - 198:4** Identical - 31:7 Identification - 31: 11 Identified - 112:12, 119:24 **I'II -** 15:6, 17:21, 26:4, 37:8, 38:20, 40:3, 41:14, 55:5, 87:7, 90:7, 96:11, 102:24, 106:17, 118:7, 119:11, 123:4, 127:19, 186:21, 207:8, 215:10, 216:4, 228:25, 230:7, 230:10, 240:1, 248:13, 249:3, 262:13, 278:3 **Images -** 38:12 Imagine - 110:21, 286:14 **IME - 190:20 Imes -** 207:4 Immediate - 147:3, 192:4, 192:12, 192:13, 218:4 **Immediately - 192**: 25. 240:19 **Immobility -** 79:14 Impact - 16:11, 25:24, 26:8, 28:14, 46:18, 59:16, 63:2,

74:12, 78:17,

102:8, 141:4, 162:20 Impacting - 104:19 , 147:13 **Impacts - 31:5** Impairment - 3:23, 27:20, 28:13, 29:6, 29:16, 29:18, 31:1, 31:11, 31:23, 61:3, 86:15, 89:21, 91:15, 127:25, 130:9, 136:16, 139:13, 139:15, 139:21, 140:4, 150:15, 159:18, 159:22, 161:2, 161:4, 163:15, 178:10, 178:21, 178:23, 179:5, 180:5, 223:20, 224:1, 224:11, 224:23, 268:5 Impairments - 29:5 , 89:7, 129:23 **Impeded -** 140:8 **Impedes -** 36:14 Implement - 106:2 2, 137:24, 152:23, 214:7, 246:13 Implementation - 2 6:12, 26:13, 26:16, 48:2, 48:7, 48:8, 56:19, 132:24, 185:7, 185:9, 185:13, 190:6, 190:7, 207:5, 214:22, 218:11, 241:7 Implemented - 48: 5, 48:21, 50:16, 82:9, 115:23, 133:12, 152:9, 192:19, 195:6, 199:3, 201:25, 211:2, 211:3, 212:4, 212:21, 213:10, 214:9, 235:7 **Implicit - 137:21 Implies -** 86:25 **Imply -** 107:11 Important - 6:4, 12:12, 30:1, 30:24, 31:10, 32:1, 34:18, 35:8, 39:20, 40:18, 40:23, 138:23, 160:18, 195:5, 224:24, 231:12 **Importantly - 216:1** Imposed - 131:24,

Humerus - 176:11

143:1, 207:20

Imposing - 149:19 Imposition - 57:24, 58:1, 153:11, 240:16 Impossible - 30:1, 293:3 Impression - 60:24 , 61:1, 93:8, 166:25 Impressive - 132:4 **Improper - 277:22 Improve -** 28:11, 96:15, 101:22, 170:21, 210:20 Improved - 49:1, 100:15, 100:16, 131:16, 205:5 **Improvement - 141** Improving - 57:22 **Inability -** 150:16 Incentives - 43:16 **Incidents - 106:17 Inclined - 156:2** Income - 44:3, 58:14, 97:6, 98:12, 98:19, 98:20, 103:20, 110:18, 232:25, 237:14, 284:6, 291:16 Inconvenience - 1 45:11 **Incorrect -** 164:24, 259:2, 260:25, 262:20, 263:8, 263:10 **Increase -** 35:11, 43:7, 43:9, 44:21, 101:15, 117:1, 241:14, 246:18, 258:5, 289:1, 289:4 Increased - 43:5, 101:1, 249:7, 287:24 **Increases - 235:10,** 246:20 Increasing - 42:11, 235:25, 266:14, 287:13, 288:1 **Incurred -** 269:25 Independence - 12 4:13, 157:20 Indexation - 287:1 Indexed - 284:25 Indicated - 22:22. 63:16, 94:14, 130:25, 171:1, 244:17, 286:22 **Indication -** 6:16 Indirectly - 167:21 Individual's - 31:1

Indulgence - 281:1 Indulging - 295:8 **Industry -** 7:19, 8:23, 10:4, 11:14, 20:3, 54:7, 67:21, 67:22, 67:23, 116:13, 120:2, 121:13, 121:18, 141:25, 154:13, 166:19, 167:6, 185:18, 188:8, 188:13, 188:19, 203:7, 231:22, 232:5, 239:1, 239:11, 240:21, 241:16, 241:21, 242:20, 243:2, 249:16, 250:13, 250:17, 250:21, 250:22, 250:23, 255:12, 257:10, 261:8, 261:15, 270:6, 270:22, 289:13 **Industry's -** 243:6 Ineffective - 32:10, 39:16, 39:19, 39:21, 42:4, 42:6, 77:3, 78:4, 81:21, 83:9, 83:14 Inefficiency - 233: Inflation - 43:7. 284:25 Influence - 31:14 **Informed -** 17:1, 123:20, 174:15 Inherent - 165:11 **Inhibit -** 46:1 **Initial -** 8:10, 34:5, 51:15, 53:18, 60:24, 87:20, 244:24, 258:3, 270:12 **Initially -** 49:10, 214:8, 242:17, 244:3, 258:14, 258:19, 260:4, 264:7, 276:15, 288:23 Initiatives - 220:21 Injections - 33:16 Injustice - 45:22, 145:18, 201:19 Innocent - 55:17. 59:1, 168:17 Input - 17:11, 18:19, 19:2, 19:13, 191:16

Inquire - 239:14

Inquiry - 103:1, 216:24, 239:22 **Inside -** 170:17 **Instinct - 34:2** Institute - 11:22 **Institutions - 11:23** , 248:5 Instruction - 94:7, 103:6 **Instructions - 104**: Insured - 45:11, 108:11, 167:12, 167:19, 206:18, 233:22, 258:6, 268:25, 269:4, 269:17, 271:5 Insureds - 231:24, 232:3 **Insurer -** 5:2, 5:7, 9:22, 9:25, 10:19, 43:25, 50:19, 51:3, 51:8, 52:16, 97:25, 98:5, 181:12, 188:10, 188:11, 193:17, 193:18, 194:18, 195:8, 195:9, 196:5, 200:22, 201:2, 201:20, 202:16, 206:19, 211:7, 216:25, 237:8, 255:16, 268:23, 274:17, 289:2 **Insurers - 4:14**, 4:15, 4:20, 5:18, 13:16, 14:10, 14:12, 14:15, 48:12, 48:21, 48:24, 52:25, 67:13, 92:22, 138:18, 190:11, 202:7, 202:17, 206:6, 206:9, 235:9, 246:20, 248:1, 248:23, 251:14, 253:12, 289:5 **Intact -** 192:7, 288:25, 289:6 Integration - 30:22, 158:4 Intended - 36:19, 43:18, 45:3, 131:23, 135:19, 144:4, 154:2, 291:6 Intensity - 28:17 Intent - 48:4, 48:18, 153:11, 186:8, 192:3 Interacting - 293:1

Interaction - 30:19 Interest - 3:1, 4:2, 11:17, 12:11, 86:10, 136:17, 149:8, 232:24, 245:17, 276:21 Interesting - 4:12, 10:14, 12:25, 202:15, 225:7, 236:14, 273:9 Interject - 292:9 International - 27:2 1, 30:13, 30:16, 136:18, 174:6, 174:14 **Internet - 32:21** Interplay - 9:2 Interpret - 60:18, 210:8 Interpretation - 14 5:2, 214:24, 293:1 Interpretive - 186:7 **Interrupt -** 236:4, 276:18 Interrupting - 279: Intervention - 32:2 3, 34:16, 36:10, 36:12, 78:14, 78:19 Interventions - 80: Intimidated - 106:1 Intimidation - 109: 16 Intricately - 142:23 Introduce - 1:4, 1:25, 47:23, 128:7, 230:1 Introduced - 150:3 Introduction - 53:1 9, 64:4, 65:14, 74:19, 75:16, 115:4 Introductory - 230: 3, 231:2, 256:14 Intuitively - 32:24 **Invent -** 161:19 Invite - 74:11 **Invited - 158:2** Involvement - 17:6 , 53:11, 113:3, 119:25, 121:21, 122:11, 142:21 Involves - 14:9 Irrelevant - 210:13 Irritation - 147:8 Isn't - 45:20, 80:25, 137:20, 165:11, 170:16, 259:2 Issue - 15:8, 16:9,

17:9, 48:16, 48:17, 75:8, 88:5, 124:20, 144:20, 146:25, 147:3, 148:15, 153:9, 165:8, 186:7, 188:4, 222:3, 223:20, 234:4, 236:5, 237:9, 248:12, 253:23, 255:8, 267:6, 274:13, 290:20 Issued - 241:22, 261:18, 262:24 Issues - 7:6, 7:9, 7:22, 15:4, 73:17, 116:16, 154:23, 158:4, 187:25, 199:1, 209:19, 236:15, 244:10, 268:15, 279:6, 279:11 **Italics - 89:3** Item - 119:8, 119:16, 133:17, 246:22 Items - 98:14 It'll - 36:11 l've - 2:8, 2:25, 5:8, 10:23, 13:17, 14:5, 26:20, 33:10, 33:12, 46:5, 60:19, 76:9, 83:10, 120:13, 121:22, 122:16, 122:17, 133:11, 140:18, 150:18, 151:1, 154:4, 158:1, 160:7, 161:4, 172:25, 175:1, 187:12, 188:8, 188:12, 188:21, 191:13, 215:7, 216:23, 221:21, 230:12, 237:19, 264:4, 278:8

J

January - 243:23 Jaw - 209:2 Jenkins - 273:3, 275:10 Jerome - 55:15 Job - 92:5, 104:21, 110:8, 212:6, 219:2, 219:4 Jobs - 134:2, 143:19 John - 229:24, 230:7 John's - 1:23, 242:25, 244:19, 244:20 Joined - 162:6 Joint - 87:9, 186:17, 219:16 Judge - 113:19, 113:23, 114:6, 174:9, 232:23, 273:6, 275:10 Judges - 113:4, 113:11, 113:14, 113:17, 113:19 Judgment - 37:2, 37:6 July - 15:20, 16:5 **Jump -** 143:12, 230:7 Juries - 232:16 Jurisdictions - 26: 24, 188:3, 192:17, 195:18, 198:21, 199:1, 199:13, 200:8, 200:23, 201:25, 202:6, 205:18, 210:3, 210:25, 213:19, 218:10 Justice - 69:24. 145:23, 146:12, 146:14, 161:22, 214:16, 270:24,

K

Justify - 264:16

273:3

Karapita - 229:24. 230:6, 230:7, 231:5, 231:7, 238:12, 238:14, 239:25, 242:7, 243:11, 243:16, 243:21, 244:2, 244:14, 244:23, 245:3, 245:8, 245:14, 245:24, 247:25, 249:2, 249:12, 249:18, 249:19, 249:23, 250:19, 251:4, 254:21, 254:23, 255:23, 256:14, 257:18, 259:5, 259:7, 259:25, 260:3, 260:8, 260:12, 260:17, 260:21, 261:3, 261:25, 262:8, 262:22, 263:20 **Karl -** 62:3 **KEAN -** 23:9, 23:18 Keeps - 125:18,

165:22 **KENNEDYD - 58:2 Kids - 294:8** Kilometers - 90:11 Kinds - 3:13, 3:21, 9:25, 32:14, 32:22, 81:12, 83:13, 89:18, 271:20 Kinesiologist - 77: Kinesiologists - 92 :3, 219:1 Kinesiology - 77:2 Knowable - 157:7 **Knowing - 47:4**, 81:17, 99:14 Knowledge - 267:3 **Known - 2:15**, 32:6, 219:20 **Knows -** 51:1, 51:7, 51:9, 125:23, 140:21, 198:7, 225:23

L

Label - 223:24

Labrador - 25:19, 76:20, 82:15, 94:11, 94:14, 100:9, 117:16, 162:12, 164:8, 248:8, 256:20 Lack - 10:1, 48:15, 197:11, 231:22 **Ladder - 176:11** Ladies - 89:9. 89:24 Lancet - 37:19 **Language -** 62:25, 122:5, 138:12, 138:22, 143:8, 160:17 Large - 6:2, 43:13, 43:23, 92:23, 102:13, 167:6, 215:21, 235:9 **Largely - 2:12**, 13:11, 22:10, 281:13 Larger - 40:23, 214:18 Largest - 241:5 **Lasted - 49:3** Later - 41:15, 65:3, 87:21, 140:22, 143:15, 175:23 Latest - 249:5 Latter - 216:18 Lawsuit - 231:18,

294:11 Lawyer - 30:7, 40:5, 40:9, 68:22, 94:21, 95:13, 95:17, 104:19, 105:4, 105:6, 105:11, 105:16, 106:11, 106:15, 107:3, 109:12, 109:13, 109:15, 126:23, 172:25, 230:10, 230:15, 234:10, 270:1, 278:12, 291:18 **Lawyers - 4:15**, 4:20, 59:3, 93:19, 93:25, 94:5, 96:2, 102:10, 104:24, 109:21, 110:1, 110:6, 110:13, 113:2, 168:16, 186:2, 187:9, 226:21, 227:14, 229:22, 230:9, 230:22, 244:13, 244:20, 245:18, 256:16, 276:1, 276:19, 291:10 Lawyer's - 22:7, 105:1, 109:19 Layperson - 133:2 **Lays -** 36:16 **Lazar -** 226:4. 248:24, 249:5, 249:24, 251:11, 253:13, 255:25, 295:13 Lead - 29:6, 72:1, 86:13 **Leading -** 37:10 Learn - 38:9, 133:16 Learned - 170:11 Leave - 228:20. 280:20 **Leaving - 28:13 Led -** 270:10 **Left -** 22:24, 42:18, 44:18, 110:3, 173:19, 272:16 Legal - 161:15, 178:22, 211:18, 212:6, 212:8, 212:13, 230:20, 242:11, 253:3. 269:17, 270:13 Legislated - 258:8 Legislation - 5:16, 27:4, 231:14,

234:12, 234:16, 234:22, 237:13, 246:9, 270:19, 271:11, 281:11 Legislature - 266:1 **Lesson - 273:14**, 273:17, 275:1, 275:3, 292:13 Let's - 76:18, 79:6, 92:10, 94:17, 96:22, 97:16, 100:7, 102:7, 102:23, 109:11, 110:12, 112:25, 124:19, 126:24, 133:16, 134:11, 155:18, 184:15, 194:7, 203:22, 227:9, 270:18, 281:21, 282:5, 282:8 **Letter -** 111:8, 238:18, 239:2, 239:14, 240:1, 243:13, 245:23, 279:21 **Letters - 111:5** Letting - 141:21 Level - 29:23, 30:18, 138:2, 158:7, 163:17, 198:8 Levels - 34:5. 117:2 **Levy -** 203:8, 203:12, 265:10, 265:20, 266:4, 266:10 Liability - 44:17, 217:1, 282:15 Liaise - 11:14 **Licensed - 157:21 Lies -** 273:19 Lifestyle - 145:12 Lifetime's - 238:9 **Lifting - 219:9 Likewise -** 209:2 **Limbs -** 28:6, 129:3 **Limit - 117:17**, 139:22, 140:2 Limited - 28:16, 157:15, 176:1, 231:18, 284:11, 284:14, 285:19 Line - 126:3. 134:17, 134:23, 135:19, 135:20, 179:7, 246:21, 248:7 Link - 149:6,

149:18, 149:22, 150:4, 150:19, 157:6 **Linking - 103:1** List - 4:10, 80:6, 80:9 Listed - 129:19 Lit - 1:11 Literature - 35:20, 38:1, 78:25, 83:20, 153:15, 216:20 Litigation - 16:12, 26:8, 43:15, 43:17, 58:4, 102:9, 102:12, 119:17, 136:2, 144:24, 145:3, 145:9, 168:24, 170:8, 216:17, 223:1, 230:18, 273:16, 286:15, 292:16 **Lives -** 26:22, 40:21, 59:16, 147:13, 216:16, 217:21 **Lobbying - 260:5 Locations - 292:20 Lockstep - 152:8 Logical - 172:19** Long - 38:16, 125:23, 179:25, 213:5, 214:12, 220:3, 226:19, 243:20, 244:12, 252:20, 253:4, 256:3, 294:24 Longer - 137:19, 175:10, 182:16, 202:4, 264:7, 270:4 Look - 24:5, 24:8, 24:9, 51:2, 55:8, 63:15, 69:20, 74:15, 83:25, 84:3, 84:25, 90:13, 94:17, 97:16, 112:2, 114:23, 118:8, 134:11, 175:22, 177:7, 205:11, 219:3, 224:20, 245:22, 272:25, 273:2, 282:9 Looked - 38:12, 61:20, 84:24, 117:24, 175:15, 190:19, 207:4, 215:24, 222:4, 256:2 **Looking -** 5:13, 7:7, 38:14, 139:23, 191:4, 267:18 Loop - 199:24

231:17, 234:6,

Losing - 250:22, 251:1, 251:7 Loss - 44:2. 110:18, 144:7, 145:6, 145:12, 145:16, 179:21, 216:14, 232:25, 233:1, 237:14, 257:23, 284:6 **Losses -** 45:5, 57:5, 146:11, 170:6 Lost - 58:14, 178:18, 271:20 **Lot -** 3:21, 4:13, 4:19, 6:13, 10:8, 12:6, 12:25, 26:16, 32:7, 32:19, 32:23, 37:23, 45:14, 48:2, 52:22, 57:2, 72:5, 78:24, 106:14, 122:7, 125:14, 131:16, 132:6, 132:10, 142:1, 164:19, 180:24, 186:4, 187:7, 197:8, 203:5, 203:13, 210:9, 212:3, 217:10, 220:21, 233:3, 234:4, 234:22, 237:16, 252:9, 288:20, 291:22 **Low -** 37:9, 37:13, 37:14, 37:18, 79:25 Lower - 79:23, 96:18, 190:14 Lunch - 226:3

М

Machine - 236:6 Madam - 1:7, 21:10, 22:21, 23:24, 54:16, 54:20, 55:9, 95:6, 118:5, 118:18, 118:24, 159:2, 223:18, 227:13, 228:19, 229:19, 236:3, 239:13, 259:10, 276:18, 277:25, 278:16, 279:15, 291:24, 292:2, 292:3, 295:7 Magnifying - 294:1 2, 294:13 Main - 210:5, 214:1 **Maintain -** 263:4, 279:5 Maintained - 121:1 1, 269:2, 288:8

Maintenance - 165

98:13, 233:13 Make - 6:6, 6:8, 7:20, 25:21, 26:7, 55:4, 80:9, 100:23, 101:20, 109:25, 113:5, 113:14, 113:18, 113:19, 113:23, 114:7, 114:14, 114:25, 116:24, 117:22, 118:10, 131:22, 144:13, 145:15, 146:4, 149:22, 169:7, 169:8, 172:13, 212:6, 212:15, 229:13, 245:25, 247:23, 257:8, 263:15, 266:9, 268:16, 274:2, 275:25, 277:10, 278:14, 281:12, 284:22, 289:15 Makeup - 125:20 Making - 6:11, 12:9, 12:10, 32:13, 32:19, 47:11, 181:24, 201:19, 212:10, 212:14, 215:2, 251:8, 253:21, 273:21, 277:4, 293:2 Malpractice - 36:1 5, 39:3 Man - 56:25 Manage - 13:16. 164:14, 271:22 Management - 3:1, 4:21, 5:6, 38:7, 73:3, 91:5, 164:20, 165:3 Manager - 244:3, 244:9 Managing - 164:5 **Mandate - 279:7** Mandatory - 116:2 5, 133:23 **Manifest - 224:18** Manifests - 224:18 **Manual -** 7:11, 8:17 **Manuals - 67:2** Many - 5:3, 9:20, 31:2, 33:4, 33:10, 33:12, 34:8, 34:9, 38:13, 38:21, 39:24, 41:7, 45:5, 45:6, 51:5, 61:20, 70:20, 71:5, 71:15,

:15, 165:18

Major - 18:1

Majority - 98:6,

80:6, 80:7, 93:4, 104:15, 105:19, 120:16, 122:14, 123:19, 142:21, 153:18, 160:1, 174:11, 176:8, 176:19, 177:5, 181:4, 188:9, 188:12, 199:19, 224:16, 238:21, 240:7, 289:12 Marathons - 90:9 March - 243:22, 272:8, 278:1 Margin - 292:25 Mark - 51:19, 126:4 Marketing - 244:7 Marks - 152:7 Marshall - 244:25, 245:2, 245:6, 245:13, 258:22, 262:25, 263:2, 281:7 Massage - 33:16, 41:8, 74:6, 77:10, 92:3, 99:1, 104:3, 104:4, 104:10, 104:14, 104:20, 107:23, 165:20, 173:4, 175:17, 195:7, 196:21, 196:23, 197:2, 207:16, 208:6, 208:10, 283:13 Master's - 63:19 **Materials** - 66:25, 239:19 **Math -** 175:14 Matters - 233:25 Maximize - 58:8, 166:11, 166:22, 167:7 **Maximum - 97:2**, 97:7, 97:10, 97:14, 100:25, 101:5, 240:18 Mckay - 245:2 Mcmaster - 8:12, 72:14 Meaningful - 122:1 **Means -** 27:12, 151:23, 173:25, 201:3, 204:12, 204:16, 224:7, 224:8. 260:13. 293:14 Meant - 4:22, 43:19, 192:23, 281:10, 293:5

Measure - 157:15, 157:18 Mechanism - 41:20 , 50:20, 141:3, 145:4, 222:22 Mechanisms - 149: 12, 160:10, 222:25 Media - 220:20, 244:8, 273:17, 273:20, 273:22, 275:5, 277:5, 277:17, 292:17, 292:21, 292:24, 294:3, 294:6, 294:9 Medical/ **Legal -** 112:6, 114:4 Medicals - 233:22, 233:23 Medication - 37:17 , 164:17, 221:1, 221:13, 221:16, 221:17, 221:20, 221:23, 222:3 Medications - 220: 18 Medicine - 5:10, 27:13, 35:1, 35:3 Meet - 143:7, 284:22, 291:19 **Meetings - 197:10** Member - 40:22, 69:21, 71:3, 71:21, 71:24, 84:15, 230:11, 282:6 **Members -** 71:1, 71:5, 71:10, 72:2, 72:8, 185:13, 225:17, 229:20, 295:8 Mental - 86:14, 89:6, 129:22 Merit - 85:22, 133:21 Met - 7:1 Methodology - 199 :2 Methods - 267:24 **Mhas -** 238:19 **MIG** - 85:14, 268:1, 283:16 Mild - 28:8, 38:17 Mildly - 129:8 Million - 5:19, 235:19, 235:24, 253:13. 271:13 Millions - 236:25, 265:24 Mine - 9:20, 94:13, 106:1, 106:18 Minimally - 31:8

Minimizing - 91:19 Minimum - 225:24 Minister - 69:24. 242:13, 265:8, 265:9 **Ministry - 263:3 Mis** - 116:11 Miscarriage - 257: Misconstrued - 27 5:7, 275:8 Misik - 62:3, 62:16, 62:23, 124:22, 134:4, 140:17, 158:10, 158:12, 158:14, 256:12 Misimpressions -294:7 Misinformed - 96:1 Misinterpret - 294: Misinterpretation -292:22 Misinterpreted - 2 93:21 Misinterpreting - 1 51:11 Misrepresenting -155:14 **Miss -** 22:12, 58:13 Missed - 13:17, 205:7 **Missing -** 3:3, 57:20, 237:3 Mistake - 23:1 **Mistruth - 274:19** Misunders**tanding - 48:3** Misused - 293:22 Mitigate - 150:14, 179:20 Mixed - 12:19, 12:24, 13:21 Modalities - 3:13 Model - 30:22 Models - 30:23 Moderate - 38:18 Modest - 28:16 Monday - 22:8, 23:12, 41:3, 58:24, 58:25, 89:11, 103:15, 194:12 Money - 6:2, 12:6, 33:5, 33:10, 39:22, 43:23, 57:2, 57:3, 100:17, 161:21, 234:11, 246:12, 250:23, 251:1, 251:8, 252:9,

Meantime - 271:13

253:17, 253:21,

254:5, 265:20, 271:15, 271:19 **Month -** 105:14, 139:22 Monthly - 48:8, 144:15, 186:11 Months - 28:2, 28:12, 28:25, 33:13, 49:3, 51:21, 51:24, 86:17, 86:23, 105:15, 128:17, 134:19, 135:4, 135:10, 135:21, 135:22, 135:23, 136:1, 136:7, 136:23, 141:1, 144:10, 147:9, 156:23, 176:12, 190:13, 205:3, 241:6 Moose - 44:16, 171:12 Morning - 1:3, 1:21, 1:22, 226:6, 226:8, 280:18, 295:13 Mother - 90:8 Mothers - 90:8. 103:17 Motivated - 158:6 Motivation - 109:1 9, 110:7 Motor - 4:5, 59:1, 77:6, 77:12, 77:23, 87:23, 88:13, 89:10, 91:22, 202:18, 203:1, 252:16, 252:18, 272:15 Motorist - 247:11 **Motorists - 271:14**, 288:22 **Mount - 269:18** Mounting - 243:3 Move - 31:24, 117:21, 124:19, 133:17, 159:12, 175:25, 207:7, 247:1, 250:9 Moved - 10:25, 244:6 Movement - 35:6, 164:4, 221:2 Moving - 150:21 Much - 2:6, 22:11, 34:13, 48:22, 54:8, 54:11, 85:18, 118:14, 120:22, 126:2, 129:8, 138:12, 140:2, 158:20, 159:1,

164:22, 170:20, 175:16, 183:15, 205:21, 214:16, 215:14, 216:5, 217:11, 223:7, 223:9, 229:19, 231:25, 233:10, 234:25, 235:3, 236:11, 241:3, 249:11, 258:20, 271:21, 271:22, 280:23, 284:11, 289:24, 290:25, 291:4, 291:6, 291:9 Multiple - 74:23, 196:4, 197:6 Musculoskeletal -2:12, 2:22, 4:3, 28:3, 128:24, 202:24, 208:16 Mutual - 241:4 Myasthenia - 12:21 35:24 Myths - 242:4

Ν

NAD - 28:5, 129:24 Nail - 155:18 Narrative - 85:12 **National - 72:12**, 220:22 **Natural - 128:16** Naturopath - 196:2 Naturopathy - 33:1 Navigate - 5:5. 248:19 Navigating - 47:3 Navigators - 4:22 Necessary - 6:4, 43:20, 58:13, 141:10, 176:2, 233:13, 252:21, 257:6 Neck - 28:3, 28:8, 34:7, 38:7, 38:18, 68:5, 79:8, 81:20, 81:22, 81:23, 82:19, 83:4, 87:9, 87:11, 87:16, 87:19, 87:20, 128:24, 129:24, 131:8, 132:12, 132:13, 132:14, 132:15, 136:22, 136:25, 194:14 **Needed -** 3:17, 6:7, 103:17, 161:22, 184:6, 206:2,

206:24, 239:7

Needing - 125:2

Nerve - 3:11, 28:7 **Network -** 164:3 **Networks - 164:11** New - 47:23, 48:4, 49:11, 53:12, 64:6, 64:17, 64:23, 69:23, 73:18, 74:21, 75:15, 84:5, 128:3, 131:15, 184:7, 184:15, 184:16, 186:8, 192:18, 200:21, 210:3, 211:1, 212:20, 213:8, 213:24, 214:7, 241:7, 289:14 Newfoundland - 1 3:8, 15:13, 25:18, 39:17, 41:16, 42:10, 76:19, 82:14, 94:11, 94:13, 100:9, 115:24, 117:16, 154:4, 160:15, 161:23, 162:12, 164:8, 184:17, 201:9, 203:7, 213:9, 213:14, 248:8, 256:19, 266:5, 266:10, 266:24, 267:2 Niagara - 293:17 Nine - 191:8. 271:13 **Nobody - 35:10 Nobody's -** 197:10 Non - 30:6, 45:4, 71:1, 71:3, 71:10, 71:21, 72:2, 72:7, 84:15, 145:16, 146:10, 149:21, 154:6, 170:5, 217:15 Nor - 246:23 Normal - 35:7, 103:7, 176:15, 220:1, 277:7 Normally - 135:25, 156:21, 202:7 **North -** 11:1 Note - 218:9. 218:12 Noted - 273:3 **Notes - 218:6** Notice - 1:9, 3:2 **Nova -** 49:11. 50:3. 53:12, 53:17, 53:22, 64:6, 64:16, 64:23, 65:2, 65:7,

68:24, 69:2, 73:18, 73:24, 74:7, 74:21, 75:14, 84:5, 128:2, 192:1, 192:18, 201:1, 204:8, 206:12, 207:10, 211:3 **November - 254:19** Nuance - 138:12 Numbered - 84:1 **Numbers - 87:21**, 98:22, 98:24, 172:3, 248:20, 261:11, 262:12, 262:13, 263:5 0 **Objected - 109:24** Objection - 56:14, 58:1

Observations - 26 1:5 **Observed - 175:1** Obstructs - 113:3 Occasional - 143:1 7, 143:22 Occasions - 64:11, 94:20, 94:21, 293:16 **Occult - 205:8** Occupation - 30:8 Occupational - 20 7:18 Occur - 294:2 **Occurred -** 19:24, 105:19, 288:20 Occurs - 108:18, 141:6 October - 69:21 Offer - 4:4, 7:5, 26:11, 34:17, 36:15, 36:22, 39:2, 72:3, 72:8, 79:2, 147:1, 169:1 Offered - 26:4, 39:21, 46:12, 169:4 **Offers -** 139:12 Office - 82:23, 107:3, 244:4, 248:4 Officials - 239:9, 245:20, 257:3, 260:14, 266:7 Offloading - 255:3 O'flaherty - 23:23, 54:18, 55:6,

223:13, 223:14,

236:2, 278:15,

278:19, 279:4,

279:9, 294:22,

Often - 4:10, 27:10,

295:2

28:11, 28:24, 33:17, 36:6, 36:8, 37:25, 38:4, 40:3, 45:8, 45:19, 49:19, 78:13, 82:2, 89:5, 112:4, 129:18, 129:21, 138:7, 160:8, 160:13, 198:8, 214:23, 219:7, 221:13, 251:5, 280:9, 285:19, 286:11 Oftentimes - 80:19 , 200:2, 211:5. 233:22, 269:1, 269:16 **OHIP -** 265:22 **Old -** 176:5, 267:20 Older - 175:9, 291:12 Oliver - 61:15, 96:23, 97:18 **Ones -** 78:4, 79:6, 79:7, 102:15, 167:20 One's - 30:2 Ongoing - 40:14, 43:23, 48:1, 49:2, 72:20, 144:8, 144:16, 197:20, 206:6, 257:12, 273:8 **Online -** 11:6, 11:10, 281:17, 289:2 Ontario's - 242:10, 246:1 **Onus -** 206:17 **Opened -** 175:21 **Opener -** 9:4 Operations - 255:1 **Opinion -** 58:19, 58:20, 59:19, 59:20, 85:6, 163:21, 211:13, 211:23, 211:24, 261:1 **Opinions - 112:7**, 112:17, 112:19, 114:5 Opportunities - 27 Opposed - 126:21, 145:15, 145:25 **Opposing -** 76:11, 273:23, 277:6

65:10, 68:19,

68:21, 68:22,

Optima - 28:19,

Option - 164:12,

269:16, 284:10

70:8, 88:19, 126:16

Optionally - 202:20 Order - 42:11, 54:20, 179:19, 247:15, 257:8, 257:15, 264:15, 289:17 Organization - 30: 12, 30:16, 174:6, 224:13 Organizations - 3: 10, 9:9, 13:10, 14:17, 174:25 Orientation - 263:7 Original - 208:9 Originally - 287:14 **Ornery - 135:8** Osborne - 112:11 **OSFI - 248:19** Ostensibly - 119:1 Otherwise - 37:7, 109:16, 278:12 OTLA - 230:12, 231:4 Ourselves - 23:2. 271:19 Outcomes - 34:10, 92:18, 96:14, 102:14, 220:3 Outline - 14:25 Outlined - 85:11, 130:17 Outpatient - 2:18, 2:19 Overestimate - 25 7:22 Overlooked - 205: Oversight - 23:25 Own - 17:24, 42:19, 43:25, 47:20, 97:24, 108:11, 122:20, 123:7, 124:1, 146:15, 164:2, 189:1, 201:11, 202:2, 214:15, 216:10, 221:6, 223:2, 241:23, 243:1, 269:8, 273:25

Р

Paces - 219:5 Pack - 38:4 Packs - 38:6 Paid - 43:25, 51:7, 98:20, 124:1, 145:17, 167:21, 200:10, 203:12, 269:5 Painkillers - 220:1 **Palpable - 89:14 Paltrow -** 32:13 Pan - 191:21 Panel - 22:8, 59:2, 70:9, 70:13, 70:20, 71:5, 84:15, 84:19, 84:24, 96:3, 187:22, 294:20 Paperwork - 11:13, 47:10, 181:9 Paramedics - 49:2 Parcel - 131:9 **Parroted - 262:25** Participants - 282: Participate - 40:20 Participated - 71:2 Participating - 67: 12 Participation - 31: Particularly - 7:7, 38:7, 47:24, 164:6 Parties - 2:10, 168:17, 168:18, 170:15, 229:14, 245:19, 246:12, 273:23 **Partner - 3:25** Partnership - 10:2 **Parts -** 48:19, 59:7, 59:10 Party - 9:22, 9:24, 9:25, 45:10, 45:14, 98:5, 167:23, 169:9, 216:25, 227:20, 241:19, 277:6 **Partying - 272:24** Party's - 97:24 Pass - 242:12 Passed - 23:8, 141:8, 141:14, 157:10, 258:20 Passenger - 96:25 **Passing -** 157:11 Passions - 11:17 **Passive - 79:1** Past - 123:16, 186:9, 197:5, 230:18, 230:20, 232:25, 233:1, 288:7

Patient - 12:19,

38:10, 39:10,

33:19, 33:24, 37:2,

39:13, 39:23, 45:19, 49:15, 50:17, 51:25, 52:1, 78:15, 80:20, 80:22, 105:13, 105:15, 107:2, 107:4, 114:19, 144:8, 188:24, 193:14, 196:6, 196:22, 198:22, 198:23, 209:21, 210:14, 215:4, 219:3, 221:14 **Patients - 31:2,** 35:24, 36:4, 39:24, 40:12, 46:20, 67:25, 86:17, 86:23, 94:7, 103:5, 125:1, 134:5, 134:18, 135:3, 135:9, 140:19, 146:2, 146:18, 149:5, 157:8, 159:14, 195:25, 197:6, 199:20, 219:7, 221:22 Patient's - 52:19, 106:19 Pattern - 131:10, 144:13, 243:2, 243:5 Patters - 220:24 **Pause -** 205:12 Pay - 12:6, 39:18, 42:6, 42:11, 50:18, 50:20, 51:9, 52:20, 171:24, 172:16, 173:6, 201:12, 202:3, 203:7, 235:25, 269:7, 270:12, 271:21 **Payable - 98:4**, 284:18 Payer - 5:1, 5:3, 200:24, 201:2, 201:20, 202:5, 202:9, 202:16 Paying - 75:24, 75:25, 154:8, 154:10, 154:13, 158:18, 162:2, 190:9, 190:11, 197:10, 231:25, 236:16 **Payment - 50:14 Payments - 188:16** Pecuniary - 45:4, 45:5, 57:5, 144:7, 144:18, 145:5, 145:16, 146:11, 149:21, 154:7,

166:1, 170:5, 217:15 **PEI - 128:3 Pension - 175:15 Perceive - 107:1** Perceived - 48:24, 145:18, 201:19 **Percent - 3:19**, 6:22, 35:5, 43:6, 43:7, 86:16, 86:22, 87:18, 103:8, 134:18, 135:2, 135:9, 136:21, 136:24, 153:16, 156:22, 191:3, 233:1, 233:2, 233:25, 241:15, 241:17, 249:8, 249:15, 250:13, 250:16, 252:24, 256:1, 288:17, 289:1, 289:3 Percentage - 6:17, 6:20, 29:2, 117:4, 117:9, 117:15 Perception - 33:11, 217:14, 217:16 **Perfect - 198:4** Perfectly - 37:5, 44:11, 198:10 Performance - 247 **Perhaps - 20:7.** 22:14, 39:17, 66:22, 114:20, 114:21, 118:5, 164:12, 187:4, 201:11, 218:5, 222:25, 231:3, 251:12, 261:8, 275:19 **Period -** 6:14, 51:20, 57:15, 120:6, 204:13, 204:18, 204:19, 205:19, 206:14, 241:21, 249:4 **Periods -** 51:17, 147:17 **Perjury - 277:21 Perland - 264:19** Permanent - 28:13, 232:14, 242:21, 254:15, 284:20, 290:9, 290:20, 291:8 Permit - 197:12 Perplexed - 114:21 **Personal - 30:21**, 69:23, 70:1, 80:24,

103:10, 149:8,

273:15, 292:15, 293:2, 294:4, 294:5 Personally - 14:3, 160:2, 187:10 **Persons - 42:3**, 42:8, 42:15, 43:11, 85:12, 86:11, 92:19, 188:9, 216:15 Person's - 29:7, 29:22, 30:18, 43:25, 140:5, 174:9, 181:15, 197:25, 198:5, 207:15 Perspective - 150: 24, 188:18, 217:6, 226:24 **Phone - 192:25** Photographs - 272 **Phrase - 116:6** Physiatrist - 106:1 9, 106:21, 222:19 **Physical -** 2:7, 4:1, 5:10, 27:18, 86:14, 88:14, 89:6, 89:12, 92:1, 127:23, 129:22, 129:25, 130:7, 131:5, 157:21, 209:4, 209:8, 209:9, 219:4, 224:1, 224:6, 224:25 Physically - 89:12, 189:17 Physician - 63:24. 82:2, 83:12, 94:24, 164:16, 198:1, 198:2, 198:5, 199:4, 199:20, 199:24, 200:15, 208:2, 209:18, 217:24, 221:18, 221:19, 221:23, 222:1 Physicians - 4:18, 80:15, 81:13, 81:14, 93:11, 133:25, 188:14, 199:7, 199:17, 200:3, 207:10, 208:13, 209:11, 220:25 Physician's - 217: 25 Physio - 41:8. 104:4, 175:17, 198:6, 199:23 Physiotherapist -2:24, 10:16, 12:17, 13:23, 35:22, 38:3,

40:7, 40:10, 40:11, 50:10, 50:11, 63:18, 75:12, 80:13, 82:11, 104:9, 104:13, 104:20, 107:21, 107:23, 120:1, 172:23, 186:22, 193:16, 194:23, 195:6, 196:1, 198:13, 199:22, 207:22, 211:22, 221:11 Physiotherapists -81:21, 82:9, 92:2, 106:7, 106:9, 106:10, 106:14, 199:12, 199:19, 207:11, 208:13, 209:11, 219:1 Physiotherapist's **-** 163:21, 173:3 Physiotherapy - 2: 11, 2:19, 13:3, 14:2, 33:15, 74:5, 74:8, 75:9, 75:10, 77:16, 99:2, 104:3, 121:6, 141:24, 158:1, 164:16, 185:11, 186:23, 187:1, 193:12, 194:15, 196:21, 196:22, 197:1, 212:1, 283:14 **Picked -** 5:20, 148:17 **Picking -** 173:18 Picks - 224:24 **Picture - 293:19** Pictures - 22:10, 38:13, 273:16, 275:7, 292:16, 292:22 Piece - 6:5, 12:12, 30:25, 35:2, 39:20, 47:1, 131:8, 199:18, 200:4, 275:1, 279:13 **Pieces -** 8:9, 8:16 **Pill -** 35:5, 35:6 **Pitfalls -** 257:15 Place - 13:6, 59:18, 82:12, 149:15, 160:16, 171:19, 191:1, 208:25, 210:4 **Placebo - 37:22 Placed - 266:5** Plaintiff - 4:15, 186:2, 273:5, 273:7 Plaintiffs - 122:18, 126:24, 252:6,

273:14, 275:3, 292:14 **Plaintiff's - 273:25 Plan - 222:18 Planning - 174:24 Plans - 185:8 Plateaued - 143:20 Platform - 11:6**, 11.16 Play - 49:5, 112:25, 165:23, 209:23 **Playing - 138:9 Plead -** 272:9 Pocket - 43:23. 269:8 **Pointed - 265:25 Pointing - 34:12** Points - 16:8, 18:5, 46:10, 183:24, 239:3, 243:11, 255:24 **Policies - 120:21**, 235:22, 240:14 **Policy -** 11:3, 13:4, 15:4, 142:22, 167:17, 235:4, 235:20, 235:24, 240:22, 246:17, 246:24, 259:1, 288:18 Policyholder - 189: 2, 193:17 Policyholders - 42: Political - 257:2 Politicians - 237:2 0, 257:9 **Poor -** 102:14 Poorer - 34:7, 34:10 **Popular - 32:8**, 293:18 Population - 38:19, 86:10, 136:21, 136:24, 173:25 Populations - 87:2 Portray - 292:23 **Position -** 57:23, 58:7, 91:24, 114:6, 197:17, 247:17, 254:2, 260:1, 260:2 **Positions - 123:20**, 165:18 Possibilities - 215: Possibility - 141:1 Post - 2:23, 28:9, 51:21, 129:9,

190:10, 272:9,

273:19, 277:4, 277:16, 292:20 Posted - 276:8. 276:24, 278:1, 278:7 **Poster - 68:5 Posting - 273:16**, 292:16 Posts - 272:22, 273:22, 292:24 Posttraumatic - 17 8:4 **Posture - 217:2 Potholes - 171:14 Pounds - 219:10 Power - 48:16 Practical - 117:23**, 148:24 Practically - 205:2 **Practice - 2:13**, 13:2, 14:19, 37:23, 38:2, 40:12, 49:16, 77:22, 104:5, 159:12, 173:10, 174:16, 185:15, 185:17, 186:20, 195:16 Practising - 172:25 **Practitioner - 149**: 4, 196:11, 206:21, 206:22, 220:17, 268:21 Practitioner's - 13 2:20 Pre - 29:22, 51:6, 115:4, 115:20, 115:25, 138:5, 150:9, 150:17, 163:12, 163:17, 216:16, 217:21, 268:13 Precisely - 132:19 **Predict - 168:2** Predicting - 29:9, 226:22 **Prefer -** 25:1, 55:3 Prejudgment - 232 :24 Preliminary - 185:2 0, 238:13 **Premium -** 167:16, 167:21, 167:25, 214:21, 235:10, 249:13, 288:24, 289:1 Premiums - 12:5, 42:11, 153:10, 167:11, 167:22, 181:23, 202:7, 231:25, 232:6,

232:8, 235:6, 235:8, 235:25, 239:5, 239:6, 241:13, 241:14, 242:2, 246:18, 246:21, 250:4, 253:24, 253:25, 254:3, 271:14, 288:6, 288:12, 288:16, 288:17, 289:10 **Prepare -** 84:25 **Prepared - 16:20**, 19:9, 61:15, 76:19, 80:9, 80:14, 97:17, 142:12, 143:4, 263:2, 286:19 Prescribe - 3:15, 37:5, 39:11, 42:16, 81:22, 94:2, 94:5, 113:1 Prescribed - 3:20, 37:17, 80:21, 82:20, 93:11, 93:20, 94:24, 95:4 Prescribes - 83:12 Prescribing - 38:2 4, 39:5, 81:15, 83:3, 83:18, 220:9, 220:24 Prescription - 104: 2, 218:4, 220:13, 220:18, 221:8, 221:22 Prescriptive - 36:2 0, 37:7, 83:17 Present - 18:10, 25:15, 72:13, 73:2, 89:5, 129:22, 136:22, 225:21, 226:14, 228:5, 229:23, 230:21, 232:6, 254:13, 254:18 Presentation - 20: 13, 20:15, 20:17, 20:23, 21:17, 22:1, 22:2, 54:23, 68:4, 118:8, 144:23, 149:25, 226:19, 226:23, 229:13, 229:20, 236:4 **Presentations - 74** Presented - 19:4, 19:19 Presenter - 1:5, 223:16 Presenters - 22:3, 224:16, 226:8

President - 230:19,

230:20, 240:6 **Pressure - 257:2** Presumably - 104: 21, 192:18 Prevalence - 137:1 **Previous - 165:1**, 264:5, 270:7 Previously - 230:2 5, 249:25, 263:1 **Price - 240:8 Principal - 278:18**, 279:22 **Print - 11:25 Printed - 55:1** Prior - 48:6, 48:23, 140:6, 185:7, 185:13, 190:6, 198:9, 252:15 **Private -** 2:13, 4:11, 5:1, 9:10, 11:18, 12:3, 13:6, 40:12, 96:24, 166:16, 166:20, 166:21, 185:14, 185:17, 197:8, 256:23 Privileged - 247:17 Privileges - 247:18 **Probable - 141:18** Problem - 112:4, 147:21, 160:14, 171:15, 177:23, 188:6, 188:17, 188:19, 199:21, 209:14, 210:19, 214:23, 214:25, 222:21, 225:18, 227:25, 233:11, 264:12, 265:25, 289:11 Problematic - 270: **Problems - 12:23**, 45:16, 108:22, 109:1, 109:5, 112:13, 136:3, 168:14, 173:1, 210:5, 212:3, 212:20, 214:1, 215:7, 256:25, 291:10 Procedures - 204: Proceed - 24:17, 24:21, 116:4 **Produce - 185:24 Produced - 139:24 Product - 232:6,** 241:7, 251:1, 257:3, 258:9, 258:21, 281:8

Profession - 81:5. 83:3, 216:2, 221:7 Professional - 9:9. 9:11, 13:10, 14:17, 33:19, 33:22, 48:11, 50:13, 73:25, 74:2, 74:11, 74:25, 75:7, 83:18, 121:7, 121:12, 121:17, 149:7, 158:9, 165:17, 206:1, 206:4, 211:13, 222:8 Professionally - 10 4:22 Professionals - 9:1 6, 10:18, 10:20, 26:25, 27:9, 27:14, 32:3, 35:19, 36:18, 37:8, 47:17, 48:22, 48:24, 52:24, 106:25, 110:4, 137:4, 138:17, 159:14, 170:23, 208:11, 208:14, 210:11, 212:5, 222:5 Professions - 207: **Professor - 248:24 Profit - 256:8 Profitability - 231**: 23, 243:6, 248:23, 249:6, 250:2, 250:9, 253:12 Profitable - 257:4 **Profits - 166:11**, 166:22, 167:8 Prognosis - 212:1 **Program - 3:17**, 5:21, 6:19, 7:10, 7:12, 35:3, 105:14, 106:20, 106:21, 106:22, 192:9 **Programs - 14:14**, 73:9, 82:11 **Progress -** 51:18, 52:2, 52:15, 209:5 **Prohibit -** 83:17 **Project -** 8:11, 70:8 Prolonged - 29:2, 39:16, 40:14, 40:17, 45:24, 57:15, 59:15, 93:16, 145:21, 145:22, 153:25 **Promised - 251:15 Promote -** 10:23, 35:16, 43:18, 43:21, 92:18, 141:11

Promoting - 158:3 Promotion - 148:2 **Proper -** 274:18, 278:25 **Properly - 81:6**, 237:7, 269:24 **Property - 239:1**, 247:3 Proponent - 65:20, 155:5 **Proposal - 57:11**, 116:24, 155:24, 191:24, 226:14 Proposals - 101:15 , 123:10 **Proposed - 27:15**, 132:7 **Pros -** 76:9 Prospects - 102:13 **Protect - 39:2**, 55:17, 244:21, 266:20 Protection - 36:15 **Protocol -** 49:14, 51:1, 51:8, 53:4, 116:15, 152:21, 171:2, 179:24, 181:10, 204:5, 204:17, 233:4 Protocols - 15:10, 16:11, 16:25, 26:7, 26:14, 35:18, 47:25, 53:20, 54:5, 56:19, 64:5, 65:15, 74:20, 75:17, 90:20, 90:23, 114:24, 119:15, 133:20, 138:21, 148:22, 149:3, 150:3, 150:8, 150:20, 150:21, 152:6, 154:1, 155:6, 156:20, 157:8, 171:18, 172:13, 174:19, 179:8, 180:11, 180:18, 191:1, 192:2, 196:9, 196:10, 197:12, 200:7, 203:20, 204:25, 207:2, 207:13, 213:8, 233:5 **Proved - 242:21 Proven - 39:8 Provide - 18:9.** 22:25, 43:3, 43:19, 46:6, 81:11, 94:23,

192:3, 211:23,

211:24, 246:21,

278:3 **Provided - 21:11**, 21:22, 22:7, 22:16, 22:20, 22:23, 44:5, 59:4, 93:10, 113:25, 182:18, 216:23, 246:19, 275:20 Provider - 9:5, 11:11, 37:1, 50:25, 51:24, 57:20, 180:20, 181:3, 181:12, 188:14, 209:9 Providers - 11:7. 13:15, 32:2, 34:10, 37:25, 42:16, 52:7, 52:14, 93:12, 186:1, 188:10, 196:5, 197:7, 203:13, 207:12, 208:16, 209:11, 212:14, 215:1 Provides - 92:1. 233:7 **Providing - 273:22 Province - 42:5**, 46:14, 82:19, 92:25, 96:2, 97:1, 99:3, 104:11, 105:24, 107:13, 111:6, 111:10, 115:2, 115:14, 116:8, 117:4, 134:8, 151:25, 164:2, 171:7, 184:19, 235:11, 236:18, 251:23, 257:14, 271:7, 289:5, 289:7 Provinces - 7:14, 12:4, 12:7, 13:5, 13:8, 15:8, 29:21, 41:19, 54:9, 65:13, 65:19, 84:5, 88:7, 111:11, 128:4, 139:4, 139:17, 139:18, 159:16, 160:9, 164:5, 170:8, 179:19, 185:1, 208:11, 256:23 Provincial - 236:24 Provisions - 203:2 Provocating - 242: **Proxy - 100:4**, 190:20 Psychiatric - 268:5 Psychological - 27 :18, 28:10, 29:5, 86:14, 88:8, 88:15,

89:6, 89:13, 90:17, 90:24, 91:10, 91:13, 91:20, 92:6, 127:24, 129:9, 129:23, 129:25, 130:8, 178:10, 207:17, 209:3, 209:5, 209:13, 209:14, 209:19, 224:25, 268:5, 293:9 Psychologically -90:16, 174:15, 177:22 Psychologist - 151 :2, 209:22 Psychotherapy - 2 77:15 **PUB -** 21:14, 23:8, 256:19 Public - 4:25, 11:21, 32:25, 33:3, 46:7, 74:24, 92:16, 133:4, 133:7, 133:11, 133:14, 203:10, 229:25, 230:8, 236:21, 244:6, 246:23, 255:4, 265:3, 275:2, 282:7 Publication - 70:14 , 72:2, 126:17, 272:8, 272:10, 272:12, 272:20, 273:1, 273:13 Publications - 66:2 5, 272:7, 277:25 **Publicly -** 4:6, 4:8, 11:23, 248:17, 281:17 **Published - 35:20,** 37:19, 136:20, 267:13, 267:18 Publishing - 220:2 Pulls - 185:6, 185:21 **Pun -** 291:6 Punishment - 146: 13 Purveyors - 242:5 **Purview - 201:23 Push -** 241:12, 253:25 **Pushed - 268:15 Puts -** 44:13, 58:9, 275:1 **Putting -** 16:6, 90:19, 241:23, 257:2

Q Qualification - 95: 22 Qualified - 84:19, 85:1, 94:5, 103:23, 110:1, 112:18, 112:22, 113:4, 113:11, 113:14, 113:17, 113:23, 114:7, 114:9, 114:14 **Qualify -** 127:6, 234:18, 291:5 Quality - 92:19, 162:21, 163:16, 175:24, 176:4, 177:3, 177:8, 237:23 **Quantity - 182:5** Quantum - 168:21, 171:20 Questioning - 54:2 5, 55:6, 292:8 Quick - 281:5 Quicker - 171:19, 172:14 Quickly - 192:14, 193:9, 250:9, 283:12 Quote - 28:18, 129:20, 240:11, 292:11, 292:13 **Quoted -** 87:8 R Radiculopathies -28:7, 129:6 **Radio -** 129:3 Raise - 177:15, 237:10, 245:19,

292:20 Raised - 170:12, 186:5, 236:13, 255:25 Ran - 90:9 **Range -** 85:19 Ranging - 28:1, 128:16 **Rapidly - 188:8 Rarely - 209:1** Rate - 263:12, 263:15 Rates - 12:2, 250:5 Rather - 24:11. 165:3, 209:25 **Ratio -** 255:25 Rationale - 26:5, 85:22, 208:7, 208:9 **Rays - 203:11** Reach - 43:22,

192:24 Reached - 258:10 **React -** 10:11, 125:5 **Readily - 263:6**, 267:24 Reads - 114:17 Ready - 225:12, 225:20 Realistically - 128: 6, 137:18 **Realize - 196:7 Realm -** 110:4, 161:16 Rear - 90:12, 163:5, 282:14 Reason - 14:22, 29:8, 30:11, 33:17, 35:16, 171:8, 174:22, 196:9, 208:21, 266:23, 286:13 Reasonable - 6:3. 43:20, 141:18, 186:19, 187:4, 205:14, 224:15, 252:21, 286:16 **Reasons -** 62:17 **Reassess -** 205:12 Reassurance - 34: **Receipts - 277:13 Receive -** 34:23, 42:3, 150:9, 162:17, 177:24, 188:16 **Received -** 85:13, 95:14, 103:6, 141:16, 146:3, 235:10, 270:9, 273:6, 288:25 Receiving - 103:25 , 179:22, 235:5 Recent - 108:22, 121:3, 251:14, 258:21, 281:16 Recently - 2:8, 53:17, 255:9, 288:21 Recognition - 33:8 Recognize - 32:24, 137:5, 209:17 Recognized - 209: 6, 288:18 Recognizes - 167: Recognizing - 156: Recommend - 55:2 Recommendation

- 25:22, 26:2, 56:10, 56:17, 139:14, 144:14, 146:24, 219:11, 219:19, 274:1 Recommendations - 17:3, 25:17, 32:14, 44:20, 46:5, 55:23, 56:3, 69:25, 75:22, 186:25, 220:1, 220:24 Recommended - 3 3:18, 34:16, 36:13, 56:13, 133:11 Recommending -34:14, 222:20 Reconstruct - 176: 13 **Records - 188:15 Recover - 28:25**, 29:10, 29:13, 39:14, 58:7, 86:17, 86:23, 134:19, 135:3, 135:10, 154:17, 180:1, 180:3, 216:15, 265:11 Recoverable - 270: Recovered - 53:4, 205:5 Recovering - 35:15 **Recovers - 153:22 Recovery -** 10:21, 28:1, 34:7, 36:14, 37:22, 38:17, 43:18, 43:21, 45:3, 46:1, 70:14, 79:4, 126:17, 128:16, 137:2, 138:6, 138:8, 138:10, 142:16, 150:12, 151:10, 152:11, 216:13, 217:16, 217:17, 285:19 Rectified - 188:4 **Red -** 166:23 Redefined - 234:7 **Reduce -** 48:2, 147:18, 147:24, 153:9, 167:11, 167:15, 167:22, 167:25, 171:20, 172:15, 190:17, 191:1. 253:24. 253:25, 288:16 **Reduced -** 98:4, 189:10, 235:6, 252:13, 271:14 **Reducing - 37:22**,

181:23, 288:17 Reduction - 28:16, 168:4, 202:6, 235:8, 241:18, 246:17 Reductions - 241:1 5, 246:24 Referenced - 197:1 8, 281:6 Referrals - 4:14 **Referred -** 21:23, 22:17, 28:19, 70:6, 70:7, 130:6, 239:15, 240:15 **Refers - 248:22 Refine -** 210:20 Reflect - 123:25 **Reform - 73:18,** 187:17, 242:15, 281:13 **Reforms -** 68:7, 74:12, 190:6, 190:7, 241:9, 287:7, 288:13 **Refused -** 95:20 **Refuses -** 186:24 **Refusing - 188:14** Regime - 184:16, 200:22, 210:4, 211:1, 212:21, 213:7, 213:13, 213:24 **Regimes - 184:8 Region - 17:8** Regional - 244:4, 244:9 Registered - 10:16, 63:17, 74:6 **Registrar - 186:18**, 186:20 **Regularly - 108:18,** 250:25 Regulated - 208:10 , 208:12, 208:14 Regulation - 5:17. 27:4, 186:8, 208:24, 290:16, 290:18 Regulations - 234: 5, 234:17 Regulator - 235:11, 246:22, 248:4, 258:10, 263:4 Regulators - 263:1 2, 263:15, 263:16 Rehabilitation - 3: 25, 63:20, 67:3, 98:11, 98:16, 98:17, 103:2, 117:3, 142:17, 217:5, 236:17, 252:19

Reimbursed - 50:1 Reinforce - 6:5 Reiterates - 256:11 Reject - 268:23, 268:24 Relate - 88:7, 283:17 **Relation - 119:13**, 119:14, 120:1, 146:24, 244:8 Relations - 244:4. 244:9, 260:5, 260:9 Relationship - 48:2 3, 56:20, 64:19, 66:1, 66:14, 207:1 Relationships - 54: Relative - 239:6 Relatively - 180:22 Release - 248:14 Releasing - 248:16 Reliance - 207:3 **Relief - 79:2** Reluctant - 176:17 **Relying -** 260:25, 261:4 **Remarks - 240:13 Reminds - 140:16** Reminiscent - 238: **Removing - 267:25** Reparation - 68:4 Repeating - 215:6, 217:12 Repetitive - 40:17 Replacement - 12: **Reported - 98:14.** 98:16, 98:19, 100:11, 255:8 REPORTER - 236: Reporting - 51:17 **Reports - 11:25.** 22:4, 80:14, 80:20, 81:12, 112:6, 114:4, 114:18, 136:21, 173:2, 248:2, 270:2 Representative - 6 9:22, 70:2 Representatives -48:10, 241:24 Represented - 262 :24 Reputation - 263:2 **Request -** 15:25, 18:5, 52:3, 52:10, 55:12 **Require - 104:12**,

107:22, 108:11, 196:11 **Required - 11:23.** 50:6, 51:18, 104:15, 108:1, 206:15, 209:1, 209:14, 247:12 Requirement - 51: **Requires -** 57:14, 203:5, 290:8 Requiring - 190:22 Research - 25:23, 28:18, 34:4, 34:12, 34:13, 36:23, 38:23, 45:23, 72:1, 72:9, 125:15, 145:18 Researcher - 67:12 Researchers - 27:2 1, 28:20, 29:1, 72:5, 129:16, 130:25 **Reserves -** 257:21, 257:22 **Resident - 252:16** Resolution - 87:17, 160:10, 222:22, 222:24, 233:24, 234:1, 252:8, 270:8 **Resolved -** 135:21, 135:25, 136:7 Resolving - 51:23 Resources - 164:3 **Respect - 17:2**, 81:5, 203:19, 205:18, 233:2, 233:15, 245:16, 258:2, 258:11 **Respond - 31:3**, 188:8 **Response - 95:15**, 187:25 Responses - 60:18 Responsibilities -247:19, 247:20 Responsible - 5:18 , 6:2, 92:20, 237:20, 265:9, 276:23 Responsive - 189: 3, 251:15 Restrict - 252:3 Restricted - 211:14 Restriction - 284:2 Restrictions - 293: 25 Result - 8:15, 27:19, 34:10, 92:21, 127:24,

130:8, 170:19, 220:2, 220:15, 224:20, 237:5, 256:8, 261:13, 261:21, 272:14, 273:5 Resulted - 70:14 Resulting - 89:4, 129:21 **Results - 4**:19, 133:5, 241:11 **Resume - 34:21**, 118:16, 119:20, 220:1, 229:3 Resumé - 222:7 Resuming - 35:7 Retained - 76:4 **Retired - 237:15** Return - 30:8, 40:20, 106:20, 110:12, 110:13, 110:15, 163:16, 192:25, 216:15, 217:21, 217:22, 222:18, 222:20, 249:9, 249:15, 250:16 **Returned - 219:17** Revenue - 235:22 **Reverse - 293:3 Reverts - 204:19** Reviewed - 59:3, 59:7, 59:10, 59:11, 59:13, 61:16, 96:24, 191:10, 191:13, 250:1 **Reviews - 258:21** Revisions - 264:3 **Revolves - 214:23 Reward - 102:14 Rights - 47:4**, 234:24, 235:17, 237:18, 246:10, 246:17 Rising - 289:10 Risk - 238:5, 266:18, 266:20, 286:18, 291:13, 292:21 Road - 198:14, 198:15, 231:13 Roebothan - 245:2 **Role -** 6:6, 144:24, 197:17, 214:10, 243:25, 260:13, 278:11 Rolled - 6:23, 138:16 **Rolling - 242:10**, 250:8, 287:13 Room - 37:12,

136:25, 186:3, 188:7 Rooms - 203:11 Round - 235:14 Rule - 107:11, 176:21 Ruled - 141:16 Run - 126:12, 252:7, 286:11, 292:21 Rushed - 229:9 Ryan - 16:4

S **Sadly - 235:6 Safe -** 294:21, 295:1 **Safer - 171:9 Safety -** 2:15 **Sake -** 54:20 **Sales -** 3:8 **Sat -** 84:15 Satisfaction - 187: 19, 187:21 **Satisfied - 139:8**, 262:19 Saving - 157:14, 157:18 Savings - 214:21, 242:14, 242:21, 289:17 **Saw -** 6:20, 80:20, 125:15, 145:3, 191:12, 238:18. 240:5, 240:17, 240:18, 241:13, 241:15, 242:1, 243:1, 245:16, 261:11, 261:22, 261:24, 262:1, 262:3 Scales - 146:12 Scandalous - 274: 1 **Scared - 177:20.** 272:17 **Scenario - 49:18 Schedule - 200:9** Scheduled - 226:1 Schedules - 256:1 Scheduling - 225:1 **Science -** 63:20 Sciences - 2:17 Scientific - 10:9, 37:20, 71:25, 85:22, 86:15, 92:15 Scientist - 71:24,

151:2

Scotia - 49:11. 50:3, 53:12, 53:18, 53:23, 64:6, 64:16, 64:23, 65:2, 65:7, 65:10, 68:19, 68:21, 68:22, 68:24, 69:2, 73:18, 73:25, 74:7, 74:21, 75:15, 84:5, 128:2, 192:1, 192:18, 201:1, 204:8, 206:12, 207:10, 211:4 **Screen - 1:10**, 1:11, 2:2, 20:10, 207:8, 292:18 **Screw - 127:11 Scrutiny - 293:10 Sealed - 169:1** Seated - 118:22 **Second - 47:1**, 55:21, 62:21, 66:23, 73:8, 119:8, 128:5, 132:4, 134:17, 134:23, 159:7, 178:18, 203:24, 205:10, 210:25, 213:3, 278:20 Secondary - 162:1 **Secondly - 181:11 Secret -** 118:24. 119:19, 119:23 **Sector - 12:5**, 197:8, 247:4 **Seeing - 144:10**, 197:6, 209:21, 219:25, 225:21, 241:25, 262:5, 272:18, 289:9 **Seek -** 44:5, 50:7, 282:25, 286:17 **Seeks - 283:12** Seemingly - 93:16 Seen - 23:4, 24:1, 33:10, 33:12, 37:13, 76:21, 80:14, 111:5, 138:24, 139:11, 150:19, 154:4, 159:14, 160:1, 160:3, 160:7, 160:11, 161:4, 172:3, 188:3, 191:10, 194:25, 198:11, 202:17, 205:17, 210:9, 215:7, 221:21,

Sees - 52:12 Segregation - 207: 20 **Seldom -** 251:8 **Select - 168:4 Selected - 243:3** Senior - 174:2, 175:22, 176:3, 176:8, 176:23, 177:1, 237:18, 237:20, 238:5, 285:23, 285:25, 286:4, 291:2, 291:7 **Seniors - 174:1**, 174:23, 175:1, 176:19, 237:12, 291:20 **Sensible - 148:24** Sent - 21:13, 238:19, 240:2 **Separate - 116:15**, 131:9, 165:19 Separately - 75:6 **September - 23:10**, 252:15, 253:9, 286:23 **Sequela - 27:18 Seguelae - 84:8.** 88:6, 90:24, 127:23, 130:6, 130:7, 130:16 **Serious - 27:19,** 28:13, 29:6, 29:16, 29:17, 31:1, 31:11, 89:20, 91:15, 127:25, 130:9, 136:15, 139:13, 139:15, 139:20, 140:4, 150:15, 159:17, 159:21, 161:2, 161:3, 163:15, 178:20, 178:23, 179:5, 180:5, 223:20, 224:11, 224:23, 232:13, 252:5, 253:23, 254:15, 276:2, 284:20, 290:9, 290:20, 290:22, 290:25, 291:8 **Seriously - 237:17**, 258:12 Seriousness - 204: 7, 258:6 **Service - 73:2 Serviced - 189:1** Services - 4:5, 4:11, 4:21, 203:10, 207:17, 208:25, 209:3, 222:14,

255:3, 266:16 Serving - 276:21 **Sessions - 188:20 Set -** 48:6, 50:14, 133:23, 288:17 **Sets -** 50:19 **Setting - 250:4 Settle -** 43:13 Settled - 41:18, 182:14, 250:7 Settlement - 57:17, 127:7, 144:6, 144:18, 145:16, 149:21, 154:6, 154:24, 164:13, 166:1, 175:19, 182:1, 182:17, 214:18 Seven - 140:20, 140:22, 140:24 Several - 2:16, 49:2, 67:1, 122:14, 139:4. 235:9. 238:23, 261:8 **Severe -** 57:4, 91:3, 118:2, 145:22 **Severely - 176:9 Severity - 174:10 Shades - 10:11 Shaft - 126:25 Shall -** 123:11 **Share - 43:3**, 156:25, 236:17 **Shared - 15:16.** 186:12, 203:14 She's - 32:13, 32:19, 176:12 **Shifting -** 237:5 **Shiva -** 222:12 **Shoot -** 250:3 Shortchanging - 2 65:22 **Shorten - 229:12 Shorter -** 152:10, 152:11 **Shortest -** 149:16 **Shortly -** 282:23 **Shoulder -** 176:14 **Shouldn't -** 39:4, 39:15, 42:8, 57:2, 91:2, 198:19, 277:12 **Show -** 25:23, 152:25, 180:2, 240:23, 257:14, 257:23, 262:13 **Showed -** 241:2, 258:4, 258:14, 264:3, 272:22 **Showing -** 38:14

239:4, 259:1, 264:7

236:18, 238:24,

Shown - 27:24,

September 12, 2018
32:9, 32:10, 38:6,
39:6, 45:23, 78:3,
79:2, 128:11, 170:8,
275:19
Shows - 34:4,
38:24, 145:18,
249:6, 262:19
Shy - 291:21
Sick - 44:7
Side - 66:8, 66:12, 161:8, 166:1,
177:12, 221:15,
221:17, 235:4
Sides - 10:13,
188:17
Sign - 143:8,
218:23
Significance - 91:2
0
Significant - 61:3,
88:14, 88:15,
109:5, 231:21,
231:24, 233:20,
234:9, 236:15,
234:9, 236:15, 237:9, 240:10,
246:12, 255:11,
271:2, 289:4
Significantly - 31:9
, 147:13, 205:5,
252:3, 255:13,
261:12, 288:12
Silos - 197:9
Similar - 10:12,
87:22, 192:8, 239:4
Simple - 131:4,
132:14, 195:2,
195:4 Simply - 23:24,
24:3, 33:4, 42:16,
52:10, 73:3, 99:16,
106:10, 113:3,
130:20, 179:15,
215:4, 273:5,
276:18
Simultaneously - 1
31:6
Single - 32:5,
44:25, 90:8,
103:17, 125:1,
196:11
Sit - 78:15, 225:12,
228:16, 230:23
Site - 248:19,
293:18
Sitting - 158:20,
183:17
Situation - 44:9,
44:14, 52:18,
53:12, 58:10,
101:22, 109:15, 120:16, 154:16,
120:16, 154:16,

155:9, 155:11,
100.0, 100.11,
161:7, 162:24,
169:9, 176:23,
170:0, 170:16
178:2, 178:16,
205:13, 216:25,
205:13, 216:25, 235:19, 238:4,
233.19, 230.4,
238:6, 241:25,
284:15
Situations - 111:17
, 160:11, 176:8,
201:21, 217:18,
258:1
Six - 62:3, 86:17,
86:23, 134:19,
135:4, 135:10,
135:20 135:21
135:20, 135:21, 135:23, 135:25,
135:23, 135:25,
136:7, 139:22,
140.22 141.4
140:22, 141:1,
144:10, 156:22,
176:12, 190:13,
241:6, 255:15
Sixth - 84:2
Size - 217:14
Slashed - 240:17
Sleep - 209:16
Slide - 26:19, 30:5,
31:24, 35:15, 42:2,
43:14, 46:9, 55:7
43.14, 40.9, 55.7
Slides - 20:23,
22:1, 22:2, 22:6,
22:10, 22:18, 23:5,
24:25, 25:3, 54:22,
54:25
Small - 8:16, 29:1
Smiling - 292:18,
293:19
Snapshot - 292:23
Snowball - 287:13
Snowboarding - 2
_
72:23
Sober - 205:10 Social - 30:23,
Social - 30:23
40.04 COO.45
40:21, 266:16,
273:17, 273:20,
273:21, 275:5,
277:5, 277:17,
292:16, 292:21,
202.10, 202.21,
292:24, 294:3,
294:9
Societal - 174:17
Societies - 164:10
Society - 40:22,
92:23, 96:20,
32.23, 30.20,
164:10, 220:22,
230:21
Soft - 27:1, 38:15,
38:16, 78:7,
153:18, 175:4,
477.0 040.44
177:2, 219:14,

219:16, 285:15

```
Solely - 19:9,
31:12, 283:17
Solution - 227:23
Someone's - 30:6
Someplace - 149:2
Somewhat - 45:25,
137:9, 240:12
Sonnet - 289:1
Sooner - 153:6
Sore - 131:7
Sought - 29:12,
239:8
Sound - 99:21
Sounds - 172:19,
192:11
Sources - 239:10
South - 12:17
Speaks - 21:2
Special - 273:7
Specialist - 230:17
Specific - 18:5,
83:21, 130:5, 248:6
Specifics - 81:18
Specify - 262:9
Sped - 193:21,
193:23
Speed - 7:20
Speeds - 181:5
Spend - 78:24,
277:14
Spent - 175:16
Sphere - 219:12,
219:13
Spinal - 4:2, 7:8,
12:22, 35:25,
56:25, 102:4, 118:1,
158:2, 158:5,
162:6, 162:11,
162:16, 162:25,
163:13, 230:24,
285:3
Spine - 28:6, 129:2
Spite - 29:12,
43:10, 154:13
Spoken - 92:24,
93:4
Spot - 149:1,
235:15
Spots - 176:11
Sprain - 90:25,
132:22, 209:2
Sprains - 27:2,
27:16, 28:5,
127:21, 129:2
Spring - 15:11
St - 1:23, 242:25,
244:19, 244:20
Staff - 228:12,
230:11
Stage - 138:23,
```

```
187:10, 278:24
Stakeholder - 47:2
1, 48:6, 49:2,
72:13, 185:19,
185:23, 186:11,
187:13
Stakeholders - 26:
18, 46:8, 48:9,
74:24, 158:8,
185:7, 185:8,
185:22, 212:12,
257:9
Stand - 290:17
Standard - 11:24.
108:6, 224:2
Standing - 63:18
Stands - 284:24
Start - 27:9, 92:10,
181:2, 205:6,
209:4, 209:8,
227:24, 228:4,
228:9, 230:5,
231:13, 234:21,
277:11, 283:8
Started - 2:11,
3:24, 4:4, 4:20, 8:9,
9:8, 12:16, 27:3,
67:4, 184:5,
193:19, 212:22,
238:18, 287:14,
292:8
Starting - 137:5,
181:6, 209:7,
241:8, 278:23,
288:14
Starts - 51:10,
86:4, 89:4, 191:23,
193:14, 200:7,
210:16, 251:22
State - 5:12, 5:22,
5:23, 6:18, 6:19,
64:3, 102:21,
184:10, 272:17
Statement - 85:10,
85:24, 86:18,
87:25, 94:2,
102:24, 116:11,
120:11, 122:21,
130:14, 135:14,
169:18, 170:15,
176:7, 241:22,
288:18
Statements - 83:8,
176:18, 230:3,
246:15, 246:22,
261:19, 264:5,
273:4
Statistics - 117:24
Stay - 35:19, 36:1,
37:25, 111:16,
147:22, 148:23,
```

nobile insurance Revi
214.6 227.20
214:6, 227:20,
279:11
Staying - 294:24
Stays - 115:7,
233:15
Steadily - 287:23
Stein - 18:4, 18:17,
18:19, 19:20
Step - 225:11
Steve - 244:24
Steyn - 16:4
Sticking - 187:16
Sticking - 187:16 Stiffness - 140:13
Stimulation - 3:11,
3:12
Stoic - 125:18
Stood - 239:3
Stop - 152:21,
182:2
Stopped - 248:16,
272:18, 277:23
Stops - 155:8
Story - 288:9
Strain - 90:25,
209:2
Strains - 27:2,
27:16, 28:6,
127:21, 129:2
Strategy - 72:12
Stream - 136:2
Streamlined - 11:1
2
Stress - 28:11,
88:16, 89:13, 90:2,
91:21, 129:10,
178:5
Strictly - 263:12
Stroke - 12:23,
35:24
Stronger - 48:22,
241:11
Strongly - 270:23
Struck - 207:19
Structure - 33:9,
197:12
Struggle - 9:16,
46:25
Struggles - 10:7,
212:19
1
Stuck - 52:18
Stuck - 52:18 Studied - 190:5
Studied - 190:5,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15 Study - 15:14,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15 Study - 15:14, 61:15, 61:21,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15 Study - 15:14, 61:15, 61:21, 97:22, 100:10,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15 Study - 15:14, 61:15, 61:21, 97:22, 100:10, 109:4, 136:18,
Studied - 190:5, 262:16 Studies - 27:24, 39:7, 39:8, 80:6, 128:15 Study - 15:14, 61:15, 61:21, 97:22, 100:10,

Subjected - 33:13, 40:17 Subjective - 58:20 Submission - 12:1 4, 15:17, 15:18, 15:22, 16:5, 17:1, 17:23, 29:19, 63:10, 75:19, 76:11, 134:10, 134:13, 142:13, 189:14, 191:12, 191:14, 192:7, 203:17, 204:9, 235:18, 236:22 **Submissions** - 75: 18, 203:18 **Submitted - 18:17**, 19:1, 52:3 Subsequent - 258: 15, 261:12 **Succeed - 246:8 Success - 12:2.** 206:5 **Sudden -** 90:12 **Sue -** 284:5 **Suffer -** 26:23, 29:15, 31:23, 59:15, 61:3, 153:25, 163:14 Suffered - 26:9, 89:20, 272:14 **Suffering -** 41:23, 43:13, 56:6, 58:5, 58:9, 58:11, 65:22, 137:19, 138:2, 140:21, 146:1, 148:7, 148:9, 149:20, 154:11, 154:13, 154:19, 232:11, 232:24, 237:16, 238:2, 254:16, 273:2, 284:6, 284:17, 284:23, 285:1, 285:17, 286:5, 289:21, 291:20, 293:24 **Suffice -** 234:2 Sufficient - 60:10, 141:8, 141:13 Suggested - 93:14, 168:23, 173:3, 192:8, 213:9, 213:24, 249:24, 250:6 Suggestion - 46:16 239:11 Suggestions - 18:1 , 26:12, 257:19 Suggests - 43:9, 86:16, 153:15,

190:23, 250:10 **Suitable -** 39:10 **Suits - 36:16 Sum -** 6:2 Summaries - 113:6 Summarize - 62:18 Summarizing - 36: **Summary - 36:22**, 98:9 Summation - 145:2 **Summer - 289:15** Sums - 43:23 Sunnybrook - 2:17 Superintendent - 2 48:5 Superintendents -263:17 Supervisor - 2:18 **Supplied - 182:16** Supplies - 3:6 **Support - 25:16.** 36:24, 37:21, 42:14, 55:22, 56:10, 56:13, 56:17, 83:19, 110:17, 120:22, 123:10, 124:2, 124:15, 164:11, 190:11, 232:5 Supportable - 187: **Supported -** 75:18, 106:21 Supporting - 26:5, 78:20, 125:25, 277:21 **Supports -** 36:23, 41:22, 75:21, 190:15 **Suppose - 116:1**, 192:12, 281:17, 287:7 **Supposed - 27:11**, 163:25, 167:11, 167:15, 215:2, 221:12 **Supposes - 115:4.** 115:20 **Supreme -** 272:10 Surgeries - 12:1 **Surgery - 176:12** Surveillance - 275: **Survey -** 67:13, 68:6. 97:22. 100:12 Suspect - 42:20, 221:3, 233:19, 265:14 **Sustain - 136:15**

Sustainable - 251:

Sustained - 14:5, 77:5, 77:11, 107:16, 110:18, 141:10, 153:17 **Symptom - 28:17** Symptomatic - 79: Symptomatology -85:19 Symptomology - 1 30:3, 130:12 **Symptoms - 28:10**, 85:17, 87:18, 89:18, 91:5, 129:10, 129:24, 130:1, 140:12, 144:8, 145:21, 145:22, 147:25, 165:3, 209:5, 209:13 **Syndrome - 131:10** . 205:10 Syndromes - 29:4 **Systems -** 4:24. 45:17, 112:5, 212:4, 246:14, 256:24 Τ **Taking -** 30:3, 35:6, 218:4, 221:13, 235:21, 237:17, 238:1, 238:5, 246:10, 251:24, 280:23 **Tangent - 212:15 Taskforce -** 69:21, 87:9 **Taxpayer - 236:22** Taxpayers - 255:11 , 266:17, 266:20 Teach - 151:4 Team - 158:14, 197:9 **Tease - 131:7** Technical - 236:5 Teleconference - 4 8:9 **Telling - 41:5**, 139:3, 139:6, 142:20, 151:7, 173:8, 192:16, 262:18, 274:8, 274:15, 278:10, 286:12 **Tells - 154:8** Temporary - 147:2 1, 235:8 Temporomandibular - 130:2 , 186:17

Ten - 24:8, 250:8, 289:3 **Tended - 92:4**, 107:5 **Term -** 15:5, 15:7, 25:22, 26:3, 26:19, 27:3, 27:4, 27:6, 27:13, 46:14, 46:17, 62:1, 62:16, 78:13, 84:4, 85:23, 89:24, 102:22, 115:15, 115:25, 126:16, 130:16, 130:20, 214:12, 220:3, 242:14, 290:19 Terms - 22:11, 23:25, 36:16, 53:22, 61:14, 65:13, 66:1, 75:15, 83:3, 84:7, 89:15, 90:18, 102:11, 103:1, 116:24, 126:21, 134:4, 161:9, 184:7, 186:6, 191:25, 193:8, 197:20, 210:23, 212:20, 215:23, 216:1, 216:10, 217:20, 217:22, 222:7, 224:14, 245:23, 251:10, 253:11, 255:2, 256:12, 283:1, 287:3, 287:7, 288:5, 289:19, 289:22 **Test -** 4:19, 178:16 Testifies - 22:18 Testimony - 59:3, 59:6, 62:12, 94:25, 107:17, 115:1, 115:13, 119:13, 124:22, 140:17, 148:17, 157:19 **Text -** 22:11, 24:12 **Thanks - 54:11**, 183:14 **That's' -** 129:16 **Theirs -** 120:23 Theoretically - 153 :15, 171:21, 172:17, 193:10 Therapist - 2:7, 4:1, 74:6, 104:10, 104:14, 104:20, 107:24, 157:21, 195:7, 208:6 Therapists - 92:3, 208:10 **Therapy -** 3:6, 4:7,

4:11, 5:10, 33:16, 77:10, 165:20, 207:16, 207:18 Thereabouts - 156: **Therefore - 130:19**, 150:14, 171:23, 218:1, 256:7, 258:9 **They'd -** 49:23 They'll - 152:11, 202:23, 248:3, 291:19 They've - 21:14, 35:4, 49:24, 50:1, 96:4, 122:12, 143:20, 145:19, 146:4, 179:25, 180:3, 182:24, 198:11 Third - 9:22, 9:25, 13:1, 13:3, 13:9, 14:8, 14:15, 14:16, 14:18, 43:14, 45:10, 97:24, 119:16, 121:6, 121:11, 121:13, 121:16, 132:5, 133:17, 144:22, 216:25, 222:9 Thirty - 105:23, 237:1 **Thorough - 255:15 Thousand - 100:1**, 100:25, 285:11, 288:14, 289:23 Three - 15:21, 15:23, 16:2, 16:7, 16:14, 18:5, 19:14, 37:4, 51:20, 51:21, 51:24, 60:5, 60:6, 60:7, 84:1, 99:25, 100:24, 111:7, 129:1, 136:22, 144:11, 147:1, 155:25, 175:18, 182:14, 196:2, 205:2, 218:2, 218:9, 235:15, 248:22, 267:24 **Threshold - 254:8**, 254:9, 254:14, 290:3, 291:9 **Throw - 124:5 Throwing - 124:6 Thursday - 23:19** Thus - 183:19 Tied - 217:15 Tier - 178:16 Timeframes - 157: 1, 226:22 **Timeline -** 51:22,

182:5 **Timelines - 203:23 Times -** 9:20, 12:1, 28:1, 37:4, 41:7, 51:5, 52:8, 109:20, 112:9, 121:4, 128:16, 142:16, 142:17, 177:5, 187:24, 187:25, 276:19, 285:20, 286:11 **Tissue - 27:1**, 153:18, 175:4, 177:2, 205:3, 219:14, 219:16, 285:16 Today - 13:23, 102:22, 102:24, 125:3, 183:18, 184:5, 187:23, 226:9, 226:15, 230:23, 231:6, 233:3, 234:4, 236:13, 237:11, 238:16, 251:19, 256:13, 259:5, 280:22, 283:10, 285:25, 294:1, 295:9 **Toe -** 30:6, 30:9 **Tolerant - 35:14 Tolerate - 265:16 Tombasso -** 272:11 . 273:4 **Tomorrow -** 226:4, 226:5, 227:24, 251:11, 295:12 **Tonight - 226:12 Took -** 8:24, 124:20 Top - 127:20, 216:12, 286:9 Topic - 15:4, 16:23, 43:14, 67:2, 187:17 **Topics - 16:14**, 18:24, 19:14, 36:1 Torch - 266:1 **Toronto -** 5:8, 11:1, 11:2, 74:10, 243:22, 244:6 **Tort -** 7:16, 7:17, 281:13 **Tough -** 10:13 **Tourist - 293:18** Touted - 192:9 **Towards -** 57:4. 78:19, 242:2, 258:18, 270:13, 288:21 **Trace - 125:19** Track - 54:22, 277:14

Tracked - 150:8 Traditional - 53:5 **Traffic -** 4:9, 12:20, 26:9, 27:23, 34:8, 35:23, 68:1, 70:15, 86:12, 89:4, 90:25, 92:6, 126:18, 128:10, 129:21, 153:17 **Train -** 3:10, 5:13, 178:19 **Trained -** 6:20 **Trainer -** 75:12 Training - 2:7, 5:21, 5:23, 6:13, 6:24, 7:3, 7:5, 7:7, 7:12, 7:15, 9:12, 14:14, 53:20, 73:9, 114:17, 184:6, 184:9, 185:24, 188:20 Transcript - 95:11, 95:23, 278:25 Transcutaneous -3:11 Transferred - 11:11 **Transform - 130:9 Translate - 131:15** Transparency - 24 3:8, 247:2 Traumatic - 2:23, 28:6, 28:8, 28:9, 129:3, 129:8, 129:9 Travel - 280:24 Traveled - 7:13 Traveling - 5:23 **Travels - 295:1** Treat - 35:22, 134:5, 178:15, 185:16, 190:15, 193:14, 204:25, 210:13, 210:15 Treated - 140:23, 145:20, 163:11, 170:16 Treating - 2:11, 67:25, 215:5 Treatments - 32:7, 38:11, 77:3, 78:3, 78:11, 79:1, 83:9, 93:10, 94:1, 94:2, 95:14, 95:17, 99:5, 99:21, 99:23, 100:4, 104:15, 105:7, 107:24, 107:25, 109:14. 113:2, 133:23, 144:16, 152:10, 165:2, 165:9, 173:8, 175:9,

176:2, 180:10,

182:2, 182:15, 182:21, 203:23, 204:17, 220:25 Tremendous - 293: 10 Trend - 258:17, 289:9 **Trends - 242:1**, 258:13, 261:10, 262:11 **Triage - 82:10 Trial - 160:11**, 227:14, 229:21, 230:9, 230:21, 233:1, 238:1, 244:13 **Tricks - 13:21 Tricky - 248:18 Tries - 192:23** Trivializes - 25:24, 46:18 **Trouble -** 9:21. 107:6, 199:3 **Troubling - 274:25 Truly - 293:24 Truncated - 240:11 Truth -** 37:18, 274:8, 274:16, 275:4, 278:10 Tsunami - 242:9 **Tubing - 272:24** Turn - 49:9, 66:19, 150:11 **Turned - 258:18** Twenty - 105:23 Twice - 255:8 **Two -** 10:11, 11:1, 41:3, 45:9, 56:21, 59:1, 59:13, 62:10, 62:12, 63:3, 84:1, 89:9, 90:7, 93:6, 103:14, 105:15, 110:14, 111:7, 112:5, 112:17, 112:19, 114:3, 116:15, 125:4, 129:2, 133:16, 136:5, 141:12, 144:11, 149:11, 150:4, 155:21, 172:14, 178:16, 182:14, 209:6, 216:23, 224:17, 225:18, 232:2, 235:15, 247:1, 256:17, 272:14, 287:17, 288:14 **Tylenol -** 37:16, 37:21, 79:22, 80:23, 220:6, 220:8, 220:9

Types - 33:14, 129:13, 130:11 **Typical - 205:3 Typically -** 28:14, 47:6, 49:24, 99:5, 185:16, 196:10, 218:25, 240:20 U **Unable - 100:10**, 140:9 Uncertain - 291:18 **Uncertainties - 13** 8:15 **Uncertainty - 234**: 10, 234:12 **Unclear - 114:19** Uncomfortable - 4 1:11, 216:7 **Undergraduate - 3** 8:9 Undermine - 216:1 Underneath - 143: Underscore - 212: 11 **Underscoring - 48**: 18 Understandable -263:6 **Understands - 214** :10 Understood - 15:1 3, 124:4 **Undertreated - 91:** 25 **Underway - 136:19 Underwriting - 241** :10, 241:12, 250:4 Unenviable - 254:2 Unethical - 92:21 **Uneven -** 169:9, 179:3 **Unfair -** 42:3, 42:4, 121:21, 201:16, 235:18 **Unfairly - 145:20** Unfamiliar - 203:21 Unfolded - 8:6 **Unfolding -** 262:5, 262:6 Unfortunate - 27:1 2, 167:1, 293:22 **Unfortunately - 27**: 8, 253:5, 254:3, 269:19, 280:20

Unhappy - 270:7

Universal - 188:6

Unintelligible - 142

2017 Automobile Insurance Review University - 5:8, 5:21, 8:12, 74:9, 249:6 **Unknown - 98:8**, 98:15 Unless - 151:11, 232:13 **Unlike - 232:15** Unlikely - 42:9 Unrealistic - 137:1 Unreasonable - 42 :21, 42:22 Unreliable - 260:25 Unresolved - 242:1 Unusual - 63:14, 263:21 Unwilling - 217:1 **Update - 107:23 Updated - 264:15**, 272:21 **Updates - 292:19 Upfront - 230:11 Ups -** 143:24, 146:24, 147:12,

147:15 **Upsetting - 236:23 Urging - 242:13** Used - 25:22, 26:20, 27:4, 27:14, 41:20, 84:5, 89:24, 121:22, 126:20, 131:14, 133:7, 135:18, 143:19, 171:18, 190:20, 248:14, 251:23, 277:18, 285:24, 289:19 **Using -** 11:15, 29:21, 58:18, 126:13, 130:19,

141:1, 174:8, 243:3, 264:14 **UT -** 5:11 **Utility -** 149:14 Utilization - 34:6, 67:14 **Utilize -** 133:25,

134:1

Utilized - 101:21, 109:7

٧

Validate - 100:14 Validated - 100:8 Validity - 76:5 Value - 165:11, 286:7, 286:17 **Vanishes - 285:9** Variable - 292:24

Variation - 140:2 Varies - 208:24, 266:6 Variety - 2:9, 3:22, 15:3, 30:4, 32:22, 33:14, 35:21, 164:9, 208:23 **Varying - 165:17** Vast - 233:13 Vehicle - 4:5, 44:25, 59:2, 77:6, 77:12, 77:23, 87:24, 88:13, 89:10, 91:22, 177:19, 177:20, 202:18, 203:1, 252:16, 252:18, 258:6, 272:15 Vein - 187:18 Verbal - 254:8, 254:14 Verifiable - 246:15, 257:7 **Verify -** 100:10 **Versus -** 161:18, 169:10 Vice - 240:6 Victim - 34:1, 146:13, 168:8, 169:14, 177:9 Victims - 55:17, 55:18, 59:1, 94:18, 102:10, 103:14, 111:14, 179:3, 234:24, 235:17, 244:22, 246:11 View - 39:12, 85:21, 124:15, 150:16, 195:16, 200:3, 205:14, 213:16, 215:3 Viewer - 293:4 Views - 122:20, 123:7, 124:1, 124:2 Viivi - 1:7, 2:6, 196:24 Visit - 99:6 **Visiting - 293:17** Visits - 34:9, 181:4, 186:16, 204:6, 207:15 Voicing - 241:24 Volunteered - 5:20 Voting - 70:25, 71:1, 71:3, 71:5, 71:10, 71:20. 71:21, 71:24, 72:2, 72:7, 84:15 **VP -** 241:22

W Wage - 110:18 **Wages - 145:6** Wait - 112:25, 113:17 Waiting - 4:6, 4:10, 11:25, 118:22, 181:1, 189:15, 190:2 Waives - 259:15 Walk - 2:1, 119:2, 138:10, 193:11, 198:12 Walked - 90:11 **Walkers - 3:16 Wanting -** 58:8 Wants - 105:16, 168:8 Ward - 82:4, 82:22 **Warning - 242:9** Wasn't - 6:4, 11:2, 15:14, 17:22, 46:11, 95:20, 142:13, 283:21 Waste - 42:8 Water - 120:8. 121:23, 123:9, 142:4, 272:24 Ways - 160:7, 161:5, 192:19, 214:13, 224:19, 293:22 Weaker - 35:13 Wearing - 38:15 Website - 32:12, 32:13, 32:15 We'd - 225:25 Wednesday - 58:2 5, 194:13 Week - 37:4, 51:19, 51:20, 97:7, 103:19, 124:23, 144:12, 165:23, 209:6, 238:19, 245:10 Weekly - 105:17 Weeks - 51:19, 52:12, 111:7, 144:11, 147:2, 147:8, 165:21, 190:10, 190:13 **Welcome - 229:5** We'll - 1:13, 20:9, 24:17, 24:21, 25:12, 50:14, 80:19, 120:7, 159:11, 202:2, 202:24, 211:3,

295:13

Weren't - 64:24,

177:22, 291:3

We've - 22:4, 47:8, 73:11, 76:14, 96:2, 102:9, 110:14, 122:9, 124:11, 124:12, 129:19, 130:4, 152:9, 186:9, 186:15, 187:23, 189:4, 212:3, 225:17, 234:4, 238:24, 239:4, 258:25, 269:19, 280:21 Whack - 271:8 What's - 38:20. 48:13, 53:22, 78:16, 100:2, 130:4, 149:9, 149:19, 158:6, 165:8, 177:4, 186:12, 186:13, 204:13, 205:11, 205:23, 206:19, 206:23, 208:7, 210:15, 233:6, 234:18, 240:10, 268:24, 282:7, 288:6, 288:9 Wheel - 235:13 Wheelchairs - 3:16 Whereas - 125:21, 160:5 Whereby - 180:20, 199:3 Whichever - 265:9 Whiplash - 27:1, 27:16, 38:12, 38:20, 38:23, 60:4, 127:22, 163:5 White - 10:10 Whole - 90:22, 126:4, 147:23, 174:7, 204:24, 205:13 Who's - 168:2, 261:24 Wide - 292:25 **Wider -** 169:12 Willing - 16:7, 156:25 **Win -** 169:3 Wise - 294:6 **Wisely -** 55:5 Wish - 133:24, 189:9, 217:11 Wishes - 230:5 **Withdraw - 34:24** Witness - 22:14, 22:18, 24:10, 68:19, 69:2, 69:15, 69:16, 222:11,

283:10, 294:1 Witnesses - 228:5 Woman - 60:4, 60:5, 176:10, 272:14 Woman's - 222:18 Wonderful - 133:1 Wonderfully - 93:9 Won't - 29:9, 188:11, 188:14 Word - 26:1, 123:3, 125:25, 126:1, 126:13, 126:19, 129:3, 138:6, 156:14, 170:14, 192:12 Worded - 178:14 Words - 58:18, 79:12, 127:1, 127:8, 127:9, 143:23, 171:18, 175:5, 187:25, 285:24 Worked - 2:12, 2:13, 2:16, 3:5, 3:14, 6:1, 53:14, 56:23, 67:22, 72:7, 103:5, 106:18, 185:23, 187:14, 198:20, 221:6, 243:22, 256:5 Workers - 2:14, 87:23 Workers' - 219:13 **Working - 2:8**, 2:10, 5:6, 9:5, 10:20, 12:8, 13:9, 34:3, 36:18, 47:19, 48:13, 48:14, 48:23, 67:20, 69:23, 121:16, 121:18, 154:15, 166:19, 186:13, 195:17, 207:1. 270:16, 290:23, 291:3 Workplace - 2:15 Works - 5:16, 9:1, 9:13, 10:8, 36:5, 36:9, 47:18, 78:25, 93:9, 113:21, 171:22, 195:24, 213:12, 216:1, 216:7, 263:24 World - 30:12. 30:16, 68:5, 72:6, 133:3, 136:21, 174:5, 224:12 Worldwide - 37:11, 153:17

Worse - 34:7, 41:9 Worth - 238:1, 238:9, 286:6 Wouldn't - 36:3, 59:25, 60:14, 61:5, 62:25, 95:17, 126:20, 132:10, 141:11, 161:7, 176:7, 182:21, 189:16, 191:16, 291:5 Wow - 181:7 Write - 204:10, 206:23, 270:1, 270:19, 275:15 Written - 36:20, 36:22, 76:11 Wrote - 18:16, 242:12, 274:4 Wyman - 61:15, 96:23, 97:18 **Wynperle's - 276:4**

Χ

XYZ - 261:18

Υ

Ya - 121:20, 148:15 Year - 15:12, 49:4, 119:22, 176:5, 232:2, 235:9, 249:18, 250:8, 250:12, 257:22, 257:23, 258:23, 261:11, 265:24, 266:5, 266:6, 285:21, 287:19, 288:25, 290:15 Years - 2:16, 13:14, 33:13, 66:2, 66:16, 87:21, 119:21, 120:4, 134:6, 140:20, 140:22, 140:24, 142:21, 147:7, 175:18, 175:23, 178:2, 182:3, 182:11, 182:14, 182:15, 219:20, 221:4, 230:13, 230:24, 231:21, 234:25, 235:15, 237:1, 238:24, 240:25, 244:15, 244:17, 248:16, 249:25, 253:18, 258:3, 258:16, 261:13, 263:1, 264:2, 271:6, 271:10, 287:17, 288:7,

275:19, 278:22,

288:11, 289:24, 290:13 Yesterday - 1:8, 176:10 Yoga - 37:4, 39:6 York - 248:24, 249:5 You'd - 25:3, 194:22, 245:25, 280:8 You'll - 22:12, 84:4, 126:11 **Young -** 56:25, 174:3, 177:18, 177:25, 272:14 **Yours -** 106:4 Yourselves - 280:2 You've - 16:1, 19:14, 19:22, 38:9, 59:18, 64:11, 65:12, 80:14, 83:10, 92:24, 119:24, 120:7, 120:9, 121:11, 121:23, 122:10, 130:20, 144:21, 145:1, 149:23, 155:8, 155:10, 169:8, 171:1, 171:21, 172:24, 184:9, 196:4, 197:15, 205:17, 256:13, 262:16

'79 - 63:18 '90s - 66:16 '96 - 254:19, 287:15 'Insurers - 98:10

\$

\$1,000.00 - 117:10 **\$10,000 -** 287:15 **\$10,000.00 -** 127:8 **\$100,000 -** 240:17 **\$100,000.00 -** 146: 5, 252:13, 252:19 **\$125,000 -** 285:2, 285:9 **\$140.00 -** 97:7, 103:19 **\$2,000.00 -** 100:2 **\$2,500 -** 232:15 **\$25,000 -** 44:1 **\$25,000.00 -** 97:2, 97:8, 101:6, 117:17, 117:22, 118:3 **\$3,000.00 -** 101:11,

101:21, 117:11 **\$3,058.00 -** 98:18, 99:10, 99:17 **\$3,500 -** 233:8, 233:9, 233:17, 240:18 **\$3,500.00 -** 251:25, 252:13, 253:7 **\$38,000 -** 232:15, 232:21, 284:25, 286:8 **\$4,000.00 -** 117:11 **\$462.00 -** 98:21 **\$5.000 -** 56:5 **\$5,000,000.00** - 14 6:19 **\$5,000.00 -** 117:5, 146:19 **\$50,000 -** 44:22, 232:19, 232:20 **\$50,000.00 -** 100:1 9, 101:16, 102:5, 117:2, 117:22, 118:2 **\$7,500 -** 238:7 **\$75,000 -** 286:6 **\$85,000 -** 286:6 **\$90.00 -** 99:7

1

1.5 - 249:8, 249:13, 253:13 **1:00 -** 214:2 1:10 - 229:2 **1:17 -** 229:3 **1:30 -** 242:6 **1:45 -** 253:19 **10 -** 90:11, 102:24, 112:2, 203:16, 203:18, 204:6, 216:11, 231:20, 288:7, 288:11 **10:00 -** 53:15 **10:15 -** 73:15 **10:30 -** 91:7 **10:45 -** 109:17 **10:53 -** 118:15 **100 -** 35:5, 103:8, 191:3 **108 -** 43:5 **11 -** 97:17 **11:24 -** 118:16 **11:30 -** 124:9 **11:45 -** 139:1 **12 -** 51:18, 51:19, 51:20, 52:12,

190:10, 248:16

12:00 - 152:16

12:15 - 172:21

12:45 - 204:14

12:30 - 187:6

13 - 55:20, 235:21, 248:16 **14th** - 272:8, 278:2 **15 -** 66:2, 66:16, 71:8, 147:7, 241:14, 287:16, 288:7, 288:11, 288:17 **16 -** 249:15, 250:13 **17 -** 234:23 **184 -** 272:21 **19 -** 98:10 **1984 -** 11:21 **1986 -** 3:3, 3:5 **1989 -** 5:11 **1990 -** 231:16, 254:12 **1991 -** 3:3, 3:5, 3:13 **1992 -** 3:24, 73:1 **1993 -** 3:13 **1994 -** 66:25. 67:19, 287:14 **1996 -** 230:17. 254:18 **1999 -** 243:23

2

2:00 - 269:13

2:15 - 287:10 **2:25 -** 295:15 **2:30 -** 229:10 **20 -** 70:22, 105:21 **2000 -** 8:8, 8:18, 119:22 **2000s -** 66:18 **2001 -** 43:6 **2002 -** 230:18 **2003 -** 64:18, 64:23, 68:23, 287:16 2004 - 16:23, 48:6, 64:18, 64:21, 64:24, 67:10, 68:23 **2006 -** 10:25, 11:4 **2007 -** 64:25, 65:6, 112:12 **2008** - 66:25, 68:3, 68:12, 73:1, 73:2, 243:23 **2009 -** 69:7, 241:13 **2010 -** 11:4, 67:10, 240:15, 241:9, 242:15, 252:15, 252:22, 253:9, 253:18, 286:24, 287:9, 290:17 **2011 -** 69:21 **2012 -** 65:10,

2013 - 12:16, 70:6, 240:5, 264:2, 288:14 **2014 -** 37:19, 121:4, 237:2, 255:10, 258:25, 264:2 2015 - 272:11 2016 - 249:8, 249:20, 250:12, 253:13, 253:18, 262:25 **2017 -** 43:6, 72:12 **2018 -** 96:23. 97:21, 98:10, 100:10, 189:14, 267:19, 272:9, 278:2 **21 -** 204:6 **22 -** 168:25, 176:5 **234 -** 98:18 **235 -** 98:15, 99:9, 101:10 **25** - 96:23, 219:10,

3

256:1

26 - 190:12

27 - 241:17

30 - 99:21, 105:21, 136:21, 136:24, 186:16, 287:17 **38** - 43:7, 285:11, 287:19, 289:23 **3rd** - 267:19, 278:2

4

40 - 219:20, 287:20 **48 -** 134:6

5

5.1 - 250:16 **5:00** - 228:16 **50** - 86:16, 86:22, 87:18, 134:18, 135:2, 135:9, 156:22, 210:1, 233:25 **50/50** - 36:10

6

60 - 249:7 **6th -** 23:10, 23:13

7

70 - 233:1, 233:2 **75** - 3:19, 175:2, 252:24 **7th** - 134:12 80 - 153:16 82 - 176:12 85 - 87:18, 252:24 9 9:00 - 1:1, 295:12

241:13, 249:4,

264:2